
PPG Industries, Inc.
One PPG Place Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15272 USA

Law Department
Tetecopy No.: (412) 434-<4291
Wrller's Direct Dial No.:

412-434-2465

November 14, 1995

VIA OVERNIGHT MAIL
Joseph Cosentino, OSC
Removal Action Branch
Emergency and Remedial Response Division
U .S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region II
2890 Woodbridge Avenue
Edison, NJ 08837

Re: Bayonne Barrel & Drum Superfund Site
150-154 Baymond Boulevard
Newark, Essex County, New Jersey

Dear Mr. Cosentino:

PPG Industries, Inc. hereby submits its response to the United States Environmental Protection
Agency's (USEPA) Request for Information pursuant to Section l04(e) of CERCLA, 42 U .S.C.
Section 9604(e), regarding the Bayonne Barrel & Drum Superfund Site (Site), located in Newark, New
Jersey. As you recall, PPG was granted an extension until November 15, 1995 to respond to this
Request.

INFORMATION REQUESTED

1. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

a. State the correct legal name of the Company.

RESPONSE: PPG Industries, Inc.

b. Identify the legal status of the Company (corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, specify
if other) and the state in which the Company was organized.

RESPONSE: PPG is a Corporation. PPG was incorporated in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

c. State the name(s) and address(es) of the President and the Chairperson of the Board of the
Company.
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RESPONSE:
Jerry E. Dempsey,
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
PPG Industries, Inc.
One PPG Place
Pittsburgh, PA 15272

d. If the Company has subsidiaries or affiliates, or is a subsidiary of another organization, identify
these related companies and state the name(s) and addressees) of the President(s) and the
Chairperson(s) of the Board of those organizations. Provide such infC?rrnationfor any further
parent/subsidiary relationships.

RESPONSE: PPG is not a subsidiary of any other organization. PPG has over 100 subsidiaries and
affiliates, none of which appear to be relevant to this Site. PPG will provide this information if it
becomes relevant to the Site.

e. If the Company is a successor to, or has been succeeded by, another company, identify such
other company and provide the same information requested above for the predecessor or
successor company.

RESPONSE: Prior to 1968, PPG was known as Pittsburgh Plate Glass Company.

f. If the Company transacted business with Bayonne Barrel & Drum in the name of an entity not
disclosed above, give the name of such entity and state its relationship to the Company.

RESPONSE: Not Applicable

2. COMPANy'S RELATIONSIDP TO BAYONNE BARREL & DRUM

a. State whether the Company or any Company facility transacted any business with Bayonne
Barrel & Drum for the disposal, treatment, or storage of any barrels, drums, or other
containers (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Containers. ")

RESPONSE: PPG has received information from USEPA which suggests that drums associated with
PPG were sent to Bayonne Barrel & Drum Company (Bayorme) between October 1980 to July 1981.

i. If so, describe the relationship (nature of services rendered or products
sold to the Company) between the Company and Bayonne Barrel &
Drum;

RESPONSE: Mr. Salvatore Valvano, a retired PPG employee, recollects that PPG's Newark facility
used Bayonne as a drum recycler and reconditioner, from time to time, between 1957 and 1971, when
the Newark facility was sold. According to Mr. Valvano, Bayonne would maintain an inventory of
drums at the Site for PPG and PPG would call when they needed reconditioned drums. Mr. Valvano
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was unable to estimate the frequency of shipments or the number of drums per shipment. Me. Valvano
also recalls that PPG stenciled "Property of PPG -- Return to Bayonne Barrel & Drwn" on many of the
product drums that originated from the Newark facility

In addition, please see attached which was provided to PPG from USEPA.

ii. Provide copies of any contracts or agreements between the Company
and Bayonne Barrel & Drwn;

RESPONSE: A diligent review of PPG's records and interviews with PPG employees has disclosed no
documents or other information responsive to this question. PPG has attached hereto a copy of the
information which was provided to PPG from USEPA relating to Bayonne.

ill. For each such facility, state the nature of the operations conducted at
the facility, including the time period in which the facility operated;
and

RESPONSE: PPG manufactured paint, varnish and resins at its Newark Paint Plant during the
relevant period. Raw materials were mixed to produce paints, cooked to produce varnish or reacted to
produce resins, which were then used in paints. Finished products were shipped in tankwagons, drums
or smaller containers. PPG operated the Newark Paint Plant from 1902 until 1971, when the plant was
sold. PPG has no information and EPA did not provide any documentation to PPG which indicates that
PPG shipped directly to the Site from any facility owned or operated by PPG.

iv. For each such facility, state its name, address, and current RCRA
Identification Number.

RESPONSE: PPG's Newark Paint Plant was located at 29 Riverside Avenue, Newark, New Jersey.
It had no RCRA Identification Number, as it closed in 1971, before RCRA was enacted.

b. In addition, if the Company transacted business with Bayonne Barrel & Drum,
provide the following information for each transaction:

i. Identify the specific dates of each transaction. Where an exact date
carutot be provided for a transaction, provide an approximation by
month and year;

RESPONSE: PPG does not have any information responsive to this question other than to state that,
according to Mr. Valvano, PPG used Bayonne as a drum recycler and reconditioner, from time to time,
between 1957 and 1971. Neither PPG nor Mr. Valvano has knowledge as to whether Bayorute was
used prior to 1957.

Please see the attached information for specific dates of transactions which allegedly occurred between
October 1980 to JUly 1981, after the Newark facility was sold.
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A diligent review of PPG's records and interviews with PPG employees has disclosed no infonnation
which suggests that any PPG related drums went to BayolUle between 1971 and 1980.

ii. Identify the number of Containers that were the subject of each such
transaction;

RESPONSE: PPG is unable to estimate the number of containers allegedly involved in transactions
involving the fonner Newark Paint Plant. Please see the attached information provided to PPG from
USEPA for an estimate of the alleged transactions which occurred between October 1980 to July 1981.

iii. Generically describe each Container that was the subject of each such
transaction (example: closed-head steel drums, etc.);

RESPONSE: Containers typically would involve closed head or open head 55 gallon steel drums.

iv. Identify the intended purpose of each such transaction;

RESPONSE: See response to 2.a.i. above.

v. State whether each Container that was the subject of the transaction
contained any substance at the time of the transaction. As to each
Container that contained any substance:

RESPONSE: PPG has no information about the contents of the returned product drums that allegedly
originated from the Newark Paint Plant. Typically, however, the drums would have been empty since
the contents would have been used by the customer prior to returning the drums to Bayonne for
recycling and reconditioning.

Please see the attached documents which imply that the drums were typically empty paint thinner drums
or empty ELPO paint drums. ELPO was a waterbased paint used for automobile primer. More
specific information is not available.

(1) Identify each such substance, including its chemical content,
physical state, quantity by volume and weight, and other
characteristics; and

RESPONSE: A diligent review of PPG's records and interviews with PPG employees has disclosed no
documents or other information responsive to this question.

(2) Provide all written analyses that may have been made for each
such substance or which may be in the custody or control of
the Company and all material safety data sheets, if any,
relating to each such substance;
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RESPONSE: A diligent review of PPG's records and interviews with PPG employees has disclosed no
documents or other infonnation responsive to this question.

vi. If you contend that any such Container did not contain any substance at
the time of the transaction:

(1) State whether such Container had previously been used by the
Company to contain any substance, and if so:

(a) Identify all substances previously contained within such
Container, including its chemical content, physical
state, and other characteristics; and

(b) Provide as to such substances, all written analyses that
may have been made for each such substance or which
may be in the custody or control of the Company and
all material safety data sheets, if any, relating to each
such substance;

RESPONSE: Please see the response to 2.b.v. above, which is responsive to the above questions.

vii. Describe in detail any treatment of any Container that may have been
perfonned by or on behalf of the Company prior to the time that the
Container was transferred from the Company, including any process or
procedure by which the Container was emptied or cleaned;

RESPONSE: A diligent review of PPG's records and interviews with PPG employees has disclosed no
documents or other infonnation responsive to this question.

viii. Provide copies of all documents relating in any way to each
transaction, including copies of delivery receipts, invoices, or payment
devices;

RESPONSE: A diligent review of PPG's records and interviews with PPG employees has disclosed no
documents or other infonnation responsive to this question. PPG's record retention policy provides for
the destruction of accounting and purchasing records after seven years. Ple~se see the attached
infonnation which was provided to PPG from USEPA.

ix. Identify all persons who might have knowledge of the transaction or
who had any responsibility regarding the transaction; and

RESPONSE: PPG has conducted interviews with several current and fonner PPG employees. At the
present time PPG is unable to identify persons who might have knOWledge of specific transactions or
who may have had responsibility for transactions relating to Bayonne.
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x. If you sent any Container by means of any third party transporter,
identify each such transporter, including the name and address of such
transporter, and identify in which of the transactions such transporter
acted.

RESPONSE: A diligent review of PPG's records and interviews with PPG employees has disclosed no
documents or other information responsive to this question

3. Identify any other person (~, individual, company, partnership, etc.) having knOWledge of
facts relating to the questions which are the subject of this inquiry. For each such person that you
identify, provide the name, address, and telephone number of that person, and the basis of your belief
that he or she has such knowledge. For past and present employees, include their job title and a
description of their responsibilities.

RESPONSE: Mr. Salvatore Valvano, a retired PPG employee. Mr. Valvano was director of Raw
Materials Supply at Newark until late 1970 or early 1971, when the Newark Plant was sold. Mr.
Valvano currently resides at 310 Allview Road, Westerville, OH 43081. His phone number is 614-
891-4366.

4. Identify each person consulted in responding to the questions and correlate each person to the
question on which he or she was consulted.

RESPONSE: Although several persons were consulted in response to this Request for Information,
Mr. Valvano was the only person who could provide responsive answers. Please see the responses to
Questions 2.a.i., 2.b.i., and 3.

s. Provide a list of all insurance policies and indemnification agreements held or entered into by
you that may indemnify you against any liability that you may be found to have under CERCLA.
Specify the insurer, type of policy, effective dates, and state per occurrence policy limits for each
policy. Copies of policies may be provided in lieu of a narrative response. In response to this request,
please provide not only those policies and agreements that are currently in effect, but also those in
effect since your company began sending Containers to the Site.

RESPONSE: PPG has several insurance policies with varying coverage. Insurance policies will be
made available for inspection if their terms become relevant to the Site.

6. State whether there exists any agreement or contract (other than an insurance policy) which
may indemnify the Company, present or past directors, officers or owners of shares in the Company,
for any liaoility that may result under CERCLA. Provide a copy of any such agreement or contract.
Identify any agreement or contract that you are unable to locate or obtain.

RESPONSE: PPG is not aware of any such agreements or contracts.
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7. Supply any additional infonnation or documents that may be relevant or useful to identify other
sources who disposed of or transported Containers to the Site.

RESPONSE: PPG has no such infonnation.

The foregoing responses have been based upon a diligent search of PPG records and interviews
with current and former PPG employees. If you have any questions regarding this response, please
contact the undersigned.

Very truly yours,

Michelle I. Ritter
Senior Attorney

MIR/lj

cc: Marc Seidenberg, Esq. - USEPA, Region n

g/mriltcr/bbdlO4e.doc
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Whittakeg Whittaker Corporation
1955 N. Surveyor Avenue
Simi Valley. California 93063-3386
Telephone: (805) 526-5700
Facsimile: (805) 526·4369

LyMe M. O. Brickner, Ext. 648
Assistant General Counsel

February 2, 1996

Mr. Joseph Cosentino, OSC
Removal Action Branch
Emergency and Remedial Response Division
U. S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region II
2890 Woodbridge Avenue
Edison, NJ 08837

Via Federal Express

Marc Seidenberg, Esq.
Office of Regional Counsel
U. S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region II
290 Broadway, 17th Floor
New York, NY 10007

Via Federal Express

Re: Bayonne Barrel & Drum, Newark, New Jersey
Request for Information under Section 104(e)
of CERCLA - Response of Whittaker Corporation
on behalf of Whittaker Corp., Haynes Divifsionl

Gentlemen:

This letter is in response to two letters dated September 28, 1995 and December 22, 1995
from Kathleen C. Callahan, Director, Emergency and Remedial Response Division, USEPA,
to "Whittaker Corp., Haynes Divi[sion]" requesting information from Whittaker Corp., Haynes
Division in Chicopee, Massachusetts ("Chicopee Facility") in connection with the Bayonne
Barrel & Drum Site in Newark, New Jersey (the "Site") ("Information Request"). At present,
Morton International, Inc., Chicago Illinois ("Morton"), is the owner of the Chicopee Facility.

In a telephone conversation with Ms. Donna Murphy of the USEPA on January 12, 1996,
I informed Ms. Murphy (who called me in response to my recorded message on the Bayonne
Barrel & Drum Telephone Hotline) that Whittaker Corporation ("Whittaker") entered into a
Purchase and Sale Agreement on February 9, 1990 (the "Whittaker Agreement") by which
Morton acquired certain assets of Whittaker, including assets constituting the Chicopee Facility,
on March 30, 1990. Under the terms of the Whittaker Agreement, Whittaker retained all "off-
site environmental liabilities" which are defined as "any claim, liability, loss, damage,
obligation, notice of violation, notice of potential liability, or judgment associated with any
disposition, treatment on, transport to or delivery to any property ojJfJ~ &ll!roperty. "

TIERRA-B-005934



Joseph Cosentino, OSC
Marc Seidenberg, Esq.
Re: Bayonne Barrel & Drum
February 2, 1996
Page 2

As Whittaker retained all "off-site environmental liabilities" such as those, if any, related to the
Site, it is herewith responding to the Information Request made to "Whittaker Corp., Haynes
Divi[sion]." I understand from Jeffrey C. Wyant, Esq., Environmental Counsel to Morton, that
he has advised you of the same.

Please be advised that this response and any subsequent correspondence does not
constitute a waiver of any defense, right or obligation that Whittaker (or any subsidiary, affiliate,
division or operating unit thereof) has, may have or may acquire as to the Information Request
or as to the USEP A's designation of Whittaker as a potentially responsible party. Whittaker
specifically reserves any and all rights, privileges and opportunities it has, may have or may
acquire under any federal, state or local law, regulation or ordinance, including the right to
challenge the Information Request as being overly broad or in excess of statutory authority.
This response is being submitted without admission of any liability with respect to the Site. All
information herein is provided to the best current knowledge information and belief of the
person(s) furnishing such information. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have
the identical meaning as in the Information Request.

The following responses correspond to the numbered questions in the Information
Request.

1. a. Whittaker Corporation

b. Whittaker Corporation is a corporation organized under the laws of the
State of Delaware.

c. Chairman of the Board: Joseph F. Alibrandi
President, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer: Thomas
A. Brancati

d. Whittaker has 13 Wholly-owned active subsidiaries. Mr. Thomas A.
Brancati serves as President of each subsidiary.

e. Whittaker owned and operated seven unincorporated operational divisions
engaged in the specialty coatings business, one of which was the Chicopee
Facility. On March 30, 1990, the Chicopee Facility was sold to Morton.
Whittaker acquired the Chicopee Facility in through an acquisition of all
of the outstanding shares of its parent, CPL Corporation, East Providence,
Rhode Island ("CPL"), and a merger of Whittaker Chemicals & Coatings
Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Whittaker, into CPL on
January 10, 1979. CPL merged into Whittaker Corporation on April 1,

C :\LMOB\CORRES\EPACHIC. F02
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1979. The Chicopee Facility was identified by CPL as, and its operations
were conducted through its Haynes Chemicals & Coatings Division.
Whittaker operated the Chicopee Facility as an unincorporated division.
The responses herein pertain to the time period of Whittaker's ownership
of the Chicopee Facility commencing January 10, 1979 through March 30,
1990.

f. Whittaker is informed and believes that CPL through its Haynes Division
at its Chicopee Facility transacted business with Bayonne Barrel & Drum
by purchasing Containers for a few months prior to the acquisition of CPL
by Whittaker.

2. a. The Company's Haynes Division at its Chicopee Facility transacted
business with Bayonne Barrel & Drum but ceased such transactions in
1983. Whittaker's Chicopee Facility purchased reconditioned Containers
from Bayonne Barrel & Drum to be used in the distribution of products
it manufactured and, in return, the Chicopee Facility sold empty
Containers to Bayonne Barrel & Drum for reconditioning.

(i) Whittaker has no copies of any contracts or agreements between
the Company's Chicopee Facility and Bayonne Barrel & Drum.

(ii) Whittaker is informed and believes that the Chicopee Facility has
been operational since 1963. Whittaker acquired the Chicopee
Facility on January 10, 1979 and Whittaker sold the Chicopee
Facility to Morton on March 30, 1990. During the time periods
noted above, the Chicopee Facility had been engaged in
manufacturing industrial coatings, lacquers, stains, baking
enamels, vinyl solutions and epoxy coatings.

(iii) The Chicopee Facility is located at 40 Burnett Road, Chicopee,
Massachusetts 01020, and its current RCRA identification number
is unknown.

b. (i) The specific dates or, in the alternative, approximate dates for
each transaction between the Chicopee Facility and Bayonne Barrel
& Drum are unknown. Attached to this response is a Schedule of
Accounts Payable Transactions which summarizes accounts payable
transactions with Bayonne Barrel & Drum during the period from
1979 through 1983. Whittaker's former employees have advised

C ;ILMOBICORRES\EPACHIC.F02
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us that no other records regarding transactions between the
Chicopee Facility and Bayonne Barrel & Drum are available. To
the best and current recollection of persons who were former
Whittaker Chicopee employees, no transactions with Bayonne
Barrel & Drum occurred after 1983.

(ii) The number of Containers that were the subject of such
transactions is unknown and no records are available.

(iii) The description of each Container that was the subject of each
such transaction is unknown; however, generally the types of
Containers included closed head and open head steel drums. No
records are available.

(iv) The intended purpose of such transactions was for the Chicopee
Facility to receive credit for purchases of reconditioned Containers
by supplying Containers for reconditioning of Containers by
Bayonne Barrel & Drum.

(v) At the time of transactions involving the Containers, empty
Containers were sent by the Chicopee Facility to Bayonne Barrel
& Drum for reconditioning.

1. Not applicable.

2. Not applicable.

(vi) The empty Containers sent for reconditioning may have previously
contained materials that could be subject to classification as
"Hazardous Materials."

(a) The identification of the exact materials is unknown but is
believed to have included those substances typically utilized
at that time in manufacture of coatings such as resins,
solvents, lacquers and sealants.

(b) It is unknown whether written analysis of such substances,
material and dates were maintained. No copies of such
written records, if any, are available.

C :\LMOB\CORRES\EPACHIC.F02
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(vii) Containers that were emptied were emptied through normal use in
the manufacture of industrial coatings by the Chicopee Facility of
the substances stored and shipped therein.

(viii) Whittaker has no copies of documents relating to each transaction
with Bayonne Barrel & Drum (such as delivery receipts, invoices
or payment devices) and has been informed by its former
employees who are currently employed by Morton at the Chicopee
Facility that none are available.

(ix) Former Whittaker employees who may have knowledge of
transactions with Bayonne Barrel & Drum include:

Robert J. Landers, Facility President
Jack Perlow, Purchasing and Operations Manager

(x) It is unknown whether a third party transporter was utilized to
transport empty Containers to the Site and no records of the
relevant transactions and of the names and addresses are available.

3. Mr. Robert 1. Landers (who is currently a consultant for Morton) is a former
employee of Whittaker at the Chicopee Facility. Mr. Landers' home address is
348 Poplar S1., Feeding Hills, MA 01030 and his business telephone number is
(413) 592-4191 and his home tel~phone number is (413) 786-0505. Mr. Perlow
is also a former employee of Whittaker at the Chicopee Facility. Mr. Perlow's
home address is 11 Reynolds Street, Lenox, MA 01240 and his home telephone
number is (413) 637-4950.

4. Mr. Robert J. Landers was consulted by Whittaker in responding to the
Information Request.

5. A listing of all insurance policies and indemnification agreements as requested,
are being reviewed and if coverage is available under such policies, such listings
will be provided in a subsequent response to Question 5. Please be advised that
in the past, certain of Whittaker's insurers have expressly disclaimed or denied
coverage for environmental claims.

6. After a review of documents relating to the Chicopee Facility, there does not
appear to exist, any agreement or contract (other than insurance policies, if any)
which would indemnify the Company for any liability related to the Site that may

C :\LMOB\CORRES\EPACHIC.F02
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arise under CERCLA. Under the Company's Restated Certificate of
Incorporation and Bylaws, as amended, the past and present directors of the
Company have limited liability and the Company's officers, employees and agents
are indemnified, all to the fullest extent permissible under Delaware law. A copy
of excerpts from the Company's Restated Certificate ofIncorporation and Bylaws,
relating to such provisions, is enclosed

7. None.

Please be advised that Whittaker Corporation's corporate policy is not to decline
responsibility with respect to its involvement in such matters and that we are willing to assist
in the performance or financing of activities determined by the USEPA to be necessary at the
Site. All future correspondence with regard to this matter should be sent to me at the address
noted above.

Attached to this letter is a Certification of Answers to Request for Information, as
executed before a Notary Public.

Very truly yours,

~'u{P~U--
Lynne M. O. Brickner

LMOB:ea
Enclosures

cc: Jeffrey C. Wyant. Esq.
Gary W. Kruger
Richard B. Levin

C:\LMOB\CORRES\EPACHlC.F02
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State of Delaware

Office of the Secretary of State PAGE 1

I, EDWARD J. FREEL, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND CORRECT

COpy OF THE CERTIFICATE OF CORRECTION OF "WHITTAKER

CORPORATION", FILED IN THIS OFFICE ON THE SIXTEENTH DAY OF

MARCH, A.D. 1990, AT 10 O'CLOCK h.M.

AUTHENTIC AnON:
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STATE OF DELAWARE
SECRETARY OF STATE

DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS
. FILED 10:00 AM 03/16/1990

900755101 - 2086664
CERTIFICATE OF CORRECTION

OF
CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION

OF
vlliITTAKER CORPORATION

Whittaker Corporation, a corporation organized and
existing under and by virtue of the General Corporation Law
of the State of Delaware (the "Corporationll), does hereby
certify as follows:

FIRST: That the Certificate of Designation of
Series D Participating convertible Preferred Stock of Whit-
taker Corporation filed in the office of the Secretary of
state of Delaware on June 28, 1989 (the "Series D Certificate
of Designation") has been found to be an inaccurate in cer-
tain respects and, therefore, requires correction pursuant to
Section 103(f) of the General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware, 8 Del. C. section 103(f).

SECOND: The Series D certificate of Designation
(i) incorrectly stated in Section 2(B) that the quarterly
dividend amount was $1.00 per share and (ii) failed to
specify in Section 2(C) when dividends begin to accrue in the
event that there is no record date for the first Quarterly
Dividend payment Date. The aforementioned Series D Certifi-
cate of Designation is hereby corrected accordingly to
replace Section 2(B) and (C) with the following:

(B) The Corporation shall declare a dividend or
distribution on the Preferred Stock as provided in paragraph
(A) of this Section immediately after it declares a dividend
or distribution on the Common Stock (other than as described
in clauses (1) and (il) of the second sentence of such
paragraph (A»; provided that, in the event no dividend or
distribution shall have been declared on the Common Stock
during the period between any Quarterly Dividend Payment Date
and the next subsequent Quarterly Dividend Payment Date (or,
with respect to the first Quarterly Dividend Payment Date,
the period between the first issuance of any share or frac-
tion of a share of the Preferred Stock and such first
Quarterly Dividend Payment Date), a dividend of $0.25 per
share on the Preferred stock shall nevertheless be payable on
such subsequent Quarterly Dividend Payment Date.
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(C) .Dividends shall begin to accrue and be cumula-
tive on outstanding shares of Preferred stock from the
Quarterly Dividend Payment Date next preceding the date of
issue of such shares unless (i) the date of issue of such
shares is on or prior to the record date for the first
Quarterly Dividend Payment Date or there is no record date
for the first Quarterly Dividend Payment Date, in either of
which events dividends on such shares shall begin to accrue
from the date of issue of such shares or (ii) the date of
issue is a Quarterly Dividend Payment Date or is a date after
the record date for the determination of holders of shares of
Preferred stock entitled to receive a quarterly dividend and
before such Qua~terly Dividend Payment Date, in either of
which events such dividends shall begin to accrue and be
cumulative from such Quarterly Dividend Payment Date.
Accrued but unpaid dividends shall not bear interest.
Dividends paid on shares of Preferred stock in an amount less
than the total amount of such dividends at the time accrued
and payable on such shares shall be allocated pro rata on a
share-by-share basis among all shares of Preferred Stock at
the time outstanding. The Board of Directors may fix a
record date for the determination of holders of shares of
Preferred stock entitled to receive payment of a dividend or
distribution declared thereon, which record date. shall not be
more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for the payment
thereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said Whitttaker Corporation has
caused its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed and this
certificate to be signed by Edward R. Muller, a Vice Presi-
dent of the Corporation, and NadineD. Leonsky , an Assistant
Secretary this 7th day of March 1990.

WHITTAKER

By_=-:-_----I~-_:_::__:_::_+-------

-2-

TIERRA-B-005942



aookR118p!GE 112

RESTATED CERTIFICATE or INCORPORATION
OF

WHITTAKER CORPORATION

fIRST:Corporation. The name of the Corporation is Whittaker

SECOND: The addres. of the reqistered office of the
Corporation in the state of Delaware is 229 South state Street, ~City ot Dover, County of Kent, Delaware 19901. The name of its
reqis~.red agent at such address is The Pren~ice-Hall CorporationSystem, Inc.

THIRO: The purpose of the Corporation is to enqaq8 in anylaWful act or activity tor which corporations may now or
hereafter be organized un~er the General .Corporation Law of theState of Oelaware.

FOURTH: The total number of shares of stock Which theCorporation shall have authority to issue is 45,000,000,
consist1ng of 40,000,000 shares ot Common Stock, par value $1.00
per share (the "Common stoCk"), and. !, 000,000 ahares of Preferre<1
Stock, par value $1.00 per share (the "Preferred Stock").

The BoareS.of Direotors 1s hereby empowered. to authorize by
resolution or rssolutions trom time to time the issuance of one
or more classes or seri.. of Preferred stock and to fix the
designations, powers, preterenoes and relative, partioipatinq,
optional or other r1qhts, if any, and the qualifications,
limitations or restriction thereof, if any, with respec~ ~o each
auch alass or series ot Preferred stock and the number of shares
constitutinq each such olasl or series, and to increase or
decrease the number of shara. ot any such cla.s or saries to the
.xtent permitted by the aeneral Corporation Law ot the State otDelaware, as amended trom ti•• to time.

FIFTH: Ca> The business and aftairs ot the Corporationshall be managed by or un4.r the direction ot • Board ot
Directors can.istin; ot not le88 than tive nor more than 12
directors, the exact number ot directors to be fixed in theBylaws.

(0) There shall be cumulative votinq in theelection ot d1reotors.
SIXTHr The followinq provisions are inserted for the

manaqement at the business and the conduct of the affairs ot the
Corporation and for the further definition ot the powers of theCorporation and of its directors and stockholders:
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Ca) The dir.c~or8 shall have the conourr.n~ power with
the 8tockhol~ers to adopt, amend or repeal the bylaws of the
Corporation.

(b) Elections or directors need not be by written
ballot unless the bylaws ot the Corpcration .0 provide.

(e) The corpora~ion shall ind.mn1~ ita directors and
ott1cers and may indemnify any other employe.s or aqents, in each
case, to the full extant permitted by the General Corporation Law
ot the Sta~e Of Delaware, as amended trom tille to time. No
amendment or repeal ot thil paraqraph Ihall affect the
obliqations or the Corporation to indemnity anI director or
officer ot the Corporation with respect to, ar alnq out of or
related to any event that ocourred prior to suCh amendment orrepeal.

Cd) The Corporation shall have power to purchase and
maintain insurance on behalf of any perl on who i. or vas a
d.irector, otticer, employ.e or aqant of the corporation, or is or
weB .ervinq at the reque.t ot tha Corporation a. a director,
officer, employe. or a;ent ot another corporation, partnerlhip,
joint venture, trust or other enterprise aqainat any liability
a8serted aqains't him ancl incurred by him in any IUcm. capacity or
ariainq out: ot hi •• 'tatus a8 BUch, whather or not the Corporation
would have ~. power to indemnify him aqainat any .uch liability
under the provisions ot the General corpora~ion Law of the State
or Delawar., aa a.ended from t1Jae to time.

SEVENTH: The Corporation reserves the riqh1: to amend thi.
Restated Certiticate of Incorporation in any manner perm1~1:ed
by the General corporation Law of the state of eelaware, al
amended from time to time, an4 all rights and power. conferred
upon stockholder., directors and otficers herein are granted
subject to this re.ervation.
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BYIAWS
OF

WHITTAKER CORPORATION

* • • * *

ARTICLE I
OFFICES

Section 1. Reqistered ottice. The address of the
reqistered ottice in the State of Delaware shall be 229 South
State Street, Dover, County ot Kent, Delaware 19901, and the
name ot its reqistered aqent at such addre.. is The Prentice-
Hall corporation Systems, Inc.

Section 2. other ottices. The corporation may
also have ottices at such other places both within and
without the State ot Delaware as the board ot directors may
from time to time determine or the business ot the corpora-
tion may require.

Section 3. Books. The books ot the corporation
may be kept within or without ot the State ot Delaware as the
board ot directors may trom time to time determine or the
business ot the corporation may require.

ARTICLE II

MEETINGS OF STOClQIOLDERS

section 1. Time and Place ot Xeetinqs. All meet-
inqs ot stockholders shall be held at .uch place, either
within or without the State ot Delaware, on such date and at
such time as may be determined trom time to time by the board
ot directors (or the chairman in the absence ot a desiqnation
by the board ot directors) .
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Section 2. Annual Meetings. Annual meetings of
stockholders, commencinq with the year 1987, shall be held to
elect a class ot the board of directors and transact such
other business as may properly be brouqht before the meeting.

Section 3. special Meetings. Special meetings of
stockholders may be called by the board ot directors or the
chairman of the board of directors, the president or the
secretary of the corporation and shall be called by the
secretary of the corporation at the request in writinq of
holders of not less than lot of the total votinq power of all
outstandinq securities of the corporation then entitled to
vote. Such request shall state the purpose or purposes of
the proposed meetinq.

section 4. Notice of Meetinqs and Adjourned Meet-
inqs; Waiver of Notice. Ca) Whenever stockholders are
required or permitted to take any action at a aeetinq, a
written notice ot the meeting shall be given Which shall
state the place, date and hour ot the meeting, and, in the
case ot a special meeting, the purpose or purposes tor which
the meeting is called. Unless otherwise provided by the
General corporation Law of the State ot Delaware ("Delaware
Law"), .uch notice shall be given not le•• than 10 nor more
than 60 day. betore the date ot the meeting to each stock-
holder ot record entitled to vote at .uch meeting. Unless
these bylaw. otherwise require, when a meeting is adjourned
to another time or place (whether or not a quorum is
pre.ent), notice need not be given of the adjourned meeting
it the time and place thereof are announced at the meeting at
which the adjournment is taken. At the adjourned meeting,
the corporation may tran.act any busine.. which might have
been tran.acted at the original meetinq. If the adjournment
is for .ore than 30 day., or if atter the adjournment a new
record date i. tixed for th.' adjourned ••• ting, a notic. ot
the adjourned ••• ting ahall be given to each stockholder of
record entitled to vote at the .e.ting.

(b) A writt.n waiver of any such notic. sign.d by
the person .ntitled thereto, Whether before or atter the time
stat.d th.r.in, shall b. d.... d .quivalent to notice. Atten-
danc. of a person at a meeting shall constitut. a waiv.r of
notice of such ••• ting, exc.pt when the person attends the
m.eting for the expre •• purpo.e of objecting, at the begin-
ning of the ••• ting, to the transaction of any business
because the ••eting i. not lawfully called or convened.

s.ction 5. Quorua. Unl ••s oth.rwis. provided
und.r the certificate of incorporation or the.e bylaws and
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subject to Delaware law, the presence, in person or by proxy,
of the holders of not less than a majority ot the total
Yoting power of all outstanding securities ot the corporation
then entitled to Yote at a meeting of stockholders shall
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

section 6. Voting. (a) Unless otherwise provided
in the certificate of incorporation and subject to Delaware
Law, each stockholder shall be entitled to one Yote for each
outstanding .ecurity of the corporation entitled to vote held
by such stockholder. Unless otherwise provided in Delaware
Law, the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, the
affirmative vote ot not les8 than a majority ot the total
Yoting power of all outstanding securities of the corporation
present, in person or by proxy, at a meeting of stockholders
and then entitled to vote on the subject matter shall be the
act of the stockholders.

Cb) Each stockholder entitled to vote at a meeting
ot stockholders may authorize another person or persons to
act tor him by proxy, but no such proxy shall be voted or
acted upon atter three years trom its date, unless the proxy
provide. tor a longer period.

Section 7. Action by Consent. Unless otherwise
restricted by the certiticate ot incorporation, any action
required to be taken at any annual or special meeting ot
stockholder., or any action which may be taken at any annual
or special meeting ot stockholder., may be taken without a
meeting, without prior notice and without a vote, it a con-
sent in writing, .etting forth the action .0 taken, shall be
signed by the holders of out.tanding s.curitie. ot the cor-
poration having not less than the minimum number of votes
that would be nece.sary to authorize or take such action at a
meeting at which all .ecuritie. entitled to vote th.reon were
pr••ent and voted. Prompt notice of the taking of the cor-
porate action without a meeting by le•• than unanimous writ-
ten con.ent shall be given to those stockholders who have not
con.ented in writing.•

Section 8. Organization. At each .eeting of
stockholders, the chairman of the board, if one shall have
been elected, (or in his absence or if one shall not have
been elected, the pre.ident) .hall act a. chairman of the
.eeting. The .ecretary (or in his ab.ence or inability to
act, the person whoa the chairman of the .e.ting shall
appoint secretary of the m.eting) .hall act a. .ecretary ot
the .e.ting and keep the minute. thereof.
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·Section 9. Order of Business. The order of busi-
ness at all meetings ot stockholders shall be as determined
by the chairman of the meeting.

ARTICLE III
DIRECTORS

Section 1. General Powers. Except as otherwise
provided in Delaware Law or the certiticate ot incorporation,
the business and attairs ot the corporation shall be managed
by or under the direction ot the board ot directors.

Section 2. Number, Election and Term of Office.
Ca) The number of directors whIch shall constItute the whole
board shall be fixed trom time to time by resolution ot the
board ot directors but shall not be less than tive nor more
than twelve. Each director shall hold office until such
director's successor shall have been duly elected and
qualified or until such director's earlier death, resiqnation
or removal.

(b) No person may stand for election to, or be
elected to, the board ot directors or be appointed by the
directors to fill a vacancy on the board of directors who is
70 year. of age or older, who shall have made, or be making,
improper or unlaWful use ot the corporation'. confidentialinformation, or who haa intere.t. which conflict materially
with the intere.t. ot the corporation. Director. need not be
stockholder ••

Section 3. Quorum and Manner ot Acting. Unless
the certificate ot incorporation or the.e bylaw. require a
greater number, a majority of the total number of directors
shall con.titute a quorum for the tran.action ot business,
and the aftirmative vote of not le•• than a majority of the
director. pre.ent at a m.eting at Which a quorum i. present
shall b. the act of the board of director.. When a m.eting
i. adjourned to another time or place (whether or not a
quorua is present), notic. need not b. given of the adjourned
meeting if the time and place thereot are announced at the
m••ting at which the adjournment is taken. At the adjourned
meetinq, the board ot directors may tran.act any bu.ine.s
which aight have been tran.acted at the original me.ting. It
a quorua shall not be pre.ent at any meeting ot the board ot
directors, the directors pre.ent thereat may adjourn the
.eeting, from time to tim., without notice other thanannounc ..ent at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present.
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Section 4. Time and Place of Meetings. The board
at directors shall hold its meetings at such place, either
within or without the State ot Delaware, and at such time as
may be determined from time to time by the board of directors
(or the chairman in the absence of a determination by the
board of directors).

section 5. Annual Meeting. The board of directors
shall meet for the purpose of organization, the election of
otficers and the transaction ot other business, as soon as
practicable atter each annual meeting ot stockholders, on the
same day and at the same place where such annual meeting
shall be held. Notice ot such meeting need not be given. In
the event such annual meeting is not so held, the annual
meeting of the board of directors may be h.ld at such place,
either within or without the state of Delaware, on such date
and at such time as shall be specified in a notice thereof
given as hereinafter provided in Section 7 ot this Article
III or in a waiver of notice thereof.

Section 6. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings ot
the board of directors shall be held without notice at the
corporation's executive oftice or at auch other place as the
board ot directors may designate on the fourth Friday ot each
fiscal month ot the corporation's fiscal year at 9:00 a.m.,
local time' provided, however, that should .aid day fall upon
a legal holiday, then said m.eting shall be held at the same
time and place on the next Friday ther.atter .nsuing which is
not a legal holiday. Notice ot all such regular meetings of
the board ot directors is hereby dispensed with.

section 7. Special Me.tings. Special meetinga ot
the board ot directors may be called by the chairman ot the
board, the pre.id.nt, the .ecretary or by any two directors.
Notic. ot special m.etinga ot the board ot directors shall be
given to each director in such manner as is determined by the
board ot directors at leaat 48 hour. betore the date ot the
m••ting.

Section 8. Committ.... (a) The board ot direc-
tors ..y, by r.solution passed by a majority of the whole
board, d••iqnate an executive committee, a compensation and
stock option committee, an audit committee and one or more
other comaitte •• , each committee to consist ot two or more ot
the director. ot the corporation. The board may d.signate
on. or more directors as alternate membera ot any committee,
who may replace any absent or diaqualitied member at any
me.ting ot the committe.. Any auch co_i tt•• , to the extent
provided in the resolution ot the board ot director., shall
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have and may exercise all the powers and authority of the
board of directors in the management ot the business and
affair. ot the corporation, and may authorize the seal of the
corporation to be affixed to all papers which may require it:
but no such committee shall have the power or authority in
reference to amending the certificate of incorporation,
adopting an agreement of merger or consolidation, recommend-
ing to the stockholders the sale, lease or exchange of all or
substantially all of the corporation's property and assets,
recommending to the stockholders a dissolution of the cor-
poration or a revocation ot a dissolution, or amending the
bylaws of the corporation; and unless the resolution of the
board ot directors or the certificate ot incorporationexpressly so provides, no such committee shall have the power
or authority to declare a dividend or to authorize the
issuance of stock. Each committee shall keep regular minutes
of its meetings and report the same to the board of directors
when required.

Cb) The executive committee shall be the committee
ot the board ot directors, it one be appointed, to Which is
delegated substantially all of the delegable power and
authority ot the board other than the power. that it is
contemplated by these bylaw. may b. delegated to the compen-
sation and stock option committee and audit committee.
Unle.s the board ot director. shall otherwi.e provide, spe-
cial meeting. of the executive committe •• hall be held at the
principal executive ottice ot the corporation or at any place
which has been de.ignat.d trom time to time by r••olution ot
the executive committee or by the written con.ent ot all
member. thereot, and may be call.d by the chairman ot the
board, the pre.ident, the ••cretary or any two members
thereot; vacancies in the membership ot the executive commit-
te. may be till.d by the board ot dir.ctor.; three memb.rs of
the executive committee or .uch l••••r number ot members as
shall repre.ent a majority ot the .emb.r. ot the executive
committee then in ottic. shall constitut. a quorum tor the
transaction ot bu.iness.

(c) The compensation and stock option committee
shall b. the committee ot the board ot directors, if one be
appoint.d, to which i. delegated a sub.tantial portion of the
power. and authority ot the board with r••pect to the
r.mun.ration ot ex.cutive ottic.r. and employee. ot the
corporation. Th. compen.ation and .tock option committee
shall b. compo ••d .xclu.ively ot director. who are not execu-
tiv. otticer. or .mploye •• ot the corporation. Unle•• the
board ot director. ahall oth.rwis. provide: reqular m.etings
ot the compensation and stock option committe., notice ot
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which is hereby dispensed with, shall be held, without call,
at the same place and on the same date as each meeting of the
board ot directors but at a time one hour preceding the
commencement ot the meeting at the board at directors; spe-
cial m.eting. ot the compensation and stock option committee
shall be held at the principal executive ottice ot the cor-
poration or at any place which has been designated trom time
to time by resolution ot the compensation and stock option
committee or by written consent at all members thereof, and
may be called by the chairman at the compensation and stock
option committee, the chairman ot the board ot directors, the
secretary or any two members ot the compensation and stock
option committe.; three members of the compensation and stock
option committee or such lesser number ot members as shall
represent a majority ot the members of the compensation and
stock option committee then in ottice .hall constitut. aquorum tor the tran.action ot bu.in••••

(d) The audit committee shall be the co..ittee otthe board ot director., it on. be appointed, to Which 1.
delegated a substantial portion ot the powers and authority
ot the board with respect to aUditing and accounting matters
including review at the pertormanc. ot the corporation's
independent and internal auditors, the scope of audit proce-
dure., and the corporation'. accounting practic.s. The audit
committe •• hall be composed exclusively ot directors Who are
not executive otticer. or employees ot the corporation.
Unless the board at director•• hall oth.rwi.e provide,
regular m.eting. ot the audit committe., notice ot which is
hereby di.pensed with, shall be held, without call, at the
same plac. and on the same date a. the m••tings ot the board
at director•• cheduled in ti.cal February, May, August and
Decemb.r but at a time one hour pr.c.ding the commencement at
the m••ting ot the board ot dir.ctors: .p.cial ••eting. ot
the audit co..itte. shall be 'h.ld at the principal executive
ottice ot the corporation or at any place which has been
d••ignat.d tro. tiae to tia. by r••olution at the audit
committ•• or by the written consent ot all members thereot,
and .ay b. call.d by the chairman ot the audit committe., the
chairJlan ot the board ot dir.ctor., the ••cr.tary or any two
memb.r. ot the audit committee: three memb.rs of the audit
committ•• or .uch l••••r numb.r ot m.mb.r. as .hall repres.nt
a majority ot the member. at the audit committ.e th.n in
ottice .hall constitute a quorum tor the transaction otbu.in••••

Section 9. Action by Consent. Unle.s otherwise
r.stricted by the certiticat. ot incorporation or the.e
bylaw., any action required or permitted to b. taken at any
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meeting ot the board of directors ot ot any committee thereof
may be taken without a meeting, it all members of the board
or committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing,
and the writing or writings are filed with the minutes of
proceedings of the board or committee.

section 10. Telephonic Meetings. Unless otherwise
restricted by the certificate ot incorporation or these
bylaws, members of the board ot directors, or any committee
designated by the board ot directors, may participate in a
meeting of the board of directors or such committee, as the
case may be, by means of conference telephone or similar
communications equipment by means of which all persons par-
ticipating in the meeting can hear each other, and such
participation in a meeting shall constitute presence in
person at the meeting.

Section 11. Resignation. Any director may resign
at any time by giving written notice to the board of direc-
tors or to the secretary ot the corporation. The resignation
of any director shall take effect upon receipt of notice
thereof or at such later time as shall be specitied in such
notice; and unle.s otherwise specified therein, the accept-
ance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it
effective.

section 12. Vacancies. Unless otherwise
restricted by the certificate of incorporation, vacancies and
newly created directorships resulting trom any increase in
the authorized number of directors may be filled by a
majority of the directors then in otfice, though less than a
quorua, or by a sole remaining director. Each director so
chosen .hall hold office until .uch director'. succe.sor has
been duly elected and qualified or until .uch director's
earlier death, re.iqnation or removal. If there are no
director. in office, then an election ot directors .ay be
held in accordance with Delaware Law. Onl... otherwise
provided in the certificate of incorporation, when one or
more director. .hall re.ign tram the board, ettective at a
future date, a aajority of the directors then in office,
includinq tho.e who have 80 re.igned, .hall have the power to
fill .uch vacancy or vacancie., the vote thereon to take
etfect when such re.iqnation or re.ignations .hall become
eftective, and each director .0 cho.en .hall hold offiee a.
provided in tillinq ot other vacancie ••

Section 13. Removal. Any director or the entire
board of directors may be removed, only for cause, at any
time by the affirmative vote of the holder. of not less than
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a majority of the total votinq power of all outstanding
securities of the corporation entitled to vote.

Section 14. compensation. Unless otherwise
restricted by the certificate of incorporation or these
bylaws, the board of directors shall have authority to fix
the compensation ot directors, includinq tees and reimburse-
ment of expenses, provided, however, that no such compensa-
tion, tee. or expenses shall be paid to directors who are
also employee. ot the corporation.

section 15. Preterred Directors. Notwithstanding
anythinq el.e contained herein, Whenever the holders ot one
or more classes or series ot preferred stock shall have the
riqht, votinq separately as a class or series, to elect
director., the election, term ot otfice, tillinq of vacan-
ci •• , removal and other features of such directorships shall
be qoverned by the terms ot the resolutions adopted by the
board of directors pursuant to the certificate of incorpora-
tion applicable thereto, and such directors .0 elected shall
not be subject to the provision. of Section. 2, 12 and 13 of
this Article III unless otherwise provided therein.

ARTICLE IV

OFFICERS
Section 1. Principal Officer.. The principal

officers of the corporation shall be a chairman of the board
of directors, a pre.ident, one or more vice presidents, a
treasurer and a secretary who shall have the dutY,amonq
other thinqs, to record the proc.edinqs of the .e.tinq. of
stockholder. and directors in a book kept for that purpose.
The corporation may also have such other principal officers,
includinq one or more controllers, as the board may in its
discretion appoint. One person may hold the offices and
perform the duties of any two or more of said offices, except
that no one per.on shall hold the office. and perform the
duties of chairaan of the board and secretary.

section 2. Election, Term of Office and Remunera-
tion. The principal officer. of the corporation shall be
elected annually by the board of directors at the annual
.eeting thereof. Each such officer shall hold office until
his succe.sor is elected and qualified, or until his earlier
death, re.iqnation or removal. The remuneration of all
officers of the corporation shall be fixed by the board of
directors. Any vacancy in any office shall be filled in such
manner as the board of directors shall determine.
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Section J. Subordinate Officers. In addition to
the principal officers enumerated in Section 1 of this
Article IV, the corporation may have one or more assistant
treasurers and assistant secretaries and such other subor-
dinate otticers, agents and employees as the board of direc-
tors may deem n.cessary, each of whom shall hold office for
such period as the board of directors may tram time to time
determine. The board of directors may d.leqate to any prin-
cipal ottic.r the power to appoint and to remove any such
subordinate otticers, agents or employ ••••

Section 4. Removal. Except as otherwise permitted
with respect to subordinate otticers, any otticer may be
removed, with or without cause, at any time, by resolution
adopted by the board at directors.

Section 5. Resignations. Any ofticer may resign
at any time by giving written notice to the board ot direc-
tor. Cor to a principal ofticer it the board ot directors has
delegated to .uch principal otticer the power to appoint and
to remove such otticer). The re.ignation of any officer
shall take etfect upon receipt of notice thereof or at such
later time a. ahall be specified in .uch notice) unle.s
otherwi.e specified therein, the acceptance of .uch re.igna-tion shall not be nec••sary to make it eftective.

Section 6. Power. and Duties. The board of direc-
tors may deaignate an ofticer as the chief executive officer.
The chief executive officer shall, subject to the direction
and control of the board of directors, be the general manager
of, and supervi.e and direct, the bu.ines. and attairs of the
corporation and the conduct at the ofticer. of the corpora-
tion. The other ofticer. of the corporation shall have such
power. and pertora such duties incident to each of their
respective office. and .uch other duties a. aay tro. time to
time be conferred upon or assigned to th.. by the board ot
director. or the chiet executive officer.

ARTICLE V

GENERAL PROVISIONS
Section 1. Fixinq the Record Date. Ca) In order

that the corporation may determIne the .tockholders entitled
to notice of or to vote at any meeting of stockholders or any
adjournment thereof, the board of director. may fix a record
date, which record date shall not precede the date upon Which
the re.olution fixing the record date i. adopted by the board
of director., and which record date .hall not be more than 60
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nor le8s than 10 days before the date of such meeting. If no
record date is fixed by the board of directors, the record
date for determining stockholders entitled to notice of or to
vote at a meeting of stockholders shall be at the close of
business on the day next preceding the day on Which notice is
given, or, if notice is waived, at the close of business on
the day next preceding the day on which the meeting is held.
A determination of stockholders of record entitled to notice
of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall apply to anyadjournment of the meeting; providing, however, that theboard of directors may fix a new record date for theadjourned meeting.

(b) In order that the corporation may determinethe stockholders entitled to consent to corporate action in
writing without a meeting, the board of directora may fix arecord date, Which record date shall not precede the date
upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted
by the board ot directors, and which date shall not b. aore
than 10 days atter the date upon Which the resolution fixing
the record date is adopted by the board ot directors. It no
record date has been fixed by the board ot directors, the
record date for determining stockholders entitled to consent
to corporate action in writing without a meeting, When no
prior action by the board at directors is required by
Oelaware Law, shall be the first date on Which a signed
written con.ent setting forth the action taken or proposed to
be taken ia delivered to the corporation by delivery to its
registered oftice in Oelawar., its principal plac. of busi-
n••s, or an otficer or agent of the corporation haVing cus-
tody of the book in Which proceeding. ot ••etinga ot atock-
holders are recorded. Delivery mad. to tha corporation'.registered office ahall b. by hand or by certified or
registered aail, return receipt reque.ted. If no record date
has been fixed by the board of directors and prior a~ion by
the board of directora is required by Delaware Law, the
record date for determining stockholder. entitled to con.ent
to corporate action in writing without a .eeting shall be at
the clo.e of bu.ine.. on the day on Which the board of direc-
tor. adopts the resolution taking such prior action.

(c) In order that the corporation may determine
the seockholders entitled to receive payment of any dividend
or other distribution or allot.ent of any rights or the
stockholders entitled to exerci.e any rights in re.pect of
any change, conversion or exchange ot stock, or for the
purpose ot any other laWful action, the board ot directors
may fix a record date, which record date shall not precede
the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is
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adopted, and which record date shall be not more than 60 days
prior to such action. If no record date is fixed, the record
date for determining stockholders for any such purpose shall
be at the close of business on the day on which the board of
directors adopts the resolution relating thereto.

Section 2. Dividends. Subject to limitations
contained in Delaware Law and the certificate of incorpora-
tion, the board of directors may declare and pay dividends
upon the share. of capital stock of the corporation, which
dividends may be paid either in cash, securities of the
corporation or other property.

Section 3. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the
corporation shall end on the Sunday nearest October 31st ofeach year.

Section 4. Corporate Seal. The corporate seal
shall have inscribed thereon the name of the corporation, the
year of its organization and the words "Corporate Seal,
Oelaware". The seal may be u.ed by causinq it or a facsimile
thereof to be impres.ed, affixed or otherwi.e reproduced.

Section 5. Votinq of Stock OWned by the Corpora-
tion. The board of directors may authorize any person, on
behalf ot the corporation, to attend, vote and qrant proxies
to be used at any meeting ot stockholders of any corporation
(except this corporation) in Which the corporation may holdstock.

-12-

TIERRA-B-005956



Accoum, Ply.bl, Trlnlletlonl 1978 & 1979

All tl'lnlietlon. WI" for purch .... of drum. tor our us •.

Accoym. Payable Ic.nlletjgn. 1980

Qm ~ Purl<b.as. pril<<<lAdJ Swa to Sayonne
1· 4-80 e098 4740.151· 8.80 6106 3802.761·25·80 6076 1079.761-21·80 6294 3852.50
1-21-80 80a7 1598,501-28-ao e1583 106.402· 6·80 6661 360.002- 6-80 8551 350.002-11·80 8823 3902.75
2.11·BO 8&28 , 518.702·19·80 6744 3787.60
3· ~SO 6884 J862.603·10-80 6788 1336.30J.18-BO 7207 3947.503·19·80 7016 1513.003·25·S0 7312 3862.603·2&080 7058 2829.364- 8-80 7519 4422.00

4- 8-BO 1634 1549,804·24080 7774 3868.002-24-80 18243 1691.666- 6·80 1e19 4025.00
5·20·80 8270 3963.36
6·27·80 8028 CA 2946.805·30·80 8066CR 1478.50S-30·S0 8413 4200.00
a-30-80 8413 180.00tHo-80 8Se7 4025.00
6·20·80 8038 "38.006·25·BO 8422CR 2169.807-10-80 B857 3565.10
7-16-80 8934 60.007·23·80 8028 4008.00
7·31·80 B7aSeR 2817.708- 6-80 8383C" 1192.958- 6·80 9181 3895.00
B· 6·80 19233 213.608·21-80 9430 4606.50
8-21·80 SOUeA "35.20B· B·80 9638 3885.00
9.11·80 9707 2891.009·23·80 8870 3956.409·3Q.80 9271 3722.2510- 8080 10040 3640.00t- 8-80 10072 3797.50lQ.17·80 10228 4025.0010·28·80 10386 4687.S01Q.31.80 20427 412.5010-30-80 9752CA 21528.4011· 7.80 10U3 4025.0011·1 a.eo 1088.2 40tl2.50

12· 3·80 10a94 3972.6012.18.80 11079 38B6.0012·29·80 21196 6113.30
TOTALS 19BO '.14883.35 849.9042874.50
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Accgynta payable Trgnaactjonl 1981

Qm Invo!ee' Purphl" frJ;.,M1 Sold to B,yonne

12·23·80 10918CR 3126.60
12·23-80 11189 3412.50
1·23·S1 11472 4445.00
1· 1·81 21199 1664.16
2 ·13·81 11843 3482.50
2·13·s1 12546CR 1527.25
1·23-81 12544CA 1677.30
3- 2·a1 12641CR 1117.20
3·2·81 12089 4445.00
3-18-81 12320 4567.50
3·19-S1 60162 1193.80
4· 6·81 12641CR 1338.00
4- e-81 12599 3902.50
4·23-81 50183 1476.00
4·23·81 12762 4337.60
5·13·81 131811 3867.50
5·13·81 12775 1290.00
8- 4-81 12933 1486.16
e- 4-81 13483 4410.00
6· 9-81 13637 3377.55
6·10·81 12832 778.80
6·15·81 60381 100.00
8·23·81 13750 4322.60
8-23-S1 12926 1159.35
7· 9·81 13936 3762.60
7-24-81 14104 4287.50
7- 9·S1 14006 1012.80
7·24-81 14006 1163.36
8- 5-81 14231 3488.26
8- 5·81 1497eCR 1283.40
8-10-81 12979 950.10
6-10-al 14293 4480.00
8·18·81 14406 87.80
8·26·81 141528 4392.50
8-27-81 14545 3481.00
8-2S-81 14181CR 1508.00
8·27·81 141B9CR 1126.36

. 9- 8-81 14eee 3815.00
9-21·81 14834 4201.60
9-15·81 14522CR 1034.1
9-21 -81 14623CR 1150.35
9·30·81 14624CR 1046.36
9·30·81 14970 3561. 76
10· 7-81 14543 1081.60
10-7·81 15070 3909.26
10- 8-81 15092 4477.60
10· 8·Bl 14661CFt 108.00
10· B·81 16092 400.00
10·22·81 15294 4130.00
10-22·S1 14577CPI 760.60
10-23·81 15315 3348.25
10-23-81 14&81 542.40
10·28-81 141S18cr 10.80
11· 6·81 16491 3B60.oo
11· 6·81 14617cr 1149.00
11·14.81 115584 44.26
11·19·81 15844 4025.00
1'-18-81 14844 984.00
11-20·81 16867 3392.50
11-20-S1 14e46 6t10,00
11-24'81 52859 224.00
12·10-81 16876 3884.50
12- fHll 16868 4462.50
12-9-81 15041 cr -._-------- 712.35

Tgtll 1981 115709.7Q P.OO 34718.36
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Account I PIYAble TrIDUt:tlona J 9B2.

Qi1l loxn1nt" Purcbne price Ad! Sold to eayonnl

1- 7.82 1606e 3237:50
1- 1·82 16083 1110.00
1·20-82 16189 3693.00
1-20·82 '5601 cr 948.502· 3.82 16669cr 1152.60
2- 3·82 16360 48'1.60
2-18·82 15558cr 823.20
2·18·82 18369 3745.00
3-24·82 le982 4025.00
3·24·82 16762 1320.00
3-28·82 364501 175.00
4·21·82 17446 4077.60
4·21·82 16784cr 908.554-3Q.82 154861 30.00
4-18-82 3fl7!5er 210.00
5·10·82 17777 39155.00
5·10·82 16871 13615,00
5-26·82 18063 4025.00
6· 7-82 54944 30.00
6·28-82 15964 1290.00
6·28·82 47er 282.50
6·10.82 16836cr 1171.96
6·11·82 77 367.60
8-10·82 18300 4042.50
6·22-82 18486 3815.00
8·22-82 20542 827.30
7·12-82 18763 4820.00
7·13·82 20607er 996.26
7·20·82 129 192.50
7·26·82 728 703.20
7-26·82 lB93t1 3850.00
6·18·82 19278 3805.00
8-27-82 20745 4715.20
9·27·82 18818 4520.00
9·27·82 19882 3849.75
10- 1·82 20960 1602.20
10- 1-82 18780 9155.20
10·19·82 20114 4305.00
10·29·82 18808 768.80
, 1- 8-82 20376 4140.00
11·'1-82 20419 3867.60
11·16·82 310cr 2312.00
"·11·82 19287 1938.50
12·2·82 122 824.01
12· 2·82 20642 297.00
12· 8·82 20898 3937.50

Total 19B2 78226,2!5 0.00 22540,01
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AccQun16 Payable TraDuction. 1983

.om Invgice! PurcbuA f.l:J.cI Ad! Sgld to Bayonne

1·4-83 20909 4140.00
1·14-83 38Ber 1870.30
1·25·83 196el 1314.00
2- 4-83 .21429 4602.60
2· 4·83 19972 1167.00
2·28·83 21884 3902.50
1·2Ei·83 21.231 3828.00
2·28·83 21170c;r 1197.00
3·10-83 21834 3605.00
3-10·83 21282 982.50
3-29-83 21446 1435,10
3'29·83 22078 4560.00
4·20·83 22316 4025.00
4-20-83 .20487 1361.25
5· 6·83 5·6 , 760.00
6·17-83 .22624 3045,00
5·'7·83 20018 1278.00
6-31-83 22836 4698.00
6·10-83 22716 4820.00
6·23-83 6·23 1000.00
e·l0·83 6·1001 3274.50
8·24-83 22886 1984.00
7·11·83 22974 3880.00
B· 3·83 23000 3832.50
So 3·93 20036 1289.00
9· 1.B3 1M 192.60
7·11·83 23029 1464.60
6·27-83 23149 774.00
9·20·83 9·20 --'-- 360.00

~111983 J,2160.60 3274,601ISen·15
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CERTIFICATION OF ANSWERS TO REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Sta te 0f .-,;C:::.:a::.:l:.,:i:.,:f:..;o;.:r..:;n:.;:i'-=a_
County of _V:..:e:::.:n.:..:t:.:u::.:r~a:.- _

I certify under penalty of law that I have personally examined
and am familiar with the information submitted in this document
(response to EPA Request for Information) and all documents
sUbmitted herewith, and that based on my inquiry of those
individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the
information, I believe that the submitted information is true,
accurate, and complete, and that all documents submitted herewith
are complete and authentic unless otherwise indicated. I am
aware that there are significant penalties for SUbmitting false
information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment.

Lynne M. O. Brickner
NAME (print or type)

Assistant General Counsel
TITLE (print or type)

~)u{R~~
SIGNATURE

Sworn to me before this j ••~..~. •E:S:J;IE:U~· "-d'~

day f 199ct6:C ·.A\';.'I:i ~ COMM.#I062008 ;;
2nd . 0 February, 4 • I _.~"".~NotoryPublic - Ca9fom1o f;~- 0 . J~).. !L. L IJ-""·~·· LOS ANGElES COUNTY ...W (X U-.-Ll..k. 71U T)):: J ,...' My Comm. ExpiresJUN 15.1999 r

Notary Public J••• '-$ • e •••• $ P4{
Elise Julie Aube
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5W
WASTE INC.

November 16, 1995

James Cogentino, ase
Removal Action Branch
Emergency and Remedial Response Divisionu.s. Environmental Protection Agency, Region II2890 Woodbridge Avenue
Edison, NJ 08837

Re: S&W Waste, Inc.'s Response to
CERCLA S 104(e) Request For The
Bayonne Barrel , Drum Superfund
Site, 150-154 Raymond Boulevard,
Newark, Essex County, New Jersey

Dear Sir:

S&W Waste, Inc. C"S&W") responds to the USEPA's September 28,
1995, CERCLA S 104(e) Information Request for the Bayonne Barrel &Drum Superfund Site as follows:

Definitions
1. As used herein, the terms "Bayonne Barrel & Drum" or the

"Site" shall refer to approximately fifteen acres of property
located at 150-154 Raymond Boulevard in Newark, Essex County,
New Jersey and identified as Lots 3 and 14 of Block 5002.

2. As used herein, the term "hazardous substance" shall have the
meaning set forth in section 101(14) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. S
9601(14). The sUbstances which have been designated as
hazardous sUbstances pursuant to Section 102 (a) of CERCLA
(which, in turn, comprise a portion of the substances that

115 Jacobus Avenue South Kearny. New Jersey 07032
TEL- 201-344-4004 • SALES NO.- 201-578-4800

ADM. FAX- 201·344~1265. SALES FAX-201-344-B652

888000031(1) PRINTED ON RECYClED PAPER
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James Cogentino, OSC
November 16, 1995
Page 5

5W
WASTE INC.

S&W also removed containers containing sludge
from Bayonne Barrel , Drum and delivered empty
containers to Bayonne Barrel , Drum for sludge
collection.

i. If so, describe the relationship (nature of
services rendered or products sold to the Company)
between the Company and Bayonne Barrel & Drum;

Response: See response to 2(a) above.

ii. Provide copies of any contracts or agreements
between the Company and Bayonne Barrel & Drum;

Response: None.

ilL For each such facility, state the nature of the
operations conducted at the facility, including the
time period in which the facility operated; and

Response: S&W's former facility, located at 53 Pennsylvania Avenue
South Kearny, N.J., was a hazardous waste transfer,
storage and treatment facility. This facility was in
operation from 1972 until 1984.

iv. For each such facility, state its name, address,
and current RCRA Identification Number.

Response: See response to 2(a) (iii) above.
EPA 10 No. NJO 096865837

b. In addition, if the Company transacted business with
Bayonne Barrel & Drum, provide the following information
for each transaction:

115 Jacobus Avenue South Kearny. New Jersey 07032
TEL- 201-344-4004 • SALESNO.- 201-578-4800

ADM. FAX- 201-344-1265. SALESFAX-201-344-8652* PRINTED ON RECYClED PAPER
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James Cogentino, OSC
November 16, 1995
Page 6

sw
WASTE INC.

1. Identify the specific dates of each transaction.
Where an exact date cannot be provided for a
transaction, provide an approximation by month andyear;

Response: See documents attached as Exhibit A. The documents
indicate that S&W transacted business with Bayonne Barrel
& Drum from approximately January 1980 until December1982.

Response:

ii. Identify the number of Containers that were theSUbject of each such transaction;
S & W occasionally removed a container of sludge from
Bayonne Barrel & Drum. After that container was emptied
at an off-site location, it was returned to BayonneBarrel & Drum by S&W.
S & W sold and delivered an unknown quantityof.empty drums to Bayonne Barrel , Drum.

iii. Generically describe each Container that was the
subject of each such transaction (example; closed-head steel drums, etc.);

Response: The sludge container was steel. Most of the empty drums
were steel; some of the empty drums were plastic.

iv. Identify the intended purpose of each suchtransaction;
Response: S&W sold empty drums to Bayonne Barrel 'Drum. Bayonne

Barrel , Drum reconditioned the drums for resale, reuse.
S&W delivered empty containers to Bayonne Barrel & Drum
which were used to collect waste from the drumreconditioning process.

·115 Jacobus Avenue South Kearny, New Jersey 07032
TEL- 201-344-4004 • SALESNO.- 201-578-4800

ADM. FAX- 201-344-1265. SALES FAX-201-344-8652

@ PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER
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James Cogentino, OSC
November 16, 1995
Page 7

5W
WASTE INC.

v. State whether each Container that was the sUbject
of the transaction contained any substance at the
time of the transaction. As to each Container thatcontained any sUbstance:
(1) Identify each such sUbstance, includin9 its

chemical content, physical state, quantity by
volume and weight, and other characteristics;and

Response: The containers removed from Bayonne Barrel & Drum by S&W
contained sludge from the drum reconditioning process.
Drums sold and delivered to Bayonne Barrel , Drum by S&W
were empty in accordance with USEPA and NJDEPregulations.

(2) Provide all written analyses that may have
been made for each such substance or which may
be in the custody or control of the Company
and all material safety data sheets, if any,relating to each such substance;

Response: None

vi. If you contend that any such Container did not
contain any substance at the time of thetransaction:

(1) state whether such Container had previously
been used by the Company to contain anysUbstance, and if so:

Response: Yes

115 Jacobus Avenue South Kearny, New Jersey 07032
TEL- 201-344-4004 • SALESNO.- 201-578-4800

ADM. FAX- 201-344-1265. SALESFAX-201-344-8652

(1) PRINTED ON RECYClED PAPER
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James Cogentino, OSC
November 16, 1995
Page 8

5W
WASTE INC.

(a) Identify all sUbstances previously
contained within such Container,
including its chemical content, physical
state, and other characteristics; and

Response; The empty drums sold to Bayonne Barrel , Drum previously
contained paint, ink, dyes, adhesives, solvents and other
non-hazardous materials in liquid, solid, and semi-solidform.

Response;

(b) Provide as to such sUbstances, all
written analyses that may have been made
for each such substance or which may be
in the custody or control of the Company
and all material safety data sheets, ifany, relating to each such sUbstance;

S&W has written analyses of the contents of certain drums
delivered to S&W's former facility. S&W has no knowledge
whether such analyses correspond or relate to the empty
drums sold and delivered to Bayonne Barrel , Drum.

vii. Describe in detail any treatment of any Container
that may have been performed by or on behalf of the
Company prior to the time that the Container was
transferred from the Company, including any process

°or procedure by which the Container was emptied orcleaned;
Response; Each empty container and barrel delivered to Bayonne

Barrel , Drum was emptied by S&W by pouring, dumping,
and/or pumping its contents into other containers at
S&W's former facility in accordance with USEPA/NJDEP
regulations. The empty containers and drums were also
manually scraped and inspected prior to delivery toBayonne Barrel , Drum.

115 Jacobus Avenue South Kearny. New Jersey 07032
TEl- 201-344-4004 • SALES NO.- 201-578-4800

ADM. FAX- 2010'344-1265 • SALESFAX-201-344-8652* PRINTED ON RECvnEO PAPER
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James cogentino, OSC
November 16, 1995
Page 9

5W
WASTE INC.

viii.Provide copies of all documents relating in any way
to each transaction, including copies of deliveryreceipts, invoices, or payment devices;

Response: See document attached as Exhibit A.

ix. Identify all persons who might 'have knowledge of
the transaction or who had any responsibilityregarding the transaction; and

Response: William F. Moscatello
Robert Fixter

x. If you sent any Container by means of any third
party transporter, identify each such transporter,
including the name and address of such transporter,
and identify in which of the transactions suchtransporter acted.

Response: Bayonne Barrel & Drum personnel transported some of the
empty drums sold by S&W to Bayonne Barrel & Drum.

3. Identify any person (~., individual, company, partnership,
etc.) having knowledge of facts relating to the questions
which are the subject of this inquiry. For each such person
that you identify, provide the name, address, and telephone
number of that person, and the basis of your belief that he or
she has such knOWledge. For past and present employees,
include their job title and a description of theirresponsibilities.

Response: William F. Moscatello
President
S&W Waste, Inc.
115 Jacobus Avenue
South Kearny, N.J. 07032
Mr. Moscatello is responsible for day-to-day management
o~15I)Sc66afA9~nue South Kearny,New Jersey 07032

TEL- 201-344-4004· SALESNO.- 201-518-4800
ADM. FAX- 201-344-1265. SALESFAX-201-344-S652* PRINTED ON RECYCUD PAPER
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James Cogentino, OSC
November 16, 1995
Page 10

5W
WASTE INC.

Robert Fixter
Vice President, Compliance
S&W Waste, Inc.
115 Jacobus Avenue
South Kearny, N.J. 07032

Mr. Fixter is responsible for environmental compliance.

4. Identify each person consulted in responding to these
questions and correlate each person to the question on whichhe or she was consulted.

Response; William F. Moscatello was consulted on question 2.
Daniel OiAngelis was consulted on question 5.

5. Provide a list of all insurance policies and indemnification
agreements held or entered into by you that may indemnify you
against any liability that you may be found to have under
CERCLA. Specify the insurer, type of policy, effective dates,
and state per occurrence policy limits for each policy. Copies
of policies may be provided in lieu of a narrative response.
In response to this request, please provide not only those
policies and agreements that are currently in effect, but also
those in effect since your company began sending Containers tothe site.

Response; See list attached as Exhibit B.

6. State whether there exists any agreement or contract (other
than an insurance policy) which may indemnify the Company,
present or past directors, officers or owners of shares in the
Company, for any liability that may result under CERCLA.
provide a copy of any such agreement or contract. Identify
any agreement or contract that you are unable to locate orobtain.

Response; None to S&W's knOWledge.

115 Jacobus Avenue South Kearny, New Jersey 07032
TEL.· 201-344-4004 • SALESNO.' 201-578-4800

ADM. FAX- 201-344-1265 • SALESFAX-201-344-8652

@ PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER
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James Cogentino, OSC
November 16, 1995
Page 11

5W
WASTE INC.

7. supply any additional information or documents that may be
relevant or useful to identify other sources who disposed of
or transported Containers to the site.

Response; None.

115 Jacobus Avenue South Kearny, New Jersey 07032
TEL- 201-344-4004 • SALESNO.- 201-578-4800

ADM. FAX- 201-344-1265 • SALESFAX-201-344-8652

(!) PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER

TIERRA-B-005969



Ja~es Cogentino, oSC
November 9, 1995
Paqe 11 .

CERTIFICATION OF ANSWRBS TO REQUEST FOB INFORMATION

state of f\UJ~:.....- _
County ot :.Jm~);U,

I certify un~er penalty of law tha~ I have personally examined
and am familiar with the information sub~itted in this document

(response to EPA Request for Information) and all documents
submitted herewith, and 'that based on my inquiry or those

individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the information,
I believe that the SUbmitted information is true, accurate, and
complete, and that all documents submitted hereWith are complete
and authentic unless otherwise indicated. I aa aware that there
are significant penalties for SUbmitting falSe information,
including the possibility of fine and imprisonment.

~bt'rr h~(,~
NAME (print or type)

Sworn to.me b,fore this
day of A~ 1995

~ Mi/'n-H,Q.
:uotary~Pub~~l~c~=----

ll,tL
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November 17, 1995

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Joseph Cosentino, OSC
Removal Action Branch
Emergency and Remedial Response Division
U. S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region n
2890 Woodbridge Avenue
Edison, NJ 08837

Re: Bayonne Barrel & Drum Superfund Site, Newark, New Jersey

Dear Mr. Cosentino:

Attached is the response of the DuPont Company to the Request for Information for
the Bayonne Barrel & Drum Superfund Site. DuPont understands that it is under a continuing
obligation to supplement this response should it become aware of new information.

Iarranged for the conduct of a good faith inquirty that is the basis of this reply.
Based on my discussions with the DuPont staff who gathered this information, Ibelieve it is
true accurate and complete.

Please direct any correspondence related to this site to:

Bernard J. Reilly, Esq.
DuPont Legal, D-8068
1007 Market Street
Wilmington, DE 19898
(302) 774-5445
(800) 248-5260 (fax)

E. f. du Pont de Nemours and Company * Printed On Recycled Paper TI ER RA-B-005971
LG·4878 Rev. 2194



If you have any questions or need further clarification of this response, do not
hesitate to call.

Very truly yours,

~~~M
Bernard J. Reilly l

Attachment

cc: Marc Seidenberg, Esq.
Office of Regional Counsel
U. S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region II
290 Broadway, 17th Floor
New York, NY 10007

John Auger, DuPont Corporate Remediation
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DUPONT COMPANY
RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

BAYONNE BARREL AND DRUM SUPERFUND SITE

1. General Information About the Company

a. State the correct legal name of the Company.

E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Company ("DuPontll)

b. Identify the legal status of the Company and the state in which the Company was
organized. .

DuPont is a corporation; it was organized in the State of Delaware in 1915.

c. State the name(s) and addressees) of the President and the Chairperson of the Board
of the Company.

Edgar S. Woolard, Jr.
Chairman
1007 Market Street
Wilmington, DE 19898

John A. Krol
Chief Executive Officer
1007 Market Street
Wilmington, DE 19898

d. If the Company has subsidiaries or affiliates, or is a subsidiary of another
organization, identify these related companies and the state the name (s) .....

DuPont is a Fortune 500 company that has been in business nearly 200 years.
During that time, DuPont has been affiliated with many other entities through
acquisition or merger. DuPont has also subsequently divested itself of entities.
If the Agency has a particular affiliate that they are interest in, we will be
pleased to supply the requested information for that arriliate or former
affiliate.

e. If the Company is a successor to, or has been succeeded by another company,
identify such other company and provide the same information .....

DuPont is not a successor to any other company nor is any other company a
successor to DuPont.
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f. If the Company transacted business with Bayonne Barrel & Drum in the name of an
entity not disclosed above, give the name of such entity and state its relationship to
the Company.

Not applicable.

2. Company's Relationship to Bayonne Barrel & Drum

a. State whether the Company or any Company facility transacted any business with
Bayonne Barrel & Drum for the disposal, treatment, or storage of any barrels,
drums, or other containers (hereinafter collectively referred. to as "Containers").

A diligent, "good faithll search of a business relationship between DuPont and
Bayonne Barrel & Drum was conducted of all DuPont plants located in the
northeastern United States and all DuPont Automotive plants. The result of
that search indicated that three plants conducted business with Bayonne Barrel
& Drum: Chambers Works in Deepwater, NJ, Parlin Plant in Parlin, NJ and
the Philadelphia Plant/Ma rsh all Lab in Philadelphia, PA.

In addition, DuPont and other suppliers of paint. to General Motors and likely
other automobile manufacturing plants often would request that empty drums
be returned to Bayonne Barrel or another drum conditioner for recycling.
This policy encouraged timely recycling; for each drom shipped GM would
receive a IIcredit". This practice was very common in the 1970's, but became
less common in the early 1980's as paint containers shifted from drums to
portable tanks (440 - 550) that were returned directly back to the paint
suppliers, like DuPont.

i. If so describe the relationship (nature of services rendered or products sold to
the Company) between the Company and Bayonne Barrel & Drum.

Chambers Works: For drum reclamation.

Parlin and Philadelphia Plants: For reconditioned steel drums. The majority
of the drums were used for paint thinners; many were stenciled "Property of
DuPontll• See also the second paragraph in response to Question 2a•

. ii. Provide copies of any contracts or agreements between the Company and
Bayonne Barrel & Drum;

No copies of contracts or agreements were found.

iii. For each such facility, state the nature of the operations conducted at the
facility, including the time period in which the facility operated; and
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Chambers Works: Manufactures more than 600 different products; organic
intennediates used in herbicides, fibers and other products; specialty chemicals
including surfactants, textile finishing agents, inert and high perfonnance oils
and greases; refrigerants, blowing agents and specialty products. Chambers
Works also manufactured dyes and pigments until the early 1980's. The plant
began its operations as a powder manufacturer during World War I. After the
war, operations were expanded to include the other multi-purpose chemicals.

Parlin Plant: Manufactured paints and resins from early 40's until 1983.

Philadelphia Plant: Manufactured paints and resins from 1917 through 1981.

iv. For each such facility, state its name, address, and current RCRA
Identification number.

DuPont Specialty Chemicals
Chambers Works Plant
Rt. 130
Deepwater, NJ 08023
Current RCRA illNo.: NJD 002385730

DuPont Automotive
Parlin Plant
Washington Road
Parlin, NJ 08859
Plant closed in 1983. RCRA ID Nos. for this facility and the sister facility on
the same site were combined in 1987. The current RCRA ID No. is NJD
002444024.

DuPont Automotive
Philadelphia Plant/Marshall Lab
3500 Grays Ferry Avenue
Philadelphia, PA 19146
Current RCRA ID No.: PAD 002311884

b. In addition, if the Company transacted business with Bayonne Barrel & Drum,
provide the following information for each transaction:

i. Identify the specific dates of each transaction. Where an exact date cannot be
provided for a transaction, provide an approximation by month and year;

Chambers Works: It is the recollection of a knowledgeable employee that
business transactions took place from the late 1960's through the 1970's.
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Parlin Plant: An employee was able to confinn that Bayonne was being used
in 1965 when he began working there and was used until Bayonne went
bankrupt.

Philadelphia Plant: It is the collective recollection of knowledgeable employees
that business transactions took place from 1965 to 1981.

ii. Identify the number of Containers that were the subject of each such
transaction;

Chambers Works: We have no records but employee recollections estimate
perhaps one box trailer (approximately 240 drums) per day were shipped to
Bayonne Barrel.

Philadelphia Plant: We have no records but employee recollections estimate
perhaps two to three truck loads each week (250 drums per truck) were
shipped to Bayonne Barrel for reconditioning. Employees did not know the
details of any of the arrangements made with GM.

Parlin Plant: We have no records but employee recollections estimate perhaps
two to three truck loads each day (200 drums per truck) came to the plant
from Bayonne; many of these drums would find their way back to Bayonne
from the GM plants. We assume this is roughly the number of drums of
product shipped to automobile manufacturing sites by DuPont. These
customers, as noted, would ship thedrums to Bayonne for reconditioning, then
they would be shipped back to Parlin.

iii. Generically describe each Container that was the subject of each such
transaction (example: closed-head steel drums, etc.);

Chambers Works: Closed head steel drums.

Parlin Plant: The bulk (95%) of the transactions were for open head steel
drums.

Philadelphia Plant: Open and closed head steel drums.

iv. Identify the intended purpose of each such transaction;

Chambers Works: For reclamation.

Parlin and Philadelphia Plants: To have the drums reconditioned and then to
repurchase them.
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v. State whether each Container that was the subject of the transaction contained
any substance at the time of the transaction. As to each Container that contained
any substance:

Chambers Works: The drums were empty.

Parlin and Philadelphia Plants: There would have been some residual left in
the drums from the plants. It would have been dried. We know from the
documents obtained from the Agency that there was also residual left in the
drums returned from GM.

(1) Identify each substance, including its chemical content, physical state,
quantity by volume and weight, and other characteristics; and

Chambers Works: The drums were empty and had been pressure rinsed.
Product contents of the drums was always in liquid form.

Parlin and Philadelphia Plants: The substance would be solid paint or resin in
the drums from the plant. To the best of our knowledge this would also be
true for the drums from GM.

(2) Provide all written analyses that may have been made for each such
substance or which may be in the custody or control of the Company and
all material safety data sheets, if any, relating to each such substance;

Chambers Works: There was no substances to analyze.

Parlin and Philadelphia Plants: There is no written analyses for the
substances.

vi. If you contend that any such Container did not contain any substance at the
time of the transaction:

(1) State whether such Container had previously been used by the Company
to contain any substance, and if so:

(a) Identify all substances previously contained within such Container,
including its chemical content, physical state, and other
characteristics; and .

(b) Provide as to such substances, all written analyses that may have
been made for each such substance or which may be in the custody
or control of the Company and all material safety data sheets, if
any, relating to each such substance;
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vii. Describe in detail any treatment of any container that may have been
performed by or on behalf of the Company prior to the time that the Container was
transferred from the Company, including any process or procedure by which the
Container was emptied or cleaned;

Chambers Works: Drums underwent a pressure rinsing procedure. They
were then up-ended and drained before the lids were put back on and they
were boxed fOi' pick-up by Bayonne.

Parlin and Philadelphia Plants: There was no treatment to the drums prior to
pick-up by Bayonne.

viii. Provide copies of all documents relating in any way to each transaction,
including copies of delivery receipts, invoices, or payment devices;

No documents relating to transactions with Bayonne were found. DuPont is in
possession of the documents relating to the Company that were obtained from
the Agency's files in Edison.

ix. Identify all persons who might have knowledge of the transaction or who had
any responsibility regarding the transaction; and

No one has knowledge of a specific transaction, the parties listed in the
response to questions 3 and 4 were aware of the relationship between DuPont
and Bayonne Barrel.

x. If you sent any Container by means of any third party transporter, identify
each such transporter, including the name and address of such transporter, and
identify in which of the transactions such transporter acted.

For all three plants, Bayonne used their own transportation trucks for the
pick-ups; no other carrier was used.

The documents received from the Agency, indicate five different transporters
were used to bring drums from the General Motors' Baltimore, MD plant to
Bayonne: Berwick Sons, BRME, Jones Motor, Halls Motor Transit, and
Smith & Solomon.

3. Identify any other person (e.g., individual, company, partnership, etc.) having
knowledge of facts relating to the questions which are the subject of this inquiry. For each
such person that you identify, provide the name, address, and telephone number of that
person, and the basis of your belief that he or she has such knowledge. For past and present
employees, include their job title and a description of their responsibilities.
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General:
Henry E. Burman, central Purchasing, Wilmington, DE

Chambers Works:
William Ravior, worked in the Warehouse and then the Truck Control

Center.
Robert Mills, worked in the Warehouse.
Richard Neuroth, worked in the Warehouse.

Parlin Plant: No additional names. See also the names in the following
response to Question 4.

Philadelphia Plant:
Robert Kerwood, Purchasing Supervisor fonn 1960 - 1975. Not

interviewed due to hospitalization.
Harry Wallace, Receiving and Storage Supervisor from 1965 - 1975. Not

interviewed due to business commitments.

4. Identify each person consulted in responding to these questions and correlate each person
to the question on which he or she was consulted.

Chambers Works: Interviews were held with following people. All are current
employees at the Chambers Works. Each responded to the questions to the
best of their knowledge; no one person could respond to all the questions but
each knew many answers. There were no conflicting opinions in their
responses.

Alfred Pagano, Senior Environmental Coordinator
Vincent Gioia, Team Manager of the Waste Management Group
Paul Clements, Senior consultant .in DuPont Environmental Treatment

business. Prior to that Paul worked in the Warehouse.

Philadelphia Plant: Interviews were held with the following people. All are
current employees at the Philadelphia Plant/Marshall Lab. Each responded to
the questions to the best of their knowledge; each had the same recollection
and response.

Joseph Montagna, worked in Receiving and Storage
Romaine Becker, worked in Purchasing
William Monaghan, worked in Receiving and Storage
Joseph Martorano, worked in Receiving and Storage
Robert Blum, worked in Purchasing
John Weldon, Warehouse Supervisor

Parlin Plant: Interviews were held with the following people. AUare current
employees of DuPont Automotive now on other assignments.
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David Brown, worked at plant from 1978 - 1985, handled the problems of
the drum deposits, visited the Bayonne site twice.

James McGill, worked at the plant in the early 80's as Sales Planning
Services Manager.

Roger Hiss, worked as the supervisor in Paint from 1978 - 1979.
Robert Writer, worked as a Production Supervisor in the 60's and 70's.·
George Osei, Environmental Coordinator

5. Provide a list of all insurance policies and indemnification agreements held or entered
into' by you that may indemnify you against any liability that you may be found to have under
CERCLA. Specify the insurer, type of policy, effective dates, and state per occurrence policy
limits for each policy. Copies of policies may be provided in lieu of a narrative response. In
response to this request, please provide not only those policies and agreements that are
currently in effect, but also those in effect since your company began sending Containers to the
Site.

DuPont is a Comprehensive General Liability self-insurer. DuPont carries or has
carried since 1967 excess liability coverage. From 1967 to 1972, the per occurrence
deducible on such policies was $2,500,000; from 1972 to 1978, the deductible was
$5,000,000; from 1978 to 1980, the deductible was $10,000,000; and from 1980 forward
the deducible was/is $50,000,000. We do not anticipate environmental liability to exceed
any of these amounts at this site. If such an event occurs, we will notify appropriate
carriers and provide a copy to EPA.

DuPont does not have a copy of any indemnification agreements that would apply to
any possible liability at Bayonne Barrel & Drum.

6. State whether there exists any agreement or contract (other than an insurance policy),
which may indemnify the Company, present or past directors, officers or owners of shares in
the Company, for any liability that may result under CERCLA. Provide a copy of any such
agreement or contract. Identify any agreement or contract that you are unable to locate or
obtain.

Although we are unable so far to locate copies, it was common practice for DuPont
to require indemnities from its contractors in the relevant time period.

7. S!Jpplyany additional information or documents that may be relevant or useful to identify
other sources who disposed of or transported Containers to the Site.

DuPont does not have knowledge of any additional infonnation or documents.

TIERRA-B-005980



ZENECA ZENECA Inc.
Environmental Law Department
1800 Concord Pike
PO Box 15438
Wilmington, DE 19850-5438

Telephone (302l 886-3000
Fax (302) 886-2952

Direct Dial (302)886-3748

November 10, 1995

VIA AIRBORNE EXPRESS
Joseph Cosentino, OSC
Removal Action Branch
Emergency and Remedial Response Division
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region II
2890 Woodbridge Avenue
Edison, NJ 08837

Re: Bayonne Barrel & Drum Superfund Site
150-154 Raymond Rd., Newark, NJ - Request for Information

Dear Mr. Cosentino:

I write in response to Kathleen Callahan's letter dated
September 28, 1995 ("Information Request") addressed to
"Converters Ink c/o Zeneca Specialty Inks," 1301 South Park Ave.,
Linden, NJ 07036 ("Linden facility"), in which the Environmental
Protection Agency ("EPA") requests certain information in regard
to the Bayonne Barrel & Drum Superfund Site. This letter is
submitted by Zeneca Specialty Inks, a business unit of Zeneca
Inc. ("Zeneca") .

General Objections

1. Zeneca objects to the Information Request on the grounds
that it is overly broad, vague and duplicative. These objections
are made particularly insofar as the Information Request's
instructions, definitions and questions, by operation of the
definition of "company" in Definition 6, seek to encompass the
entirety of Zeneca's and its predecessors' operations.
Throughout its history, Zeneca and its predecessors operated many
facilities around the world. In responding to this Information
Request, Zeneca has restricted its examination of information
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available to Zeneca to information concerning those ZeneGa
Specialty Inks facilities located in New' Jersey.

2. Zeneca submits this response solely in connection with the
Bayonne Barrel & Drum Superfund Site. Zeneca objects to and
would oppose any intended or actual use by the EPA of the
information provided hereunder or for any other purpose.

3. Nothing herein shall constitute an admission of liability.
The information provided herein is based on information presently
available to Zeneca, except that any information protected by the
attorney-client privilege or work product immunity will not be
produced or disclosed. Zeneca reserves the right to supplement
this response in the event that it becomes aware of any
additional facts or information regarding this Site.

Subject to and without waiver or limitation of any of the
foregoing objections or other potentially available objections,
Zeneca responds to the Information Request as follows:

Specific Responses

1a. Zeneca Specialty Inks, a business unit of Zeneca Inc. The
address of Zeneca Inc. is 1800 Concord Pike, Wilmington, DE
19897.
lb. Zeneca Inc. is a corporation organized under the laws of the
state of Delaware and incorporated on April 22, 1971.

1c. The Chairman of the Board of Zeneca Inc. is A. Keith
Willard. His address is 1800 Concord Pike, Wilmington, DE
19897. Zeneca Inc. does not have a President.

I

1d. Zeneca objects to question 1d on grounds of vagueness
insofar as "affiliate" is not defined. Without waiving that
objection, Zeneca responds as follows: Zeneca Inc. is a
subsidiary of Zeneca Holdings Inc. The Chairman of the Board of
Zeneca Holdings Inc. is A~ Keith Willard. Subsidiaries of Zeneca
Inc. are Zeneca Delaware Holdings Inc., Atkemix Nine Inc.,
Atkemix Ten Inc., Zeneca Resins Holdings Inc., Corpus Christi
Holdings Inc., Atkemix Twelve Inc., Zeneca International Inc. and
Garst Research Farms Inc. All companies except Garst Research
Farms Inc. have as their address 1800 Concord Pike, Wilmington,
DE 19897. Garst Research Farms' address is 615 Main Street, Box
300, Coon Rapids, IA 50058. The president of all subsidiaries
except Garst Research Farms is Robert T. Kennedy. The President
of Garst Research Farms is Stephen Garst.
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Ie. Zeneca objects to question Ie by restating and incorporating
by reference General Objection 1, above.' Without waiving that
objection, Zeneca responds as follows: The Linden facility was
originally owned by Converters Ink Company, a Delaware
corporation. Prior to 1985, Converters Ink was acquired through
a stock acquisition by Beatrice Companies Inc., a Delaware
corporation ("Beatrice"). In 1985, Imperial Chemicals Industries
PLC ("ICI") purchased the stock of Converters Ink from Beatrice
and after an internal reorganization, Converters Ink Company was
made a subsidiary of ICI Americas, Inc., a Delaware corporation.
In December 1986, Converters Ink was merged into ICI Americas
Inc. (now known as Zeneca). As a result of the restructuring of
ICI and its subsidiaries, the name of ICI Americas was changed to
Zeneca. The assets of the former Converters Ink Co. form part of
Zeneca Specialty Inks, which is a business unit of Zeneca Inc.

1f. See answer to Ie.

2a. Except as stated in response to question 2b(v), Zeneca has
no information evidencing the transaction of any business with
Bayonne Barrel & Drum for the disposal, treatment, or storage of
any barrels, drums, or other containers.

2a(i). See answer to 2a.

2a(ii). See answer to 2a.

2a(iii). See answer to 2a. The Linden facility was engaged at
all relevant times in the manufacture of custom-model inks.

2a(iv). See answer to 2a.
1301 South Park Avenue, PO
RCRA identification number

The address of the Linden facility is
Box 1512, Linen, NJ 07036-0005. Its
is NJD000533877.

I

2b(i). certain employees of the Linden facility (listed below)
recall that, on occasion, the Linden facility purchased empty
reconditioned drums from Bayonne Barrel & Drum between
approximately 1965 and 1980. No records of these transactions
exist. Based on employee recollection, it is estimated that
between 6 to 12 transactions took place per year over two or
three years within the 1965-1980 time period.

2b(ii). On those instances where the Linden facility purchased
empty reconditioned drums, it would purchase a truckload. A
truckload of drums would consist of approximately 200 to 225
drums.
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2b(iii). In the purchases discussed above, the Linden fqcility
purchased type ~17h" or ~Rule 40" drums from Bayonne Barrel &
Drum. These drums were open-headed phenolic-lined 55 gallon
drums.
2b(iv). The Linden facility would use the reconditioned drums to
hold or ship their custom-made ink products.

2b(v). At the time of purchase, the drums were physically
inspected on the delivery truck for imperfections. If faulty
drums (e.g., obviously dented) were discovered, the shipment was
not accepted, and the empty, reconditioned drums were not
unloaded from the Bayonne Barrel & Drum delivery truck. On one
or two occasions, Linden facility employees recall that after
acceptance of the delivery of reconditioned drums from Bayonne
Barrel & Drum, one or two drums were discovered to be leaking.
These defective drums were emptied of their contents, and scraped
or completely drip dried before being returned to Bayonne Barrel
& Drum for refund. No documentation or more specific information
exists as to these one or two instances.

2b(vi). See answer 2b(v).

2b(vii). See answer 2b(v) .

2b(viii). Zeneca has been unable to locate any documents
evidencing a business relationship between the Linden facility
and Bayonne Barrel & Drum.

2b(ix). Phil Pierro, Branch Manager; Vince Giannicola, Customer
Service Manager; and Joseph Piccirillo, Plant Engineer. All of
these persons are employees at the Linden facility, Zeneca
Specialty Inks, 1301 South Park Avenue, PO Box 1512, Linden, NJ
07036-0005. Their telephone number is (908)486-5125.

2b(x). All containers were transported by Bayonne Barrel & Drum.

3. See answer 2b(ix).

4. For information with regard to all questions, see answer
2b(ix). For review of existence of Zeneca records at Zeneca's
record retention center and for preparation of this response:
Patrick J. Egan, Michael F. Reilly, 1800 Concord Pike,
Wilmington, DE 19850-5438, (302)886-3000.

5. Zeneca objects to question 5 on the ground that it is
irrelevant and unduly burdensome. Because Zeneca is not aware of
the disposal of any waste at the Site, Zeneca is not aware of any
liability that may be covered under Zeneca's insurance program.
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6. Zeneca objects to question 5 on the ground that it is_
irrelevant and unduly burdensome. Because Zeneca is not aware of
the disposal of any waste at the Site, Zeneca is not aware of any
liability that may be covered under Zeneca's rights to
indemnification. Without waiving that objection, Zeneca states
as follows: See attached agreement between Imperial Chemical
Industries PLC and Beatrice Companies, Inc.

7. None.

cc: Patrick J. Egan
Joseph Piccirillo
Gary S. Marini, Esquire
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CERTIFICATION qF ANSWERS TO REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

State of New Jersey

County of Union

I certify under penalty of law that I have personally examined
and am familiar with the information submitted in this document
(response to EPA Request for Informat.1on) and all documents
submitted herewith, and that based en my inquiry of those
individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the
information, I believQ that the submitted information is true,
accurate, and complete, and that all documents sub~itted herewith
are complQte and authentic unless otherwise indicated. r am
aware that there are ~i9nificant penalties for submitting false
information, includinq the possibility of fine and irnprisor~ent.

Philip R. Pierro
NAME (print or type)

TITLE (print or type)
Branch Manager
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BER srOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT

Dated as of December 12, 1984

Among

BEATRICE COMPANIES, INC.,

LA ACQUISITION CORPORATION

and

IMPERIAL CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES PLC
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STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT

THIS STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") dated as of

December 12, 1984 among Beatrice Companies, Inc., a Delaware corporation

("Beatrice"), LA Acquisition Corporation, a Delaware corporation ("Seller"), a"d

Imperial Chemical Industries PLC, an English pUblic limited company ("Buyer").

RECITALS /
;"

Beatrice owns all of the issued and outstanding capital shares of Selle:o.

Seller owns all of the issued and outstanding capital shares (the "Shares") of BEK I Inc.,

. a Delaware corporation ("BEK"). Prior to Closing (as hereinafter defined) BEK .....ill

own all of the issued and outstanding shares (the "Transitory Shares") of Transitory,

Inc., a Delaware corporation ("the Company"). The Company owns all of the issueC!

and outstanding capital shares of B. Chemical, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Chern"),

and Chem owns, directly or indirectly, all, or such lesser amount as may be indicatEd

in the Letter (as hereinafter defined), of the outstanding capital shares of those

corporations which are Identified in the Letter as subsidiaries (collectively the

"SUbsidiaries" and individually a "SUbsidiary"; such capital shares of It SUbsidiary bei'g'

referred to as "Stock"). Seller desires to sell the Shares to Buyer or one or more C:;:-ect

or indirect subsidiaries of Buyer designated by Buyer (Buyer and such SUbsidiary or

subsidiaries of Buyer, if any, being referred to as the "Designated Purchaser" or

"Designated Purchasers", as the case may be) and Buyer desires to purchase the

Shares, and may desire to purchase Stock of one or more SUbsidiaries designated by

Buyer ("Designated SUbsidiaries"), or to cause one or more other Designated
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purchasers to purchasl! the Shares and any Stock of ~esignated Subsidiaries .to be pur-

chased hereunder.

Not~·lithstE.nding the signing of this Agreement, Beatrice has asked Buyer

to consider structuring the transaction contemplated by this Agreement in a manner

which would result in BEK owning all of the issued and outstanding shares of Esmark,

Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Esmark"), which now owns the Transitory Shares. In

that event all of Esmark's outstanding long-term indebtedness for borrowed money and

the indentures applicable thereto would be taken into ac~ount in adjusting the
/

Purchase P"ice (as hereinafter defined). Accordingly, Beatrice will furnish Buyer with

information concerning Es:nark and such indebtedness and indentures and Buyer will

re\-iew such information and give consideration to Beatrice's proposal •

. NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the warranties. representations.

covenants and agreements hereinafter .set forth, Beatrice. Seller and Buyer covenant

and agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

Transaction

1.1 On the terms and SUbject to the conditions herein expressed, Seller
I

shall, ar1 shall cause Chem and the SUbsidiaries, as the case may be, to, at the Closini.

(as hereinafter defined), transfer and deliver to the Designated Purchase: or

Designated Purchasers the Shares and any Stock oC Designated Subsidiaries Which

Buyer shall have designated not later than January 31, 1985.

1.2 On the terms and subject to the conditions herein expressed. Buyer

shall. or shall cause the Designated Purchaser or Purchasers to, at the Closing. pay to

Seller (U.S.) 5750,000,000 (the "Purchase Price") in exchange for the Shares and the
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Stock of any Designated Subsidiaries, which Purchase Price shall be ,subject to

adjustment as provided in Section 1.4.

1.3 A3 soon as practicablf, but in any '!vent within 60 days following the

Closing Date. Beatrice shall prepare and deliver to Buyer a combined balance sheet for

Chern and Subsidiarie!' P'lI of February 28, 1985 (the "Closing Balance Sheet") and a

combined statement of income for Chern and Subsidiaries for the fiscal year ended

February 2B. 1985 (the tlClosing Income Statement"), such Closing Balance Sheet and

Closing Income Statement being referred to collectively ,as 'the "Closing Financial

Statements". The Closing F:.lancial Statements shall be prepared on a basis consistent

with, and in accordance with the accounting policies set forth in the notes to, the

September Finaneie.l Statements (as hereinafter defined), applied in a manr.e:r

consistent with those applied in the preparation of the September Financial

Statemen~. Beatrice shall cause such Closing Financial Statements to be examined.

in accordance with generally accepted aUditing standards, by Peat, Marwick. 1I~itchell

&. Co. ("Peat Marwick"), whose r~port with respect thereto shall accompany such

Closing Financial Statements and state that such Closing Financial Statements present

fairly the combined financial position of Chern and Subsidiaries as of Februa~' 28,

1985 and the combined re ..ults of operations of Chern and Subsidiaries for the year

ended FelJruary 28, 1985, in conforrnit~· with generally acc~pted accounting princ:p]es

(except as disclosed in the notes to the Closing Financial Statements, which exceptions

shall not be materially different from the exceptions set for~ in the notes to the

September Financial Statements) applied on a basis consistent with that used in the

preparation of such September Financial Statements. Beatrice shall cause Peat

Marwick to examine its calculations of Closing Net Income and Closing Net Book

Value, and Peat Marwick's report on the Closing Financial Statements shall state that
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such calculations present fairly the Closing Net Income and Closing Net Book Value in

I,~cordance with the provisions of this Agreement. As l;$ed herein, the term "Closing

Net P?ok Value" shall mean the amount of stockh~ld,.r's equity in Chern and

Subsidiaries (exclUding the equity of minority interests) less the amount of the

cumulative foreign currency transl.tic n adjustment, as set forth in the Closing

Balance Sheet, which amount shall be increased or decreased, as appropriate, to

(i) include the amount of the net change (inclUding any appropriate tax effect) in

equity in Subsidiaries (excluding the equity of minority interests) operating outside the

United States between December 31, 1984 •• Id the Closing Date, (ii}{x) exclude the

amount of the net change (inclUding any appropriate tax erteet) in stockholder's equit}'

in Subsidiaries (exclUding the equity of minority interests) operating within the Unitee

States between the Closing Date and February 2,8, 1985, if the Closing Date occurs

prior to February 28, 1985, or (y) include such net change (inciuding any appropriate

tax effect) between February 28, 1985 and the Closing Date, if the Closin& Date

occurs after February 28, 1985, and Oil) exclude any Excluded Assets and Liabilities

(as hereinafter defined) and any goodwill and other intangibles. M used herein, the

term "September Net Book Value" shall mean the amount of stockholder's equity in

Chern and SUbsidiaries (excluding the equity of minority interests) less the amount of
I

the cumulative foreign currency translatic",1 adjustment, as set forth in the Reviewed

September Financial Statements (as such term is defined in Section 4.2), which amount

shall be increased or decreasedt as appropriate, to (I) exclude the effects of any assets

or liabilities that are to be retained by Beatrice which are set forth in the Letter (the

"ExclUded Assets and Liabilities") and an}" reserves for liabilities for which Beatrice

has indemnified Buyer pursuant hereto and (ii) exclUde any goodwill and other

intangibles, in each case to the extent reflected in the Reviewed September Financial

Statements. As used herein, the te:m "Closing Net Income" shall mean the amOiJn~ of

TIERRA-B-005992



combined net income of Chern and Subsidiaries for the year ended February 28, 19a5

set forth in the =losing Ihcome Statement, which amount shall be increased or

decreased, as apprupri~·e, to (I) exclude the amount of the net char,ge, as compared to

the amount as of February 29, 1984, in the allowance tor the valuation of inventories

un' 'er the last-in. first-out (LIFO) method, to the exter t that such net change has

entered into the determination of combined net income u presented in the Closing

Income Statement, (ii) exclude the effect of the ditterence between the actual
I

I

currency translation rates used in the determination of, 'combined net income as

presented in the Closing Income Statement and the currency tr;.nslation rates set forth

in the Letter; (iii) inclUde, to the extent not otherwise included in the determir.ation of

combined net income as presented in the Closing Income Statement, the effect o~ any

reduction (no~ exceeding $1,480,000 in the aggregate) in estimated liabilities or

reserves as specified. in Schedule X to the Letter; (Iv) exclude income and expense with

respect to Excluded Assets and Liabilities and (v) to take into account appropriate

income tax effects with respect to the foregoing Inclusions and exclusions. Within 30

days after receipt cf the Closing Financial Statements, Buyer shall inform Beatrice of

its acceptance thereof or any disagreements with respect thereto. In the 18tter' event,
I

representatives of Beatrice and Buyer shall meet and a.tempt to resolve such

disagreements and agree upon the amount 01 Closing Net F Jok Value and Closin~ l'et

Incom;;. Buyer shall cause Chem to provide to Beatrice full access to Chem's books,

records, facilities and employees, and Buyer shall cause Chem's employees to

cooperate fully with Beatrice In the preparation of the Closing Financial Statements.

Buyer shall have the right to cause Price Waterhouse to perform a review of the

Closing Financial Statements and of the report of Peat Marwick and Buyer and Price

Waterhouse shall be provided full access to the working papers prepared (including

those prepared by Peat Marwick) in connection with the aforesaid examination, report
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and calculations. If Buyer and Beatrice agree upon'the Closing Net Book Value 2.nd

Closing Net Income, such amount! shall serve as the basis for any adjustment to the

purchase Price in accordance witi' Seetion 1.4 hereof. If Buyer and Beatrice do not

agree 'upon the Closing Net Book Value or Closing Net Income and (i) the difference in

the Closing Net B JC~: Values respectively determined by them is less the,n $500,000,

Closing Net Book Value shall be deemed to be the average of the Closing Net Book

Values respectively determined by Buyer and Beatrice or (ii) the difference in Closing

Net Incomes determinecl by them is less than $100,000, Closhlg Net Income shall be

deemed to be the avel' ..ge of the Closing Net Incomes respectively C1etermi"e~ by

Buyer and Beatrice, and such Closing Net Book Value or Closing Net Income, or both,

as the' case may be, shall serve as the basis for any adjustment to the Purchase Price

in accordance with Section 1.4 hereof. If Buyer and Beatrice do not agree upon the

Closing Net Book Value or Closing Net Income and the difference in the Closing Net

Book Values respectively determined by them is $SOO,OOO or more or the difference in

the Closing Net Incomes respectively determined by them is $100,000 or more, then a

firm of nationally known certified pUblic accountants ("CPA") shall be selected b~'

Buyer and Beatrice (or, tailing such selection within 30 days after delivery of the

Closing Financial Sta~ ..ments, by the then ,president of the American Art..tration

Assooiation) and be .!mployed to determine such Closing Net Book Value "t Clos: ..;-

Net Income, or both, as the case may be. CPA shall have access to all docum"'n:s a!'l~

facilities necessary to perform its function. CPA's determination, Which shall be made
J

within 30 days after its selection~ with respect to the Closing Net Book Val:.:e 0:-

Closing Net Income, or both, u the cue may be, shall be final and binding upor. the

parties hereto and shall serve u the buis tor any related adjustment to the Purchase

Price in accordance with Section 1.4 hereof. Beatrice and Buyer shall each pay one-

half of the fees and expenses of CPA for such services.
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1.4 (a) In the event that Closing Net Book Value is less than September

Net Book Value or Closing Net Income is less tha;, $39,250,\)00, the Purchase Price

shall be reduced by the greater of 0) the amount b~' wri'!h September Net Book Value

exceeds Closing Net Book Value and (ii) an amount (not exceeding $37,000,000) Which

is equal to the product of (x) the: c.Junt by which $39,250,000 exceeds Closing Net

Income multiplied by (y) 18.5, and the amount at such reduction shall be refunded by

Seller to Buyer or such Designated Purchasers as Buyer may specify.

(b) In the event that Closing Net Book Value is greater than

September Net Book Value, the PurchlUoe Price shall be increased by the amount of

such excess, and Buyer shall payor cause to be paid the amount of such increase to
Seller.

(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsections (a) and (b) above

to the contrary, in the event that the net amount ot any such adjustments pursuant to

such Section 1.4(a) and (b) is not more than 5500,000, the Purchase Price shall not be

adjusted. In the event that the net amount of any such adjustments is $500,000 or

more, the Purchase Price shall be adjusted by the full net amount of such a~justments.

(d) The net amount of any adjustment payment required bj' Section

1.4(8) or (b) above shall be paid by \tILe transfer within five (5) dayS following the
I

determination of the f1nal Closing Ne~ Book Value and Closing Net Income, wtlether by

CPA or by agreement between the partioas hereto, as the case may be. The net amount

of any adjustment payment shall bear interest trom the Closing Date through the date

of payment at the prime interest rate of The First National Sank of Chi cairo in effect

from time to time from the Closing Date to the date of payment.
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ARTICLE n

Closing

2.1 The completion of the transactions contemplated bJ t~{· Agreement

(the "Closin&") shall take place on the Closing Date It the offices of Winston «
Strawn, Suite 5000, One First National Plaza, Chic. g"" Illinois, It 10:00 A.M., local

time, or at such other place or time on the Closing Date upon which Buyer and Seller

may agree.

2.2 The Closing Date shall be: "

(a) the date which is five (S) de.ys (excJusive of Saturdays, Sundays

and national holidays) after the date on which the conditions set forth in Articles IX

and X hereof are satisfied; or

(b) such other date as Buyer and Seller may agree upon in w:,iting.

2.3 The parties shall use their best efforts to effect the Closing on or

belore February 28, 1985. If the Closing shall not occur on or prior to June 30, 1985,

or such later date upon which Buyer and Seller may agree in writing, this Agreement

shall terminate upon written notice of such termination given by either party hereto

not then in default hereunder in any material respect to the other at any time after

June 30, 1985, or such later date, as the case may be, and thereupon this Agreement

shall become null and void and no part)· hereto w~ll have an)" further rights or

obligations hereunder other than rights and obligations '\t'ising during or with respect

to any period prior to such termination.

2.4 At the Closin.:

(e) Buyer shall deliver or cause to be delivered to Seller (i) the

payment provided to be made under Section 1.2 by wire transfer of immediately

available lunds to an account designated by Seller prior to the Closing Date and (ii) the

opinions and certificates referred to in Article X; and
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(b) Beatrice and Seller shall deliver or cause to be d_elivered to

Buyer or the Designated Purchasers, as cuyer may have specified in accordance witli

Section 1.1, (i) certifieates representing the Shares and the Stock of all Des~gnatec.

SUbsidiaries, as Buyer may have specified in accordance with Section 1.1, Which

certificates shall be either duly endorsed in blank or accompanied ~y a stock power

duly executed in blank and shall be aeeompanied by an amount of cash or other funds

ac.:eptable to Buyer equal to any transfer taxes required to be paid on the transfer of

the Shares; (il) the opinions and certificates referred to in Article IX; and (iii) the

written resignation of all directors and officers of BEK and the Company :.nd of each

director of Chern or any SUbsidiary and of each officer of Chern or any SUbsidiary who,..

after the Closing, will be employed by Beatrice and each of whom is identified in the
Letter.

ARTICLE m
Joint Covenants

3.1 Beatrice, Seller and Buyer shall complete and tile all reports, forms

and supplements thereto as required by the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements

Act of 1976 and the rules and regulations thereunder (the "1976 Act") .85 promptly as
practicable.

3.2 Bea trice, Seller and Buyer shall, and Beatrice and Seller shall CE.~H

BEK, the Company, Chern and the Subsidiaries to, cooperate and use their best efforts

to prepare and file all applications and other Instruments or documents as prompt1~. as

practicable and to act thereafter with all reuonable diligence in order to obtain such

approvals, consents, authorizations, waivers and permits from any person, firm,

corporation or governmental or other entity u may reasonably be necessary or

appropriate In order to enable Buyer and the DesIgnated Purchasers to acquh'f the
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Shares and Stock ot Designated Subsidiaries in the, manner provided herein and to

enable BE {, the Company, Chern and each SUbsidiary to carry on and conduct their

respective bu..;inesses subsequent to the Closing in the same manner as they were

carried on and conducted prior to the Closing, without any conditions or restrictions

which Buyer might reasonably consider to be material and adverse.

3.3 (a) The Letter sets forth a list of each action or proceeding

pending before any court or governmental or administrative authority to which

Beatrice (as regards the business of Chem and its SUbsidie.ries), BEK, the Company,

=hem or any SUbsidiary is a party. Effective upon the Closing, Beatrice shall

indemnify Buyer, the Designated Purchasers, BEK, the Company, Chern and

Subsidiaries (collectively, the "Indemnified Parties") against and shall be responsible

for defending, and shall 8t Buyer's request detend, all such actions and proceedings

pending on the Closing Date ("Existing Litigation"), to which Beatrice, BER, the

Company, Chern or any SUbsidiary is a party and, except as set forth below, for

satisfying all debts, obligations, losses, liabilities, attorneys' fees, costs, expenses,

fines, damages, settlements, judgments or similar liabUities (collectively, "Liabilities

and Expenses") resulting therefrom as the same are incurred. Buyer shall cause Che m

and each SUbsidiary to cooperate with Beatrice in its defense of' such Existing

Litigation, to make available to Beatrice such personnel and records as Beatrice may

reasonably request in connection therewith and to permit Beatrice access to the

property of Chern and the SUbsidiaries for the purpose of inspecting the same and
J

conducting whatever tests it may reasonably deem necessary in connection therewitt ..

If any judgment against Beatrice, Chem or any Subsidiary in any such Existing

Litigation requires that any modification be taken under any statute, rule or regulation

relating to health, safety or environmental standards or controls with respect to

Chern's or any SUch Subsidiary's current production process or that any device, system,
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facility or other process improvement be installed or made under any statute, rule or

regulation relating to hea th, safety or environmental standards or controls with

respect to its current property. plant 0" equipment, in order to conform to regulatory

health, safety or environmental controls or standards in eUect at the time, Buyer shall

cause Cherr ,....any such SUbsidiary, as the case may be, without expense to Beatrice,

to take such action or install or make such improvement.

(b) Effective upon the Closing, the Designated Purchasers shall be

responsible for defending, and Buyer shall defend or cause th,eDesignated Purchasers,

BEK, the Compa:.J, Chem or a Subsidiary to defend, all actions and proceedings before

any court or governmental or administrative authority relating to environmental,

environmental or occupational health or environmental or occupational safety or

similar matters (including personal injury, nuisance and similar actions or proceedi:':g'5

to the extent arising from any such matters or similar matters) (llNew Litigation")

commenced after the Closing Date whether or not the event or events or condition or

conditions giving rise thereto occurred prior to, or existed on, the Closing Date, to

which Beatrice (as regards the business ot Chem and its SUbsidiaries), BEK, the

Company, Chern, any SUbsidiary, the Buyer or any Designated Purchaser is a party;

proVided, howev_r. that Beatrice shall indemnify the Indemnified Parties against all
t

New Litigatio:. Liabilities and Expenses, as the same are Incurred, to the extent such

New Litigation Liabilities and Expenses are attributable to events or conditions

occurring or eXisting on or prior to the Closinr Date exeept that Beatrice's

indemnification obligation under this Section 3.3(b) shall not apply to New Litigation

Liabilities and Expenses to the extent they are materially increased by and arise from

the exacerbation alter the Closing Date by Chem or any SUbsidiary of the event or

condition giVing rise to such New Litigation Liability and Expense.
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(c) Effective upon the Closing,' Beatrice shall indemnify the

indemnified Parties against all Liabilities a ld Expenses (as incurred) resulting from,

and shall be responsible tor defending, and sJtall at Buyer's request defend, all actions

and proceedings commenced after the Closing Date relating to product HabUit}' 0:-

personal injw-y arising out 0' ;roperty damage or personal injury caused by defective

or allegedly defective products ot Chern or any Subsidiary for which the initial

causative event (other than manufacture or sale) occurred on or prior to the Closing

Date ("Other Litigation").

(d) Beatrice o. Buyer, as the case may be, shall give the other

prompt written notice of all Existing, New c:r Other Litigation pending on, or

commenced after, the Closing Date which may result in an obligation being irr.;>ose~

lIpon the other party under the provisions hereof. The party responsible hereunder for

defending any Existing, New or Other Litigation shall delend same with counsel

reasonably satisfactory to the other party and shall not settle or compromise any such

Existing, New or Other Litigation tor which the other party may be responsible

without the prior written consent of the other party (which consent shall not be

unreasonably withheld). Each part~7 will cooperate with the other in defending all such

Existing, New or Other Lltigatit.n and each s~all permit the other to participate in

such deCense.

3.4 On or betore January 31, 1985 Buyer will inform Beatrice whether or

not it is Willing to structure the transaction contemplated hereby in the manner

referred to in the second recital to this Agreement. It Buyer is so willing, prio:- to

Closing, the parties shall amend this Agreement on mutually beneficial terms as

necessary to reflect such structuring and Beatrice will cause the necessary steps to be

taken in order to accomplish same. Among other things, such amendment and steps

will result in BEK owning all of the issued and outstanding shares of Esmark; BEK
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having no other asset and no liabilities; Esmark having redeemed all of its presently

outs" anding shares, other than those owned by BEK; Esmar ( having no assets other

than tht" Transitory Shares; and Esmark having no liabilities, ('ther than contingent

liabilities as to which Beatrice will tully indemnify the Indemnified Parties against any

loss, damage or expense, other than cer .£.:n obligations relating to long-term

indebtedness tor borrowed money.

If Buyer is not so willing (in its sole discretion and for any reason

whatsoever), prior to the Closing, (I) Beatrice shall cause Esmark to redeem all shares

of Esmark owned by BEK in exchange tor the Tulnsitory Shares and the terms and

provisions hereof shall not be amended and (ii) Beatrice shall reimburse Buye!' for

Buyer's out-o~-pocket expenses (not exceeding $250,000 without Beatrice's p!'ior

consent) incurred in connection with its consideration of the matters referre~ to in

this Section 3.4.

ARTICLE IV

Covenants of Beatrice

4.1 Beatrice shall furnish Buyer with all documents, reports and other

information and data (including financial stateruents) covering BEK, the Company,
I

Chern or any SUbsidiary as Bu}"ermay reasonabl,)' request or be required to SUbmit to or

tile with any person, firm, corporation or goverJ1mental or other entity in connection

with this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby.

4.2 Beatrice shall at· all reuonable times prior to the Closing make the

plants, properties, books of account and records of BEK, the Company, Chern an~ each

SUbsidiary available for examination and inspection by Buyer and its agents and

representatives and give Buyer access to the employees ot Chern and each SUbsidiar~',

and Buyer and its agents and representatives shall have the right to audit the books
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and records of BEK. the Company, Chern and each SUbsidiary prior to the Closing

Date. Beatrict: shall ~romptly cause Peat Marwick to conduct. in accordan. ~e with

ienerally accepted audl tinj; standards. an exam ination .of the Financiai Statf me'lts,

other than the balance sheet at February 28, 1982 and the September Financial

Statem' n..s. Beatrice shall cause such report of Peat MarY'Ie-'( to be delivered to

Buyer no later than January 31, 1985 and such report shall state that such examined

financial statements (the "Audited Financial Statements") present fairly the combined

financial position of Chern and Subsidiaries as of the lut day of February 1984 and

1983 and the combined results of operations for each of the years !n the three-year

period ended February 29. 1984. in conformity with generally accepted accounting

principles (except as disclosed in the notes to the Audited Financial Statemen:s, which

exceptions shall not be materially different from the exceptions disclosed in the

corresponding Financial Statements), applied on a basis consistent with that used in

the preparation of the Financial Statements. Beatrice shall cause Peat Marwick to

conduct a limited review of the September Financial Statements, which limited review

shall be conducted in accordance with the standards established by the American

Institute of Certified Public Accountants for such review of interim Cina:1cial

statements. Beatrice shall cause the report of Peat Marwick to be delivered to Buyer

no later u~an January 31, 1985 and such report snall state that Peat Marwick is not

aware of a~y material mOdifications that should be made to such September Financial•
Statements (the "Reviewed September Financial Statements"; ~he reviewed Balance

Sheet forming a part thereof being referred to u the "Reviewed September Balance

Sheet") for them to be in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

(except u disclosed in the notes to the Reviewed September Financial Statements.

Which exceptions shall not materially differ from the exceptions set forth in the

September Financial Statements). No such examination. inspection, review or audit by
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Peat Marwick, Buyer or its agents and representatives shall in any way diminish,

terminate or otherwise atrect any of the warranties, representations, covenants or

agreements of Beatrice or Seller conta.nec' In this Agreement or in any certificate, or

other document furnished or to be furnished by Beatriee or Seller in connection with

this Agreement.

4.3 Pending the Closing, Beatriee shall eause Chem and each Subsidia:-y

to use its best efforts to preserve and protect its goodwill, business, rights, licenses,

permits, authorizations, properties and assets; to keep available the services of its

present employees, Ilnd to l'reserve and protect its relationships with eMployeb,

creditors, suppliers, distributors, licensors, licensees, customers and others haVing

business relationships with it. Beatrice, upon becoming aware (and upon BEK's, the

Compan~Y's,Chern's or any SUbsidiary's beeoming aware) thereof, shall promptly noti!'~'

Buyer in writing of any material adverse change of the type described in Section

7.11(a) which may hereafter occur or beeome likely to occur, Whether or not covered

by insurance, or with respect to relationships between Chern or any SUbsidiary and its

employees, creditors, suppliers, distributors, licensors, licensees, customers or others

having buSiness relationships with Chern or such SUbsidiary.

4.4 Pending the Closing, Beatriee shall, subject to any exeeptions thereto
I .

set forth in th~ Letter,

laws;

(c) Not permit Chem or any SUbsidiary to (1) sell, issue or otherwise•
disPoseof any shares of eapltal stock or any other securities of it or of any SUbsidiary,
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(ii) acquire (through redemption or otherwise) any shares of capital stock or any other

securities of it or of any SUbsidiary or (iii) sell. grant. i$s~e or other""ise dispose o~ eny

options. warrants or other rights to acquire any sl,ares cf capital stock or any other

securities of it or of any SUbsidiary;

(d) Not engage, or pt:1!"it any SUbsidiary or affiliate of Beatrice

(other than BEK. the Company, Chem or a SUbsidiary) to engage. In any transaction

with Chem or any SUbsidiary except for (i) the payment of cash dividends and dividen~s

of Excluded Assets, (ii) the furnishing of centralized processing and management for

insurance. personnel, employee benefjts and ot:-:er functions in the ordinary and regular

course of business consistent with past practice. (iii) those necessary to effectuate the

corporate reorganization described in the Letter and (iv) the pro\'ision. on terms no

less favorable to Chem and the Subsidiaries than at arm's length, of goods and services

in the ordinary course of business;

(e) Not permit Chem or any Subsidiary to purchase or otherwise

acquire or sell, mortgage, pledge or otherwise dispose of any of its properties or

assets, except for the purchase or other acquisition or sale or other disposition of

personal property in the ordinary and reg'Ular course of business consistent with pas!

practice; provided, however. that in any eve~ ~, Beatrice shall give Buyer prior notice

of any capital expenditurt: or commitm"t therefor, or group of related cap:tal

expenditures or commitments, in excess of $100,000 and will not permit any suet

expenditure or commitment without the eonsent of Buyer;

(f) Not permit BEK, the Company, Chern or any Subsidiary to

merge or consolidate with any other person, firm, corporation or other entit)";

(g) Not permit BEK. the Compan}", Chem or any Subsidiary to enter

into or become obligated under any agreement or commitment. or to change. amend.

terminate or otherwise modify any agreement or commitment to which it is a party or
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by which it or its assets are bound, except agreements or commitments enter-ed into or

obligated under or changed, amended, terminated or otherwise mod tied in the

ordinary and regular course of business consistent with past practice;

(h) Cause BEK. the Company. Chem 'and each SUbsidiary to afford

the Buyer full access to, but otherwise to preserve and pr,,·,ct the confidentiality of,

all proprietary and other confidential information of BEK, the Company, Chern and

each SUbsidiary and not to waive or surrender any valuable right;

(i) Not permit BEK, the Company, Chern or any SUbsidiary to

agree to take any of the actions specified in the preceding ·cl.:.uses (b) through (h) of

this Section 4.4; and

m Maintain, and cause Chern and each Subsidiary to maintain, in

- full force and effect policies of insurance and self-insurance arrangements of the same

type, character and coverage as the policies of insurance and self-insurance

arrangements presently in effect for the benefit of Chern or any Subsidiary.

ARTICLE V

Deliveries of Financial Statements,
The Letter and Other Documents

5.1 Beatrice and Seller jointlr and severally represent and warnnt to

Buyer and the Designated Purchasers that they have heretofore delivered to Buye:-:

(a) The unaUdited combined balance sheet of Chern and Subsidiaries

as of the last da}· of February 1982, 1983 and 1984 and the related unaudited combined

statement of earnings and cash flow for the years then ended; and the unaudited

combined balance sheet of Chern and Subsidiaries as of September 30, 1983 and 1984

and the related unaudited combined statement of earnings and cash flow for the

periods of seven months then ended. The foregoing financial statements are he:,ein,
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together notes thereto, referred to as the "Finan,cial Statements." The unau~ite~

combined balance sheet of Chern and Subsidiaries as of September 30, 1984 is htrein

referred to as the "Balance Sheet"; the term "Balance Sheet Da teft as used herein shLJ

mean 'Septembe!' 30, 1984; the term "September Income Statement" means the

unaudited combined statement of earnings of Chem and Subsidiaries tor ttle seven

months ended the Balance Sheet Date, and the term "September Financial Statements"

means such financial statements as of and for the seven months ending September 30,

1984.

(b) A draft disclosure memorandum (subject to Section 5.... the

"Lecter") of even date herewith addressee: to Buyer and signed by Beatrice and Selle!';

(c) A copy of the Certificate of Incorporation (as now in effect) of

BEK, the Company, Chern and each SUbsidiarJ' incorporated in the United States, and

copies of all material documents effecting or otherwise relating to the reorganization

referred to in Section 4.4(d)(ili); and

(d) A copy of the by-laws (as now in effect) of BEKt the Company,

Chem and each SUbsidiary incorporated in the United States.

5.2 Buyer has heretofore delivered to Beatrice and Seller a copy of all

resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors of Buyer authorizing the execut'~n and

delivery of this Agreement by Buyer and the consumma"ion or the trF'1Sactions

contemplated hereby, certified by the Secretary of Buyer.

5.3 Beatrice shall deliver to Buyer, within 10 days after the date hereof,

a definitive disclosure memorandum Which, unless Buyer shall have notified Beatrice

within 10 da~'s after such delivery that such memorandum diCfers in any material

respect from the draft disclosure memorandum delivered pursuant to Section 5.l(b},

shall for all purposes of this Agreement be deemed the Letter.
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ARTICLE VI

Warranties, Representations and
.£Q.!enants Regarding Beatrice. Seller. BEK and the Company

Beatrice "n~ Seller, jointly and severally, warrant and represent, subject to

any exceptions thereto specifically set forth in tht! Letter. to, and covenant with,

Buyer and the Designated Purchasers that:

6.' ea} Each of Beatrice, Seller, BEK and the Company is a

corporation, duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the

State of Delaware; and .'

(b) Each of Beatrice and Seller has all requisite powe: and

authority to enter into and perform and carry out this Agreement and the trailSactions

contemplated hereby, has taken all requisite action to authorize the execution and

delivery of this Agreement and the performance and consummation of the transactions

contemplated hereby and has dUly executed and delivered this Agreement; and this

Agreement is binding upon and enforceable against each of Buyer and Seller ir.

accordance with its terms.

6.2 <a> The total number of shares of C!apltal stock, and the class and

par value thereof, which each of BEK and the Company is authorized to issue are set

forth in its Certificate of Incorporation;

(b) The issued and outstanding shares of C!apital stock of each of

BEK and the Company C!onsist of 1,000 shares at common stock, all of which have been

duly authorized and validly issued, are fully paid and nonusessable, and bave not been

issued in violation of, and are not subject tOt any preemptive rights; and there are no

voting trust agreements or other contracts, agreementst arrangements, commitments,

plans or understandinb's restricting or otherwise relating to voting, trans!e:, dividend

or other rights with respect to capital stock at the Company or BEK;

-19-

TIERRA-B-006007



(c) As of the time of the Closing; Seller will own and have the right

to transfer to Buyer and the DuignUed Purchasers hereunder the Shares, and upon

delivery of certificates represen~ini the Shll.res and p~yment therefor in accordance

with Section 2.4 (assuming Buyer and the Designated Purchasers do not have

knowledge whict . :ould cause them not to be bona fide purchasers) Buyer or the

Designated Purchasers, as the case may be, will have acquired good and marketable

title to the Shares, in each case free and clear of any lien, charge, encumbrance,

security interest, restriction (other than restrictions under securities laws) or any

other rig-ht of others c. other adverse interest; and

(d) There are not ~utstanding any (i) securities of the Compeny or

BEK which are, or which may become, convertible into or exchangeable for any shares

of capital stock or any other securities of the Company or BrK or (ii) subscriptions,

options, warrants or any preemptive or other rights which entitle any person, firm,

corporation or other entity at any time to acquire from the Company or BrK any

shares of capital stock or any other sec1,1rities of the Company or BEK.

6.3 Neither the Company nor BEK is in default in any material respect

under an)' instrument or agreement to which it is a party or by which it is bound and no

event has occurred fuld is continuing under ,the provisions or any such instrument or

agreement which ""ith the lapse of time or the giving of notice, or both, woule!

constitute such a default thereunder. The consummation of the transactio:l

contemplated hereby will not, with the lapse of time or givi~g of notice, or both,

constitute a default in any material respect under any instrument or agreement to

Which BEK or the Company is a party or by which it or any of its assets is bound.

6.4 As of the time of Closing, (a) the only asset of BEK will be the

Transitory Shares which BEK will own, and have good and marketable title to, free and

clear of any lien, charge, encumbrance, security interest, restriction (other than
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restrictions under securities laws) or an~' other right or others or other adverse

interest,(b) the only asset of the Company will )e the outstanding capital shares of

Chern which the Compan~' will own, and have gOlld end marl'etable title to, free and

clear of any lien, charge, encumbrance, security interest, restriction (other th2.n

restriction under securities laws) r r 1ny other right or others or other adverse interest,

(c) there will be no liabilities of the Company or BEK or any nature (whether accrued,

absolute, contingent or otherwise and whether or not known) and Cd)neither BEX nor

the Company will have any employees.

6.5 Beatrice and Seller ..hall, jointly and severally, pay, honor .and

discharge all liabilities of BEK and the Company of any nature (whether accrued,

absolute, contingent or otherwise and whether or not known) existing as of or arising

during or with respect to any period ending at or before the Closing, as and when they

become due and payable and, jointly and severally, indemnify Buyer, the Designated

Purchasers, BEK, the Company, Chern and the SUbsidiaries against all such liabilities

and any loss, damage or expense rela.ting thereto.

6.6 Since the date of its organization, none of BEK, the Company or

Chern has conducted any operations or engaged in any business or transactions, other

than transactions necessary to effect ....te the ,corporate reorganization referred to in

SeC!tion4.4(d)(iii) anQ, in the case of the Company, the acquisition of the capital stock

of Chern and, in the case of SEK, those relating to BEK's being one of the corporate

entities used by Beatrice to implement its acquisition in 1984 of all of the outstanding

shares of capital stock of Esmark, Inc. pursuant to a tender offer and statutO%)' merger

and BEK's acquisition or the Transitory Shares. None at BEK, the Company or Chem

has been required to file any tax returns or has prepared any audited financial

statements.
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ARTICLE VII

Warranties and Representations
Reg-arcing Che m and its Subsidiaries

Beaulc,:, and Seller, jointly ..nd severally, warrant and represent, sUbject to

any exceptions thereto specifically set forth in the Letter, to Buyer and the

Designated Purchasers that:

7.1 (a) Chern is a corporationt duly organized, \' .lidly existing and in

good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware, and is in good standing as 8

foreign corpora tion and licensed and qualified to transact buSiness in each jurisdiction

wherein the nature of the property owned by it or the business tra!'LSBcted by it

requires it to be licensed or qUalified to do business as a foreign corporatior., except

those jurisdictions, if an~', in Which the failure to so qualify would not have a material

adverse effect on its property or business;

(b) Each SUbsidiary is a corporation, duly organized, n!id~y

existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation set

forth in the Letter, and each is in good standing as a foreign corporation and licensed

and qualified to transact business in each jurisdiction wherein the nature of the

property owned by it or the business transacted by it requires it to be licensed or

qualified to do business as a foreign orporation, except those jurisdictions, if any, in

Which the failure to so qUalify would not have a material adverse effect on its

property or business; and

(0) Chern and ea.ch SUbsidiary have and hold the corporate right an~

power and all rights, privileges, franchises, immunities, licenses, permits, authoriza-

tions and approvals (governmental or otherwise) material to the ownership and

operation of their respective properties and the conduct of their respective businesses.
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1.2 . (a) The total number of shares o,f capital stock, and the class and--
par value thereof, which Clem and eac:h SUbsidiary is authorized to issue, the nurn! er

and class of such shares wh ch "\"e issued and outstanding, the number and class of Sl.'ch

shares owned b)" the Company, Chern or a SUbsidiary, as the case may be, and the

owner ther!c;, are set forth in the Letter~ Holders (including, to t~e extent known,

beneficial holders) of outstanding shares of a SUbsidiary not owned by Chem or another

Subsidiary, and the class and number of such shares so held, are identified in the

Letter;

~b) There are not outstanding any (i) secm-ities of ':hem or any

Subsidiary which are, or wbich :nay become, convertible into or exchangeable for any

shares of capital stock or any other secm-ities of Chem or any SUbsidiary or

- (ii) sUbscriptions, options, warrants or preemptive or other rights Which entitle ar.y

person, firm, corporation or other entity to acquire at any time from Chem or any

SUbsidiary any shares of capital stock or any other secm-ities of Che m or any

Subsidiary; and

(c) The issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of Cher.: and

each SUbsidiary have been duly authorized and validly issued, are fUlly paid an~

nonassessable, L~'e owned by the Company, Chern or a SUbsidiary, as Indicated in the

Letter, with good and marketable title free anll clear of ar.J lien, cha:ge,

encumbrance, Eecurity interest, restriction (other than restrictions under secu:-ities

laws) or any other right of others or other adverse Interest, and have not been issued in

viOlation of, and are not subject to, an}"preemptive rights; and there are no voting

trust agreements or other contracts, agreements, arrangements, commitments, plans

or understandings restricting or otherwise relating to transfer, voting, dividend or

other rights with respect to the outstanding shares of capital stock of Chern or an)"

SUbsidiB.r)·.lThe transferor or transferors at the Closing of Stock of Desig-nated
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Subsidiaries will at such time own and have the right to transfer to Buyer and the

Designated Purchasers hereunder such Sto.!k of Designated SUbsidiaries and, upon

delivery of the certificates for such Stock of !"Iesignated Subsidiaries and payment

therefor in accordance with Section 2.4 (assuming Buyer and the Designated

Purchasers do not have Jet- ')""ledge which would cause them not to be bona !i1£.

purchasers), Buyer or the Designated Purchasers, as the case may be, will have

acquired good and marketable title to such Stock of Designated Subsidiaries, in each

case free and clear of any lien, charge, encumbrance, security interest, restriction

(other than restrictions u!lder securities laws) or any other right of others or other

adverse interesJ

7.3 The Financial Statements were, except as otherwise disclosed in the

notes thereto, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

consistently applied and present fairly the combined financial position of Chern and its

Subsidiaries as of the dates thereof and the combined results of operations of Chern

and its Subsidiaries for the years and periods covered thereby.

7.4 [Chern and the Subsidiaries have good and marketable title to, or a

valid leasehold interest in. all the properties and assets that they purport to oY.'€1or

have a leasehold interest in, including. without limitation. all the properties and assets
I

reflected on the Balance Sheet and all properties and assets purchased since thE:

Balance Sheet Date, subject to !to liens, charges. encumbrances. security interests or

,,
I,
I
f
!
!
I

any other rights of others or other adverse interests of any kind except (a) as

otherwise disclosed in the Financial Statements, (b) as to personal property only, as

the same ma)-' have been sold or otherwise disposed of after the Balance Sheet Date in

the ordinary and regular course of business consistent with past practice, (e) the lien

of current taxes not yet due and payable and (d) such imperfections of title, liens and

easements as do not materially detract from or interfere with the present 0:' currently
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--

proposed use of the properties subject thereto or affected thereby or inaterial~y

detract Crom the value thereof, or otherwise materially irnl=air present or currently

proposed business operations at such properties.

1.5 Neither Beatrice nor any sUbsidiary or affiliate of Beatrice, or any

employee thereof, other than BEK, the Corn~ I':.], Chem and the SUbsidiaries, nor any

employee of, BEK, the Company, Chern or any SUbsidiary (a) has any direct or indirect

interest in any· right, property or asset which is utilized or required by Chem or any

Subsidiary in the conduct of its business or (b) has any contractual relationship with

Chern or any Subsidiary, except (i) normal trade relationships in the ordinary and

regular course of business at arm's length and consistent with past practice and (ii) the

furnishing by Beatrice to Chern or any such SUbsidiary of the centralized processing

and management and other functions referred to in Section 4.4(d)(ii), the charges for

which services, as set forth in the Financial Stateme~ts, reflect approximately the

aggregate fair market value thereof, recognizing that Beatrice's size gives it the

ability to spread administrative overheads over a larger grouping of businesses and

employees thereby possibl~' resulting in lower charges to Chern and any such SUbsidiary

as compared to charges which may be incurred it Chern or the Subsidiaries had

obtained these functions on their own.

1.6 Except for the stock of SUbsid!..ll'ies, neither Chem nor any Subsidiary

owns any capital stock or other securities, or any other direct or indirect equity

interest in, any person, firm, corporation or other entity (inclUding any association,

trust, joint venture or partnership).

1.1 (a) The accounts, notes ILndother receivables which are reflected

on the Balance Sheet were acquired in the ordinary and reruIar course of business and

are Collectible in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice subject

to the allowance for doubtful accounts on the Balance Sheet; and all accounts, notes
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and other receivables acquired by Chern or any Subsidiary since the Balanc,. Sheet

Date and prbr to the Closing have been or "Iill be acquired in the ordinary and :ebular

course of business consistent with its regular credit rractices, and will be conect.;;.:-

In the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice subject to the

allowance for doubtful accounts in the Closing Balance Sheet; I 10

(b) The inventories which are rertected on the Balance Sheet were

purchased or acquired in the ordinary and regular course oC business and in a manner

consistent with the regular inventory practices oC Chem and eech SUbsidiary and, with

ool)' immaterial exceptions, have been or will be used or'sold in the ordinary ane!

regular course of business and in a manner consistent with their regular inventory

practices. The in,,:entories on the Balance Sheet were priced as disclosed in the notes

to the Balance Sheet and were (as to classes of items inventoried and methods of

accounting and pricing) determined in a manner consistent with prior years. The

inventories which have been purchased or acquired by Chern or any SUbsidiary since

the Balance Sheet Date were purchased or acquired in the ordinary and regular course

of business and in a manner consistent with its regular inventory practices and, with

only immaterial exceptions, have been or will be used or sold in the ordinary and
I

regular course of business and in a manner consistent with Its regular inventory

practice.

'1.8 (a) The Letter contains a schedule setting fe. th each significE!:t

parcel of real estate in which Chern or any SUbsidiary has any right, title or interest

(inclUdingleasehold interests) and the nature of such right, title or Interest. Chern and

each SUbsidiary enjoys peaceful possession of all such real estate owned or leased by

them; and

(b) None of the buildings, struetures or improvements located on

In}' parcel of real estate owned or leased by Chem or any Subsidiary, or any use
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thereof, is the subject of any governmental complaint or notice of violation- of an)"

applicable health, safety, environmental, zoning or building code, ordinance, law or

regclatil)n and. to the knowledge of Beatrice, Seller, BEK, the Company, Chern or any

Subsidiary, no such violation exists which materially detracts from or interferes with

the present or currently proposed use of such properties or materially detract; .':oom

the value thereof or materially impairs the current or currently proposed operations

thereof; and there is no health, satety, environmental, zoning or building code,

ordinance, law or regulation, use or occupancy restriction or condemnation action or
.'

proceeding or other development pending, or, to the knowledge of BEK, Beatrict:,

Seller, the Company, Chern or any Subsidiary, threatened Dr affecting any such

building, structure or improvement on, or use of, any such parcel of real estate which

does or would materially detract from or interfere with the current or currently

proposed use of such properties Dr materially detract from the value thereof Dr
-;

,~. materially impair the current or currently proposed operations thereof.

7.9 (a) Chem and each Subsidiary own or have the right to use without

payment to or interference from any other party all Inventions, processes, know-how,

formulae, trade secrets, patents, trademarks, trade names, brand names and

copyrights utilized in the business of Chem or $uch SUbsidiary, and no other inventioI~,

processes, know-how, formulae, trade secrets, patents, trademarks, trade na ••les,

brand names, copyrights, licenses or applications are necessary for the conduet of t~e

business of Chern or any SUbsidiary as now conducted. The interests pf Che m and each

SUbsidiary in and to all such inventions, processes, know-how, formulae, trade secrets,

patents, trademarks, trade names, brand names and copyrights are free and clear of

any and all liens, charges, encumbranees, security interests or any other righ~ of

others or other adverse interests, and such inventions, proeesses, ~ow-how, formulae,

trade seerets, patents, trademarks, trade names, brand names and eop}"I'ights &:'E: not
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currently being challenged in any way and are not in~olved in any pending, or, to the

knowledge of Beatrice, Seller, BEK, the Company, Chem or any SUbsidiary,

threatened, interferer,ce, opposi+ion or other action or pr~ceeding; and

(b> The manufacture, use and sale by Chem and each Subsidiary of

their r..3peetive products, the use by Chern and each SUbsidiary of their respective

machinery, equipment and processes, the use by the customers of Chern and each

Subsidiary of their respective products for the purposes for which sold, and the use by

Chern and each Subsidiary of their respective inventions, 'processes, know-how,

formulae, I.rade secrets, patents, trademarks, trade names, brand names, copyrights

and advertising, technical or other literature, do not infringe upon or conflict with any

patent, trademark, trade name, brand name, copyright or other proprietaZ1' right of

othersj and none of Beatrice, BEK, Seller, the Company, Chern or any SUbsidiary has

knowledge of any claim of any such infringement or conflict, or an~;such infringement

of or connict with, any rights of Chem or any SUbsidiary by others.

7.10 All rights, propert~es and assets utilized or necessary In the conduct

of the business of Chern or any SUbsidiary which are material to its current operations

are either owned by Chern or the Subsidiary utilizing or requiring such right, property

or asset, ur licensed or leased to Chern or such SUbsidiary, and all such properties and

assets ~e, with only immaterial exceptions, fit tor the purposes for which they were

intended 9.ndin good operating condition and repair, ordinary wear and tear excepted..

7.11 Since the Balance Sheet Date:

(s> There has been no material adverse change in the condition

(financial or otherwise), results ot operations, properties, assets, liabilities, rights,

business, operations or prospects ot Chern or any Business Unit (as hereinafter defined)..
nor has there been any adverse change in the relationships· of Chern and the

SUbsidiaries with respect to theIr respective employees, creditors, suppliers,

i·

'".
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distributors, licensees, licensors, customers or otherS with whom they havi business

relationships which would have such a material adverse effect on Chern or any

Business Unit, and none ot BeatricI), ::=eller, BEK, the Company, Chern or any

Subsidiary has knowledge ot any existing or probable event or condition which mB)"

cause any such materi:" I ~dverse changej

{b} The business and aftairs ot Chem and each SUbsidiary have been

conducted and carried on only in the ordinary and regular coW'Se consistent with past

practice;

(c) Neit~JC!r BEK, the Company, Chern nor any Subsidiary has

acquired (through redemption or otherwise) any capital stock or other secu:ities of

BEK, the Company, Chem or any SUbsidiary except pursuant to the reorganize. ~ion

referred to in Section 4.4(d}(iii};

(d) Neither Chem nor any Subsidiary has purchased or otherwise

acquired or sold, mortgaged, pledged or otherwise disposed ot any of its properties or

.,
ISsets or any interest therein, except tor the purebaseor other acquisition or sale or

other disposition of personal property in the ordinary and regular course of business

consistent with past practice and exC!ept for transfers neC!essary to eftectuati the

corporate reorganization rt:lerred to in SeC!tion,4.4(d){ffi);

(e) NOpither Chem nor any Subsidiary has materially altered or

changed its methods of nperation or changed, amended or otherwise modified its

charter or by-Iawsj

(f) There has been no change made in the rate or nstun o!

compensation payable by Chern or any SUbsidiary to any of its employees, exC!ept i::

the ordinary and regular course ot business, and there has been no material changoe in

any bonus, insurance, pension or other employee benefit plan or arrangement or

employment or personnel polieies of Chern or any SUbsidiary; and
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(g) Neither BEK, the Company,' Chern nor any SUbsidiary has

agreed to take any of the actions specified in the prec !ding clauses (c) through (n of

th:! Section 7.11.

7.12 On the Balance Sheet Date, Chern and the Subsidiaries did not have

any liabilities of any nature (whethe: ..ccrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise)

except for Excluded Liabilities and liabilities which were fully disclosed, reflected or

accrued in the Letter or on the Balance Sheet or which were not so disclosed,

reflected or accrued in the Balance Sheet solely because of the differences, set forth
./

in the notes to the Financial Stptemenb, from generally accepted accounting

principles followed in the preparation of the Balance Sheet or which are of a type not

required (other than by reason of contingency) to be reflected in a balance sheet (or

the notes thereto) in accordance with such principles. Since the Balance Sheet Date,

Chern and the Subsidiaries have not incurred any liabilities of any nature (whether

accrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise), except those incurred in the ordinary and

regular course of business consistent with past practice.

7.13 There is no litigation at law or in equity, no arbitration proceeding

and no proceeding or investigation before or by any commission, agency or" other

administrative or regulatory body or autlJority pending, and, to the knowledge of

Beatrice,Seller, BEK, the Company, them and any Subsidiary there is no such

litigation, proceeding or investigation thr"!atened or any basis therefor, against or

affecting the properties, assets, rights or business of Chem or any. SUbsidiary which,

either individually or in the aggregate, if adversely determined, might materially and

adversely affect the business, operations, assets, liabilities, rights, business, prospects,

results or operations, properties or the condition, financial or otherwise, of Chem or

anj" Business Unit, nor is there any judgment, decree, injunction, rule or order of an}'

court, governmental department, commission, agency, instrumentality or arbitrator
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outstanding aiainst Chern or any Subsidiary, having, or which, insofar as can be

(oreseen, in Ue future may have, either individUally or in the aggregate, ani' such

effect or which wo~t1 apply to Buyer or any sUbsidiary or affiliate of Bl:yer (I)ther .han

Chern ·or any SUbsidiary).

7.14 (a) Except for normal purehase ..nd sale agreements and

commitments for personal property entered into in the ordinary and regular course of

business eonsistent with past practice and other contracts, agreements and

arrangements entered into in the ordinary and regular eourse ot business consistent

with past practice which individually and in the aggtei'ate arc: not material to Chern or

any Business Unit, neither Chern nor any Subsidiary is a party to or obligate~ under any

agreement or commitment, oral or written, of any nature, including, without

limitation, any relating to: any purchase or sale; any guaranty; any dealership;

distributorship or franchise; any power of attorney; patent, trademark or license,

either asa licensor or licensee; any lease, either as lessor or lessee; any indenture,

deed of trust, mortgage or chattel mortgage; any conditional sale; any labor or

eollective bargaining; any deferred compensation; employment; or any right or option

to· purchase or sell or otherwise dispose ot any rights, properties or assets or to

eompete in an)' place or line of business or ,with any person or entity. All material

agreements and eommitments to which Chem or any SUb~ldiary is a party or b)' whic!1

Ct..!m or any SUbsidiary is obligated are valid and in good shnding and are in full torce

and effect; and

(b) Neither Chern nor any Subsidiary or, to the knOWledge o(

Beatrice, Seller, BEK, the Company, Chern or any SUbsidiary, any other party thereto

is in breaeh at or default under or in any tailure to comply with any material

agreement or commitment to which Chern or any Subsidiary is a party or under which

Chern or any SUbsidiary is obligated; and, to the knowledge of Beatrice, Seller, BEK,
r

I:
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the Company, Chern or any Subsidiary, there has not occurred an)' event which does or

which, after the giving oi notice, or the lapse of time or otherwise, would constitute a

default under, or result in a breae h 0:' 'lcceleration of, any such material agreement or

commitment.

1.15 ai Chem and each Subsidiary have tiled all federal, t~:eign, state

and local tax returns, reports and estimates for all years and periods (and portions

thereof) for which any such returns, reports or estimates were due and all such

returns, reports and estimates were prepared in the manner ~equired by applicable law

and all taxes shown thereby to be payable have been paid, and there is no lial,lIlity for

any Taxes Cas defined in Section 11.3 hereof) due in connection with any such return.

Except to the extent reflected in the Letter or the Closing Balance Sheet, no

deficiency for any such Taxes has been proposed, asserted or assessed against BEK, the

Company, Chem or any SUbsidiary;

Cb) The federal income tax returns of Beatrice have been examined

by the Internal Revenue Service for all.periods to aDd inclUding the taxable year ended

February 29, 1976 and all deficiencies userted as a result of such examinations have

been paid or finally settled. There are no liens for federal or state income taxes upon

the usets of Chern or any SUbsidiary except Hens for current federal and sta~e income

taxes not yet dUE:. Neither Beatrice, Seller, BEK, the Company, Chs;m nor any

SUbsidiary has filed a consent to the application of Section 34l(t} of tt"~ tnterna~

Revenue Code of 1954, as amended (the "Code"); and

(c) Chem and each SUbsidiary have withheld amounts from their

respective employees and have filed an federal, foreign, state and local returns and

reports with respect to employee income tax withholding and social security and

unemployment taxes, in compliance with the tax Withholding provisions of the Code

and other applicable federal, foreign, state or local laws.
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1.16 Hours worked by, and paymentr made to, employees of Chern and

each SUbsidiary have been in compliance in all material respects with the Fair Labor

Standards Act and other '\pplicable federal, foreign, sb.~, or local laws.

1.17 There are no material controversies pending or threatened between

Chern or any SUbsidiary and an. DC their employees, or any labor union or other

organization representing or claiming to represent such employees' interests. No union

organizing or election activities involving any non-union employees of Chem or ar.y

Subsidiary are in progress or, to the knowledge of Beatrice, Seller, BEK, the Companj',

Chern or e~y SUbsidiary, threatened.

7.18 (a) The U.S. SUbsidiary Plans, BRIP and the ESOP (as hereinafter

defined) and the plans referred to in the Letter are the only employee benefit pla:-.5

within the meaning of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as

am,ended, ("ERISA") ,that cover any employees of BEK, the Company, Chern or of an}'

SUbsidiary. All such plans, other than Multiemployer Plans (as hereinafter defined),

that are SUbject to ERISA (the "U.S. Employee Plans") have been administered in

complian,ce with applicable laws and regulations in all material respects, no civil or

criminal action brought pursuant to Part V of Title I of ERISA is pending or, to the

knowledge of Beatrice, BEK, Seller, the Company, Chem or any Subsidiary. is

threatened against an)' fiduciar~t of any U.S. Employee Plan in connection with ar.y

transaction involving such Plan, ano neither Beatrice, BEK, Seller, the Company,

Chern or any SUbsidiary nor the directors or employees of any of them have been

involved in any prohibited transaction with respect to such Plans. With respect to all

such plans that are SUbject to ERISA and which are multiemployer plans within the

meaning of Section 3(31) of ERISA (the "Multiernployer Plans"), BEK, the Company,

Chem and each SUbsidiary have fulfilled all of their respective obligations arising in

connection with such Plans and no legal proceeding is pending. or, to the knowleci'£ o!
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Beatrice, Seller, BEK, the Company, Chem or any Subsidiary, threatened, against BEK,

the Company, Chem or any SUbsidiary in connection with any such Plan.

(b) The U.S. Subsidiary Plans and BRIP (the "Fension Plans") and

the Beatrice Employees' Stock Ownership Plan (the "ESOP") have been determined by

the Internal Revenue Service to meet the requir ~~'ents for qUalified status under

Section 401(a) of the Code. No "accumulated funding deficiency", as defined in

Section 412 of the Code, has been incurred with respect to any Pension Plan, whether

or not waived, and no condition exists which constitutes or could constitute grounds

for involuntary termination of any Pension Plan under T::le IV of ERISA. Upon timely

amendment to bring such plans into compliance with applicable legislation, regulations

and rulings, effective as of the first days of the respective current plan years, which

amendments required to be made effective in 1984 will be made prior to the Clos£nr;

Date unless Beatrice and Buyer agree otherwise, such plans will continue to meet such

requirements as of the Closing Date.

(c) The CRIP and SRPP (as hereinafter defined) are the onI}"

pension plans subject to the Pension Benefits Act of Ontario (f1Act") that cover

employees of Chern and the Subsidiaries incorporated in Canada. The Retirement Plan

for the Emplc}'ees of Stahl Finish Canada Division of !..eatrice International (Cana~e.)

Ltd. (the "RPE"), the CRIP and the SAPP (such plans 'Jeing referred to, individual!y, as

a "Canadian Plan" and, collectively, as the "Canadian Plans") have been administered

in all material respects in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Cd) The Canadian Plans have been filed and registered in

accordance with applicable law. Such Plans continue to meet the requirements fo~

QUalificationunder such iawi.

(e) Each Benefit Arrangement (as hereinafter defined) has been

maintained in substantial compliance with the requirements prescribed by any an~ aI!
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applicable statutes, orders, rules and regulations. The term "Benefit Arrangeme'1t"

means each plan or arrangement providing for employee insurance coverage (inclUding

an~r self-insured arrange men ts), workman's compenn tion, disability benefi :5,

supplemental unemplo~'ment benefits, severance pay, vacation pay, deferred

compensation, bonuses, stock options, incentive compensation I r post-retirement

insurance, compensation or other benefits which (i) is not a U.S. Employee Plan, Multi-

employer Plan or Canadian Plan, (ii) is maintained by Beatrice, BEK, Seller, the

Company, Chern or any SUbsidiary and (Hi) covers any employee or former employee of

BEK, the Compan~', Chern or any Subsidiary.

(f) All contributions and obligations accrued under each U.S.

Emplo}'ee Plan (except for BRIP, as hereinafter defined), each Multiemployer Plan,

RPE and each .Benefit Arrangement, determined in accordance with prior funding and

accrual practices but adjusted to the extent required to include proportional accruals

for the period from January 1, 1984 through the Closing Date, will be either (i) dis-

charged and paid on or prior to the Closing Date or (if) recorded as a Iiabilit}· on the

Closing Balance Sheet. All compensation and other benefit expenses arising with

respect to employees of Chem and the Subsidiaries have been charged appropriately to

Chem and the Subsidiaries. Except as set forth In the Letter, there has been no
I

amendment to, or change in employee participation under, any U.S. Employee Plan

(except for BRIP, as hereinafter defined), or RPE which would increase materially the

expense of maintaining an:,. such Plan or Arrangement above the level of the expense

incurred with respect to such Plan or Arrangement for the fiscal year ended

February 29, 1984. Neither Beatrice, Seller nor any of their affiliates has incurred any

liability under Title IV of ERISA by reason of plan termination or complete or partial

withdraWal from a multiemployer plan which liability, or any portion thereof, could

constitute a liability of Buyer or an~' or its affiliates (inclUding the Designated
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purchasers, BEK, the Company, Chem and the SUbsidiaries) on or after the Closing

Date.

7.19 Since at least the date of their respective direct or indirect

acquisi"tion by Beatrice, Chem and each Subsidiary have owned and operated their

respective properties and assets, and otherwise conducted and carried on the r

respective businesses and affairs, in compliance with all federal, foreign, state and

local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations and court or administrative orders

and processes (including without limitation any that relate to securities, health and

safety in plants or work areas, environmental control, pricing, sales and distrjbutjo~ of

products and services, participation and cooperation in trade boycotts, collective

bargaining rights of employees, equal opportunity in employment, political

contributions or improper payments), except for violations, if any, which in any case or

in the aggregate, have not had since March 1, 1981, and will not have, I material

adverse effect on the business, operations, properties, assets, condition (financial or

otherwise), liabilities, prospects or results ot operations of Chem or an~' Business Unit.

7.20 (a) All material properties and risks of Chem and each SUbsidiary

are insured for their benefit, in amounts which are customary for such properties and

risks, against all risks usually insured against by persons operating similar businesses

and properties and, except for risks self-insured by Beatrice, under valid and

enforceable policies issued by insurers of recognized financial responsibility; and

Beatrice agrees to cause all such insurance to remain in force through the Closing;

(b) Since the Balance Sheet Date neither Chern nor any Subsidiary

has sustaine~ any loss on account ot fire, tlood, accident or other calamit)" which has

materially and adversely interfered with, or may materially and adversely interfere

With, the operation of its business, whether or not such loss shall have been insured

against.
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7.21 Beatrice and Seller have all requisite power and authority to enter

into and perform and ca'11' out this Agreement IInd the transactions contempl'lted

hereb~', and have taken all re~·tisite 'lctlon to authorize ~e execution and delivery of

this Agreement and the performance and consummation of the transactions

conternplbt~d hereby and the transferors of Stock of Designated Subsidiaries will prior

to the Closing have taken aU requisite action to authorize the transfer thereof

pursuant hereto. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by Beatrice

and Seller and is binding upon and enforceable against them in accordance with its

terms.

7.22 Keither the execution and delivery of this Agreement by Beatrice or

Seller nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby does or will,

after the giving of notice or the lapse of time, or both (i) conflict with, result in a

breach of or constitu.te a default under, the charter or the by-laws of Beatrice, Seller,

Chern or any SUbsidiary or any material federal, foreign, state or local law, statute,

ordinance, rule, regulation or court or administrative order or process, Dr any material

agreement or commitment to which Beatrice, Seller, Chem or any SUbsidiary is a party

or by which Beatrice, Seller, BER, the Company, Chern or any Subsidiary (or any of

their rights, properties or assets) is subject Dr bound Dr an)' material license, permit or

authorization applicable to BER, the Company, Chern or any SUbsidiary; (ii) result in

the creation of, Dr give any party the right to create, any material lien, charge,

encumbrance, security interest Dr any other rights of others Dr other adverse interest

upon any right, property or asset of Chern Dr any Subsidiary; (iii) terminate, impair or

give any party the right to terminate. amend, abandon, or refuse to perform an)'

material agreement or eommltment to which Chern or any SUbsidiary (or any of their

rights, properties or assets) are subject or bound Dr any material license, permit or

authorization applicable to Chern or an~' SUbsidiary; or (iv) accelerate or modify. or
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give any party thereto the right to accelerate or mocHfy, the time within which, or the

terms under which, Chern or any Subsidiar, is to perform any duties or obligations or

receive any rights or benefits under any materiql agre~ment or commitment.

7.23 Neither BEK, the Company, Chern nor any Subsidiary has incurred or

paid, or will incur or pa~:, any liability or expense (including, without limitatior.,

brokers', finders', investment bankers' or financial advisors' fees or attorneys' fees) in

connection with this Agreement or the transactions contemplated herein.

7.24 Neither Beatrice nor Seller has retained any broker, Cinder,

investment banker or f~nancial advisor in connection with the Agreement or the

transaction contemplated herein, except for Salomon Brothers Inc and Lazard Freres &

Co., whose fees will be paid by Beatrice or Seller.

7.25 Neither this Agreement, the Letter, the Financial Statements no:, any

document delivered by Beatrice or Seller pursuant to the provisions hereof (all such

documents being taken as a whole) contains any untrue statement of a material fact or

omits to state any material fact necessary, in light of the circumstances under which

it was made, in order to make the statements included herein or therein not

misleading.

7.26 As used in thIS Article VI,I, the term "Business Unit" shall mean any

group of Subsidiaries whose uperations are included under one of the entities liste~ in

the Letter, respectively, under the captions Flberite Composite Materials, Fiberite

Molding Materials, LNP, Dri-Prlnt Foils, Polyvinyl/Pe:.muthane,· Stahl/Paule,

Converters Ink, Imperial Oil &: Grease or Thoro Systems, as the case may be.

7.27 Beatrice, its subsidiaries and affiliates and Chem and each Subsidiary

have duly complied in all material respects with all applicable provisions of all

instruments and agreements relating to indebtedness of the Company, Chern or any

SUbsidiary, interest on which is intended to be exempt from Federal income taxatio::
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.n~ the proceeds of which have been or are to be used to acquire assets Which are, or

are to be, owned or leased by Chern or any SUbsidiary ("IRSs "). or under Which any such

IREs h..·:p been or are to be issued, Neither Beatrice or any 41ubsid:vy or affiliate

thereof nor Chern or any SUbsidiary has taken any action which would or might result

in interest on any IRBs becoming taxable to Lhe recipients thereof under the Code or

knows of any existing or past circumstances which could cause any such interest to

become so taxable. Neither any IRB nor any such agreement or instrument will be, or

become capable of being, required to be purchased by Beatrice, BEK, Seller, the

Company, Chern or any SUbsidiary, or be accelerated (or become capable of being

accelerated) or otherwise be terminated or impaired (or become capable of being

terminated), as a result of the transactions contemplated hereby; provided, however,

that for purposes of this Section 7.27 the transactions contemplated hereb)' shall not

include any election by the Buyer under Code Section 338 and relevant state

provisions, and provided further, that neither the Buyer nor any related person to the

Buyer within the meaning of Code. Section l03(b)(6)(C) Is or wu during the period

beginning 3 years before the date ot issuance ot the relevant IRB and ending on the

date of the transactions contemplated hereby a principal user (within the meaning of

Code Section l03{b)(6}(E}(ii» of facilities in the same municipality (or same county
I

outside of incorporated municipalities) as the j,'acilities whIch the proceeds of the IRBs

were used to finance or in a municipality or cou,ty contiguous thereto.

7.28 Except for the applicable requirements ot the 1976 Act, the Canadian

Foreign Investment Review Act and sImilar foreign investment review laws and the

West German Federal Cartel Office. U.K. Otfice of Fair Trading and Monopolies

Commission and similar foreign antitrust agencies, no tiling or registration with,

aUthorization, consent or approval of, or notice to, any governmental authority is

necessary for the execution or delivery of, or consummation of the transactio:,:s
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contemplated by, tl'1is Agreement by Beatrice or the Seller. No license, franchise,

permit, clearance 01 authoriza~ion material to Chern or any Business Unit is or will

become terminable or ~'! terminated or impaired by reason of the transrt'tions

contemplated hereby.

ARTICLE VIll

Warranties and Representations of Buyer

Buyer warrants and represents to Beatrice and Seller that:

8.1 Buyer is a company duly organized, vRlidly ~.(isting and in good

standing under the laws of England and has all requisite power and authority to enter

into and perform an~ carry out this Agreement and the transactions contemplated

hereby.

8.2 Buyer has taken all requisite action to authorize the execution and

delivery of this Agreement by Buyer and the performance and consummation of the

transactions contemplated hereby, _and this Agreement has been duly executed and

delivered by Buyer and is binding upon and enforceable against Buyer in accordance

with its terms.

8.3 Neither Buyer nor any Desi~ated Purchaser has retained any broker,

finder, investment banker or financial advisor in connection "'ith this Agreeme:".~ or

the tra".sactions contemplated hereby, except Smith Barney, Harris Upham & Co.

Incorporated and Morgan, Lewis, GJthens & Ahn, whose fees will be paid by Buyer.

8.4 Buyer and the Designated Purchasers are purchasing the Shares an~

Stock of any Designated Subsidiaries for their own account tor investment and not

with a view to or for sale in connection with any distribution of the Shares or Stock of

the Designated Purchasers.
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ARTICLE IX

Conditions Applicable to Buver

The obligations of duyer :'ler~under (including the obligation of Buyer to

consummate the transaction contemplated hereby) are subject to the following

conditions precedent:

9.1 The warranties and representations made herein by Beatrice and

Seller shall be true and correct in all material respects on and as of the Closing Date

with the same effect as if such warranties and representations had been made on and

IS of the Closing Date, an'; Beatrice and Seller shall have performed and compliE:u in

all material respects with all agreements and covenants contained herein on its part

required to be performed or complied with on or prior to the Closing Date. It shall not

- appea:- reasonably probable, in Buyer's reasonable judgment exercised in good faith,

that combined net income of Chern and Subsidiaries for the year ending February 28,

1985, determined on a basis consistent with that used in the determination of

combined net income in the Financial Statements, and exclUding income and expense

with respeet to Excluded Assets and Liabilities, will be less than $36,000,000.

9.2 On the Closing Date, there shall be no effective injunction, writ or

preliminary restraining or Jer or any order of any nature issued by a court or govern-

mental agency of comeletent jurisdiction 0) directing that any of the transactions

contemplated hereby not be consummated as herein provided or (ii) the effeet of '''hich

Wouldbe, in Buyer's reasonable judgment exercised In good faith, to materially impair

the ability of Buyer and its subsidiaries to own, operate or controlBEK, the Company,

Chern or any SUbsidiary or any material portion of the business, operations or assets of

BrK, the Company, Chern or any SUbsidiary or to materially restrict such ownership,

operation or control.
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9.3 All waiting periods, including any e'ICtensions thereof, which may be

applicable to the Durchase of the Shares and Stock of Designated SUbsidiaries b}' Buyer

under the provisions of the 1976 Act shall have expired or ~J~minated.

9.4 At the Closing, Beatrice and Seller shall have delivered to Buyer:

<a) A certificate, jated the Closing Date, executed by officers o!

Beatrice and Seller to the effect that the conditions set forth in the first sentence of

Section 9.1 hereof have been satisfied; and

(b) The opinion of Winston c5c Strawn,. counsel for Beatrice and

Seller, dated the Closing Date, in form and substance satisfactolj' to Buyer 8n~ j~.s

counsel, to the effect that:

(i) Beatrice, BEK, Seller, the Company, Chern and each

SUbsidialj' are corporations duly organized, Validly existing and,

except in the case of Subsidiaries not incorporated in the United

Sta tes or Canada, in good standing under the laws of the respective

jurisdictions of their incorporation;

(ii) This Agreement hu been duly authorized, executed

and delivered by Beatrice and Seller and is binding upon and

enforceable against them In accordance with its terms, and Beatrice

and Seller have the requisite corporate power and authority to enter

into this Agreement and ~o perform their obligations hereunder;

(Hi) All requbite actIon has been. taken to enable Seller

and the transferors of any Stock of Designated Subsidiaries to legally

enter into and consummate the transactions contemplated b}' th!s

Agreement;

(Iv) The Shares and the Stock of any Designated

Subsidiaries have been duly authorized and validly issued and ce fu~:y
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paid and nonassessable and, upon delivery to Buyer or the Desii'n8ted

Purchaser of certificates therefor and payment therefor in

accordance with Section 2.4, Buyer qr the Designa ;ed 'Durchuer

thereof will be the owner at, and (assuming the Buyer and Designated

Purchasers do not have knowledge whi. h Gould cause them not to be

bona tide purchasers) the Buyer or Designated Purchaser thereof will

have acquired good and marketable title to, all the issued and

outstanding capital stock of BEK and, ex~ept as set forth in the

Letter, of each Designated SUbsidiary, fret: and clear of any lien,

charge, encumbrance, security interest, restriction (otner than

restrictions under securities laws) or right of others or other adverse

interest; and

(v) The issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of

the Company and Chern have been duly authorized and Validly issued

and are fully paid and nonassessable, and BEK, in the case of the

capital stock of the Company, and the Company, in the cue of the

capital stock of Chem, is the owner of, and has good and marketable

title to, all of such capital stock, free and clear of any lien, charge,

encumbrance, security interest, restrict!Qn (other than restrictions

under securities laws) or right of others or ("ther adverse interest.

In rendering the opinions in clauses (i), (iii) and (iv) above, such counsel shall be

entitled to rely on opinions of local and foreign counsel, reasonably satisfactory to

Buyer and its counsel, as to matters governed by the laws of jurisdictions other than

the United States of America, Delaware and Illinois; provided that copies of SUch

opinions of local and foreign counsel shall have been delivered to Buyer and that such
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opinions are dated the Closing Date, are addressed to the Buyer and Desi~r:ated

purchasers or expressly authorize their reliance there:m.

9.5 Buyer shall have received evidence, including C',lnions or counsel and

certificates of auditors, reasont'bly satisfactory to Buyer to the effect that the

ownership ot Chem by the Company, of the Company by Esmark, of c" pita! stock of

Esmark and the Transitory Shares by BEK and the transactions contemplated by the

second paragraph of Section 3.4 has not had and will not have an adverse effect, in any

respect, on the Buyer, any Designated Purchaser, BEK, the Company, Chern or any

Subsidiary or on the acquisition of Chern and the Subsidiaries contemplated he!'eby, or

any other transaction contemplated hereby or in connection herewith.

9.6 All proceedings to be taken in connection with the consummation of

the transactions contemplated b}"this Agreement, and all certificates, documents and

instruments incidental hereto, shall be reasonably satisfactory in form and substance

to Buyer and its counsel, and Buyer and its counsel shall have received copies of all

such documents, resolutions and instruments as Buyer and its counsel may reasonably

request in connection with such transactions.

9.7 Buyer shall have the right to waive any or all of the foregoing

conditior.s p:oecedent to the obligations of Buyer; however~ no waiver by Buyer of any

condition precedent to the obligations of Buyer shall constitute a waiver by Buyer of

any other condition precedent.
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ARTICLE X

Conditions Applicabje to Beatrice and Seller

Th! ohligations of Beatrice and Seller hereunder (including the obli~ation

of Seller to consummate the transaction contemplated hereby) are subject to the

!ollowing conditions precedent:

10.1 The warranties and representations made by Buyer herein to Beatrice

and Seller shall be true and correct in all material respects on and as of the Closing

Date with the same effect as it such warranties and representations had been made on

an~ as of the Closing Date, and Buyer shall have performed and complied in all

material respects with all agreements and covenants on its part required to be

performed or complied with on or prior to the Closing Date.

10.2 On the Closing Date, there shall be no effective injunction, writ or

preliminary restraining order or any order of any nature issued by a court or govern-

mental agency of competent jurisdiction directing that any of the transactions

contemplated hereby not be consummated as herein provided.

10.3 All waiting periods, inclUding any extensions thereof, which ma}' be

applicable to the purchase of the Shares and Stock of Designated Subsidiaries bS'Buyer

ur.Jer the provisions of the 1976 Act shall have expired or terminated.
I

10.4 At the Closing, Buyer shall have delivered to Beatrice and .seller:

<a) A certificate, dated the Closing Date, executed by an officer of

Buyer, to the effect that the conditions set forth In Section 10.1 hereof have been

satisfied; and

<b) The opinion of V. O. White, ESQ. Solicitor to the Buyer, deted

the Closing Date, In form and substance satisfactory to Beatrice and Seller and their

counsel, sta ting that:
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(i) Buyer is a company duly organized 8nd validly

existing under the 18ws of England; and

(ii) This Ag-eernent has been duly authorized, executed

and delivered by Buyer, and Buyer has the requisite corporate power

..nd authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform its

obligations hereunder.

10.5 All proceedings to be taken in connection with the consummation of

the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and all certificates, documents and

instruments incidental thereto, shall be reasonably satisfactory in form and substa!1ce

to Beatrice and Seller and their coufiSe1, and Beatrice and Seller and their counsel shall

havereceived copies of all such documents and instruments as Beatrice and S~ller and

their counsel may reasonably request in connection with such transactions.

10.6 Beatrice and Seller shall have the right to waive any or all of the

foregoing conditions precedent to the obligations of Beatrice and Seller; however, no

waiverby Beatriee or Seller of any.condition precedent to the obligations of Beatrice

or Sener shall constitute a waiver by Beatrice or Seller of any other condition

precedent.

ARTICLE XI

Indemnification

11.1 Beatrice and Seller shall, jointly and severally, indemnify and hold

Buyer, the Designated Purchasers, BEK, the Compan}', Chem and each Subsidiary

harmless against any loss, liability, damage or expense (inclUding reasonable attorneys'

fees) suffered by Buyer, the Designated Purchasers, BEK, the Company, Chern or any

SUbsidiaryarising out of or resulting from (a) any breach by Beatrice or Seller of this

Agreement, (b) any inaccuracy or misrepresentation in or breach or an~· or the
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•

warranties, representations, covenants or agreements made by Beatrice or Seller

herein or (e) any inaccuracy or misrepresentatil'n in the Letter or in any certificate or

document delivered by Beatrice or Seller in f ccC'rdanc. with the provisions of this
"

Agreement (collectively referred to as "Warranty Claims"); provided, however, that

except for Warranty Claims ar~S::'lgwith respect to breaches by Beatrice or SeUer of

the representations, warranties or covenants contained in Sections 3.3, 6.5, 7.15 and

12.1 hereof, Buyer shall be entitled to indemnification hereunder only when, and only

with respect to amounts by which, the aggregate of all such Warranty Claims exceeds

S1,500,OOO.

11.2 Except for the warranties, representations and covenants of Beatrice

or Seller contained in Sections 3.3,6.5, 7.15, 7.18, 12.1 and 12.4 through 12.10 hereof,

which shall survive until the termination ot all liabilities arising from the su~ject

matter thereof pursuant to applicable statutes of limitation, the warranties,

representations and covenants of Beatrice or Seller contained in this Agreement, or

any certificate or document delivered pursuant to this Agreement, shall survive the

execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Closing and the consummation of the

transactions contemplated hereby until December 31, 1986; provided that if there shall

then be pending any Warrant}" Cla~.n previo4Sly asserted, such Warranty Claim shall

continue to be subject to indemni~.cation in accordance herewith.

11.3 Beatrice and Seller shall indemnify and hold harmless Buyer, BEK,

the Designated Purchasers, the Company, Chern and each SUbsidiary against any and

all liabilities tor all Taxes arising during or with respect to any period endin, on or

prior to the Closing Date to the extent not reflected as liabilities in the Closing

Balance Sheet and any costs, expenses, losses and damages incurred in connection with

the assertion or defense of any claim or assessment for such Taxes. The obligation of

Beatrice to indemnify Buyer, the Designated Purchasers, BEK, the Company, Chern
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nd each SUbsidiary pursuant to this Section 11.3 shall survive for the full-period of• •

.ny foreign. federal. state or local statute of limitatioroS. "raxes" means all net

in~ome, :ap'tal gains, gross income. gross receipts. sales. use, lid villorem, franchise.

profits; license. withholding, payroll, employment, excise, severance, stamp,

occupation, premium. property or windfall profit I .axes, customs duties or other taxes,

fees, assessments or charges of any kind whatsoever (other than transfer taxes on

Stock of any Designated SUbsidiary), together with any interest and "any penalties,

additions to tax or additional amounts imposed by any taxing authority (domestic or

foreign) upon the Compan>", BEK, Chern, any Subsiclary or any affiliated group of

corporations or combined group of which BEK, the Company, Chern or any SUbsidiary

is or was a member.

11.4 Beatrice and Seller shall satisfy their obligations tor indemnification

hereunder within sixtj' (60) da)"! after written notice thereof from Buyer to them.

11.5 Upon obtaining knowledge thereof, Buyer shall promptly notify

Beatrice and Seller of any claim or demand which Buyer hu determined has given or is

likely to give rise to a right of indemnification against Beatrice or Seller under this

Agreement. If such claim or demand relates to a claim or demand asserted by a thi:-d

party against Buyer, any Designated Purchuer, BLK, the Company, Chem or any
I

SUbsidiary, and if Beatrice and Seller acknowleuge in writing their obligations to

indemnify and hold harmless hereunder with respect thereto, Beatrice and Seller shall

have the right to employ such counsel as is acceptable to Buyer to defend any such

claim or demand asserted against Buyer, any Designated Purchaser, BEK, the

Companj', Chem or any Subsidiary. Buyer, any Designated Purchaser, BEK, tr.e

Company, Chern or any SUbsidiary, as may be appropriate, shall have the right tc

participate in the defense of any said claim or demand. So long as Beatrice or Seller is

defending in good faith any such claim or demand, Buyer shall not settle such claim 0:
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demand. Buyer shall make available to Beatrice and, Seller and their repres'en~atives

all records and other ma"erials required by them for their use in contesting any ~laim

or demand asserted by a th~:.. part}· against Buyer, any Designated Purchaser, BEY:

the Company, Chern or any SUbsidiary. Whether or not Beatrice or Seller so elects to

defend a' y such claim or demand, neither Buyer, any Designate,· r .!rchuer, BEK, the

Company, Chern nor any SUbsidiary shall have any obligation to do so and Buyer and

the Designated Purchasers shall not waive an}· rights they may have against Beatriee

and Seller hereunder with respect to any such claim or demand by electing or failing to

elect, or if BLK, the Company, Chern or any Subsidiary elects or ftdls to elect, to

defend any such claim or demand. Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding,

Beatrice shall inform Buyer of the status of any aUdit, suit, action or proceeding

- relating to Taxes which relate to BEK, the Company, Chern or any SUbsidia!'y and

which may affect any Taxes with respect to them after the Closing and Buyer will

have the right to consult with Beatrice (which shall take such action as Buyer may

propose and which is reasonable, in light of the effects on Beatrice, on the one hand,

and Buyer, the Designated Purchasers, BEK, the Company, Chern or any Subsidiary, on

the other hand) with respect to any such audit, suit, action or proceeding.

11.6 Buyer shall, effective upon the Closing, indemnify and hold Beatrice
I

and Seller harmless against any loss, damage or expense (inclUding reasonable

attorneys' fe ~s) suffered by Beatrice or Seller arising out of or resulting from (a) any

breach of any of the covenants made by Buyer in Sections 3.3, 12.1 and 12.4 through

12.10 hereof or (b) the tailure by Buyer, BEK, the Company, Chern or any SUbsidiary to

payor otherwise discharge any contractual or other obligation arising SUbsequent to

Closing relating to the assets or business of BEK, the Company, Chem or any

SUbsidiary, for which obligation Beatrice or Seller is primarily, secondarily or joinUy

and severall~· liable, whether as guarantor, sublessor, surety or otherwise to the exte::~
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(but only to the extent) the obligation for which Beatrice or Seller is liable (i) i5 so

identified in the Letter and does not arh e from any breach or default prior to the

Closing, (il) has J'lot been increased by an:; art or omission after the date hereof by

Beatrice, Seller or any affiliate of either and (Hi) is not a matter for which Beatrice

has indemnified Bu)'er her H••lder. The provisions of this Section 11.6 shall remp n in

full force and effect until the termination of all liabilities arising from the subject

matter of this Section 11.6 pursuant to applicable statutes of limitation.

11.7 Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Buyer shall

indemnify and hold Beatrice hlu mless against any loss, damage or expense (im:luding

reasonable attorneys' fees) suffered by Beatrice for any Taxes with respect to any

taxable year arising as a result of an election made by the Buyer under Section 338 of

the Code and similar provisions under relevant state law.

11.8 In calculating the amount of any indemnification payment made

pursuant to this Agreement or any payment pursuant to Section 12.1(e) Or (n hereof,

(i) there shall be taken into account any income tax benefit received by Beatrice or

Seller, on the one hand, or by Buyer, any Designated Purchaser, BEK, the Company,

Chernor any SUbsidiary, on the other hand, by reason of the event or condition that

resulted in a claim for such p&.,1mentand (Ii) any Tax liability Incurred by Beatrice or

Seller, on the one hand, or -"'y Buyer, an}' Designated Purchaser, BEK, the Company,

Chern or an}' SUbsidiary, on the other hand, upon receipt of such payment. Unles:

counsel to the recipient is unable to advise the recipient that receipt of such a

payment will be treated as an addition to or reduction of the Purchase Price, each

such payment shall be so treated; provided that if any such payment is subseQuen~ly

determined not to be a reduction oC or an addition to the Purchase Price, then the

amount of such payment will be increased or decreased in. accordance with the

provisions of the preceding sentence.

-50-

TIERRA-B-006038



ARTICLE XII

12.1 (a)

Post Closing Obligations

Beatrice shAll include the results 01 ov ..."ations of BEK, the

Company,Chern and the SUbsidiaries through and inclUding the Closing Date in its

consolidated federal ineome tax return an( in any consolidated or combined foreig-n,

,tate or local income tax returns required to be filed by Beatrice after the Closing

Dateand will pay all federal, state, local and foreign income taxes (including interest

and penalties relating thereto) due for the periods cover~d by such returns with

respect to BEK, the Company, Chern and nch Subsidiary.

(b) Buyer shall cause BEK, the Company, Chern and the

Subsidiariesto include the results of their respective operations through and inclUding

the Closing Date in any separate (nonconsolidated) state income tax return for any

wable year beginning before and ending on or after the Closing Date. Buyer shall

pay, or cause to be paid, all state income taxes (inclUding interest and penalties

relating thereto) shown as due on artY such return with respect to BEK, the Company,

Chernor any SUbsidiary.

(c) Buyer shall cause BEK, the Company, Chern and the

Subsidiariesto inclUde the results of their respective operations through and inclUding

the ClosingDate in any separate (non-c!onsolidated) foreign income tax return for any

taxable year beginning before and ending after the Closing Date. Buyer shall pay, or

cause to be paid, all foreign ineome taxes (inclUding interest and penalties relating

thereto) shown as due on any such return with respect to BEK, the Company, Chern or

an}' SUbsidiary.

(d) Buyer shall be liable for all foreign, federal and state income

lues payable with respect to the operations of BEK, the Company, Chem and the

SUbsidiariesafter the Closing Date, and BU)'er shall be responsible for fHin&,the
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necessary income tax returns and reports with respect to the operations or BEK, the

Campan}'. Chern and the Subsidiaries for all taxable periods ending after t1le Closing

Date.

(e) Any refunds or credits of foreign, federal, state or local income

taxes (other than refunds or credits relating to taxes paid b} I....yer in accordance with

the provisions of Section 12.l(b} or (c) hereof} for any period or partial periods ending

on or before the Closing Date with respect to BElt. the Company. Chern or the

Subsidiaries shall be the property of Beatrice (except for refunds attributable to the
"

carryback of any credits, losses or deductions arising out of the operation of BEK, the

Company. Chern. the Subsidiaries. the Buyer. any Designated Purchaser or any

affiliate of the Buyer or any Designated Purchaser after the Closing Date) and Buyer

shall forward to or reimburse Beatrice for any such refunds or credits (except e.s

aforesaid) IlS soon IlS practicable after receipt thereat. Any refunds or credits of

foreign, federal, state or local income taxes attributable to post-Closing Date

operations of BEK. the Company, CJ:lemor any SUbsidiary received by Beatrice shall be

forwarded to Buyer as soon as practicable after receipt thereot.

(f') To the extent that any election or other action by Beatrice or

an audit by the Internal Revenue Service or relevant state revenue agency results in a,

reduction in the federal or state income tax liability of BEK, the Company, Chem or

any SUbsidiary for which the Buyer is liable under this Agrt!ment, Beatrice shall

notify Buyer of such reduction. Upon receipt of such notice, and of such reasonable

supporting evidence and opinions as Buyer may require with respect to such reduction,

Buyer shall pay the amount of such reduction in income tax liability to Beatrice;

provided, however, that in the event that a subsequent audit of the Buyer, any

Designated Purchaser, BEK, the Company, Chem or any SUbsidiary by the Internal

Revenue Service or relevant state revenue agency results in a reduction or elimination
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of the reduction in income tax liability that resulted In an~' payment made under this

5~ctiori, Beatrice shall prnmptly refund such payment or portion thereof, as the case

Jr.ay t'~, to(.ether with interest thereon from the date of such payment through the

date of such refund at the prime rate of The First National Bank of Chicago as in

effect from time to time during such period.

12.2 If at any time after the Closing Date Buyer shall consider or be

advised that any further assignments or assurances in law or any other things are

necessary or desirable to vest, perfect or confirm, of record or otherwise, in (a) Buyer

or the Designated Purchasers, as the case may be, title to the Shares or Stock or any

Designated SUbsidiary, (b) BEK title to the Transitory Shares or (c) the Company,

Chern or one of the SUbsidiaries, as the case may be, title to the shares of capital

stock of Chem or a SUbsidiary which Beatrice and Seller have represented herein are

owned by the Company, Chern or one of the Subsidiaries, as the case may be, Beatrice

or Seller shall execute and deliver all such proper deeds, assignments and assurances of

law and do all things necessary and proper to vest, perfect or confirm title to such

shares in Buyer, the Designated Purchasers, BEK, the Company, Chem or one of the

SUbsidiaries, as the case may be, and otherwise to carry out the purposes of this

Agreement.

12.3 Unless otherwise consented to in writing by Beatrice, Buyer snall not

cause or permit BEK, the Company, Chern or any Subsidiary to destroy or oth:.rwise

dispose of any of the existing books and records of BEK, the Company, Chem or any

SUbsidiary, all of Which shall have been turned over to the Buyer as of the Closing,

which books and records are less than ten (10) years old at the time of such proposed

destruction, and Buyer shall cause BEK, the Company, Chern or any SUbsidiary to grant

Beatrice and its representatives reasonable access thereto during normal business

hours, provided that Beatrice shall pay the costs incurred by Buyer, BEK, the
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Company, Chern or any SUbsidiary to furnish any materials requested by Beat:ice.

Thereafter Buyer; hall not cause or permit BEK, the Company, Chern or any Subsidiary

to destroy or othllrwlse dispose of such books and records without first offering to

surrender to Beatrice such books and records or any portion thereof.

12.4 (8) The Subsidiaries incorporated in the United States maintain

seventeen (17) separate defined benefit retirement plans covering exclusively present

,na former employees of the businesses they operate (the "U.S. SubsidiafJ' Plans").

TheU.S. Subsidiary Plans and the related trusts are listed in the Letter.
"

(b) Prior to the Closing, Beatrice shall cause Chern to enter into a

trust agreement substr.ntially in the form of the Beatrice Foods Co. Service Related

Pension Plans Master Trust, under which the trustee shall hold the assets of the U.S.

Subsidiary Plans (other than the LNP Corporation plans) only. Prior to Closing, all

contributions accrued under the U.S. SUbsidiary Plans (other than the LNP Corporation

plans), inclUding contributions in respect of benefits accrued from January I, 1984

through the Closing Date, shall be deposited in such separate trust. LNP Corporation

maintains the assets of the LNP Corporation plans in a separate trust and such assets,

including, without limitation, all contributions in respect of benefits accrue~ Crom

JanUlIy I, 1984 through the Closing Date, shall be maintained in such trust as of the

CloJungDate. Chern and the Subsidiaries incorporated In the United States shall, as of

the Closing Date, be responsible for payment of all benefits (whether existing on the

ClosingDate, or arising in the future) provided tor in each of the U.S. Subsidiary

Plans as in effect from time to time. From and after the Closing Date, neither

Beatrice nor any of its affiliates shall have any right, title or interest in 0:-

responsibility for any of the assets whiC!hconstitute a part of the U.S. SUbsidiary

Plans.
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-12.5 <a> Certain salaried employees of Chem and the Subsidiaries

incorporated in the United States Ire covered by the Beatri,.e Retirement Ineome Plan

("BRIP"). Buyer shall use its best efforts to deliver to Beatrice within 90 days atter
. .

the Closing Date, but in any event shall deliver to Beatrice as soon as practicable

after the Closing Date:

(i) a certified copy of a pension plan adopted by Chem

(the tlSuceessor Plan") providing all be'nefits acerued under BRIP on or

prior to the Closing Date by Aetive Employees, as hereinafter
,

defined, who have accrued benefits under BRIP ("Chemical Group

Participants");

(ii) a certified copy of the trust agreement or group

annuity contraet entered into by Chem as the funding medium for the

Successor Plan; and

(iii) an opinion of counsel acceptable to Beatrice that

the terms of the Successor Plan meet the requirements for

qualification under Section 401(a) or 403{a) of the Code.
.

(b) Upon receipt of same, and after expiration of at least 30 da~.s

lfter notices of transfer are duly filed with IRS. Beatrice shall cause to be transferred
I

to the Successor Plan the amount of assets of BRIP allocable to Chemical Group

Participants as deterr .. ined below. SUbject to the adjustments described below, the

amount transferred shall be equal to the lull actuarial accrued liability attributable to
,

Chemical Group Participants under the BRIP, determined as or the Closing Date using

the actuarial method and all of the aetuarial assumptions used for purposes of

determining the basic funding standard account requirements as set forth in Sehedule

B to the Form 5500 filed in conneetion with the BRIP for the 1983 plan year, a copy of

Whichhas heretofore been delivered to the Buyer. Such amount shall be calculated by
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the BRIP's enrolled actuaries, The Wyatt Company, and, within 60 days following the

date on which all necessary data is received from Buyer or Chern, the result- of such

&,;.:!culationsshall be delivered to the actuary designa."d by t:le Buyer for approval,

together with all information necessary to make such calculations. It Buyer does not

object in writing to such computa· Iwl'lwithin 30 days following the receipt of such

results and information, such computation shall be binding on Beatrice, Seller, Buyer,

BER, the Company, Chem and the Subsidiaries. In the event of any material

disagreement which cannot be resolved between the respective actuaries, Seller and

Buyer agree to submit the matter to a tuird independent actuary whose decision ~hall

be binding on Seller, Buyer and their respective affiliates and to share equally the

expenses incurred in retaining such third independent actuary. The amount so

determined shall be reduced by any benefits paid under the BRIP on or after the

Closing Date with respect to Chemical Group Participants and a pro rata share of

administrative expenses incurred by Beatrice Foods Co. Retirement Plans Master

Trust between the Closing Date and the date of transfer, and shall be increased by

interest on the amount so determIned from the Closing Date to the date of transfer or

dates of distribution, if earlier, at the rate earned from time to time by the collective

short-term investment fund of The First Sational Bank of Chicago.

ec) Buyer shall C:d.use the retirement plan established under

(a) above to be operated in accordance with the requirements for Qualification under

Section 401(a) or 403(a) of the Code.

(d) Upon the transfer of assets to the Successor Plan as contem-

plated under (b) above, Chem shall assume all obltgatlons for benefits accrued by

Chemical Group Participants on or prior to the Closing Date under the BRIP. Neither

Buyer nor any of its affiliates (inclUding the Designated Purchasers. BEK, the
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company, Chern and the SUbsidiaries) shall have any other oblig-ation or liability

arising in can lection with the BRIP.

17.6 ~.) Certain employees of the Subsidiaries incorpJrat.-1 in C.nada

are covered by the Beatrice Foods Co. Canadian Retirement Income Plan ("Carp") and

the Beatrice Foods Co. Canadian Service Related P!nsion Plan (the "SRPP"). Buyer

shall use its best efforts to deliver to Beatrice within 90 days after the Closing Date,

but in any event shall deliver to Beatrice as soon as practicable after the Closing

Date:
....

(i) certified copies of pension plans adopted by Chen:

or its SUbsidiary (the "New Canadian Plans") prOViding all benefits

accrued under CRIP and the SRPP on or prior to the Closing Date by

Active Employees, as hereinafter defined, who have accrued benefits

under CRIP or SRPP ("Canadian Participants");

(ii) a eertified eopy of the trust agreement or group

annuity contract ~ntered into by Chern or its Subsidiary as the

funding medium for the New Canadian Plans; and

(iii) an opinion of pension eonsultants or eounsel

acceptable to Beatrice that \ the terms of the New Canadian Plans

meet the requirements for qUalification under Canadian and On~E.!'io

law.

(b) Upon receipt of same, Beatrice shall cause to be transferred to

the New Canadian Plans the amounts of assets of CRIP and the SRPP allocable to

Canadian Participants, as determined below. The amounts transferred shall be

calculated by CRIP's plan actuaries, The Wyatt Company, as if CRIP and the SRPP

were fully funded ongoing pension plans, using the actuarial assumptions and methods

contained in the January I, 1984 aetuarial valuation basis of the CRIP and SRPP.
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respectively. and assuming thf't the Y.M.P.E. offset will increase by 12.596 per annum

for the three years beginning .January 1. 1984 and by 5.096 per annum thereafter. The

amouf1U transferred shall be red.;.~ll!db}' any benefits paid under the CRIP and the

SRPP on or after the Closing Date with respect to Canadian Participants, and a pro

rata share of \~ministrative expenses incurred by the Canadian Retl"t.nent Trust of

Beatrice Foods Co. between the Closing Date and the date of transfer, and shall be

increased by interest on the net amounts transferred 'from the Closing Date to the
"

dete of transfer. or dates of distribution if earlier, at the rate earned from time to

time by the collective short-term investment fund of the Canadian trustee. Beatrice

shall furnish Buyer and the actuBrJ designated by Buyer with the computations made

by The Wyatt Company. with supporting data, at least thirty (30) days before the

transfer of assets from CRIP and the SRPP to the New Canadian Plans. If Buyer does

(d) Upon the transfer of assets to the New Canadian Plans as

contemplated under (b) above, Chem shall assume all obligations tor benefits accrued

b~'Canadian Participants under the CRIP and the SRPP on or prior to the Closing

Date. Neither Buyer nor any of its affiliates (including the Desi&nated Purchase:,st

TIERRA-B-006046



BEK, the Company, Chern and the SUbsidiarIes) sh~ have any other obHg'ation o~

liability arising in connection with either the C lIP or the SRPP.

(e) The assets ot the RPE, l.S h..:f'totore defined, are maintained in

a group annuity contract and such assets, including, without limitation, all

contributions in respect of bel' 1f!ts accrued trom January 1, 1984 through the Closing

Date, shall continue to be so maintained by one or more Subsidiaries incorporated in

Canada as ot the Closing Date. Such SUbsidiary or Subsidiaries shall, as of the Closing'

Date, be responsible for payment of all benefits (whether existing on the Closing Date,

or arising in the future) provided unaer RPE as in effect from time to time. From ar.d

after the Closing Date, neither Beatrice nor any of its affiliates shall have any right,

title or interest in or responsibility for any of the assets which constitute a pa!'t of

RPE.

12. '1 The full account balances ot participants in the ESOP, as heretofore

defined, who are employees ofBEK, the Company, Chern or any SUbsidiary shall be

distributed to such participants in accordance with the termination of employment

provisions thereof.

12.8 Except as otherwise provided in Section 12.4 and 12.6(e) in respect of

certain defined benefit pension plans, Seller shall retain all obligations and liabilities

under the U.S. Employee Plans, Ille Canadian Plans and the Benefit Arrangements in

respect of any employee or forme~ employee who, as ot the Closing Date, is not an

Active Employee, as hereinatter detined. For these purposes, the term "Active

Employee" shall mean any person who, on the Closini Date, Ls actively employed by

BEK, the Company, Chern or any SUbsidiary, or is on short-term disability, Buthorized

leave of absence, military service or larot! with recall rights, but shall exclude all

other inactive or former employees, including retirees and employees on long-term

disability. With respect to Active Employees (inclUding any dependent or beneficia!'y
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thereon, Seller shall retain (0 all obligations and liabilities arising under any group

life, accident, medical, dental or disability plan or similar arungement (whether or

Ilot insured) to the extent that any ~uch liability or obligation ~l!lates to claims

ineurr~d(whether or not reported) on or prior to the Closilli Date and (ii) a.ll other

liabilities and obligations arising under all oth"r u.S. Employee Plans (exclUding the

Pension Plans) and the Benefit Arrangements to the extent any such liability or

obligation relates to any period ending on or prior to the Closing Date and is not

reflected as a liability on the Closing Balance Sheet.

12.9 To the extent requested by Buyer In writing prior to the Closing

Date, Seller agrees to (i) continue to cover Active Employees after the Closing Date

underthe U.S. Employee Plans and Benefit Arrangements which provide for insurance

coverage until. such time as Buyer has secured appropriate successor coverage and

(ii) continue to provide certain administrative services after the Closing Date in

respect of Active Employees as reuonably requested by Buyer, inclUding but not

limited to payroll services, record-keeping services and claims processing services,

until such time as Buyer can usume responsibllity tor such services in an orderly

manner. Buyer agrees to reimburse Seller tor Seller's direct costs reasonably incurred

in continuin~ to provide such insurance cov~rage and such administrative services.

Buyeragrees to use its best etforts to put substitute coverages into effect before, or

u soonas practicable after, the Closm, Date.

12.10 Seller hereby indemnifies Buyer and its Affiliates (including as of the

Closing,the Designated Purchasers. BEK, the Company, Chem and the SUbsidiaries)

a,ainst, and agrees to hold them harmless from, any and all damage, loss. liability and

expense (ineluding. without limitation, reasonable expenses or investigation and

attorneys' fees and expenses) in respect of any fallure by Seller to. satisfy and

discharge its obligations under Sections 12.4 through 12.9 hereof. Buyer hereby
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indemnifies Seller and its Affiliates against, and agrees to hold them harmless from,

any and all damage, loss, liability and expense (including,without limi .ation,

reasonable expenses of investigation and attorneys' fefAsand expenses) in respect t'f

any failure by Buyer to satisfy and discharge its obligations under Sections 12.4

through 12.9 hereof.

ARTICLE KIn
Miscellaneous

,,~;

13.1 Expenses. Buyer shall pay its own costs and e1.1Jenses (including

attorneys' fees and other professional fees and expenses) in connection with the

negotiation, preparation and execution and delivery of this Agreement and the

consummation of the transactiol\S contemplated hereby. Beatrice and Seller shall pay

their own costs and expenses (including attorneys' fees and other professional fees and

expenses) in connection with the negotiation, preparation and execution and delivery

of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

13.2 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with the Letter and

any certificates or other documents delivered pursuant hereto, contains the entire

agreement between the parties with respect to the transaction cOlitemplated hereby
I

and supersedes all negotiations, representations, warranties, cummitments, offers,

contracts and writings prior to the date hereot. No waiver. mOdilication or

amendment of any provision of this Agreement shall be effective unless specifically

made in writing and duly signed by the party to be bound thereby.

13.3 Severability. If any provision hereof shall be held invali~ or

unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction or as a result of future

legislative action, such holding or action shall be strictly construed and shall not

affect the validity or effect of any other provision hereof.
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13.4 Buver to Furnish Information. As soon as practicable following the

Closing, but in no event later t~an ninety (90) days thereafter, Buyer shall deliver to

Beatrice ':".'ch inf,)rmation and data concerning BEK, the Company, ~hem and the

SUbsidiariesas Beatrice may reasonably recuest, including that required by Beatrice's

customary tax and accounting questionnaires, in order to enable Beatrice to comrete

and file all federal and state forms which it may be required to tile and to otherwise

enable Beatrice to satisfy its internal accounting, tax and other requirements.

13.5 Notices. All notices, requests, demands an~ other communications

under this Agreement shall be in writing and delivered in person or sent by telex or

certified mail, postage prepaid, and properly addressed as follows:

To Buyer:

The Secretary
Imperial Chemical Industries PLC
Imperial Chemical House
MillbanJc
London SW1P 3JF
England
Telex: 21324 Answerback: IMO IMPERIAL CHEMICAL

with a copy to:

Peter R. Douglas, Esq.
Davis Polk & Wardwell
1 Chase Manhattan Plaza
New York, New York 10005
Telex: (WU) 126834 (Answerback: STETSON NYK)
Telex: (ITT) 421341 (Answerback: STT UI)

To Beatrice or Seller:

Beatrice Companies, Inc.
Two North LaSalle Street
Chicago, Illinois 60602
Attention: General Counsel
Telex: 254080 (Answerback: BEATCO)
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with a copy to:

Winst m &: Strawn
Suite 5000
One F int Nation U Plaza
Chicago, IllinCl~s60603
Attention: M. Finley Maxson
Telex: 6871323 (Answerback: WSCGO UW)

All nCldces and other communications required or permitted under this Agreement

whichare addressed -= provided in this Section 12.5, if delivered by telegraph, shall be

effective upon receipt; if delivered by telex, shall be eCfective upon receipt by the

sender of the answerback specified in or pursuant to this Section; and, if delivered by

mail, shall be eCfective '12 hours after deposit in the United States mail, postage

prepaid or, in the case of transatlantic mailings, five business days after deposit in the

mail of the United States or the United Kingdom, airmail postage prepaid.

Any party may from time to time change its address for the purpose of

notices to that party by a similar notice specifying a new address, but no such change

shall be deemed to have been given until it is actually received by the party sought to

be charged with its contents.

13.6 Successors and Assigt\!. This Agreement shall be binding upon and

inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns,

but this Agreement may not be assigned by either party without the written consent ( :

the other.

13.7 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed

under the laws of the State of Winois. The table of contents and captions herein are

inclUdedfor convenience of reference only, do not form a part of this Agreement and

shall be ignored in the construction and interpretation hereof.

13.8 Confidentiality. Except for such documents, reports, information and

data (inclUding financial statements) which are of a public nature, pending the Closing
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(IlId,if this Agreement is terminated, at all times after the date hereo!), Buyer shall

treAt IS confidential and, except as otherwise required in ronnection with the

consummationof the transaction conteml-~:\ted h .reby, or except as compelled to

discloseby judicial or administrative process or, in the opinion of its counsel, by other

requirementsof lawf w;!.l not use, submit or disclose to, or Cile with, othersf or permit

lilY person, tirm, corporation or entity underr its control to usef submit or disclose to,

orme with others, any documents, reports, information or data (including financial

stAtements)concerning BEK, the CompanYf Chem or any SUbsidiary which Buyer may

o~tainfrom Beatrice, Seller, BEK, the Company, Chem or any SubsidiarYi and, except

for such documents, reports and other written materials (inclUding financial

statements), which are of a public nature, if this Agreement is terminated, Buyer shall

return to Beatrice any and all such documents, reports and other written materials

(including financial s.tatements) concerning BEK, the Company, Chern or any

SUbsidiaryas Beatrice may reasonably request. Except for documents, reports,

information and data (including, without limitation, financdal statements I.nd data)

whichare of a pUblic nature and unless this Agreement is terminated, Beatrice and

Sellershall, and shall cause each person, firm, corporation and entity under their

eontrol(including, without limitation but only through the time of Closing, BEK, the

Company, Chern and the Subsidiaries) to, treat as eonfidential and, except as

otherwise required in cOimeetion with the consummation of the transactions

eontemplated hereby, or except u compelled to disclose by JUdicial or administrative

proeess or, in the opinion of its counsel, by other requirements of law, submit or

diseloseto, or file with, others, or permit any person, firm, corporl.tion or entity under

their control to use, or submit or disclose tOf or file with, others, any documents,

reports, information or data (including, without limitation, financi!.1 statements and

data and all property or the types described in Seetion 7.9(a), and inL-mation obtained
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rursuant to Section 3.3(a), 12.3 or 13.4) concerning BEK, the Company, Chern or any

~.ubsidiary. Prior to the Closing Date, Beatrice shall have substantially commence'" to,

hnd :'''ereafter shall, use its best efforts to procure the :-eturn ~f all documents,

reports, written information and written data (including, without limitation, financial

statements and data) furnished sincr ~eptember 1, 1983 to any person. firm,

C!orporationor entity (other than Buyer and its legal counsel, agents and investment

bankers referred to in Section 7.24> in connection with the possible sale of Chern or

any Subsidiary. Beatrice will not amend or terminate or waive any provision or any

confidentiality agreement relating to Chern or any SUbsidiary and will, at Bu'yerls

reque-st and expense, (i) take such action as is necessary to permit Buyer to enforce

compliance therewith or (ii) if such action is not possible, take appropriate action to

enforce such ~ornpliance.

13.9 Change or Identification. Following the Closing, Buyer shall as soon

IS practicable, cause Chern and each SUbsidiary, If appropriate, <a>to amend their

respeC!tive charters in order to delete the word "Beatrice" therefrom and (b) cause

Chem and the Subsidiaries to refrain from using any trademark, trade name, logo or

other design of Beatrice in connection with their respective businesses which is
Icurrently used generally by Beatrice or its other affiliates.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF f Buyer and Seller ihall have executed 'lnd delivered

this Ag""eement as of the day and year first above written.

Bea trice Companies, Inc.

By: SI Richard J. Pigott
->

LA Aequisition Corporation

By: SI RicharJ F. Vitkus
;;

Imperial Chemical Industries PLC

By:!SF N.B. Smith
..-/.

.s/
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BRESSLER, AMERY B: ROSS
A PRO!'ESSIONAL CORPORATION

BERN"RD BRESSLER
BRI"N !'. AMERY
L"WRENCE D. ROSS
DAVID W. REGER
J. MICHAEL RIORD"N
RICHARD V. oJcm:::;
RICH"RD R SPENCER, oJR
M"RK T. MCMENAMY
O"VID P. SCHNEIDER
MARK M. TALLM"DGE
EDWIN A. ZIP!'
THOMAS L. WEISENBECK
GEORGE R. HIRSCH
O"NIEL. BAL.OWIN
CYNTH' ... oJ.BORREL.LI
ERIC L.. CH"'SE
O"VIO H. PIKUS
EDW"'RD P. McKENZIE

COUNSELLORS AT LAW
P. O. BOX 1980

MORRISTOWN, N. J. 07962
(201) 514·1200

TELECOPIER: (.201) 514·1660

oJORDANS. WElT BERG
GLADYS W. ORR
oJO"'N H. BEYER
O"VID J. L.IBOWSKY
GENEVIEVE K. LARCBARDIER
MICH"'EL V. COL.VIN
DAVID !'. B"UMAN
KEITH S. B...RB"'ROSH
DON"L.D oJ.CAMERSON, II
LISA .... BlASE
KEVIN B. W"'LKER
ERIC J. NEMETH
/lANDY SAMUELS
JE!'!'REY W. GERBER
LORI ",. CONNORS
SE.o,NT. O·NEIL.
SCOTT M. EDW"'RDS
CH",RL.ENE C. MCHUGH
NOREEN M. BITETTO
SCOTT T. BURGESS
MICH"EL oJ.CONNOL.L.Y
DOMINICK!'. EVANGELISTA
ROGER v. JONES
DANIEL T. KOPEC
ANDREW H. SMITH
WILL.I...M S. H...TF"IELO
!'RANK oJ.CUCCIO
DONN'" M. MICH...EL.·ZIEREIS
MILDRED A. oJACOB
LIND" S. MIRSKY
FRANCIS oJ.HEL.VERSON

HAND DELIVERY:
325 COLUMBIA TURNPIKE

FLORHAM PARK, N. .J. 07932

0"- COUNS~l.,
D"VID oJ.OLESKtR
RCBtRT B/lANTL
tDWIN w. ORR, .,JR.

NEW YORK OFFICE
17STATE STREET

NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10004

(212) 425·9300MARTIN A. ROTHENBERG
11918·19881

November 21, 1995 WRITER'S CIRtCT L.INt.

VIA FACSIMILE AND CERTIFIED
MAIL RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Mr. Joseph Cosentino, OSC
Removal Action Branch
Emergency and Remedial Response Div.
U.S.E.P.A. - Region II
2890 Woodbridge Avenue
Edison, New Jersey 08837

RE: Bayonne Barrel & Drum
Newark, New Jersey
l04(e) Information Request

Dear Mr. Cosentino:

Enclosed please find BASF Corporation's
Request for Information previously forwarded by
the above site.

response to the
USEPA relating to

BASF's internal investigation of its alleged connection to
Bayonne Barrel & Drum is continuing. BASF reserves the right to
amend or supplement its response if additional relevant information
is discovered. To the extent any additional information is
discovered, it will be promptly forwarded to your attention.
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BRESSLER, AMERY 8< ROSS

Mr. Joseph Cosentino, OSC
November 21, 1995
Page 2

If you have any questions concerning BASF's response, please
do not hesitate to call me.

Very truly yours,

BRESSLER, AMERY & ROSS, P.C.

!J~,,~rSJ~
David P. Schneider

Enclosure
cc: Marc Seidenberg, Esq.
99111.1
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BAYONNE BARREL & DRUM COMPANY
l04(e) INFORMATION REQUEST

RESPONSE OF BASF CORPORATION

1. General Information About the Company
a. State the correct legal name of the Company.

BASF Corporation

b. Identify the legal status of the Company (corporation,
partnership, sole proprietorship, specify if other) and the state
in which the Company was organized.

BASF Corporation is a corporation incorporated in the
State of Delaware.

c. State the name(s) and address(es) of the President and
the Chairperson of the Board of the Company.

J. Dieter Stein
President & Chief Executive Officer
Chairman of the Board of Directors
3000 Continental Drive - North
Mt. Olive, New Jersey 07828

d. If the Company has subsidiaries or affiliates, or is a
subsidiary of another organization, identify these related
companies and state the name(s) and address (es) of the President(s)
and the Chairperson(s) of the Board of those organizations.
Provide such information for any further parent/subsidiary
relationships.

BASF's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

BASF Bioresearch Corporation
100 Research Drive
Worcester, Massachusetts 01605
Robert Kamen, President

BASF Canada Inc.
345 Carlingview Drive
Toronto, Ontario
Canada M9W 6N9
Christoph von Krafft, President

Knoll Pharmaceutical Company
3000 Continental Drive - North
Mt. Olive, New Jersey 07828
Gerald Bendele, President
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BASF Corporation, as it exists today, was formed December 31,
1985 as a wholly-owned subsidiary of BASF America Corporation. On
July 31, 1986, BASF America Corporation's name changed to BASFIN
Corporation. The legal address for BASFIN Corporation is 3000
Continental Drive - North, Mt. Olive, New Jersey 07828.

e. If the Company is a successor to, or has been succeeded
by, another company, identify such other company and provide the
same information requested above for the predecessor or successor
company.

BASF Corporation is the corporate successor to BASF
Wyandotte Corporation and Inmont Corporation. In 1968, BASF
Corporation, a New York corporation, was formed. On December 31,
1970, BASF Corporation merged into Wyandotte Chemical Corporation,
a Michigan Corporation, whose name was simultaneously changed to
BASF Wyandotte Corporation, a Michigan Corporation. On December
12, 1973, BASF Wyandotte Corporation was purchased by Luchem
Corporation, a Delaware Corporation. Luchem Corporation's name was
changed to BASF America Corporation (Del.) on June 19, 1978.

The former Inmont Corporation, a Ohio Corporation, was created
on April 15, 1969 as a result of Interchemical Corporation's name
change. MEW Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of Carrier
Corporation, was incorporated in Delaware on August II, 1977 to act
as a vehicle into which Inmont Corporation (Ohio) would be merged.
On December 27, 1977, Inmont Corporation merged into MEW
Corporation whose name was simultaneously changed to Inmont
Corporation, a Delaware Corporation. Carrier Corporation, through
a merger on July 6, 1979, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
United Technologies Corporation. On June 30, 1981, Carrier
Corporation transferred all issued and outstanding shares of Inmont
Corporation (Del.) to United Technologies Corporation.

On or about May 21, 1985, BASF America Corporation acquired
Inmont Corporation from United Technologies Corporation.
Thereafter, on December 31, 1985, BASF Wyandotte Corporation was
merged into Inmont Corporation, which simultaneously changed its
name to BASF Corporation, the current corporate entity.

f. If the Company transacted business with Bayonne Barrel &
Drum in the name of an entity not disclosed above, give the name of
such entity and state its relationship to the Company.

Not applicable.

2. Company's Relationship to Bayonne Barrel & Drum
a. State whether the Company or any Company facility

transacted any business with Bayonne Barrel & Drum for the
disposal, treatment, or storage of any barrels, drums, or other
containers (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Containers").

2
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BASF's internal investigation and the documents received
from EPA indicate that Inmont Corporation used the services of
Bayonne Barrel & Drum to recondition empty product drums. BASF
does not concede that these transactions constitute an arrangement
for disposal, treatment, or storage under CERCLA §107(a), or that
BASF otherwise has any liability with respect to environmental
conditions at the Bayonne Barrel site.

(i.) If so, describe the relationship (nature of services
rendered or products sold to the Company) between the Company and
Bayonne Barrel & Drum;

BASF's internal investigation and the documents received
from EPA indicate that Inmont Corporation offered its customers a
return for deposit arrangement pursuant to which customers received
a credit from Inmont in exchange for the return of their empty
Inmont product drums. These drums were then sent to a
reconditioner for reconditioning .. Two procedures were employed.
Customers either sent their empty product drums back to the Inmont
facility from which the product had been purchased, or sent them
directly to the drum reconditioner. Drums returned to Inmont
remained at the facility until a full load had been collected.
Inmont then either arranged for a third-party to transport the
drums to the reconditioner or called the reconditioner to pickup
the drums.

During BASF's investigation, several retired Inmont employees
indicated that Bayonne Barrel & Drum was one of several
reconditioners used by Inmont facilities. These same Inmont
employees recalled that Bayonne Barrel & Drum segregated drums by
customer and stored them in separate stacks in their yard. The
drums were stored until a sufficient number had been accumulated to
run a load through their reconditioning plant. The reconditioned
drums were then returned to Inmont.

(ii.) Provide copies of any contracts or agreements between
the Company and Bayonne Barrel & Drum;

No such documents were located. Had
documents existed, they would likely have been
accordance with BASF's record retention policy.

any of these
destroyed in

(iii.) For each such facility, state the nature of the
operations conducted at the facility, including the time period in
which the facility operated; and

(iv.) For each such facility, state its name, address, and
current RCRA Identification Number.

3
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(iii.) (iv.) BASF's internal investigation has
identified the following former Inmont Corporation facilities which
may have used Bayonne Barrel & Drum for drum reconditioning
services:

International Printing Ink
Division Street
Elizabeth, New Jersey
Manufactured printing inks
Approximately 1940s to Closure in 1972

Inmont Corporation
L-5 Factory Lane
Bound Brook, New Jersey
Manufactured pigments and dispersions
Sold in 1987

Inmont Corporation
Finishes Division
McGuarter Street
Newark, New Jersey
Manufactured industrial finishes, varnish
Approximately 1944 to Closure in 1972

Inmont Corporation
200 Gregg Street
Lodi, New Jersey 07644
Manufactured gravure ink
1936 to 1993

Inmont Corporation
James Street
Belvidere, New Jersey 07823
Manufactures automobile refinish paint
1977 to Present

Inmont Corporation
150 Wagner Road
Hawthorne, New Jersey 07506
Manufactured pigments and ink bases; some dye
manufacturing pre-1985.
Closed 1986

Inmont Corporation
Finishes Division
Magnolia Street
Elizabeth, New Jersey
Manufactured adhesives and industrial coatings, varnish
Approximately 1940s to Closure in 1972

4
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No other Inmont facilities have as yet been identified as
having used Bayonne Barrel & Drum for drum reconditioning services.
However, several additional Inmont locations, listed below, were
identified during BASF's investigation. These facilities appear to
have had no connection to Bayonne Barrel & Drum other than paYment
of invoices through their central accounting departments on behalf
of the above listed facilities.

Inmont Corporation
1255 Broad Street
Clifton, New Jersey 07015
Offices and laboratories - research in inks, paints
and other products.
1964 to Present Corporate headquarters beginning in
approximately 1981.

Inmont Corporation
1133 Avenue of the Americas
New York, New York
Corporate Headquarters
1952 to approximately 1981

Inmont Corporation
59-35 Milford Avenue
Detroit, Michigan 48233
Manufactures coating; research and development lab from 1950
to 1992 when lab moved to Southfield location; and general
offices.
1966 to Present

Inmont Corporation
3221 W. Big Beaver Road
Suite 110
Troy, Michigan 48084

Inmont Corporation
18311 W. 10 Mile Road
Southfield, Michigan 48075
Automotive coatings research

b. In addi tion, if the Company transac ted bus ines s wi th
Bayonne Barrel & Drum, provide the following information for each
transaction:

(i.) Identify the specific dates of each transaction. Where
an exact date cannot be provided for a transaction, provide an
approximation by month and year;

(ii.) Identify the number of Containers that were the subject
of each such transaction;

5
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(i.) - (ii.) Other than the documents provided to BASF
by EPA, which EPA alleges evidence specific transactions, BASF's
internal investigation failed to produce any documents evidencing
any transactions with Bayonne Barrel & Drum. That internal
investigation did indicate, however, that the Inmont facilities
identified in response to question 2 (a) (iii) & (iv) transacted
with several drum reconditioners during various periods of time, of
which Bayonne Barrel & Drum was one.

(iii.) Generically describe
subj ect of each such transac tion
drums, etc.);

each Container that was the
(example: closed-head steel

The Inmont facilities identified above used both open and
closed-head steel drums.

(iv.) Identify the intended purpose of each such transaction;

The intended purpose of Inmont's transactions with
Bayonne Barrel & Drum was to obtain reconditioned drums.

(v.) State whether each Container that was the subject of
the transaction contained any substance at the time of the
transaction. As to each Container that contained any substance:

(1) Identify each such substance, including its chemical
content, physical state, quantity by volume and
weight, and other characteristics; and

(2) Provide all written analyses that may have been
made for each such substance or which may be in the
custody or control of the Company and all material
safety data sheets, if any, relating to each such
substance;

(vi.) If you contend that any such Container did not contain
any substance at the time of the transaction:

(1) State whether such Container had previously been
used by the Company to contain any substance, and
if so:

(a) Identify all substances previously contained
within such Container, including its chemical
content, physical state, and other
characteristics; and

(b) Provide as to such substances, all written
analyses that may have been made for each such
substance or which may be in the custody or
control of the Company and all material safety

6
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data sheets, if any, relating to each such
substance;

(vii.) Describe in detail any treatment of any Container
that may have been performed by or on behalf of the Company prior
to the time that the Container was transferred from the Company,
including any process or procedure by which the Container wasemptied or cleaned: .

(v. - vii.) The Inmont facilities produced printing
inks, automotive paints, industrial coatings, and dispersions which
were sold in steel drums, tank wagons, and one and five-gallon
containers. BASF's internal investigation indicates some empty
customer drums may have contained residual amounts of these
materials when they were sent to the drum reconditioner. BASF's
internal investigation has not revealed whether empty customer
drums returned to Inmont's facilities were treated prior to
shipment to the drum reconditioner.

BASF's internal investigation has not produced written records
of any analyses which may have been performed on any residual
substances remaining in Inmont's empty drums.

(viii.) Provide copies of all documents relating in any way
to each transaction, including copies of delivery receipts,
invoices, or payment devices;

See responses to Questions 2 (a)(ii) and 2 (b)(i) - (ii).

(ix.) Identify all persons who might have knowledge of the
transactions or who had any responsibility regarding the
transaction; and

Millie Bauman
Accounts Payable
Inmont Corporation
Detroit, Michigan

A. Beers
Inmont Corporation
Troy, Michigan

Benjamin D'Armiento
Manager Resins Division
Interchemical Corporation
Newark, New Jersey

James Dole
Purchasing Manager
Inmont Corporation
New York, New York and Clifton, New Jersey

7
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Gus Gagis
Plant Manager
Inmont Corporation
Hawthorne, New Jersey

H. Keller
Inmont Corporation
Lodi, New Jersey

Herman Kumm
Purchasing Agent
Inmont Corporation
New York, New York

Walter Mock
Project Engineer
Inmont Corporation
Lodi, New Jersey

Arthur Newman
Purchasing Agent
Inmont Corporation
Lodi, New Jersey

Dan O'Connor
Inmont Corporation

V. Pascale
Inmont Corporation
Detroit, Michigan

D. Simpson
Inmont Corporation
Detroit, Michigan

(x.) If you sent any Container by means of any third party
transporter, identify each such transporter, including the name and
address of such transporter, and identify in which of the
transactions such transporter acted.

Documentation provided by EPA indicates that during the
period January 1980 to December 1981, the following companies and
common carriers may have transported empty Inmont product drums
directly from customer facilities to Bayonne Barrel & Drum;

BAIR Transport, Inc.
P.O. Box 216
Riverside, New Jersey 08075

Branch Motor Express Company
114 5th Avenue
New York, New York 10011

8
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Chrysler Corporation
Newark Assembly Plant 04070
Newark, New Jersey

Ford Motor Company
Automotive Assembly Division
Metuchen Assembly Plant
P.O. Box F
Edison, New Jersey 08817

General Motors Corporation
GM Assembly Division
1016 W. Edgar Road
Linden, New Jersey 07036

General Motors Corporation
GM Assembly Division
P.O. Box 1512
Wilmington, Delaware 19899

General Motors Corporation
GM Assembly Division
Beekman Avenue
North Tarrytown, New York 10591

General Motors Corporation
Fisher Body Division
Parkway Avenue
Trenton, New Jersey 08605

General Motors Corporation
GM Assembly Division
63 Western Avenue
Framingham, Massachusetts 01701

General Motors Corporation
GM Assembly Division
2122 Broening Hwy.
Baltimore, Maryland 21203

Wooleyhan Transport Company
City Line and S. Heald Street
Wilmington, Delaware 19899

3. Identify any other person (~, individual, company,
partnership, etc.) having knowledge of facts relating to the
questions which are the subject of this inquiry. For each such
person that you identify, provide the name, address, and telephone
number of that person, and the basis for your belief that he or she
has such knowledge. For past and present employees, include their
job title and a description of their responsibilities:

9
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BASF's internal investigation has not identified any
other persons having knowledge of Inmont's transactions with
Bayonne Barrel & Drum.

4. Identify each person consulted in responding to these
questions and correlate each person to the question on which he or
she was consulted.

BASF's response was prepared by outside counsel in
consultation with the following individuals:

Question 2.b.ix. Cynthia Neprash
Benefits & Retirement Office
BASF Corporation
3000 Continental Drive - North
Mt. Olive, New Jersey 07828

Questions 1 - 7 Heather Rash
Legal Department
BASF Corporation
300 Continental Drive - North
Mt. Olive, New Jersey 07828

Question 2 Benjamin D'Armiento (Retired)
Manager Resins Division
Interchemical Corporation
Newark, New Jersey

Question 2 Gus Gagis
Plant Manager
Inmont Corporation
Hawthorne, New Jersey

Question 2 Walter Mock (Retired)
Plant Engineer
Inmont Corporation
Lodi, New Jersey

Question 2 Arthur Newman (Retired)
Purchasing Agent
Inmont Corporation
Lodi, New Jersey

Question 2.b.ix., 3 Dale Webster
Ecology
BASF Corporation
Wyandotte, Michigan

10
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Question 2 James Dole (Retired)
Purchasing Manager
Inmont Corporation
World Headquarters
New York, New York and
Clifton, New Jersey

The remaining individuals identified above in response to
question 2(b) (ix) as possibly having knowledge are either deceased
or could not be located.

5. Provide a list of all insurance policies and indemnification
agreements held or entered into by you that may indemnify you
against any liability that you may be found to have under CERCLA.
Specify the insurer, type of policy, effective dates, and state per
occurrence policy limits for each policy. Copies of policies may
be provided in lieu of a narrative response. In response to this
request, please provide not only those policies and agreements that
are currently in effect, but also those in effect since your
company began sending Containers to the Site.

Pursuant to a Settlement Agreement with United
Technologies Corporation ("UTCIt

) entered into in 1991, UTC is
obligated to indemnify BASF for a share of any Inmont liability
arising out of the Bayonne Barrel site. BASF's right to
indemnification under policies of insurance applicable to Inmont
Corporation is currently under review. At present, BASF is unable
to identify what policies, if any, would respond to any liability
it may incur in this matter.

6. State whether there exists any agreement or contract (other
than an insurance policy) which may indemnify the Company, present
or past directors, officers or owners of shares in the Company, for
any liability that may result under CERCLA. Provide a copy of any
such agreement or contract. Identify any agreement or contract
that you are unable to locate or obtain.

See response to Question 5 above.

7. Supply any additional information or documents that may be
relevant or useful to identify other sources who disposed of or
transported Containers to the Site.

BASF's investigation to date has not produced any other
information or documents that may be useful in identifying other
sources who may have transacted with Bayonne Barrel & Drum.

97064.1
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count~ of _1t.OO.lrr~1.... _

I certit'y under penalty of law that ! have personally exaJIined and
I

am familiar with the informati~n submittea: in this document
,,

(response to IPA Request tor Information) and all aocu~ents
submitted. harewith, and that ba.sed on my :inquiry of those
1ndivi~uals immediately responsible for obtaining ~e 1nfomation,

I

"1 believe that the submitted in~ormation 1& t~e, accurate, and
I

complete, an~ that a~l documents submitted be~ewith are oomplete
and authentic unless o~erwise indicated. r ~ aware that there

I

are significant penalties for submittinq ~alse information,
includinq the possibility of fine and impriso~Qnt.

Haney Lake Martin

NAME (p~Intor type)
Senior Attoruey

TIERRA-B-006068



ENGEL1-141RD ENGElHARD CORPORATION
101 WOOD AVENUE
ISElIN, NEW JERSEY08830·0770
908- 205-5000 -

December 7, 1995

Mr. Joseph Cosentino
On-Scene Coordinator
Emergency and Remedial Response Division
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region II
2890 Woodbridge Avenue
Edison, NJ OBB37

Re: Request for Information Pursuant to
Section 104(e) of CERCLA for the
Bayonne Barrel & Drum Superfund Site

Dear Mr. Cosentino:
This letter is submitted on behalf of Engelhard Cor-

poration ("Engelhard") and in response to the September 28,
1995 request for information (the "Information Request") issued
by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") to
Engelhard pursuant to Section 104(e) of the Comprehensive Envi-
ronmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, as
amended ("CERCLA") and with respect to the Bayonne Barrel &
Drum Superfund Site in Newark, New Jersey (the "Site").

The Information Request was received by Engelhard on
or about October 4, 1995. On October 26, 1995, Randye Beth
Stein, Esq. of Cahill Gordon & Reindel received approval from
Ms. Donna Murphy, an EPA contractor, to respond to the Infornla-
tion Hequestthrough and including November 15, 1995. Marc
Seidenberg, Esq. of EPA subsequently extended the response date
through and including December 8, 1995. These agreements were
memorialized in October 27, 1995 and November 14, 199~ letters
from Ms. Stein to Mr. Seidenberg. In addition, Mr. Seidenberg
authorized Engelhard to limit its inquiry under the Information
Request to those Engelhard plants referenced in documents pre-
viously provided to Engelhard and/or located within the "metro-
politan area". In the event EPA later requires information
with respect to other Engelhard plants, Engelhard understands
that EPA will provide it with adequate notice of such
determination.

To the best of the undersigned's knowledge, this
response accurately reflects the results of a diligent review
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of available information relevant to the Information Request,
as conducted in the time permitted. Engelhard recognizes its
continuing obligation to supplement its response to the Infor-
mation Request should it identify additional responsive infor-
mation. Engelhard understands that EPA will not seek referral
to the U.S. Department of Justice for non-compliance with the
Information Request under 42 U.S. § 9604(e)(5) in the event
additional responsive information is identified and submitted
to EPA at some future date.

Submission of this response and accompanying docu-
ments is not intended and should not be construed as an
acknowledgment or admission of any responsibility, fault or
liability of Engelhard, or any of its affiliates, officers,
directors, employees, agents or representatives, relating to
the Bayonne Barrel and Drum Superfund Site or any other site,
or as a waiver of any rights, privileges or defenses with
respect thereto, or with respect to any documents or informa-
tion provided with this submission, including, without limita-
tion, any objection to the use of any document as evidence or
otherwise in any forum, all of which are expressly reserved.
Engelhard reserves the right to object on any basis or ground
to the use, in whole or in part, of any document or information
submitted herewith in any proceeding or for any purpose.

To the extent the Information Request can be con-
strued as asking for disclosure of privileged information or as
requesting information of a kind and/or in a form not autho-
rized by applicable law, Engelhard claims any applicable privi-
lege and objects to the Information Request. Any inadvertent
production of privileged material is not intended as a waiver
of the applicable privilege.

Each question in the Information Request is responded
to separately in Exhibit I hereto.
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Please direct any questions concerning the enclosed
to the undersigned.

Respectfully submi t1~ed,
/i' , .-;

__" ,f(, j/ -). .'--_. --~'I;:cnt<.~ /'1 ", / LJ "t-.' 1--

Thomas S. Brown
Manager - Environmental Affairs
Corporate Environment, Health &

Safety

[Enclosures)
BY HAND
cc: Marc Seidenberg, Esq.

Assistant Regional Counsel
Office of Regional Counsel
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region II
290 Broadway, 17th Floor
New York, NY 10007
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Bayonne Barrel & Drum Superfund Site
Engelhard Corporation

CERTIFICATION OF ANSWERS TO REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

State of New Jersey

County of Middlesex

I certify under penalty of law that I have personally examined
and am familiar with the information submitted in this document
(response to EPA Request for Information) and all documents
submitted herewith, and that based on my inquiry of those
individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the
information, I believe that the submitted information is true,
accurate, and complete, and that all documents submitted herewith
are complete and authentic unless otherwise indicated. I am
aware that there are significant penalties for SUbmitting false
information, inclUding the possibility of fine and imprisonment.

Thomas S. Brown

Mf:r. Enyjronmental Affairs
TITLE (print or type)

D<t;~/~
SiGNATURE

Sworn to me before this
-rf:..7 day Of~ 1995

~i~Notary Publ~c
DONNA P. FOUGNO

rwa.y PublIc af"',-",
My CommiIIion &pItw Mev I.,..
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BAYONNE BARREL & DRUM
INFORMATION REQUEST

1. General Information About the Company
a. State the correct legal name of the Company.

Response:
Engelhard Corporation

b. Identify the legal status of the Company (corpora-
tion, partnership, sole proprietorship, specify if
other) and the state in which the Company was orga-
nized.

Response:

Engelhard Corporation is a corporation organized in the
State of Delaware.

c. State the name(s) and address(es) of the President
and the Chairperson of the Board of the Company.

Response:

L. Donald LaTorre
President

Orin R. Smith
Chairman of the Board

Engelhard Corporation
101 Wood Avenue
Iselin, NJ 08830

d. If the Company has subsidiaries or affiliates, or is
a subsidiary of another organization, identify these
related companies and state the name(s) and
address (es) of the President(s) and the
Chairperson(s) of the Board of those organizations.
Provide such information for any further parent/sub-
sidiary relationships.
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Response:
Engelhard construes Question No. l.d. to require the iden-
tification of all current subsidiaries and affiliates of
Engelhard Corporation (the parent corporation) and, to
this end, is submitting Engelhard Corporation's Form 10-K
Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Secu-
rities and Exchange Commission for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1994. (Document Nos. 0069 through 0127; see
in particular "Subsidiaries of the Registrant" at 0127)

Because it does not appear that the Engelhard subsidiaries
and affiliates listed therein transacted business with
Bayonne Barrel & Drum, Engelhard assumes that no further
information is required to be submitted at this time. If,
however, additional information is required, please notify
the undersigned.

e. If the Company is a successor to, or has been suc-
ceeded by, another company, identify such other com-
pany and provide the same information requested above
for the predecessor or successor company.

Response:

Engelhard Corporation and its subsidiaries are the succes-
sors to the business previously operated by Engelhard Min-
erals & Chemicals Corporation ("EMC") through its
Engelhard Industries Division and Minerals & Chemicals
Division. After approval by the shareholders of EMC,
Engelhard stock was distributed in 1981 as a spin-off to
the shareholders of EMC, and Engelhard became a separate,
publicly held corporation. Following the spin-off, EMC
changed its name to Phibro Corporation, engaged in a vari-
ety of reorganizations, and is now Salomon Inc. If addi-
tional information is required, please notify the
undersigned.

f. If the Company transacted business with Bayonne Bar-
rel & Drum in the name of an entity not disclosed
above, give the name of such entity and state its
relationship to the Company.
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Response:

Not applicable.

2. Company's Relationship to Bayonne Barrel & Drum
a. State whether the Company or any Company facility

transacted any business with Bayonne Barrel & Drum
for the disposal, treatment, or storage of any bar-
rels, drums, or other containers (hereinafter collec-
tively referred to as ·Containers·).

Response:

No.
Based on Engelhard's inquiry in response to this Informa-
tion Request, Engelhard has identified the following
matters:

(1) Engelhard appears to have sold empty 55-gallon
steel drums to Bayonne Barrel & Drum and, in separate and
unrelated transactions, also appears to have purchased
steel drums from that entity. (Documents Nos. 0001
through 0067)

(2) In addition, a one-page TRC summary provided to
Engelhard by EPA refers to two drums. (Document No. 0068)
Based on the limited information set forth on this data
sheet (reportedly taken from labels affixed to drums found
at the Bayonne Barrel & Drum Site), these two drums alleg-
edly originated at Engelhard's East Newark, New Jersey
plant and may have contained certain waste material at one
time. However, Engelhard has not identified information
indicating that it contracted with Bayonne Barrel & Drum
with regard to such waste material.

Item 7 of the definition section in the Information
Request states:

"(A) all terms not defined herein shall have
their ordinary meanings, unless such terms are
defined in CERCLA or RCRA, in which case the
statutory definitions apply."
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The terms "disposal", "treatment" and "storage" are each
defined by reference to RCRA. 42 U.S.C. §6901. Engelhard
submits that in accordance with these statutory defini-
tions, the above-described matters do not constitute
transacting business with Bayonne Barrel & Drum for the
disposal, treatment or storage of Containers.
If EPA requires further information in this regard, please
notify the undersigned.

(1) If so, describe the relationship (nature of ser-
vices rendered or products sold to the Company)
between the Company and Bayonne Barrel & Drum.

Response:

Not applicable.

(ii) Provide copies of any contracts or agreements
between the Company and Bayonne Barrel & Drum.

Response:
Not applicable.

(iii) For each such facility, state the nature of the
operations conducted at the facility, including
the time period in which the facility operated.

Response:

Not applicable.

(iv) For each such facility, state its name, address,
and current RCRA Identification Number.

Response:
Not applicable.
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b. In addition, if the Company transacted business with
Bayonne Barrel & Drum, provide the following informa-
tion for each transaction:!

(i) Identify the specific dates of each transaction.
Where an exact date cannot be provided for a
transaction, provide an approximation by month
and year.

Response:

Not applicable.

(ii) Identify the number of Containers that were the
subject of each such transaction.

Response:

Not applicable.

(iii) Generically describe each Container that was the
subject of each such transaction (example:
closedhead steel drums, etc.).

Response:

Not applicable.

(iv) Identify the intended purpose of each such
transaction.

Response:

Not applicable.

(v) State whether each Container that was the sub-
ject of the transaction contained any substance
at the time of the transaction.

1 Engelhard construes Question No. 2.b. to seek information
relating to transactions with Bayonne Barrel & Drum, if
any, for the disposal, treatment or storage of Containers.
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Response:
Not applicable.

As to each Container that contained any substance:

(l) Identify each such substance, including its
chemical content, physical state, quantity
by volume and weight, and other
characteristics.

Response:
Not applicable.

(2) Provide all written analyses that may have
been made for each such substance or which
may be in the custody or control of the
Company and all material safety data
sheets, if any, relating to each such
substance.

Response:

Not applicable.

(vi) If you contend that any such Container did not
contain any substance at the time of the trans-
action:
(I) State whether such Container had previously

been used by the Company to contain any
substance, and if so:

(a) Identify all substances previously
contained within such Container,
including its chemical content, physi-
cal state, and other characteristics.

Response:

Not applicable.
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(b) Provide as to such substances, all
written analyses that may have been
made for each such substance or which
may be in the custody or control of
the Company and all material safety
data sheets, if any, relating to each
such substance.

Response:

Not applicable.

(vii) Describe in detail any treatment of any Con-
tainer that may have been performed by or on
behalf of the Company prior to the time that the
Container was transferred from the Company,
including any process or procedure by which the
Container was emptied or cleaned.

Response:

Not applicable.

(viii) Provide copies of all documents relating in any
way to each transaction, including copies of
delivery receipts, invoices, or payment devices.

Response:

Not applicable.

(ix) Identify all persons who might have knowledge of
the transaction or who had any responsibility
regarding the transaction.

Response:

Not applicable.

(x) If you sent any Container by means of any third
party transporter, identify each such trans-
porter, including the name and address of such
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transporter, and identify in which of the trans-
actions such transporter acted.

Response:
Not applicable.

3. Identify any other person (~. individual, company, part-
nership, etc.) having knowledge of facts relating to the
questions which are the subject of this inquiry. For each
such person that you identify, provide the name, address,
and telephone number of that person, and the basis of your
belief that he or she has such knowledge. For past and
present employees, include their job title and a descrip-
tion of their responsibilities.

Response:
Refer to the response to Question No.4, below.

4. Identify each person consulted in responding to these
questions and correlate each person to the question on
which he or she was consulted.

Response:
Mr. Thomas S. Brown

Manager - Environmental Af'fairs
Corporate Environment, Health

& Safety
Engelhard Corporation
101 Wood Avenue
Iselin, NJ 08830
(908) 205-5000
Questions Nos. 1-7

* * *
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Ms. Sandra Bessaparis
Title During the Relevant Period:
Purchasing Agent - Engelhard

Industries, Metro Park

Current Bus. Add./Teleph. No.:
Engelhard/Clal
700 Blair Road
Carteret, NJ 07008
(908) 205-7413
Question No. 2

* * *
Mr. Al Krist
Title During the Relevant Period:
Supervisor - Petroprocess Department,

Engelhard Industries, Delancy Street

Current Bus. Add/Teleph. No.:
Engelhard Corporation
554 Engelhard Drive
Seneca, SC 29679
(803) 882-9841

* * *
Mr. Ed Molloy

Title During Relevant Period:
Production Manager - Petroprocess

Department, Engelhard Industries,
Delancy Street Plant

Current Bus. Add./Teleph. No.:
Engelhard Corporation
600 East McDowell Road
Jackson, MS 39204
(601) 948-3966
Question No. 2

* * *
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Mr. William Pinkasavage
Title During Relevant Period:
Production Manager - Petroprocess

Department, Engelhard Industries,
Delancy Street Plant

Current Bus. Add./Teleph. No.:
Engelhard Corporation
2655 U.S. Route 22 West
Union, NJ 07083
(908) 205-2700

Question No. 2

* * *
Mr. Frank Rock
Title During Relevant Period:
Security Manager - Engelhard Industries,

Delancy Street Plant
Mr. Rock, who is in retirement, has requested that any
efforts to contact him be conducted through
Mr. Thomas S. Brown.

Question No. 2

* * *
Mr. Edwin B. Fay
President
The Jet Pulverizer Company
1255 North Church Street
Moorestown, NJ 08057
(609) 235-5554
Question No. 2

* * *
5. Provide a list of all insurance policies and indemnifica-

tion agreements held or entered into by you that may
indemnify you against any liability that you may be found
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to have under CERCLA. Specify the insurer, type of pol-
icy, effective dates, and state per occurrence policy lim-
its for each policy. Copies of policies may be provided
in lieu of a narrative response. In response to this
request, please provide not only those policies and agree-
ments that are currently in effect, but also those in
effect since your company began sending Containers to the
Site ..

Response:
With respect to insurance policies, Engelhard construes
Question No. 5 to seek information relative to the finan-
cial ability of Engelhard to contribute to the cleanup of
the Site in the event Engelhard is subsequently identified
as a potentially responsible party in connection there-
with. In this regard, Engelhard submits the Engelhard
Corporation Form 10-K Annual Report pursuant to Section 13
or Section 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Commission
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1994. (Documents
Nos. 0069 through 0127) If additional information is
required, please notify the undersigned.
With respect to indemnification agreements, Engelhard has
not identified information responsive to Question No.5.

6. State whether there exists any agreement or contract
(other than an insurance policy) which may indemnify the
Company, present or past directors, officers or owners of
shares in the Company, for any liability that may result
under CERCLA. Provide a copy of any such agreement or
contract. Identify any agreement or contract that you are
unable to locate or obtain.

Response:
Refer to the response to Question No.5, above, as it per-
tains to indemnification agreements.

7. Supply any additional information or documents that may be
relevant or useful to identify other sources who disposed
of or transported Containers to the Site.
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Response:
Engelhard has not identified information responsive to
Question No.7.
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BAYONNE BARREL & DRUM
INFORMATION REQUEST
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The following is a summary of infonnation taken from label(s) affIxed to drums found at the
Bayonne Barrel & Drum site:

Name:
Address:

Englehard Corporation
1 West Central Avenue
East Newark, NJ 07029
Solvent Mixture Spent
1993
FOO5

Description:
UN/NACODE:
Waste Type:
Generator ID No.:
State l\tfanifest No.:
Manifested Drum Quantity:

NJD002141484
NJOOOOOOO

2

0068 TRC
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Bayonne Barrel .. Drum ~ny
150 Ra:;mondBlvd.
Newark,NJ 07105

LATTN: ;Mr. Sal 'Russo:manno

To cover the Sale of our Drums to Bayonne Barrel .&
Drum Company.

Inspection Report No. 15541 dated 2/9/82
Inspection Report No. 15678 dated 2/24/82
Inspection Report No. 15309 dated 3/4/82
Inspection Report No. 15719 dated 3/17/82
Inspection Report No. 15753 dated 3/24/82
Inspection Report No. 15729 dated 4/2/82

TOTAL

CREDIT AIC 554-00-192-0300

&ALES OF7ICES' SKOKIE.IL <lit HOUSTON. TIC. WASHINGTON, DC • SOUiHFIELD. 1.41.
ANAHEJM, CA • HAYWARO, CA .• AURORA. CANADA" MEXICO

I PAYMENT DUE

ALL ORDERS ARE SUBJECT TO ENGELHARD'S STANDARD TERMS AND
CONDITIONS WHICH ARE REPRODUCED ON THE REVERSE BIDE HEREOF.

A CHARGE WILL BE ASSESSED FOR EACH MONTH OR FRACTION THEREOF
THIS ACCOUNT IS OVERDUE.

EC-6721'

tlNIT PRJCl;:

~75
111
183
158
192
138

957

5 28 / 82
'40. /OA'" .,. ..

... SALES TAX 5

-sHIPPING CHARGE ..
lNSlJRANCE ..

PAY LAST AMOUNT $
.-

1,914.00

1,914.00

0041
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l/lltle,!.e--d jf\, ./:11 Ot "I'I-y {It wid propeHy. lhu t ...-ery ~H'I<:" lo la: perfotmtd hc-H:undu dUll 1>( Hlb-Jfd -\0 .11 ,he r<fm~ ,j;/llJ ~or".lIitQm of (he Uniform D(Jmnlj~ SlU;-IbI8,U of L~"lnl M:1 terr!'lll) Ir'l.V.ntfClPl'1 F1lt.&IH
C'uwf,gH011 111 dft-et Of"<lllc d.lI: hcrtof. If [hu, IS 4 ud or r~l"k~fttf d'Hpm-ern o{.I~IIJ'l [hi" ~ppln:.j:bk mQlo~ ,uun ,,-1~udl'41,t)n or l.f,H ,f th!. H.r mOtor ",HIl:'I $nlpment

Sh!pp..::r h~r'CbY ..,-(((Ifte'$.ftlt( 11('II hmlliu w,t!\ ~U tl'oc ~Clml In-lil I..-on."ihon~ of the u,J ",.11 or L,J;r .... Int.l""dm, lho«> -0-" Ihe t'lh'- I I"ot"a01 IoCt fonh. In fhl" dHi,ff .. 'llon -::If lu,1f ....I'l,~~ j;C""n-l'.llh-r
HIl\"PQfllllon 011/'\11 U11f!trlUH .nd Ihl: ued ltrml H\d ';:OtH,),I{IOn,. H( h-ertby JI:,;n:cd to br [hI: lJ'Ilflpott ,n"j 6'-\{:P1cd 101 hWH<I"H dn.d l'll'l- "H~l.tfl.1-

Consigned ro _
(MAtj or streel lodr(,:5:5 oj -con'SlKfH:e - For pm POH"-S of IiO~IiIcallOn only"!

Destination ---,~..__,__.State "1" • .1" County . Delivery Address
(* To be rilled in onty when shipper de:SoHe:~ and gOHlTitl1g 1';f1fh provuj-c for deJwery lh~re;~,}

ROLl~y _

'Weighl
ISul:) , or Coel

(';If or Vehicle 'nitj~l<

Cia"
or Rate

No.
No.

Pee"age

195

H.M.; Kind of P8c~ag8. Oetcflption of Articles, Special
Markt, and Exceptions

Check
Column )vn'Lr '" 'i.C."<J-II ' .11 """'"~.,, •. ,, 'fl" .•• rl""

~"I v' '.oJ '_~;j: ,I '10,_ HI,IJt,'.'tI! " t" 1:>< Jc ".""'~" '"
1rlt ''''''\'i~~f ..."ho"l '~.o-"f", -Q1'l ,II~ ."n.~",n.Hr
~rl~ .(:111.... .,.'. ,./'I,ll ....... ,"~ 1....\\<;1 ... , ..... alf:On,t",

r ...~ ,I"I-CI lfi.l! 110' "'l~( d-~h~rt .. "r ~""< '\JI.p .
........., .. ""-0"" p-.~ru-l',''lI ...( [tt\&:l'I( ~"<J: iil,nn.\. II"".
1,,1 ,hHf~'
t ....t..llIIAfl:O t/l<,Ul.-SrjJ;ll~ (Jot,,"

II ,I'I,(,C~ Hi' lei' tu pupa'" "'t,lt 0)1 .I ...... p to ... "
. T;;I ,,~ r'I/"P~Ir'i··

MARKS:

SPECIAL
~NSTRUCTIOr-fS lh,('H"1li i

I"! "Qo~I, ... p"q:>lpt'rM',,, ;>1 \""~ ,'l-"Mf\ vI' H'\f'
:IHQ-P"l"J liifh:l,t!-t(l 'II"H-on

---+::::.:.:.:,::.:::..:.:.=+----------------,---.--+-----l-----~+_--....j

"H"il fH(,'VIII'T

Tn.. ill tD cartify mlt trlClllboVlll-oamCld m.vt"r',ls ar" prop.rly clawfitKl,

,,,
d""''-l'l'''l'''' ""'''''' hld.l:I ......,.ll.C~O...jr 'I" ~'1-_"It

PHIU,.lJ1

~ribCld, plOCk"'lJ'Kl. marklld ilnd laballld and ata in proper condilon ~or

CIJS10rTIer Ordor No.

0007

Shipper, Per _" Aaent Per

TIERRA-B-006093



BAYONNE BARREL & DRUM CO.

, r

55 FRC NIB 18/20 ORIGINAL

55 FRC NIB 18 GA. CUT DOWN

S5 FRC NIB 18/20 CUT DOWN

55 F RC W/B 18·18/20 GA.

55 FRC B/B/R.

55 FRC 17HI

55 BT HII' 18 GA.

5S BT HII' 18120

----------------[-----

Dm UNLOArD 3 TY TOTAL J 5"
INSPECTOR :l1:: ~
STARTED :i. ...30.
FlNISHEO Z oM S 5 N~ 28004



11111 .] 1'1 n a

N 260!2.7
ENGELHARD MINERALS & CHEMICALS CORPORATION

ENGELHARD INDUSTRIES DIVISION
Straight 8i11 of lading-Short Form

Customer Pick Up
(Namo of Car",,) elf","', No

May 12, 80

Engelhard Industries
429 Delancy Street
BuIlding 30
Newark New Jersey!

It 19 From
lM P;IO~.n., aet.cnb-<d below. In .apptrent sood ord,e(, fll~'e~! &1- !I()lta {-co.l'\I-erHs HH~ \.OIHj.ll£lll of ~'or.ltn" o( ;P4.. k~"(,II,I-nIt"o ....rol m,oIf'-ofd. ~D/1.'l-I'l\ttl "~Q d-oe:HI.fI(""-H mQn.H-l":d b-tl-Co_ .... to.d'l u,<l d!'''ct !t~.of .....ord <.HI.-tr
b-elt\.l unOHH<Xl4 jhrOu;f;hol.ll lhli ';Qt'l!t.i.Cl .1:10inn:,'Hn. In)' p-t:UO/1. or .:oqmrl[lOfl ,n POH<:;HJD-I'\ ur 111..: p,o:Ptrl~ vnd·n Ih .. \-tlfllr""~tl.,ql.tc~~ il,l ~JHY 10 'IS UIlJ.oj;lpli ...~ oj dt"IIHT)' '1-; 1..l,C! dC'HI-nH.or ~{on 10 {-Oul,,_ Q'~H'r
""-IX lO \S.ellvrl 1-0 .11l\otMU F.;lfTlU Oll th( fOUU to uid (h·-stlf\~~I(J"" II \I mVhl.llly .... rtf-a, H 1() t':h'h ~..rit("r ~(.lt ....., ~f\r oJ{ \.114 prDp-tllt o ....e' )1ll)1' ;\t'Iy pOtllon of UIQ roylf ID d-nlln~ilot> JM"" ~c: nch 'PHI' 'I In", 11(n(

IMut.:ued I;' ,ll <:)r UIY of "\-,nd- prQpc:rty. nul (""I"Cry J-enIC;(' (0 bot J'!(:r(orm(:d h!"H~(jdt! ~~~Il at H.lt)JotLl to ~II 'I'>e (~fm, ..nJ ,onJli,on-1 of '''or Urliioun 01'10<"1"1('1.1,,__SlqlIO\B,ll of l~,j.nl Iotl ICI:h ill.", u-1'\,1t>lm f'~;(hl
Cliud,CJlIllti Jrt tHee; Ofl lrtC' allt htrfO'. It Ihl' 11 I f;lll! or ql!·..,.tn It\l!;HI'lU'tl or.' ~f In {he ~ppll.: ..bh; mQIOI " ..HIt"! d.l~\.;flull<J-~ '-H (~rlrr ,f Inn I'.a mOIQf (,uno IhlprrltM

Shlp,po I'!ntby vuLIfIt'1 lhu I'u' ii hmlllu ""1I11~Jl lhe !(fmi ifl-O; ..'ona,II(HH of Ihl;" U-llJ hili o( l,flJ!-nl. II1-1..h.Hj,'I'lJl'hO'\o( ot", (h" hh~ ihc'rcof "'I fonh I" It\t' d~H;J.d\,Or'1- 6/ Hi,11 ... 1\, .. 11JO''-'(''ri'\~H\('
1f1f',.p<:HIIl(IO!\ of 11'\.:1 -s.il:PM(:fl( In<.\ Ih( ~I-d Inml HId C-onthtlOrn U'l! hor!>y -IIl1f(:.ecl (0 hy (fH 1-htppcr ,n'l.! "'-~~j::lIC'd! tDr hllll<;.('l! F1Q hi' ,j.'\.\I[lH

Consigned to
(MjI;l! or Slre.el a-dclre$5- of (onSI~n(e-~ for purposes of 1101 1«JHOn only

Destination--=J:..::e::.:r:-s::::...:::e:..ly_C=i:..::t;.cy,.....",.:-:-:'7State~~_County Delivery Address
{* To be fined Iii only wh-en shipper desucs .and governmg tHlffs proy~de fOt dc:.II\"e-r~· ~hefe.H.J ~--------------

BayonnD Barrel & Drum Co.

Route ~

Delivering or Vehicle Initials No
'Weight

(Sub. or Cor,l
Cla.s

Or Rate
Check

Column ,,,/'-1 •. '" ~""-\J~ ,I { ;".;1." .. ., ..... , .('1/",,""
'-" "-.1,,,& ,j ,"" v,,",'" -" ,NJ~I",·"...I"

,' .. ,,, .....·or,,.-t ...<11'.0", " . .:0",,,, :H' ,n •• """"":"1l1
1"-•• .l''1-'" II," ,,,".ill .. ~ II ,'1';< ' "1,,..... , ,I l''- '''' "I

!,,~ ,~" •.-, 11'1111f'-Dj ~'h l .:it :,. • ..,. r,lf '-""I ",""po

en.", "".thO"'1 I't'I'1"'I! >Ji I" .~I\' ."" ,II '1'11'q(, ~P'"
'"r __""'l'<
lo"i...llllAIlD 1"'1)~5Tl<jt'" 0....

If ,~n ••, .. < '0 ~r P"~~"'" .,-"" Q •• umlJ !lU(
f:)!:>.I'"'tll'aod'

fL"''''<ll
10 _"0'10 ''I lI"'P.W>'t'W'", 01

P'O~IIT "'<t.L"~ .. ,, "~'f~"

....JI .. ' .. <l • ..t>"'"

r(, )
,t"'t"f~"~'f ~.r\' 1,~"" .. l<dl"O"~r'r-.f ....;o) .. ~

l'/ffu41

_"bod, ,....... ,m,,'" on' ,... ,.. on' '" In,'n, .. 'nndl'nn 'n' 1---1 I I
tl"lInq:>ortetion lIICeO,dlng to Ule ,epplicable ",gul.nons of the 08'pertn'l8f1t c==

per

Th .. flbfl boxes u'UJd 10c thn st'l'pment conform to thlll 1:p«"cd,,:auon$ s-c{ lonh In ~n.e:box maktf't «nd'CiH!~ U"Iert'o.f\. ~<l .11 oO"ter re,

Q""ltt~n-h of ;", C01"isOhdl-le-d CllI!udll:»t,on

/)/" Anent. Per -----
TIERRA-B-006095
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BAYONNE BARREL & DRUM CO.
!JSL/O
9974TEL. (AREA 201l ~89·01 10

EA YKGTE PROCESS • RAYMOND BLVD. 8< ROUTE 1 NEWARK, N. J. 07105

DELiVER TO

No.
CUSTOMER S;lHE-

l\- 'v~ O~ L~~ )r

N~~,[J\

_<[0 I DEPT.

DESCRIPTION

~ 55 GAL. F.R.C. DRUMS, RECONDITIONED, LINED Lt /l-£' . PAINTED
QUANTITY

GAL. F.R.C. DRUMS, RECONDITIONED, LINED

DRUMS, RECONDITIONED, H. F.I 2x2,

~ ._-%:---=---------------------.:-:-=;-;r-~.

u~:;.r....~----------------
~TOTAL RECEiVED BY SIGN AND RETUIUI

DRI~E!R RECORD
NAME

...RR. CUST.OUT CH'K'O. BYLEFT LANT

WAiT TIME CUST.
_______-·l~--------

'TRACTOR N·O.,...--......-----;--+::tL......~-:-::------1 ARR. PL-AN-T---- IN CH'K'D. BY





(y lJ (p /JJ
No. 10122



T£L~EA 20ll ~89'OlI0

BAtKOTE PROCESS

DRUM CO.. No.BAYONNE BARREL &
RAYMOND BLVD, 8r ROUTE 1 NEWARK, N, J, 07105

CUSTOMER DELIVER TO

Y~l'--J '), G'- L, Ir,n:? _ ! ~I

[\1 ~)('.N ),~ C~r--\f}GLI) {)~I') L<.,

N G-v0 It- r-- tA. .rJ ~ Q /Y / L c/

5~
4- \.41 '0 't.': L~~ )-,.----

-
-~- ry -I YOU" REO. NO.

- - G L 7U g-
- -

3~~ ~ZO
yOUR ORO-E;R NO.

QuANTTT'Y SIZE TYPE DESCRIPTION RING l...JN- COLOR UNiT PRICE AMOUNT
""e>

~:; rJ\f) -Mt) ~)~ ~JiSfJhJ~>L--

BU''''T ,

5-{' O'lJ\- ","Ii) k-
-:J'%::::>""f-

C vJ.. I re:.- 1;p:::::.j-U l:;;;:::::....d -v

C»~n ~ ,.)JC (, - ~ is"" - jr- ~fO 1755",(

(1L( "\ ~lJ "'"

~~

.v,.~~.~..~

f\ rr', \b '\s M~
il ,~~.\~Ji\ou

~. , 1,1. \1-

-- ~

--- j ~OA-duJ-b 7~({;.;-t ._-l~---~--

i

TOTAL -r RECEIVEO BY

LEFT PLANT

WAIT TIME CU9T.

OUT CH'K·O. at ARR, CUST.

AFlR. PLANT IN CH'K'O. BY



TEL. (AREA 201) ~89'OllO BAYONNE No.

)(

AMOUNT

YOUR OROit;:R .NO,

==t===T=-'~.-==-===;=====;======
LIN-

ING
RING COLOR UNIT PRICE

RECEiVED BY

OUT CH'K'D, BY MiI't. CUST.

IN CWK'O. BY WAIT TIME CUST,



'~-i..-t·· ',: "~l :~~Jj{:~.~,
i-- .' ,It,. "

,.._pntr tic ibed 'below In ~ •• rtt'" IOOolIi 0I4.er (~C(;1t on n.oted (CO.fll-e.tsana 'l.CI-.dLlloOn.( LOI'UUIIS of Pkl.iolU lJnkno~l'I. moltl.e-d ,-on:sl,-ntd IP<! <l'=llln~d U lndlutef! be-l-o ... whM.-I\ I.4Id '''In.u(thewD-l''\1 ~f' ,.,

H!lAI' \Ift1111tt_1)OoIII {hrou,ahouc thlS coftcrad .I, meltunt: Iny ,.corson or- ..otpOnltQ-n In 'OUC5.$lon 1)( tI'..~ prope-ny undc-r tl"t.: ..OhIU .. O ... r~es Ie "ury 10 tiS lJiu:j.1 pl...i.. r of ddl1 ..~ty .1 :Ir..llodt1ulll"lltlO",", if 0" 1(1 mUlr: o~her ..
~ 10 4il:1n'ft to .noH",e.r arncr ol't the. rQ[J1c_IO Siud duh.n.hon.. It LI mUlLlaHy "rrced u 10 e.ach .....tt~r or III Vol'".l1y uf ~KI propc'fly O'H't ~II Dr Iny pof1l0n oC I.ud rOult 10 ."llInlllon. a.:nd IS 1C) each luny.lt ,,"y tune."
lLtefClced IfI all or lny" of 'Uld ,(<)~ny. that C'fuy .. ryu:c to b~ ~r(ormcl hc-rc:undct sh,dl be sutlle ...l to all th(' ram'll an'l! ..On.rJlltOns. or Ihe UnIform D()rnC'5-IlI.SIr.lllht 1111 of lad,", 'lot~ {orlh~ I) In Un.form Ftc-w,ht
o..tII=IflCJluo. l.J\ dhr;::'I. an [he ~II-c l\crcot It thlS IS I r:ul er r.tl~-""'I:H'r Ihl,..,c-nt ()r,(~1 ~ "'~ Ip,",lllo.~b~ mOlor lo..HfH.r d..n.url ...~tnJn Ot [ul{f If lllls n.ll mOlor ....ur~i Ih.IOPrrltftl

Shlp~:r h-ert.y coertlfllC:s (h:;t~ hoe ... holTcUu.r With. dl the term .. ~n4 ,-ond1tlQn~ of tt.!: LlLJ bodl 01 1..<1101 Inl.lu4lH'I. thoK- on Ih~ bhk. Ihotf-eOr lei IOlln 1ft Ihe d.lUI(".lItO"" -or ur.tr _l'u .. 1\ 'O'l'-(fns. U.<
Uln..&pOlUUO. g( UUI iI"Il.ment ,n. the: ... l1li h:rml.nd. -e:omhlaonl IU hc-ur.y I.V-e-t. 10 ,"y Ih~ 1ht"~( •• -d- ....... o:pic:d for hll1lSC'l( olnl1 hll UJI..&:ru. • ~ ...~

r
'.... ----:

-j

'Welghl
(Sub. or Cor.!

Car or Vehicle Initials
r"

No,
No. ':' H"M·S5-·1Kind of P.c~ag,. DeSCriptIon of ArtIcles, Special

nckages -_ .: _,';- _" Marks, and Exceptions
Check

COlumn .... ~l'l',lll;l S.'1.tN~ 11,1 t.~.h."h.J ~"iI'l ... ~"1or
'1,,11 .......... -"'& ,I illL~ "".,.1"10<:'" • I., "" 'Cli~-rlr..l I ••
lIb cunulJ_C- .'1 ......[ .of "'" .., Ill-r I,.UI'I"4_
ll'l-l' ''''''~.''''''tf iJ'I.aLl ~"n th 1 oI •• ,nl IUUJlIC'ftl

Tk .U~"'f ",,",U a.( "' t .0:10 ..."..., .r (.",~,.,...
m"",~ .. 'Ih....,~ .....,.m"lIC • .r 'nll.l'IC ~ftOI aU t ....... I •••
l..ldl.lr..n...
EM.t:.llIAltO JNOUSUllS OIV

Clan
or Rate

'. -" .- ...... j<. \,
dMcribed, PK't-ved, marktd and t.beled and ar.~in proper eonditon-for "

t~~:r~~--::;-::'-::::'r~~Ift~"l~;I~~:::._-._r.."1'(. __

-H("'~__an •• ~,...r ... " ..-n.ic:_ ......... k_ .~
-T.H ",...".101-:_, -.. ~~ -

-... :-..;',- ~~
., -I> _~~~;_ ••

, °r::-
" ......

.'-

S"ECtAL
INSTRUCTIONS l~ ~f.C'I''''"- S .......III"

I•• ",.'" ill. ~C."'''_:10( .1 l:!lot .tt.i. ........... ,~r,.._""" -llnal'!Holl "'~11 '" -

I'rr S .....
1 TIW 111.... 1'11.,...Mft .... '-_IoI-IIIE" _ilL)' ...... .lI"'~
,.. ....... rlj.1 -,I,'

.... CIlr..tII""A.v-a .......

r - -.. "i ...

tr8ntfPOl'wtion IICCOf'dlrogto 'm" appl~" .-gUI~Orol of the Oepanm,nt -. .'->
/of TninSporllltion p --'-

Customer Order No.

1.. - ..,I Engelhard Order No.

·If the snl-Pft't.nt mo~ wtwHn two ports by .. Clrn., by wwtar tt1. LIW rRqvllit Uut the ft III ot lldlo, sIwIU s"lle wnelht"( rl n ··'.ICfl-t'r50Of stuPPI'r osW't:tght.· ...
NOTE-Whln th. r.ab n, dlo-nd,nl{ an valu•• ship pets In nqulft'd to IUIR sptclhcally In wnltn; lhe agrted or dKlurd valu. of the property.

Th. t9rttd 0< dtel .... d .. Iu. 01111. prop.rty "h.,.by 1lllC,',t.lly .tll.d by th. ohljlptr t~ bo .01 "<00<1"'9 -

, .

.:? 11\. frtu. bo.~ u~ 'IX UUI sh~~t c:oa'Ot'm to the spe-ellteauOCl1. set 'ol'"th In lhe bO_ meker's: ceulfLa:ut lhrnoon
quu.l1'Wnu 0' th. Consotdlt'ld. Fre.ht Cl.esIc'teltJot".. : ""

.-:- ..... "\

TIERRA-B-006102
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-: ';-...·Wt!lOht --
_J~ub;. or Cor.!.,No.

P.cl<.ge
... ~....

,>"~'hj Iu- !itdoO,l" 1 Itl l 1)"'11"'''' ",I ~r.,h....."lor
110,11 1 1.4."'1'111 ,I IIII~ IIII'III-Cn-1 I> 10> ... """'''' .. 1011"
I ",,"'1 ......,'1" "'111-011'1 '( .. Que""" ... ''''I" .. , ..............
In. ,.""1"''' ,".11 "In. ,to.., (",IWow,o/'I'I .1~lt""""'1

"-h .. ~.""" -.hall "'.1 "h."''I" IIch .. 'I"l'1' .f Lll.,\ Val ....
1ftC"" ·.... 1'10. .. 1 ",n~r"" _f fu·...t11.1L<,j .U \Ql'\cr 1.1, .. -
(u I c 1'I ••• t ~
t,..(,.L LH ... "O ,""DIJ51altS C1'V

,- -~.........

Class Check·,or Rate' •Column

~_ r·

'1""_ .... ---

If ~h.-t."lo It'" 1_"41; "1""'111. "'Ill~" ..a .... ., Mt~.
-r"' ..tP't,. .... -

--.

tl- ....
.C.CI"~ i
I llI .ft J'-t •• "",,,"t .L \1'1. ~I\a'I- .. t; u./l I"'"

" '1' .'l'IoC...... h......

'-u ~ J _
I "Th.. t~ .... l"'n: h .. " 1..~_ .. Ior ... c'\. ... t, Ln... i ....... t,..."....,

0003
,- -----,.

TIERRA-B-006104
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, No.~· ~Kind of.Pec~aglt.'Descrlpllon of Articles, Special
P.ck.Qes~~: '~~ .';:, "~';:li-'?-Merks, and E Kceptlons •

'Welght
(Sub. or Cor.l

Car or Vehicle InitIals
Class

Of Rate

./
('l;' L ,~

"'-.,..

,,~ !. )
"

No

'I J
-'

~
t t f

/-: }..r:.;;_:J; _

Check
Column '\."~Ifd t "ic ....... J "f (."d., .. "",.f "IJ'I ...~"'"

•• 11 u-' I..,J ,f Ihl'\. VI,.,,,~..... 1 'k 4clo.c,N ell
l.h \ •• n .. e .... 1,. 1 ' .... ","" 'looc ,...., ..... "_
t ~.n , ...... 1i\.. 10 n ll\c 1 110 " .Io ... n.~.I.

T~c ,I"~r ,...,.11 •• t "' •• " th"" ' il't"IJ\,p"
",.nl "'ll'l"'" "r.'~"I.1 In",'U./hI .IIIOl\c:.I •••
f ",I ....1'I.UIC ~

E. ... Ll1l1,&,-.O l-NDUSTKflS DIY

J( ,1\.';I...t.a t.~ .. 'c........• ',le., 101.."" Il.ttt
-t •• ~'tt,...~

" '.

'.,,' .
. - t I.

. :

...., ,.."" I
, ,ty HI ~1.1l'''.' .1 ll\c chlof"l;cl"''11 fl'k-
..... pc:fl,. .. .......-~ Mrt' ....

.-- l"

.": -.

", -',t"".r (".n'I.~ .._
.. --'" -;- 1"'i"!:

_.> ."

-•• );.'"7.........:- •• :~..:fft ......#'""'". _':.- ...... ....: •• -:...~ ... .,. .. ':- ;-_

Thill. to eerttfy ,"at thellbove-n.mecl m~r;'lsue properly clnlified,
'tr S ..
.t"'t .'C0 ... ...,.,. POe n.t._le'll:ln_"tr 11'I.... fI_ ..'
'f~C."1IlII1 r-+ _. ~ ...

trWllpOrllItian ~dlnV to the ~lic"'l. regulations af the D~ertm.nt~ l......... _ .. "l - , p

(l'I'oIl:UA.hll'h.rtll ,.

- _':_--:~~';..

"

-'
" }-",

-5-."11"/1 .... ~'1 WI I.... _ ...... " ..... ~ ~.lItf""
I,ll .r U.loIIII ..""......N I'll' l"'t ~nlt,."..u· , __

~ ........ UT(" ....... ...- ""- , ... r,

~~:~ 1 Engelh~rd Order No... .
- " .

'II rhl oh,!,""nr mQ'tWtbltw"n two poru by I Clrnlt by .... ft, tlll 1_ '"qUII"' th.lme Bill of L.dmg oh.1I ,t'll wneth .. 11.. ··c.",." or sIllpp«, .... ,~hl ",
~.. ' -, "':,.; NOT~~I':' -mI. rltI is dlp.endlnt on nlua, l1'upp,rs olin "QUlled to ltll.e SP«lflCllLy In wntJo9 the .a9rHd or decur!d "i'ah,~.eot the propenV .-

T~ll9r"<1 ?' d.c~6t !.Iul ~oltIJl !,~oPlny" hl.-by opIC,llc.lly 'tUld by tne oil 'I'l'l< l~ bl nOl I.teed"ng ... ,~_ ..

/'·~t:;,t~.;/~1~:·:-· ,. per" ; 0011
0.,,

...... .-. '''Y .......""C: zs;::. ...... ."s(. ,r- .. ~- '- " r

.f.~~ ;,.T'he,:'...b f.!.?? lit.." uud for thr$ sJ'llpnlll-n, conform to the 'I~C'IILc:at:lons M~fo,th I'" U... box ~ker'l crftlflC::J~~_ thereon. ~
~'quH*""'nti of the CO'nIohc:hted Fre"hr Clalllfle.lIon. 1 ~ • • ,' ... ~' ."1,..... .

",., .....- ~-

TIERRA-B-006106
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UNIFORM STRAIGHT BILL OF LADING
THIS SHIPPING ORDER mUll be 1•• lbly l\1l.d In, In Ink, In Ind. lib/

..-to'nld by lb. A.enl.

EAYQtLJtU~ ]5ARPec .' Company "Agln,J'N
RECE! VE" JubJtct to the cIa5'lfir::.arilJ .;and urlfh In eff'Cct on the tla1e of ISSue of thlJ ShIPPII\1 Order" ..::r 2 1S Jl f,· ~,~!~D:e2Bbf~nJ I~;r~~~.r!! :"'0' I;'nL (:~.LI~d~oLlon~lr~P.nll·(:Y..1..~!;.!-J.1.'f.~<onl(.~1?d:"l~~d.: In(lIt.l~d

rotrlP.n1 Uh. word rompanr beln, undorntooc.) Ihrou;lhQul Ihh ronlracl II meaAln. Iny pl'rlon or rorpofall{}1'1 In pontlllol1 o( Iii. proPl'rl)' llndu Iht (on.tr-e:t) Ilr ... to tarry tQ;o.t\,
dtllnrr It .. ld dtlUlruUon It on III own rOld Or h. own wattr line, o-Iher\'\ll'l. to d-elher It) Inothlr -curler on (hi J"(ILUt10 11111deUlnaUo./'l It Is mutually 11fC'~d. .. l{l .. eh,r~rr\.
at Illet prOptrl, .oUt III or uy portlOI1 ror uld roul. to dl.UlnUlon "nd _. to uf'h PU1)' U any Om. 'nterelled In atl or any ot .. iLl 1'Jr'Ol)erly tll ..t ew....ry s(:nlrt! t(} 1.1. prrlDrmtd hioU
lubJtCl ~o ill lh. rondlilo-n, not ProhlbU.d h, II"". Mohe:thu prln~.d or wrlll.n. herein cOhUlned. Inrludln. Ihe Cl)m.lltions M bAck t1~r~O'r. whlth llre heroe:tJ.,)' al,neN to by th~ .~lpp.rto,. hlmuH and h1, ulllnt , , \.,l'r

Consigned to

DestInatIon

-:BA Y OM N E: RA((~ 6 l (J~
rJ£\..Uj)~ K.-J N~T· State of

Route

Qelivering- C~rfler Clr II1Itial

C ollilly uf

, ;t
Cn!' No "-----~~----- ,

~1,It,)UI III SecllOn 7ul C:londj. ~~,
I!HIU I' Ilill .t,ljJfne ....1 1110 he

--~-~- dt'llvucd 1(, the cOn.'lirH:t "nth
nul rnUlJor:l-f: IIn Hu: ColJnl'lnl..l1'.
Ihe ~on:lII.-nu( Ihlll IIKn 111t:
lullHwlnl( ~1:llenal'lt .... "

Tlir .eUflrr Ih\t1 nt,l make"
IJdl'f'c:rr (II tnls .~,pmcnl lI'lth-
IILJI .'.1.~menl of IrcllII:ll1 In-d all ,,,;
ttlho;-( 1.:1w'ul dl.l.rl"U ......'

, "
--~~--~--~' "

S~ln..tll~t of C"nuI"or t ';0'

I r ('hUIU .Irr III he: I.r'!'pul~. .. .::;
wriH l.H UoImv h-er-c, To b( ...~
l"q'''ld !:\'I

)~~

NO
PACKAGES • WEIGHT

(Subl.d 10Carr.elton)
CHECI(

COLUMN
OESCRI~TION OF ARTICLES, SPEC IAL MARKS AND EXCEmONS CLASS

0( RA IE

----+---------------------~.- ---~------~----------

---~---~-----.'
A"tnl ilf { .1111" _ ..

_. r';J,. ,
./ ~ !'rr_ _r~.~ ~
~ ITlli 11.t\.IoI ....,c ,....., ... ,Io"" .. IOC',I,l"" 1-:.

_ '=::J:;.~I~<'~~~~~~I~ t + • ~·-Ir~~m~~;-L~~,~-;~ PlHH l>} • curler 1111l--'lltr t IWd,llt ( JI.HI{~S AdViiLtIC-c,~," j ~
N.l. -Wllr·ro lht' ru. II ,ltIJtt\.tJt"Ui on nllJ' lh. l'r'~lltlty

The olllruJ or 11~c:lilr~J \I:lh.lC of thc propcrly., to lJy 'l>cC:lflcally state',l hy the ,JlLppt..r to be 1101 'ClIl.Cc:dlrlll f _ _ ~,.:r __ _ ~~c ~

7Je (#r~ ,L&/?i~-Ki::--Shi~er,P~-r---Ay:-;;;ii-~~:~~6;;~~~~~i~:~~~-:,~~~~~)~6:~g~®
Permanent postoffice address of shipper Z6# <:: /. 2. /9//1-")11/ ff,L!, /\..;,'J, 01()9.J '. :.,;i~

5Ll..L__ ~ .~_
-----J----- ~ ~ ~ __

-----+-------------_ .._-_._------

---+----------------_._ .._-- HC'(('lv("t! $. _
I·' .1I1'1y \01 '1I-l'1'1Io~"I~nr 01 11lc
\. h,oIrjo(l ~ -ult tht 1J'uj'l;'1> ,Ir
~l rd-rd liO:""11



55 fRC,N/B 18/20 ORIGINAL

55 FRC NIB 18 GA, CUT DOWN

55 fRC NIB 18/20 CUT DOWN

55 FRC \'lIB 18·18/20 GA

55 FRC B/B/R,

55 FRCUH/17E

" I

1..- J: '

SS B T H/F 18120

5S 8T H/F ~N

SS BT 2 " 2/38

55 8T CUT QUT.ALL

731 2~~

- ' TOTAL
DAH UlilOADE£1' !---
INSPECTOR ~~,~

STAR TED ~.L-'--r;""-'r'frTJ/---IoL--1'7'-

\\ J!. I 3 C' N~

..~-".....' ...·'_tOA.:g;;: -. -~~!k.;t~'4b~?
INSP tell ON j{Et-'O RT

ADDRESS

16

CD DRUM TYPE

2. 55 GI FRC W/B BfD

GR. I qTY UNIT P'RICE AMOUNT

5SGI FRC~

55 GI FRC BfBfR

4 55 GI FHC 17H

55 GI FRC JUNK
-0.---4----- .~ ~

30 GI FRC

t------+-- ----- _

t~------ . , _

--+---------------+------+------+----~----
9

10

-i-------- -. _

11 55 GI BT I1F UNL'NO

12. 55 GI 8T HF LINED

--+-------------+-------- -'- -----
13 55 GI 8T HF Cfa

14 55 GI BT 2X21/c

1 S 55GI BT JUNK

-0.---4-------------

30 GI BT

.----j,----------- -- - -----

I 7

1 e

I"

TIERRA-B-006109



ADDRESS

co
DRUM TYP'E.:'

5~ G, F~C'~

5;; GI FR:: .... '8 a/O

~ 55 G' FRC BIBIR

.. 55 GI FRC TlH

• 55 GI FRCJUNK

• ~Gl FRC

7

•
~

10

" . 55 GI BT HF UNL'ND

12 5:,01 B- f-JF LINED

13 S:: GI aT i-JF C/O,. ~, -:;1 ;:1 : ..:? I 'C

15 .- \~, f, Y..JN·.

" 3: C"r f-

T 7

II

I'

BAYONNE BARREL AND DRUM CO.

0015
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-v _...,.-..,_ (K.II .. "'''' odOr ol ".· .. o-r .. _ ""'-U~""" '''''' )
ConsIgned to ".S)A V·Ol.J.N.E tsAtr.iK t: L _.{1, _.. . _ .
DestlDation ..· --N t..\..uA..1: ..K/__..N..!...r.,__. _.._ State oL_ .. __ Count) of.._ _ ..

Route __ _.._ __ __ __._ _ _ _ _ _ .

DelIvering- C1!.rrier. _ _ .
NO

"AC.t.A£:i U

.....Car InitiaL_ _._ ..__ Car No

s.;"..o1..tl~'..J~ ...
~ ti n:", ... ~~ ... I. a..,
~1IDa.e~.-n ........... ~-~--.,.....
~ ~ ........n ae--- t.J.r
~ •• ~c....,

T1N carT'W"'!" .llluPi -.:JII -....It:r
~ .. tho ""- '""'---------il-----=---------:--------------------+--=------+- __-lf- -1 :" ...~ ~ -..n

:.
."
;

~·..r;

I' ~tl'" &T'!' lo Lot ~c
~1c- or ........, ~ -r .. tat~ ...

.R.~~ly~ .1 _
"-.'Q'OI"ln~I"1.i\.c-
dLtTJI:" Dr' ~~,-&
.cnhrd ~h.I"I'l·

"
r·v r...

r1'. alD ...... .-..,. • __ l........-r.-j. ,...,.- .....-Id,
• H , .... h,o.,,,,, -' .. bo",,_ ....0 PO""' or • ~tn., "'" U>o 1>111Of( 10...... _'I ............ It b eun.,. ... _ ••• Ul1l:-· ( nor.l .... ~d •• nc'd

'hLr. --'W'h.rh' UK" nu 1J arpea*'n'L M'i raklc n .rf: f'IIQ\,I:lr.:1 -ta .... l .. ~:IA.(:.,J17 ,La rrt~. tht *Cn1" ., &aodl.re..t 'ulup .t thor ""'0C'l'\J'

Th •• ~...,d o. t\..:.4r~ ruu, of 'h, P'ope"1, u b, .~fu:.>Jl, .ta,~ b, 'he oh>pP<""10 ~ ",>1 u ...«1.... $. 00.. • pn ... _.... . ,

.... ~-~

0016
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Consigned to__. __EAy'pN,yr _SA/P-fFL_~o

Destination --.AI~.w_M..K /-.AI'--.r; _ ._._.State of __._ _
Route . _.__ _.

County of

_.~.~._ ..•••••.. -. __ ._ .••• _ •••.• _••... _.r •••. __ • __~_ •• ~_. __ •••..••••••••. •

De1J\'ering- Carner __ .-.-----._ _ _._Car Ininal __ .._ _ ......... Car No..

..- -~ ~
-;

= ~

• wtlGKT CLASS CIUCI(
(s9a,-,ooC......"I ... j 0< UT! COIU",,",

h{

.. H lh-t dl I pl'T'Oft"I I l'W'CI'l-U brt .... r.-. CIOr'la tr'J I QT1'1.jOr bJ "".lf1" U'It' la- ,""l,ll"1 t.b.at tb4 b.:11 at 1.4J.a. &.baU I'l.aW whed ... r h 11 C' .. m~r, w tb1'1l"PC1'1 _diaL
N.tA: -""-I'»011!~ U''1f' ~h lJ. uepftdftlt ... "-.JUt ,nU?Dcn &R" t't"Q,,~r-" ~ It&~ 1P«'.....a...:aJlr u::II .... rtltal the .. (~ ., d4ol:'u;r-S ... Ive of tl'N gr('-gf'~'tJ.

fh. l.g-e-ed of ei.("Cl.an~d ......Iue: ot the -propert,. l!J, b~t:'t>y ~et:die~H,. su~e.j t-,. ['Or s.b..J-PPa' to b- nOt e.%«~Hl. S c- l(CT

s.~ too 5-; i_ ,,,,, -...&-
~ If I~, ~.O-~ ~. , ... l'w
~T"C'n"lI\OtlM~~~.
ca,n~0"II1""~
lflw ~rocr .. It i:JC"t ~
~"""""C'1.]1~

T"'tw (:Lt'T"Irf 1\ DOt .......

~ 01 ''''I ,~ -n.'"~ ~~t" !~l ,.& ..y
lJII~ •• f-..I~

R"'rl .. d ~$ _
t •• PPlT •• .,.,-rp'~l c:;oI 'he'
c:~ t~~,ri~
o.cn ........ h.c7-rvw..

r~_. _
T .... \olea." .... ""'" Il,....,_~.,.·'....._~_I...

0017
TIERRA-B-006112



or In Carbon. and

No.
10 the elan,healion. and ,anlf' In ell eel on 'he da,e of

At .mevr?cSrQ.JY.'~ d..V; .01-. 9: 19..82 From ...kN.t/([l.H-1.d ..:
'lh. prop"ly d., ...rlb.ct b.low ~n .p,p-at"l lood ord.r. nt_pl., nolad (('onlenll Ind ('oneUllon DC e(joCtnll 0-' p,c.I;~1 unkno..-.n). roUE,

~~~:rn:l\(~~~~a~~.:;,;:rl~n:?,.I~~~~d:~'~~~.Jl1;~Urt~o~~~h~"I~n~~~~~~:h:~y·~~~n~uJ~:II~::'~~ :~~~~~~o~:~~~:r I:nP,\l:h.~ro""uilll'''''L.''-'II~'~d-ld!""'''~ln
or lilt! prUPlUl, £lour lit or Iny ponlon cor IIld rouh 10, dulln,lIan .nd .. (0 net! plrly Il In)' t1m. Iru.reUld In .11 or an)' oi uld p
lubJ.-ct 10 I~I the ool1dLllolll nOI pro-nlblolilld by lIw .J. hilllh., prlnt~ o-r wr1tten, h.uln conlalned. Indudln, th, CGn",UHOnJ on bide her
fot nlm .. H Ind hLI lu11rU

.- c
~ 0
~ c
a ~" ..z.;
~U

.Q ~
~.Q~;.~~;;;~;';;~~~~~================================~;=;;':=.;==.==
~Lt
~1ln....
~ a
~J

<t: •
[j.Q

~i

I.ScL/tV ~,-v:. .... .,; .
••Uli.d &. 1mUt&l.(j b.lo whh:h .. 10..1
U IIIIr... lo cur)' .0 III U"'lJI~ lJlac. or

Ilreed, II 10 .un ~arrhr or .11 .If tn)'
nJn lo b. pillr(orm.d h.r.UTldu iIIl",lI bill

Ilfled to b, the thltlP.r Ind loI:c.pt.d

Conslgned to

Qesttnatlon

Route

EAyONN'C eM,ftfL (!o

.iV~WM)(,; ./VI 40

( "-,1or p'lJrpOIU or nooncillon onl, )

Stateor

Delivering' Carrier Car Initial
NO

PACKAGes

R«clved $ --..,.--..,.
10 alJ'P~r In p-rrpa)'mrn1 uS .11('
I"hiif.n (In it..: I'tuJ)l"rIJ .10(
~("f1l>rd herrHn

'DeSCRIPflON Of ARTICles: SPECIAL MARKS AND eXCePTIONS Su-ItJlcl tll Sct;:110h 1'U' cundl
uunl" I' ,hi, Ih,pmc.,.\ 1. 'u hot
t1C'hvt"rotd 'uthe conl~.nu .. hh
" .... fC'cuuru- un .he cunllenur.
lhe con ..,,,n~T ." ..a III" thr
1...lIl1wlnl .t.lcrncpt,

Thr null:, .hnll ""I ml-kt
.1chvoffY o-f .Ilh .hl'PmC'nl wIth.
I'Hlt p •• mfnl 0-1 rrrlJl;t-lI Ind III
IOlliu llw(uf (1\.'1'1:'.

sn--.£" 2>A'LIa'S
dSQ

! If char.rl HI' 10 Lc: prr"I .. I,
wrllC' or ..um ... hu~, 'ToOht
Puplld ••

rcr _
ITh .. .t~",.luu, h..r.- ••• nn.... ,I, ..
"II') III .. "'"''''''1\1 1"'flll.1 I

• H th •• lllpffimL nl...vel b.lwun t"".g ~lorl. b.J, l curlrr Dr Wil-rr th. law TlQulru that the bill or illllni Ih.ll .tllt ~,hrLhlr Il ~. ' curl
Hth -Whrr' ltlt till I.. ul:fituUenl on vllut ..hlpp." Jrl retlulrld to Il.loll Ip.clll.tlJI,. In \\ rlLlnr IlI1 alilrHd or uedu.li \

The a,ire(l! or decluec.1 volue of lh~ properly U hereby ,pcclnl;:.;::llly luted '-.Iy lhe shipper to \.Je not ellccclhna $

P If I WIllht' ( II.qu:, Advil.llccd
plopfrlr

...!

DE VeT /i?;&E~/~R~hipper, Per ;:;AI ....~;~~~A~~B~
Permanent postpffice address of shIpper l?Dt!1/ .2/L . ./3i/...-:tfyJPA

Pdl .......N T",a;"\.HIPPINO ~
EoliJ~L.AOINO ~

oE~ ....



55 BT H/F 18 GA,

55 8T H/F 18120

55 8T H/F 4N

558T2.2/38

55 8T AGIT.

55 8T CUT OUT·ALL

TOTAL

N~ 7746

IV'f . . . INSPECTioN- RE ORT, ;.~~;;,~- .' . -,:"
~_l P~RCHJ'S~ ~ RECONDITIONED D~REE'f:RO~~ ;;z;:ra~ D~X~

ADDRESS!L . No: ~_
CO DRUM TYPO:

1 55 GI FRC NIB BIO

z 55 GI FRC WIB BIO

3 55 GI FRC BIBIR

.. 55 Gl FRC 17H

& .55 GI FRCJUNK

6 30 GI FRC

7

,
9

10

11 55 GI BT HF UNL'ND

lZ 55 Gl BT HF LINED

13 55 GI BT HF C/O

t4 55 GI BT 2X2 IIC

lIS 55 GI BT JUNK

III 30 Gl BT

17

t'

19

(d~/-~
O~"'O:R a
, Id/J7/'

l -

1[

GR. I QTV' UNIT ~RICE ..... MOUNT

/,I It,

INS".CTII:D DV

TIERRA-B-006114



INSPECTION REPORT , nl'XJ PURCHASEQ.... , ~~ RECONDITIONED L-.J

RE":-O.FRO~", 77 # +-- OATE/ /
(---r7 q/~a. '4:<~4-/4 -¥5>'';;9 Z-

ADDRESS d No.1b041
eel ORUM TV"E '! G".1 QT.... IUNIT ""ICE r AMOUNT

• SSG> 'RCNIBB'O rJ7?"j..:?'OOpso,oo
z 55 Gl FAC W/8 BIO ~

~155 GIFRC BIBIR I 1 I
0& 55GLFRC17H I r-r--
5 SSGI FACJUNK ',',I~S-lfI77Tr -=::J .30 GI FRC

7 il I r
_1-1 .[ I r--

9 III I r
.oJ I I r--

-'I I ">"G' aT ...,c c.:'-L,') 'J
1

r r
~J :.o~: ST ~~ ~I"-l' J [,_:=======

I] I =~G J ::. -;- ~ = c. :) I ,I
I~ i :~~ ~- =, ,r ) J-, --..;r~", ~
j:::';:'/ I t--=-4'''-----'~. -
~I d ..[~,-

.8! I I ==r,~~
~J J' l,-=---_
![~/~~~1-- - ~m '~l;;?00
~Tv ()I'.... "·.... 113l"I2iol~5;~OO

1- \

~ BAYONNE BARREL AND DRUM CO.

0020
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l':";IFORM STRAIGHT BILL OF LADING
TH:S SHIPPl~G. ORO£.R l:l:lll,Ut b'! I.,.ul ... f;1I~. il'L LA In .. , In 'a •• il~l. P.acd. or L. Cart.Oft •• d

SAId::/;J?Y '1t1:f3/t¥L ,.-g Company

ConsIgned tO~._.n.:&fyP.~!(€._...~t(~ __~Ig_ ._mn._ .. ' . < __}Uj' :.'''''' .-'" ~ ~~I~: ~ ..U"'<ou.-=u )

Destmation .--- '-fk:w.Ay--;;~--?..m4<-# _.__.State oL._.m_uu~_-----.-..CouDtr oL..·.u
Route ~ ~ __-.- - -.~__ _--:I. - ---.-.. - - -.- -.-.-.- -.. -.~-.--~-------.-----~-.~-- -----.- .. ~- - -~-- ._. .

....~--.-

Dellvering Carrier Car Io.i tiil Car No

,-- .

-----_ .. --_.-- ..- -_.~.~_.......... ..... - ••••• rr_ ••••• .... _-.~-.._-_ .... _----._--~--.-- .._- --".- " -- - ~ .~~~.......... ---
/ ~O_ ~lmOH Of I.ITIC1U, 51£<:IA1 M.U.U .tHO EXCf..Pn~//

• Wf.ICHT Cl..<I.U CH~
P'ACUoGU (Sulo~ '0C""--.....l .. 1AT( COll..lOtN Sv"'lI:C'I l. Sa:\JI01II i........._

no-.. • ttill. ~ ~I 1a ...
/

J~1J S£'9.A/ ( ~ c:eo :::p;, ~~t'Jt.lw~C9C'C"~I~

S/£U ~.«J ..... f~ •• t ... CCO~.... '''''""'1- ..... ..,. '..
PS~ \

f'Olll.9,ftIl' "'lI~t

/ n~ ca""""=,,,," ...... 11 IiIIQIt .... n~'.I.!'n..t"'~I ....t"
--.; ... ,....,...1 01 ~l 1.4;an

.. ...'7" ./' ell Jo!.ff La .. f.~ ...............

- ------ -'- ----.--
~~-c-..,.......

tr~~ ... rC1Oborl""'l"~

, ......... lor till ...... 'IHft -"'T. ~
~111'-
Ret;e-t __C-d S
Ie ." ..1,- I" P'f~,..,.~t of tho;
cl'u;rl'r'l Oft ,... ""'~~ ....
~hrJ lo.n_L

/J. /. ~ Aft'I'\'.(:r...tIoo;T

Nb ~~ /0'/-1 ~ r ~..
ITl\oo.'~ •• r"'_""'-'-'~....,,'~ "_'U_ .,....... .J.I

. tr~~;,':.~\;c;~~~ur:;;...I~~n=~ ::-~.~~':h1b:p(~It":nt~l'~~;;~~;ir:I·~~~~~ifIJ..j~tl~l~uU..S;a':.=~;~l~!I..r:~lI~: ~ .~~~Pt.. t ha~l5 ..\d ....iln<c-d

fhl:' .~ or rlC"C1.a.rM. , .. 11,l.e 01 tee ~rOpC'n' ., b-cT«:by s~etn':'.oIlly .,t.:lu~d by the WtIPper lO hoe :r.::ot ("xee-·:"cLce: $ 1'e'!" --

7/£ rg-i3WIHx :(,J. :z: .JL.,
_ShIp r f..~.:'.l_ AQEN" h(US" OETACH AND RETAIN TH'S &HI~~ING

OROE: AND IGNTH OF LACING

Permanent postoffice address of shIpper.

0021
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PURCHASED
R EC 0 FROM. P; _.,;;/

r- _-?'7 cd..F

. .... . ~
co DRuM "'V"I: l OR tQTY "I UNIT rRIC!! .......OUNT

• 55 GI. FAC NIB 81:) I 11/ ]g(Oo,~~e.?dn)
r 55 GI. FRC W/6 810

~
~ 55 Gl. FRC 8/8fA

~ 56 GI FRC 17H

• 65 GL FRC JUNK

• ;)) Gl. FRC

!

,

,
I

I'

L 1

0023
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ADDRESS..
CD DRUM TYPET31--BAYONNE 84RREL & DRUM CO.

55 GI FRC NIB B/O .;;. tJVUNLOADING INSPECTION
~ 55 GI FRC W/B B/O

55 GI FRC BI8/RQTY.

55 F-RC NIB 18 GA. ORIGINAL
4 55 GI FRCI7H

55 FRC N/8 18/20 ORIGINAL
55 GI FRCJUNK

6 30 Gl FRC

55 IH H/F 18/20

55 8T H/F ~N

55 IH 2 " 2/38

55 BT AGIT.

55 ST CUT OUT·ALL

~r" .."

WIlWIMII...... ~ ... lM_ ... IMl'":':*~I. ..... , J.lNI '-11.- ,,,.. ....... _ ....... iWo.,... __ ...JW ... _~lIIII.~
INSPECTION REPORT

9

•

--+-----------------
10

II 55 GI 8T HF UNL 'NO
--- ~--- ~-~~ __ r __ •

-- -----_._-

I ~ 55 GI 8T HF LINED

-----
13 55 GI [IT HF CIO

~------- - ..

14 55 GI 8T 2X2 lie
-- --- --- ----------

, 5 55 GI aT JUNK

-----~- -----------

7~- ---_1..;-----------------
, 6 30 GI BT

17

, 8

f------------ ._-

19

CARRIER TOT O,",VM.

_/50 c22-_~_!j20
TIERRA-B-006119
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o
UNIFORMSntAIGHT BILL OF LADING
TtUSoSHlfPING ~DER mutt b, IOllbly 61l.d In, In Ink, In Ind.lIbl. Pencil, or In Carbon, and

retalnod by tho A,ont.
'F~ "FA'E L Company Agonl'. No

Shipp"'. No

Stale uf

Car InItial

Coullty uf

Car No

dol
D~SCItI'T10N Of ARTICleS, SP~CjAL MARKS AND EXC~'TIONS

------ ----~~ -------

---- -- --------------~--.~---~---

-------1---------------------------- --~-----.,.-----
~\t;'

----- -------------------~-- -~--~----------

5I-d.)I.C! In $cellun 7ul (:lJndl

IIiHl:l-, If Ihlt ,hlpomchl II ILl he

41d • .-r-rtd ~1I Ihe- c;()n'l,n~t with
11'\.11 r'nuuUC Ilil It'lc -c;unillmlr,
thC' cOO"llnm :Ioh.1I ,llIIn Ihe
loIJII'IWln,; .. 1~ICfTIC'l1(

Tt, .. cuna ,hlll PI,I nll.lo:l:
Ilcl"'("1'1 uf (hu ..lllpmll'nl 'WIll-.
Hut 1'.ltmC:111 of "tlllhl and .. II
ulhn l;awful clur,o;,

Lf ehoUl'!" ':Ul'" t., l,e I'r<pH,I •
.... 1I1~ ur illl't,~ hue To he
1'f1I,,Ild ..

I<rc<'vrd $ _
lu .~l,l, III Pt<'1)1 ~mC'lIl uf II"
~hHK(l un the 1'1'''IHtI~ ,j.:
\CT,I,orJ her!"..,

®
-- -------;----------------~TIERRA-B-006120

I'u -~ ~----
11~.r .loI"'"~'( he' .. ,_10,,, ... 1.11116::~_~!.~.~...."..M 1,"1 ,l j ~

{ IliH~l-S A<JVallCcd.



Company

L _.r ~~ __ . /,T .. -..5 - '1 19<!.. from ....,:.::_'.:.~:,:."J-;·:('!)_/~.vp' ~ ~l/-;; (1/.J 0.;/5'0
_ ..." """''''"' "",- I. 'r~ • ..."t '""" ~ n.,.". .. - ......... ,......... -"'''- 01 _, .. " of ........ "".--.., ... "' .. """'p'4 '"~ .... " .... .., In'''-..."........ ''',n ..,"
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1.wIJI .. '" aH Ull p.s

:; .• . -- /-i". '"..... ?E<:.. ro
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. I! Carrier .. ~. __ .-. ~---_.
- -.- _-- _ .veri n '.- .. ..... --. -0_-. _. ..~.~.....~.~._ .._- ...- ...-.._ ..- .. .... -- ..~.-._.......... __ ...- - .. •..•.•.• ·'·0. -- .- ... .. .._ ..- ..

NO
O'f.SalmON Of .unClf3. SPf<:!JU 1lU.U$ AND EXCEnlONS • WEICHT cus.s CIolK:lI:

s.~JIf"C" , ....s..:.:-. ... '1Q/ CD'1odJ,.

-XACU

(SVI> .... to CON'9cHoft) - lATE COlU~
'--" 1~~L.lIr..,;.hc\'-G/J/~ jj",q,Ue# / ~ ~"""VJ~'- 4tit'rot'r't"lll! i.lk ~~ .. ~10_

}

.J7E'£t:
'1l;I1 ~~ ... 1'-'1Il'«l--"--,,,

t;/
'.... <.,... ...... .... jf _.n ...r.r .....,"- ".J.I~

./ ... 0 ...... .....11 ~, .......//',~

dc..... _, .. ,htlll tltrpmoNU .-rd __

n;n N'....at Qi f-r-nril. 1--.1 .In"' .... ... f.1 ..........
~1.rtolC~- .

11 rlo.ar-a~ .. a.~ rv L.r rw ..... .J_..,..,. ". 1I.I._p ~ ''T• ...- .P..~.c .•
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:

ReC'eIY~ $
IQ _.,.1 ... In pr'C"Pol1m.t'l'H ~ ol.<

,
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'\"-t'", 1>1' { ~.l- .. -
{
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Car Imtial
Car No

"'oa" .." mo' ........ m .... ""'" 0, • ' .. n .. 07 -.W ",. 14_ ut, , ,,. >.Ill co: .. au • ."." .......... I.tlor It 10 <ani.,.."' ....._, I "".b<.j
-Whr .. '.~ "' .. " .....,.,,_. '"' •• ,". '"0.,." ... ""u!nd " 'DWla",U '" m'ln. ,n••• .- ., d"''',rd ""'« ".. 0_"''''
~d 0' <!c<:~,<'<l ,~Iu. "f lhe proper-r, " hrrebJ ~&c.ll, .ur«i b, u.. ,b.l'po- '0 ~ no, "~,,,uDIf S. ...per _

Sh' P z.. -=..:.:' / ..... AG£NT IoCU5TOETACH "''''0 l'lnAIN THIS .H'~~I"'GIpper, er-." ..~ ----.... O"lC£"lANO MUST $1(;N TH£O~IGIN"'l.lIll.l. O~ l.AOING
,- ~ - ,/ . " - -+ .-

-.../--:..~)} -/ /.~~;:-N-'y (':..<.7.';/,,/ ./~ .. /_, . - ....•.A...J .... _

.-- --. / - / / .... /- - /..:. . .r-c:/ I'Z' p-Crr'';7'ti'' "c,'

nent postoffice address of shipper
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__ ~_'T_
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'BAYONNE~RREL & DRUM CO,

UNLOADING INSPECT/ON

55 FRa NIB 18 GA, CU T DOWN

55 fRC NIB 18/20 CUT DOWN

55 FR~'W/B 18·18/20 GA.

55 fRC O/Il/R,

55 FR.C IlH/17E

30 FRC

55 BT H/F 18 GA,

55 Il T H/F 18120

55 OT /ifF 41'

55 BT 2 " 2138

55 oT AGIT.

55 OT CUT OUT.ALL

- 1 11 3 j

5 r AR Tf 0 ~:'-'-"'<-----UJ..L...t'../

ADDRESS

CD DRUM TVrE

55 GI File N/8 8/0

2. 55 GI FRC W/8 B/O

55 GI FRC B/B/R

4 55 Gl FRC 17H

5 55 GI FRCJUNK

30 GI FRC

AMOUNT

]

~---~--------~-------~-~ ~----
Ii 30 GI 8T

-

~~{-I-~----~._- ----~I------------~
17

--1----------~----~- ---------.-----

'8
~-+~~------~----- ---------

- TIERRA-B-006122



; GI 10RC 1'.188'0

GI 1ORCW/8B'O

GI f=RC BIBIA

GI FAC 17H

GI FRCJUNI<

GI FRC

i ET HF UNL'ND

" 6T HF LlN~D

BT Hr C'O

Sf 2X: j,e

3T JI.. '~K

;:;"f

( BAYONNE BARREL AND DRUM CO~·

0028

TIERRA-B-006123



AI/J7,,(J;r% 'sfrp;;/~/l?:;:il;'9:;;~"F';o'~"$iE(;J;;;».~:". iff II~f";;J
the pro:p-.r.,. d"cflbed btlow. In IPtur.l"i~ ~<l ord.r nCl:pt a. nOled lronlcnti Ind corh:llUon or eonlenll (It P.oC.k.I~;II unknown), mlrktd wlullned, I.nd dUltncd •• lrJ:rltlJ bIloW', .h~dl ulll
wmplnr (lh. word tornplOr b.ln( unt.lt ..~:: thr-ouChQLlt 1hll- ron'net ... mranlrll &oj 'Penon or cIHPor.U(lr'l 11"1poouttllon o( Ihe Drop-eny ullder tll. C'onlrll,'l) :IIlre" ~o urn' to 114 IJIliUI! phu Of
d.U"f~ It nllJ d•• tin.tlon. IJ on Itl own rOld In lu own "".ltr 110. o~hll:nvllt 10-u.lInr 10 ulolhn curler on lh. rout. to .. lei dc-tUn.lIon It ~1 In'l.lIlH,lIy U,C'to'J .. ill to nth U·rthr or .11 .or any
or ... Id prl)p<uy ."ir III or .11,. po-rU.on. pC uJd rou~. lO- dlulln.Uon •• nd .. 10 (11th part)' at. any tlm. Inl ..re~le-d In .11 or Iny or ... Id prop.rly thal her)" .tnle. 10 La Perrormld h.uun!:1u ,hln bl
.ub'tcl to III ~h. condlllQl'l' nat prohlbU,d br II"' •• hlther pr~nltd or wrllhn, htr.ln tOfllll"w. InrhHJlul Lh. umdlUQrLt on blck heu()l which .u herclJo)" IU-eetl 10 by Ih •• hlppu Ind ace.~H.lI
lor hlm .. n Ind :hit •••• ,n.

~hlll)r Itrul .. dLtrr •• of eonll,n-ee-----}i'or purllOu. of no~l.nClnOfl ool,. )

ConsIgned to

DestlnatlOlI Coulltyof

Route

O~hverlllg Carrier Car Inilial
NO

'ACKAGES I~~~,..-~~~~~~~~~~~_

(2./0
• WflGHT

(S,vbl.,IIQCorr.,',
CLASS CHECK

or RATE COLUMN
~~-

Car No

DESCIlIHION Of ARTICLES, SPECIAL MARKS AND fXCEPTIONS

-~---l-------------- ---~-----I-~----I~~-I
II o;;:hulu ."-0; III L.. I,r",.) •• ,l,

___ ---~_ _ .....'lle ur .u.m,", hnc, ' Tu he
Pi"I,Jlld ..

--- -- ---- -- ----~ ~ ---~-- - --- -_.

---------------~~==-~--._-..---~~-

SuhJu,' III ~ecl\on '<.il (:un,l,
1I,1n~ II I~I\' Ihl$lnH'1I1 U III he
rld ...rtttJ h' Ih~ c:on,.Wllee wlLtl

Hul rn .....ufI(: "1\ 111~ CUll~llrour,
lilt Cllnlll'Ulf ..h,11 "In 1hc
1ull"wlnK '!Jlcm .."l

The ~IIHlcf .~'o1U rHol maLec
,lcllvcry 01 Itll:ll fhll'r't'Iotlil ",llh
m.ll 111~mcn' 01 IruJl:ht .n<l ,II
ollila IJowlul chu ....

HC(CI'w'~d $ ~ __
._1 ""'Idy In lJfel' .. yrncnl ,A II'e
d,.q(n on 'he IJr"pc(ll d-f

_'iol'ed I... , .."n
I

I
I\.~tnl v'!{I\. hl~ r

1'0 '~_~~_ ~
,Thr -I1.".tuft r.rlt I'~""'" k.lJ;-l"

~~: ~~"~~L !.',w .. 101 !._~



....... County of._._ .

T Carrier c N-~..--_._--- ._-- ......... ... ._-_ ... _._ .._-_ ..._ ......... ~.-_.__ .- .....- ...... ar 0 ............._. -. --- -._----- ..~._. -_.-- -- .......

D£SCalnlON Of .uncus. sn<:'AL ~ AND UCUTIOHS
• wttOHT

I-C:~!($vbI«' _0 c=-"""'" CHKK
COLUMN

s.,,~ U!I ~~ ,. cw,....
/(a:xJ

r--.. If ,h", .-.~. w """

5.) t?,4/ 5Te,l: ~"'..J ~
"~~t.llIl.c~ .. ·r.

1
0011 ,~ CI~ I~ <--J"T"DF,.. '--0-" .......,PoP .....

I 7L/fl!?;> / f<ll ...... , ... IoUU·"··~1
T1'l'I' 'CSfT'I~ ~n .... ftUi.

6dI"'.7 .- ,1Il.~ ,.;..~ ...... , ••
0-.1 IMr-.t 01 f""'l"lll p .....

~ • .raJ; .marl""-

.
~tU'O""1!'.fC~ •

}f~4~'o'br,...-q>:, .........:n'. c.'" ~ ~. IQ be
Pr'l'?l",.(. ....

c R"" ••• e<l S
1. "POty t" ,rfW,ll.T'ft"tC"ll1 gj. 11....
tha.rc" 00

,.., ""-", ,I.
"<T''''-:-4h-n'~

0.V V /63.-( !( "IHI nt'..(~"''''-

t< r... .
,l"'l'... 'l-'C'III._," ......"'" """"'_ ........

uU' '\.n" ~tr~ t'b..aE n,C bill ot La41D1' I4IU 'l .... wn.t1'a8:r II 1.1
.. IJ , ..... _1 _",-10.1 ~

'l"'l. ala,.n bt0___.. t ... &->e-"I b:r • c:arTU"r 0:, _Utt MIIfT1.'I"'"lOf loEUt'PC'T I W.1.nL'.., ,h, rat • " .u:poirClJ.O\ on -rthJ. ,:UtlQ4-" art rlt'Qlnl"'ld '" &::Uf' 'P«~~l:'.U.J' In It'nu:n.. 'ho &1rr-r4 .f oecu.r. l h.a.l"'~tS .....d ...·~nc-C'd

r r\~fed ,-,woe ~f tbe ~r09C'ty u bcn:"oY rp~C:1I1ully .utC'd 'or lh~ ,b.tppc:r to be not CX~e-e-dIC. S
...... 'l'tlvt '" lJ>O _roQ4'n7

- ?<T •••

~ ~1 'n ..771..y
- ..

Shipp P. ... AGENT Io4US;'_

~~ viEMk,e..· ..=>
r ORDER NO/-" OETACH AND "E'TA1N TNI. "HI~~ING

NT

,t postoffice address of shipper .

.'.
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ADDRESS

ORO'" TV"E I G~' QTY lUNIT ~~ICI: 1 AMCHJNT
, I I

5: GI FRC NIS 6.'0

z. SSGr FRCWIBBIQ

T3 55 Gl aT HF c/o

0031
TIERRA-B-006126



" ,

55 FRC H/B 18/20 ORIGIHAL

55 FRC H/B 18 GA, CUT DOWN

55 FRC HI B 18/20 CU T DOWH

~5 FRC W/B 18·18/20 GA,

55 FRC B/B/R,

tc ** .... ." ........... nd"!' t=t hr. t'J.!±

(>R , QTY UNITPA'CE

,
J

!
I ~ ./ '.

'55 FRC 17H/17E

30 FRC

55 BT H/F 18 GA.

55 BT H/F 18120

55 BT H/F ~H

55 B T :< X 2/38

55 8T AGIT.

55 IH CUT OUT.ALL

9

10

11 55 GI 6T HF UNL'ND

Il 55 GI 6T HF LINED

13 55 GI 6T HF C/O

___.~O!.~~_-

14 55 GI 6T 2X2 lIC

CD

55 GI FRC N/B 8/0

55 GI FRC W/B 13/0

55 GI FRC B/U/R

4 55 GI FRC 17H

55 GI FRCJUNK

, 30 GI FRC

15 55 GI 8T JUNK

I. 30 GI 8T
1------.- -.----

._------ .--~ .. - --------

, 7

--+------- ---
18

19

• TIERRA-B-006127
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ORM ~TRAIGHT BILL OF" LADING
(pe;N~ ORDER .. ~.t b. i••,b),. Jill." '''- ,. 101<.... ' ..... IU,'. P ..... I. 0< I. Catbo .., ....' / ~'n...~ by u, •... .,·f'" '/-L :J[) '.Jvh Ir'r..":.· E f\.../c.c-

Company

ilX;I.J~It;:_UJjJr:,i(~L.(' Q:.( -:_.=--::_:-:~===.~".:'~:")
---.---- ..~---.- ..--- -.. ··.. ··-- .._- - State Of.. ·•····· .. _· .. - .:..... _COUnty of._ _ ..

.......- - _ _ - - - _-- __ _--

tlOn .._

- --- ~ •• _- •• -.-.- _. ···----- .... 4 ••• •••••••• __ • •

s..b1'ftt I.s.n~ 101 ar.:d...
t ...... 'l~ ...... l~ ...... "-b.-
~ .. flL.rc.~~~
uqlr~ .. ,."..~~.

rlLr "--f"l'Iat" tiuln .... 0.-
f~., .. ftMi~

~Q"",,"- Wull "'ICII __ b
dd,"'ery 01 ~ Ut~ WTt'"
t'>V1 ~~ 01 fhs .... , ........ ~UIl'''~.~~

R~ •• \Ofil L- _
I. :l'tlJ,. ~~.I aI o.r
d'L.aJ,n I"'" poI'"QOorn 'l- ~"<n..... """-

Doo<o, b ,,*nt ", .,.,,, br '''rr 'bt Lo .. ' ,~. 'bu , , "'''' •• 0' ,.,_" *"11:1.'
"." I• ..."."" ..." on "J.. '01."." ... ,..,., .... Ie ..... t. ,- .....~ ,. OrrulD' tb ... , _ "I •• of '" '"00'''''

[ . -.la. of lb. P'"" ...,y~\<T.by 'P=l5.~Jly ",,«1 b.. tb •• b.pp.,. '0 b. 001 '"oz«1J"~ S .'«
".,.._-------_.In,. .., ,..........."""-'~

''''1 ' MTT-.l.\. I

- - .

0034
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~URCHASED RECONDITIONED LJ~ /"'\

~~C D
FRO~ /'.// J\.. (k/: ~ ~TE0'". _~c::.-: ;.- fa./' ' \. :t-f+2l-::-':'.~2 ..1 7'''';-*~'b:b

ADDRESS f/ No~1S'751
co DRUM TY~'!: GR I QTY U"'ItT ~RtCE AMOUNT

1 55 GI FRC N:S BiO /9~ AfOO 35-7': cro
~ 55 GI FAC W/B S'r)

:I 55 GJ FRC 8/S/R

• 55 GI FRC 17H

• 55 GI FRCJUNK ..:38 /.IV' ~
& J(J GI. FRC

7 ' ~e?'L- { glr::~~.J
I

•
9

10

11 55 GI BT HF UNL"NO

1z 55 GI ST HF LINED

13 55 GI BT HF Cra
I

r \\'. 55 Cl BT ::>::21'C \ =-:
, 5 '== C' 2T J':..Ir-;',

u 30 (;1 E'T

17 .
1 •

,,/
Y1C1i~~a. ~c;-iA 7J/!L.~~

:/v po

=-c7ER Y5~"CTr:D aT !AD\U TOT. O_UM ..~1<T';:{3O
"'- \

(
BAYONNE BARREL AND DRUM Co'.

_..--_~ _ .. ---;--- . --- - ~--

0035
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BAYONNE-BARREL & DRUM CO.

UNLOADING INSPECTION

... ~--

o ~URCHASED ... L.1. RECONDITIONED
~. REC·Y;/RO.~ -,,~t7..1f/l~~\ (L

'/A h-;-L;J 3/;1\~~_2.
ADDRESS -0 No~15753 _

DRUM TYPE GR I QTY UN"PRICE AMOUNTCD

1 55 GI FnC NIB BID /9~ !6,00 3cf~ tY1J
2 55 GI FRC W/B BID -,
J 55 Gl FRC BIBIR

• 55 GI FRC 17H

~. 55 GI FRCJUNK 38 NT ~
,

30 GI FRC

7 I

~ ~~ r y/~/~-J
" ,

•
9

10

~-
, I 55 GI 6T HF UNL'ND

12 55 GI BT HF LINED

1J 55 GI BT HF C/O

\,J-\rSI. 55 GI BT 2X2 I/C

15 55 GI [n JUNK

--~----~ -- ----------
1 , 30 GJ 8T

-~- ------~ ---~----- ---
17

-------~ --- -- ---~ -~-- -~

I'
---. ------- ~--_._._~---

, 9

6HC1ff~~ 7J~'./ ~ 12. ./ ~c"A/? ~./ U'"/v ....
(/".e:crWD ay /'D b • v TOT o,..u.u.

~~y

'C/'"..
::<'30---

" \ - TIERRA-B-

QTY.

55 fRC H/B lB/20 ORIGIHJ.L

55 f RC HI 6 18120 CUT DOWN

(' sa
11/ ,
/

., I

55 fRCt-IiB 18 GA. CUT DOWH

55 f RC,W/B 16-16/20 GA.

55 FRC B/6/R,

55 FRI= 17H/17E

S5 6T H/f 16 GA.

55 £ITH/f 16120

55 8T H/f ~N

55BT2x2/38

55 BT CUT OUT.ALL

TOTAL

v

//)

I N~ 1 1 448
006131



U~-':IFORM STRAIGHT SILL OF LADING
THlj SHtP'PJ"lG OR.DE..Jt lbu.1 •• !WIl',:, !i,I...., 'n. I:a Lot., r'Q 2.... hb ... PIt.cll or I. C .. rben.. .~ti S"IP-.p.~. No

r-.-t.I •• tL.....b..r ,hi. A,cltnL

£if.~·_~'r ,-"S:rtj'·r~ ... Company ",... ",,-,No

3A Yo.v#'e ~..,.p.t= ~ 5 jConslgne:d to . _ " . . ._ _ _.____ .. __. _ . ._.

DestJnatioD __~~e~ Y~.~p ..4/~ .._. .State of.._ . "' __.__.__ .. _County of_ .

Route: _.._ ~~~~~_.~ ~ __.._... __::_.. -.. ----.. ------- .... -.--.. -.-.-------__... '.' ... __. _..... _ .. .. _~

Car InItial C~r No
Delivenng- urne. -- ... _. ....._._._- -~~----.-_._--.- .__ .- ..... ~-._- .... - ............ ~_..-..__ .._- ..__ .-..

eo ___ •••• _ .... - - -- .. ..._-~._-"'0_
OESoalmOH Of .un<: tn, sncw Ill.UQ .l,ND EXCEPTIONS ·WfIOHT Cl.A!.S CHKJC

Sothl'":l 1" ~ 1.1 ~ ...
~A.CUGES

ls.-locr .. 01 UTE COW...,..
'-=-" '" ,....... Oo'nor'-. ~ ... .,

~ SS- t;'4£/ ~.¢J 7000 p<-
dC"i .. ~,. l.....~-1""W'l' 'W"'lV\o-S~ ... t~O'all-o.r:~

'M '--'-' ...." ~ '...;.Ilr .. .,_
1C':l,.~/3B d5~ ~~;aJun -.. -:n

I "'"''''''':I''"]oofl~~ __ 11
OOIIII ... ~oIl.n:,~[lI .. &n..... _r/ow;f ~'CIL

~r~.,fCe-...,o.C"'O'"

If cr.r"JM 'U"T t. lor ~ .. J
W'F"'Itlr ~ ""~.loI.~ -T • ..
PT'I"pol" -

~Ive<l $
10 .. .,.11' I~ ""'~L.rw-c: .. t ... ,~U, I~ j. (lla~n ~ IN ?r~. ,~

~ I. I "'<'1'"'1"""'" hfTlI"UW----1"'" , ,.
. '0r, AJ'T1'1 0t1 {.-.hln

~~
~,

r,.,.,,.,,. I.~.; • ., _ ... ----.,.,1··Iv,_ .... I....,.....I.l>.. If lhoe U~IO"'l!'Ot ~''''''I t!oIt~......eft t .... pena -bJ' • M.rn~'l" b') ~trr U'" J&'III JIItQ.irt'1 tl\af U,. r11U 01 .1adla. iIil.&U u.&4I _0.,,",,, It 11
euTltr I' v .a.!liJ:lllP4TII .e.1~

l hlr51~' :\dVOlnCc:-d
1lI.~-"\.l-ICf"I' ,h, ral. " ~d"':H "" TIIQ« 1t1.I.~n ..... r'e"lll:uu·rd: to ...... IpetlIClilUI' t. ~/UJA.r lho • ..-...<1 ... ...ft'lu· ...,1 \~lu .. '" 1M crop.",,-

~
j ~ Per ";4" -- "'GItNT "UST O!:T"'CH "'NO"• . - -..... jRDI:T ~us~~W .. QoR'

U 'y ?,2 ~bk· d./.V -C7ICA:J
---..... --.--. 'r - .Permanent postoffice address of shIpper _

0037
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co

5S GI FAC No'B 8/0

55 GI FRC W/B 8/0

55 GI FRC BIBIR

3 55 GI. FRC 17H

55 Gr. FAC JUNK

30 GI IOAe

~Jf---~- +----_ ---t----+- __~J 55 Gl aT HF UNL'ND.

J 55 GI BT HF LINED I , r
-I 55 GI e; HF C:O 1./ r
, 55 GL BT :>..2 lie. II

I55 Gi 61 1:"''\:1{

1Z

1S

14

( BAYONNE BARREL AND DRUM OO~·
-~"" - .... _-:' -'--"':"---;..~~-- _._~-

0039
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.t.

55 FRC NIB 18 GA. CUT DOWH

55 FRC NIB 18/20 CUT DOWN

5S FRC W/B 18-18/20 GA.

55 FRC B/B/R.

5S FRc 17H/17f

30 FRC

55 BT HlF 18 GA,

55 BT H/F 18120

55 BT H/F 4H

55 B T 2 x 2/3B

DAT tUN l DA D(0 -':+--n-=--~o.:: TOTAL

I N SPEC TOP ~Li.-+~~-4-+-J~--'--c;- _

5 TAP Tt 0 --L(-LIL: --.L--""'-I

FIN 15~I[ 0 ...JLjri~:'_____ ___:~..I..-_ 1 1 720-

~';\... W
h 1 tie I ..... eeL I""'*' b

I

10

'I 55 GI BT HF UNL'ND

--+------- --------+------+----~-
l~ 55 GI BT HF liNED

13 55 GI BT HF CIO

--~--- --
I. 55 GI BT 2X2 lie

----~------ ~-----~-- ~------
I. 55 GI BT JUNK

---- -----~-- ----
16 30 GI BT

--1---------------'1------------ 1 _
17

~- ---- __L__ ~_~ _
'I

---+--------------1-------1----- _
19

.. TIERRA-B-006135



iNG~lHARD INOUSTRIl:S LJIVISION
S!r~lght Blli of L~drng-Short Form

ORIGI N"L - N.)T ~'E GOTI A SLot: 652- 1/1

From
~ ""~l, Jo:'"'!oC" ....... ~".(\J., ,1'1 '1'1"""""',..00.: 'l'ilI".t "1 .rpt ~'" "'r-.J 1 ..-n"lt"I1..1n..l .. o.n."I.l......., ul ,.'n""" -¥ "'....II It_ .. ./lI _o't' "'lJ'lt...-l "\r\,,","n.rll .I. •• "rul ....... I~ .t\..J .... rl .... I\.rl ...._ .11" ill Jorr....' Itk .vrtl ".,

~1'l4 ~l"n'oo4 IJr!rcu ... """uI '~11 ..... Hld J~ ~'A'AI ... ) rt' w.lr ~ ..l"H'''''hl,,',.. loft ~'Ultu...;;o,. .. l I"'~ l'"' 'I~ .........., " '1'1 .....1' ...-. ........ \ ,Iort,. lu I'\. ... _.~ 1"1;..'1 Q1I ,J,r""'.-r,- '" -.a-.i 4oc ' rf ~ 111 fOO,jlr .

..-- II) Ii .".,., 10 ""'IO'II,,r "",., on r~r 'v,,",n 1'1 \JI4I .,I,.u,nJ.'loO.:I" It rl l'ftu
t

... II)' "P'~ ..LIlv ~ ....t"t ...-r ' "'. ""''F'.rt u" tor ... !"WII) ...., ..It 001.... ) ro--l.:;lft 01 J .r~l" 1-0 .... "' ...... , 4 r-. , .......,.It .,. h ......

.. ",. ,II "" ··r ~I 0<01''''> " _" ~'"r 'u" rl"'",~d -' .. "'-" _""., ,., , •• '''~. ,,.. .u.J" " lJnu",,,, , ,,~ ,,,_,,.,,,", tw, " ''''''' I ,. U."~ .
~~I>04l- UI (flf'~t n. t,ll.to c~rol" heln ..' ,J '''''I t'I .. 1,,-' 'Oot ~-.I<"f ~.l\I,mC'l'\l f?t I.'''' ..t"~I.........t\L. nrl"" ~-#tI ...... ~l.h J.~I, I "H ...11'1"," ..".. 4J'~r "'._~"ll

s.,_ , "r", , ~ r,m w,o ,,.. ", ,• .", / 'h >.11 d' W .. " ud". , o. ,,., '_> ''',,0/ ".••, , ~,_ ," ,_", '~" ,,.,
Ir ... .EpQlfI.' ... 0;1# t"l1- ...t1l~"1 &Ad rPl_ \01" lor'_' 1 .,' lPot I'w-rortry- a..t"I"~,J 10"'" Hili "'>C'J'C'I ,,...J _ ..q...IN I,. lII.. n .. H ,,"'oJ /'I •• ~ .. }

Rouce -=- _
D r ri~g Carnere lye

, ,
;;;;No K,nd of ?acl<~!O'!,DeSCription of Artocle1, SpeC1~1

·WelQh ~ CI ... C~ecl< ...........Marl<s. and Except,ons ISub, or Cod~ or Aale Column -... J._ ~I -...-._
-4' .... r ___

P~{.lc4lg.e

'., .... • ,,···......-, .... ,_t .,loo" .. 4 ~

t ~-"~~~,,-...... _...- .... ,... ,-~_.~r E ~,,/y ~..( r'JriL <:7rF L I'" ,...-..._................,....____............._ ..,~ ...... ' ....................... .-., ... ,-,. -.It. po

_IN" .",.•• ,.., __• ~' ........~.a ,,_. ,_
'J 0. ••• ~.biLl tH J < L.....I III ~"IJ l'lH U.lt.II;, U~\WI 7' tI t II), ;:J /01 (J 1

i? ,,;'/C ~ - p, (....:.,../
T

" .. #o .. '",~ oM I .-.",-. ..t

, ... · ... · ....·' ....... ,....r ................. ~ ......F !' I ~ / / lJ 1,1 .1 /1, .".f 1 1" .... ,.•• 1'.....

T '7 ,
I J

u.:.., ,1 . I .A --.,
7 oJ

Nr- ... ("I,. II /\/ -; .
I

MARKS .
II •••• .1- I

•• .-,..' , .... ., •••• -- ..Jf ~ ..... ""' ..... ~ ~
I"~'r .ro.. ........ ,... .........

I ....~.• I ~.......

[SPECIAL
r.
,! - .......'~•• """tl .. _._ ................. " ' ........... _..,INSTRUCTIONS
"H •• "" I

• ....... c ........ "

....... ""....-., -,. .... , .. I.. ~ .... -. -.... ,,.. ...,
1-.1 .J. ...._ .,..,......,o,J ,.

oj .. '""' ..."1 .... J __.~_. _w ~ -
Customer O'der No.

t
Enjlelh.,d Order No ,

-.

Car or Vehicle Iil!tlals No

(
'II th, ,,",pm,nr mo, .. b<"-.n '''0 .or" by. co,.... by "'If< m, '- "q." •. ,n., ". 5,,,., l'".'9 ",,11 , .... "'O"h" "" "</,t<,.,, '''1>0'' ,.w'g>1

NOTE-l'i",tr rho TIlt "d ••• notn< an "~,,. 1J>.??rt1 '''' """".J fa "'" Ill"'r." " '0 ","',n9 '"<'~'''C.r d ...... d '.'u' ot ill! .'.P'''y
Th, l191'ftd or dce,.ifW ....luf of tn, PfOp.t'ft'p' 11hfffb, sPt'tlfl,.-lly IUlrCl b1 ft'It ill Dprr t) trt n01 r~Cl"t(hn9

Ot-

TMl' ',!)ort bo.~, I)~ 10' In,'). ''''.emenl C;:J.n1crrn !n Ih'!' H"c.oI.U~ V"\ 'lor' '0'."
Q".,r~nu. ot !~-p CO""Ol,d.l-lr~ Ftt'9l"tr CJoIu.hC::,jIl'''an

, ,

------------- Shipper. Per ---.!.-~Z£!..;~'L:.._._ A~nt. P 0043
4. CARRIER COpy
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Ei\lGElHARO MINERALS & CHEMICALS CO~ •.

ENGE LHARO INDUSTRIES DIV1SIO, .'.
Straight Bill of Lading-Short Form

ORIGINAL-NOT NEGOTIA8LE

(,_7-19-

Route-J- _

l)eltv~x,.'1g Carne r

J-2-

'We,ghr
ISub Or Cor)

Check
Column

C.ass
or Rate

~o

L" I ll\ 'JoIIl '''' II, '\.IIU. ~ lll\

}

_J~J --+---...1l...I{L~~---------_+_---__+_-_+--_,f_~~~~=1

MARKS

r ..
,11'1.

C..;<;lOmer Order I"-Jo

"d I"~ s"l ome", -meHe'\. b~r\,~ .. " t"J OJns::::" d (-.jrr,,:,Or ':if ,..... l!!r [r-t" ~.,., I~OUlf.~ ""'ojl r/"t Sill JI lJOlJlg 'l.h"ll 'l.loill!' w/lttt1-f'r If ''\- carrl~r ~ or ~"'OOet 'I- "I"lI1!'Qhr

JO T E - .lh~rl!' r!"\~ (.lIe .~ d:1!'(le'1d~'1' ;JI"I .i1ue \'"l'P;:leq .;)'I!' r-'JU ,0>-: ,0 "j.lj:fe \1.lf'C 1.( ..~I'1 In wrI!lnq Ih~ agl!l!d or di1'cJ.rtd 1I.llJr al Il1e prOI:!f',r",.

fh~ 3Qr!!'d -or 1i!(lif!,-(l " .. lu!!' 01 (hi!' ::;rOOl!'fly S ,~(ttJ ~ WHI'I(!3111/ HJif!!'d b.., lnl!' \ 'Deer 11 t11! lor ~ tcUd,nq

To.,,,. f 0'· :JO·~\ _ "'c '.;: ., ... ,'" o ....." ... r ::Or"lIOlm i "'e <;~c I C4. O'l~ ~~ ,:;r".r,

Qy.,r!'r'f'l.e'nl~ 01 ,""t' Can,-olll:~ ~o ;;'e- ql'lt CLH~I!'(;;jIC'O('l

I

'"

Ij-i£" 7'1. r IvL V/'"--t? 11.~-I_ (~,--,

f t j J' "" (!f.{ .. I~, If 5r
IJ#;/.->-rl"'" 'f
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~ PURCHASED ..... RECOND!T!ONED U
• ~-~tv'£,. ..jJA'rt.(L~/:<-~Ll t,12f/t"2-

)DRESS ' ?J No.72 0 55 9
-J DRUM TY~E l CJII. t QTY_ I UHtT "RICE I ""OU"T

t II -I dO ~ 1 ;J.o 0 r-/-R'''' ¢

+--~f==FF==-
1 cQ3 f /1/./ I -
1 I· il!----~-l 1--!--

+----------+-----R,-

55 GI FRC NIB B·O ~
....J~ \.;--

55GI FACW/BSJO

55 GI. FRC BIBIR

55 GI FRC 17H

f: J 55 G~ FAC JUNK

J Xl Gt. FRC

I IJ J
55 GJ 8T H;: UIIL'ND. ==i55 GI BT HF LINED

J 55 GI 8T HF C/O

! 55 G' BT :IX:? I!C

-j
5~ Gl 9, _1~I'Jk

I
r ._-

J.j G! 81

TOT ........ T.

- \

( BAYONNE BARREL AND DRUM CO~-
~ ------ ~r. __ ._ ... ~

-'-

0045
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, ~l 'y
~ __ ~J.~, __. ~ ~_,.:j._ l,

~~.~"INSPECTION REPO RT
': .~. "" . .

GR. ,CITY

'.

--+--------------+------+._---+~-~----

--+---------------1-------- -~----I-------

1-----
17

-----l--------.~------.-~------ -- ---------

---------_.- ----- ... _- -

1 8

--l---------.---- ..---- -- - -------

\9

~IP~I!::R

J~r;:1L Ve;
cARrul(R INS .. ECTII!!:O BY TOT AM Y
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111
a..
o
I-

UNIFORM STRAIGHT BILL OF LADING
TJil3o'SlilPPING ORDER muo\ b. 1... Jbly 611.d In, In Ink, In Indelible Pen "I, or In Carbon. and

. p;YIY'c'~.1'~ A ... "I. Company

o
q
o
(TJ

>•o

i "
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, ",,, """'"'[ /~ - ~ TOTAL

,.>e"". l:>d tJ
" ~ I ~• STARTEO'Ci

FIHISIIEO 7; 3"0 N~

"< ,,'

D INSPECTION REPORT

,
•

PURCHASED ./ /l /1 RECONDITIONEQ
REC·D.FRO~~C' /~/7A.A Lb~//1h/~"T~~d<f32-
ADDRESS /f '-..-/ No.'-'206R/7

. ~
CD DRUM TYPE GA 1 QTV UNIT ~A leI!: AMOUNT

. "
I 55 GI FRC NIB BID .( "1

FRC W/B BID -.~ 55 Gl

3 55 GI FRC B/B/R

" 55 GI FAC 17H

D 55 GI FRC JUNK /1L. L c2c:2 b ;0V'
, 30 GI FRC

.I~ JL-

~
.~

7 / ..IJ;;P:~_/1 /JV ('-;?;?7I'U'/[.£. ~

• C=;/11 A '--#'--l::/k ...-C-_ .
/ .. II

!

-~ -- --------- -- --

10
-- ---~~---------

11 55 GI BT HF UNL'ND

--- .-------_.
12 55 GI BT flF LINED

- -------~-----

13 55 GI BT elF CIO
~--

14 55 GI BT 2X211C

III 55 GI BT JUNK

,
30 GI BT .1G

"

17,

11

It _.

""~~l~/ - ~~~e~AVIU71}·!)J ..
c~.. r,.IlCTa:o BY I ... ~",,·o OY T,:, O~V"J TOrr Atl.

~ - ~_._- ------~~-
\

o
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~.
i

,
I.lf.M7- I I IVENOOI'l"S OUR

GROSS .--OONT
DISCOUNT

NET .......OUNT

REFE,qENCE VENDOR NO
OF INVOICEPic 07 172P~ ~:;: '(I be.DO O.0u

b ~I • C (j

I " .,
.. - ,

,
, -.' . <

~
- - - --

- -
-

- ,
:

- ~
- , - - -

- '. -. ,

--. -
.. --

-
,

70 WOOD AVEkUE SOUTH. eN no .
I$WN, NEW .JERSEy Dea30

..... } ~-- No. 000,73

l'\LUE l)£TACH'EFOA! ""U£NTIHO

EItICE£"'ARD CORPORATION
ENGELHARD INDUSTRIES DIVISION

70 waoo AVENUe SOUTK CN 770 • ISEt.JN, N.J oeS3Q

••

PAY No. OC0773

TO

THE
OflOER

OF

.BAYONNE. EARRl::L AND DRUM CO
KAYMOr-IO l:l[VI) AN!) ROUTE 1
Nf:.WARK i-JJ 07105 TI4J .u.OOHT

-,.04/27/82 ·*·~*****~*$60.0Dr

TO

ThE AR8T 1'IA1lOHAl STATE 1l.AHl( OF N..I

,,.
I -- COpy NOT NEGOTIABLE

CHECK
STUB

l,IERlilAQE" ;:::::::::::::=:=::::====:===================================152. 201 I'

PAY TO THE

. ORDEROF:----------- -i

PURPOSE:

• • ••• •
STREET ADDRESS: .....!...,.!...~:.-_:,,~~--:_.!-. --t
CITY, STATE. ZIP

• ••• ••• • • • •• ••••• • • •••••• •• ••

TIERRA-B-006142



,LITION,
WI. 0-

e-,tr~ ...CCTG for H.r"Cl Che<:k
R.... l" .t F"rh Cu
e-.u~ ...CCTG

ENGELHARD INDUSTRIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE VOUCHER

PRFT. CTR WONTH \lOUCH R NO. CORRE32 33 • 3-4-4 .~-.. 19
,CTION INITIAU> DATE FUNCTION INITIALS DATE

L'17 _.<7 ,-:{/ tfOING REPORT ff( ty:.;'O~~ POSTED TO P.O.GNATURE

rc1l
=:NSIONS

ACCOUNTING IN\lOICE ~!DofECKED
AUDIT "":~UNT

I ·90:OMPAAED
CASH

I
PO

OISCOUNT
I11-99ENT APPROVED ./ .LV' NET I/"l /'U q z,,- "3 "" A..~~.~:;.T I
I

VENDORNAME;!:! 11 -¥~ J1I IV e..;ff1J .£ IfeL ~/CI-iECK6 ) 18 COLUWNlASE COST STOCK NUMBER •
ACCT. DEPT. T \

1NO CENTER ", .. ,., .2.'\.;. J.L .._..___ QUANTITY UIM G/L NO. NO. A AMOUNTPRO?~p:
X5 20-23 p~P! ; 62· SOl 70-71 64 -81 11 n·80~?I I

~¢IJl13:fV AI hO:ocI "-
I ' 1 I

II I
II .
II I I
II

I II I ,
II I I II

I I II
I I I

,
I

I I I,
I I

I
,

I I
I.

bIfJJj OJtIIillfij U
CE NO (LAST 10 CHAR)

VENDOR NAME1~.L4 I r I I I

E

GE. -=======:::::::::============================-01 i'7

PURPOSE:

PAY TO THE
ORDER OF.- _

CITY, STATE, ZIP

SE ND CHEC" TO. ~~~~~~~__:~~----------------....;;;.:....;;...--_REQUESTED
lSY
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ru wooo AVENUE SOLJTH. eN 770
ISELIN NEW JERSEY 0B430 No. 008839~ VENDOR'S OUR GROSS AMOUNT

DISCOUNT N E"T A.M OUNT
REFERENCE VENDOR NO OF INVOICE

197U4 'J31'JO ""-':-.00 O.I,v 66.00

-

-

I

1
PUJ.SE. DETACH aEFOI'lE ~ESEHTINa

• •. I:.

No. 008R39
5.502

2i2"

,: v ' 1 J ')
~NGE"HARDCa..--;:(;RATION

ENGELHARD INDUSTRIES DIVISION
70 "-'000 AVENUE 80UT>-1.eN 770 • ISELIN. N.J 0SB3Q

DATE

NNi:. BAR~L .. OF,UM CO
U~C L~VD & ROUTE 1
RK N.r1f7105

10/ Ifil2 **********S66.00*

COpy NOT NEGOTIABLE

lSTAn .... ""1( OF "".J

END CHEclC; TO

~ED

1 I t T I L I .I r IJJillIT1J1IIt1 t1If1jL:J'
=

. JOSE.

DER OF; ~--:-:--- __ - ___:......:._ ~

TO THE

.... --::: \

• •.. • •.. •• • • • ••• • •• • • •• • • ••• •.. ••t . • . •••
• •

:

•
•.............: "/>PROVED

------------- "TTa __ aL.i-"·_--4-_ 8'1" DATE.. • • :e •.•• 1 ...:..__ , '--__• • • ••·.....-
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"'BAYONNE BARREL AND DRUM CO.D.I~O . .l~ IU4;.)
gAXMgNB "YB snd 89UU 1.

NEWARK, N. J. 07105

a;s : ,•• S,." ....p, ';- 2. 4;;; bOP. -..,.-
p ("-,, ;: :i §

18uTfON:'

,·M""" .
e-traJ ACCTG for KoMI cr-.eck
,...... 'n at I"rn. en.

" C¥ltral ....CCTO

ENGELHARD INDUSTRIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE VOUCHER

-UNCTION
INITIALS

. IVINGREPORT
SIGNATURE

INITIALS DATE FUNCTION

-PR 9d'~ POSTED TO ".0 .

DATE

(TENSIONS
CHECKED

;ECOMPAAED
TO 1'.0.

ACCOUNTING
AUDIT

Pi

MONT" '",",UeNER NO. ICO~
"3~ 45·... 19

9..~rQn· .
INVOICE

AMOUNT
ll2·90

-
CASH

QISCOUNT
r-~9~1=-9,-!,9_+ --r---+----'

A ~ '1 NET
~ --~/~ A A,":.<g.~::;

VENDOR NAME B 1t ,I ;. lJJ. 11e..-IJ ~ .I2~.Je~..e~_,--.. ---.L....-.J...-..-J

5 -r jl-J 18

fMENT APPROVED

RCHASE
oER NO.

1~5

I I
I I

-- -I
I
I
I
I

~It:HECK
COLUMN

I
I

AMOUNT \

-72-80

COST STOCK NUMBER L' ACCT. DEPT. T
CENTER ~~~?.p1tt;l.t..--......- QUANTITY u/M G/L NQ. NO-.;~)

20 . 23 Pf}r!~~': 62·69 70-11 64·61 rr

! I.
I,

I

I

I
I

- -I
I

I
I

1
I

INVOICE NO (LAST 10CHAR.I

,~I
E,
1

PURPOSE: 1 a ....NK 1 -I C~~CK 1
NO.

~ J'AYTOTHE
\ ORDER OF:

< ...", :
• •• -

STREET ADDRESS: a!'
,.. •• •

-
••• .' ...... • • . ~.. .~ ' ,..

• • - - -
CITY, STATE,ZIP • f, • • • •• ••••••

\ . ! ••

~ECK
'UB
=:RB1AG
152·20

• U.S.MAIlO

•• ~•• \ _~~m DATE ~
'~TIII -: .. ! ....--. BY __ --------- '----

_____ --------,: • ~ ..........IJ.I,;••r-...-..~.~ . ~...~ ..,\-1:2335
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70 .....000 AVENUE SOUTH, CN 170
ISeUH. NEW JERSEY C8&)Q

~GEI :==============;;::==========================:=~==:l201 ~ \ :.

i PURPOSE:

~ •,- " V~OOR'S OUR GROSS AMOUNT DISCOUNT NETAMOUWTEWO REFERENCE VENDOR NO, OF INVOICE .
19705 l·)3:LUI,) 'f6.00

-
07 66.00 O.GO

/'

PUASE DETACH BEFORE PRESENTING

. .' - THE FACE OF THIS DOCUMENT HAS A COLORED BACKGROUND-NOT A WHITE BACKGROUND '. - '.~ .,-

ENGE&HARD COIIPORATION
ENGELHARD INDUSTRIES DIVISION

70 waoo AVENUE SOUTH. eN 770 • ,seuN. N.J 08830
No. 010456

JAYO~N£ B~RLL A~D DRUM CO
u, y:,,\c~C' bLVl; AND ?OUTf. l
.jE\"IA~K [-.,J 07105

DATE

10/27/82

COPY NOT NEGOTIABLE

ALlTMORlZ£O SIGHA1U'II

THE BACK OF THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS AN ARTIFICIAL WATERMARK-HOLD AT AN ANGLE TO VIEW· • "

NA2) r TeL r J r
}

)- -

. PAY TO THE -:.. -:- ~_,
ORDER OF:

STREET ADDRESS;: ~ :___..:.-.=-- __ --:1
•••CITY, STATE. ZIP •••

- -. - . ..• •••... '.'
_ .....
•• •,. .
.: • APPRovEO. -.OAT!: --- BY _

ECl~

" i:,-'

TIERRA-B-006146



ENGELHARD INDUSTRIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE VOUCHER

-RecEIVING REPORT
OR SIGNATUI'lE-

DATEINITIALSFUNCTION

EXTENSIONS
CHECKED

PAICE COMPARED
TOP_O.

POSTED TO P.O.

ACCOUNTING
AUDIT

VOU<:HEA 1'10.
4~ • 4.l

PRFT. c;TR
32 33

of7
MONTH

4:3-44

T

G/L
ACCT.

NO.

&4·61

DEPT.
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INTEROFF1CE MEMORANDUM
ENGELHARD 1NOUSTRI!::S DIVISIO ..

TO
OATil:Lee Ogonowski

",OM

Karyn Roth/Purchasing
COn TO

12/21/82

Bayonne Barrel (1982 Purchase Orders) File

Listed below are 1982 Purchase Order Numbers on Bayonne Barrel
wh~ch were assigned to your Accounting location. Would you
please check these orders to see if they have been paid? If so,
please supply our Check Number, and if possible, a copy of the
cancelled check relative to each individual order.

Your early response to this request will be greatly appreciated.
Thank you.

Purchase Order No. 05354 1/8/82 (Dept. 192)
Purchase Order No. 05377 1/14/82 (Dept. 193)
Purchase Order No. 07043 2/19/82 (Dept. 192)
Purchase Order No. 12161 5/26/82 (Dept. 191)
Purchase Order No. 14545 7/19/82 (Dept. 193)
Purchase Order No. 19505 11/18/82 - (Dept. 193)

l\ -1/ ~ ,?J :---.LJ
~ )(I..J\--L~ v,--.:Lc.*_
Karyn L. Roth
Purchasing Department

klr

:C -'-l::J 0060
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INT~qOFF1CE MEMORANDUM ENGELH ...RO INOUSTRiES O'VIS'Q

Pat Rubolotta ,.It0..

Karyn Roth/purchasing
CO" TO

12/21/82
SUaJlI:CT

Bayonne Barrel (1982 Purchase Orders) File

Listed below are 1982 Purchase Order Numbers on Bayonne Barrel
which were assigned to your Accounting location. Would you
please check these orders to see i~ they have been paid? If so,
please supply our Check Number, and if possible, a copy of the
cancelled check relative to each individual order.
Your early response to this request will be greatly appreciated.
Thank you.

~ 7/
Purchase Order No. 09571 3/25/82 cCo??3 6c {-'(
Purchase Order 15939 8/24/82 o 101~::/'(;-,{(. cCNo.
Purchase Order No. 15976 9/3/82 o c 1'137 G Co, . cc

~ Purchase Order No. 17317 10/18/82 ~OPcJ \

11-::. Q F-

/t../l..~/f?--

~~c(.R~
Karyn L. Roth
Purchasing Department

klr
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ENGELH ....RD [NDUSTRIES DIVISION

OFFICE MEMORANDUM

(83-002) January 3, 1983
DATI;

con TO

Bayonne Barrel

P.O.
P.O.
P.O.
P.O.
P.O.
P.O.

Llsted below is the informatlon you requested. ~ ~

/ /5b3'i ~3?fOPT~05354 - 1/8/82 - Processed on 1/22/82 A/~
05377 - 1/14/82 - Paid on check #138564 - 2/11/82 ~ ~
07043 - 2/19/82 - Processed on 3/12/82. • 3Jr. a;
12161 - 5/26/82 - Paid on check #004527 - 6/22/82 ~~
14545 - 7/19/82 - Paid on check #152066 - 9/2/82
19505 - 11/18/82 - Processed on 12/31/82

Number
Number
Number
Number
Number
Number

The two orders for Dept. 192 were paid. but I don't have the check COples
here. If you should need them please let me know and I wi11 contact OurHuntsville office for the information.

LO:ec

0062
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,
JENGELI-IARD

ENGEL.HA~D INDUSTRIES DIVISION

201-321-5313

January 6, 1983

Bayonne Barrel & Drum Co.
150 Raymond Blvd.
Newark, NJ 07105
Attention: Sal Russomanno
Gentlemen:

Confirming our telephone conversatlon of today, enclosed are cop~es
of my memorandums to our varlOUS Accounting Departments list~ng all
our purchase order numbers for the year 1982. Please note that
those orders, which have been paid, indicate our check number.
There are only three orders (17317, 19132 and 19566) which are in
the process of being paid. In Vlew of this, my records lndicate
that Bayonne Barrel & Drum Co. owes Engelhard the amount of
$1,914.00 (our Invoice No. 192-2116 dated 4/28/82) plus $378.00
on your Inspection Report No. 15034 and $412.00 on your Inspection
Report No. 20559. Total amount due $2,704.00.

I understand that you are in Chapter 11 and that the court allowed
you to contra outstanding debts however, when Engelhard purchased
drums from you, you in turn issued an lnvoice which Engelhard
processed for payment In full w~thout taklng any deductions.

I do not want the amount due Engelhard to get tied up. We would
prefer a check for the aforement~oned amount rather than making
deductions aga~nst any future lnvoices. Please go over Our account
and ,advise.

Very truly yours,

Engelhard Industrles Division
ENGELHARD CORPORATION

SRB/kr
Enclosures
cc: E ..Roberts

L. Ogonowskl

.:. - 0063
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STATEMENT

CUSTOMER H 00058855
G

ENGE&HARD

ENGELHARD INOUSTHIES UIVISIGN
10 ~OOD AVE SO. KEIRO PK PLAZA

ISelIN, N.J. 08830

BAYONNE 8AR~EL & DRUM co
l~O RAYMONC BLVD
NEWARKNEW JERSEY 07105

PAGE 1 OF

CLOSING STMT, DATE 06125/82
PAYMENTS CREDITED TO YOUR ACCOUNT
AFTER STATEMENT DATE WILL BE REFLECTED

ON YOUR NEXT STATEMENT

IMPORTANT
PLEASE RETURN COPY
OF STATEMENT DR
SHOW INVOiCE NUM·
BER ON PAYMENTS DR
CORRESPONDENCE TO
INSURE PROPER CREO·
IT

PURCHASE ORDER NO, DEPT INVOiCE NO.

192 002116 04/28/82 08/28/82 1'111se. I/')VOICE ,1'(,2116

NT DUE DATE

lELlPHOht INQUIRI~~ CALL CREDIT DEPT.
JUH~ HAllCWEll 201-321-Sg63

TRANSACTION

REMIT TO
PO. BOX G-2~8

""E\o~ARK.N.J.
01101

"

": ' '

PAY THIS AMOUNT ..

,.. ,,



STATEMENT ENGE&HARD
CUSTOMr,R# 00058855

G fN(El~AR[ ~NCUS1~JES DJVlSI(~
10 hOCI: A\/f 50, ".EIRe ,FK PLAIA

lS£lIN, N.J. OfSSO

PAGE 1 OF

CLOSING STMT DATE

1
n'

02125/83 \
PAYMENTS CREDITED TO yOUH ACCOU
AFTER STATEMENT DATE Will BE AtFlECT
ON yOUR NEXT STATEMENT

BAYChNE BAQRfl & O~uM C~
150 RAYMONf BLVC
~EkAfH(
~Ek J~~ScY 01105

IMPORTANT REMIT TO
• PlEASE-RETijRN~ COpy POBOX

OF STATEMENT OR
SHOW INVOICE NUM
BER ON PAYMENTS OR ""f.-ARK I
CORRESPONDENCE TO
INSURE PROPER CREDIT

~ -.----_--,- --,-----;o=~~---.-----,,----------.-----------.-------

oo
C'\
U1

PURCHASE OA DE A NO
DOCUMENTPA,e TAANSACTION CURRENT AMOUNTDEPT INVOICE NO _~_.::.:..::e..::..-_-+- -+ -+__ -,---.-------r----l---,y-_~DUE DATE

2116

,:;,

192 002116 ~4/28JE~ 08J28JS4 MISC. IN~GICE

,j
"

'-- ~L-_--l- _ _ ~~_+_____--.----L-J-----'

TOTALS ~ .00lElEP~GNE INQUJRltS CALL CRfGII VEP1.
M~~e~o\f.J.~ to Engelhard's s~~Jara~Jr~9t3
and conditions whIch have been supplIed previously.

________ --j ...e-.---'<

f'A Y THIS AMOUNT ~
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BAYONNE BARREL AND DRUWk
RAYMOND BLVD. and ROUTE

NEWARK, N. J. 07105\,
Date 3-11-83

Sold to Engelhard Industries
70 Wood Ave. -South
eN 770
Iselin, N.J. 08830

CREDIt

OU .. OROI'''' NU"UI'H CU$lO ....ER 5- NO

QUANTITY

CRED IT YOUg ACCOUNTS F()I~ ()j{ U1'IS

PlffiCHASED l)y BAYONNE BA1Z1U~L:

'·Wf.H(HlaYct..JoIllfY'lt~\lllf.~lloL)ljl)~wtfn r~lllllljlrfuH~(IJ~A1'.I"N(1 ('<1'11',1 ~II ~;j,1 ,(I" Jlj,
:JTAHD.AROS .. ( r. A~ jlr,MtNOLO "NU "II PIH/l'1 II f~ll.IJl A r IONS AtiO t,JllilI..N', C.d III' \l ,III , " ~ Ill' '.I I /,11 I
H'(lL(AW"RH"N'~OAuMS ~'Ol[) S.1iJ.l~ I1l ~lll~fooi'(, r~'ANII),ROQLJAllr~ ~j.jlllj III, l,"l~t r j'l/' "
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"Il ( ~ ""M', MIJ',I II~ MAl;1 \l't'tl'llrr j.l: "1 I I I
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~704.00

II 1"/1 r' I ( I It ,/I • I' I All, I ' I I II,j , .. I f1 I AfI(,fi
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(201) 58,9-0110

Date

Sold to

, )

BA VONNE BARREL AND DRUM CO.
RAYMOND BLVD. and ROUTE 1

NEWARK, N. J. 07105

INVOICE

No.

I I

SHIPPED TO • FOB. TERMS NET 10 PAYSHOW SHII'PED

DESCRIPTION PRICE AMOUNTOUANTITY

"WE H[RlBY CERTIFY THAT TI!E,E GOOD, WERE PRODUCED IN COMPlIANe< WITH Hl APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS Of SEC110N5 6,7 AND I] Of TilE fAIR LABOR
STANDARDS ACT,.S AMEROEO,ANO ALL PROP(R REGULATIONS AND ORDERS Of THl UNITED STATED DEPARTMENI Of lABOR ISSuED UNDER 5[CTION 14,TI'EREOr"
"SELlER WARRANTS DRUMS SOLD SHALL BE SELLER'S 5TANDARD QUALITY AND TE,TED TO MEET 0,0 T REGULATIONS-BUYER ASSUMES All RESPONSlelLITY TO
O.MIRE AND INSPECT nrORE USING SUCH DRUMS SELLl"'S lIAelLITY SHALL IN NO EYENT EHUD BUYER'S PURC"ASE Pl<,Cl "

ALL Cl-AIMS MUST BE MADE WITHIN 10 DAYS OF RfCEIPT OF DRUM~
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SECURITIES AND EXC~~GE ~CMMISSION
Washington. D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

x ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
-----------------~---~---------------~

For the fiscal year ended December 31. 1994
OR

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
--------~--------~--------------------

For the transition period f~cm to

Commission file number 1-8142

ENGELHARD CORPO~~T:ON
(Exact name of registra~c as speci:ied in its charter)

DELAWARE
(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)

22-1586002
(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

101 WOOD AVENUE. ISELIN. NJ
(Address of principal executive offices)

08830
(Zip code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area cQde (908) 205-5000

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(bl of the Act:
Name of each exchange on

Title of each class which registered

Common Stock, par value $1 per share New York Stock Exchange

Secu~ities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports
required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(dl of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to file such reports). and (2) has been subject to such
filing reqUirements for the past 90 days. Yes X No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405
of Regulation S-K is not contained herein. and will not be contained. to the
best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to
this Form 10-K.

Number of shares of common stock outstanding as of March 2. '1995 - 95,400.983
Aggregate market value of common stock held by non-affiliates as of March 2.
1995 - 51,724.284.602

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY R£FERENCE

Part III incorporates certain information by reference to the proxy Statement
for the 1995 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

- 1- 0069
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?ART I

I~em 1. Business

Engelhard Corporation and its Subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the Company) are the successors to the businesses previously operated by
Engelhard Minerals & Chemicals Corporation (SMC). In 1981, the Company's Common
Stock was distributed to the shareholders of EMC. and the Company became a
separate, publicly-held corporation. The Company's principal executive offices
are located at 101 Wood Avenue, Iselin, New Jersey, 08830 (telephone number
(908) 205-5000).

The Company develops, manufactures and markets technology-based
specialty chemical products and engineered materials for a wide spectrum of
industrial customers and provides services to precious metals customers.

In 1993 the Company provided for a plan to realign and consolidate
businesses, concentrate resources and better position itself to achieve its
strategic growth objectives. See Note 2 "Special Charge" of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 31-32 of this 10-K. This plan
resulted in a special charge of $148.0' million (S91.8 million after tax or $.95
per share) in 1993 consisting of a $118.0 million pre-tax restructure provision
for asset writedowns related to product lines or sites being exited together
with provisions for facility shutdown. rundown and relocation and for ,employee
reassignment, severance and related benefits and a $30.0 million pretax
environmental reserve. See Note 15 "Environmental Costs" of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 44-46 of this 10-K and the
"EnVironmental Matters" section below on pages 8-10 of this 10-K for a
discussion of environmental matters and the amount of the Company's
environmental reserve.

The Company employed approximately 5,800 people as of January 1,
1995 and operates on a worldwide basis with corporate and operating
headquarters and principal manufacturing facilities and mineral reserves in the
United States with other operations conducted in the European Community, the
Russian Federation and the Asia-Pacific region.

The Company's businesses are organized into three segments -
Catalysts and Chemicals, Pigments and Additives, and Engineered Materials and
Precious Mecals Management.

Information concerning the Company's net sales, operating earnings
and identifiable assets by industry segment and by geographic area; inter-area
transfers by geographic area; and export sales is included in Note 13 ~Industry
Segment and Geographic Area Data~ of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements on pages 41-43 of this 10-K.

Catalysts and Chemicals

The Cacalysts and Chemicals segment comprises four principal product
groups: the Aucomotive Emission Systems Group (AES) , serving the automotive,
off-road vehicle, and aircraft industries; the Stationary Source Emission
Control Group (SSEC) serving the power generation and process industries;
the Petroleum Catalysts Group, serving the petroleum refining industries; and
the Chemical Catalysts Group. serving the chemical, petrochemical,
pharmaceutical and food processing industries.

- 3- 0071
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Environmeneal catalyses, comprising AES and SSEC, are used i~
applications such as the abatement of carbon monoxide, oxides of nitrogen and
hydrocarbons from gasoline, diesel and aleernate fueled vehicle exhause gases
eo meet emission control standards. These caealysts are also used for ehe
removal of odors, fumes and pollueants generated by a variety of process
industries including but not limieed to the painting of automobiles, appliances
and other equipment; printing processes; the manufacture of nitric acid and
tires, in the curing of polymers; and power generation sources. In the third
quarter of 1994, the Company purchased the assets of General Plasma, Inc. a
supplier of thermal spray coating technology and services. This acquisition.
when combined with the Company's catalyst technology. provides for a broader
offering of emission control systems.

The Company also participates in the manufacture and supply of
automobile exhaust emissions control catalysts through affiliates serving the
Asia-Pacific region: N.E. Chemcat Corporation (Japan) - 38.8 percent owned;
and Hankuk-Engelhard (South Korea) - 49 percent owned, both of which also
produce other catalysts and products. In the third quarter of 1992, the
Company and Salem Industries, Inc .. formed Salem Engelhard. a jointly owned
partnership to produce and market products and services to abate, by catalytic
and non-catalytic methods. emissions of volatile organic chemicals and other
pollutants generated by a variety of process industries.

The petroleum refining catalyst products consist of a variety of
catalysts and processes used in the petroleum ~efining industry. The principal
products are zeolitic fluid cracking catalysts which are widely used to provide
economies in petroleum processing. The Company offers commercially a full line
of fluid cracking catalyst based on patented technology including the DYNAMICS
(registered trademark) line which can be used to control selectivity and
cracking activity virtually independently of one another. This characteristic
permits custom catalysts formulation for a large number of users.

The Company manufactures petroleum catalysts used for catalytic
reforming and isomerization of hydrocarbons to produce higher octane gasoline,
for isomerization of xylenes to produce paraxylene and orthoxylene and for
selective hydrogenation of alkylation feed stockS. The Company also
manufactures hydrotreating catalysts which are used in viscosity improvement
and aromatics saturation of lube oil feedstocks and for the removal of
contaminant sulfur. nitrogen and metals. These reforming, isomerization and
hydrotreating catalysts are marketed in North America and the Caribbean by
Acreon Catalysts. a jointly owned partnership formed by the Company and
Procatalyse. Process technologies developed by the Company a~e also offered
for license to the petroleum industry.

In March 1994, the Company completed its purchase of the assets of
the sorbents and moving bed catalysts businesses of Solvay Catalysts, GmbH, in
Nienburg Germany. This acquisition expanded the Company's moving bed catalysts
business and prOVided complementary product lines serving adsorbents
applications. Optimization of these operations is being pursued.

The chemical catalysts products consist of catalysts and sorbents
used in the production of a variety of products or intermediates. including
synthetic fibers. fragrances, antibiotics, vitamins, polymers, plastics,
detergents, fuels and lube oils, solvents, oleochemicals and edible products.
These catalysts are generally used in both batch and continuous operations
requiring special catalysts for each application. Chemical catalysts are based
on the Company's proprietary technology and many times are developed in close

- 4-
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cooperation with specltlC customers. Sorbents are used to purify and
decalorize naturally occurring fats and oils for manufacture into shorte~ings.
margarines and cooking oils.

In early 1994, the Company and ICC Technologies, Inc. formed
Engelhard/ICC, a jointly owned partnership, to develop and commercialize air
conditioning and air-treatment systems based on a proprietary new desiccant
developed by Engelhard.

The products of the Catalysts and Chemicals segment compete in the
marketplace on the basis of product performance, technical service and price.
No single competitor is dominant in the markets in which the Company operates.

The manufacturing operations of the Catalysts and Chemicals segment
are carried out in eight states in the United States. Wholly-owned foreign
operations are located in Italy, The Netherlands, Germany, the United Kingdom
and South Africa with equity investments located in the U.S., Japan and South
Korea. The products are sold principally through the Company's sales
organizations or its equity investments, supplemented by independent
distributors and representatives.

The principal raw materials used by the Catalysts and Chemicals
segment include precious metals, procured by the Engineered Materials and
Precious. Metals Management Segment; kaolin, supplied by the Pigments and
Additives Segment; and a variety of minerals and chemicals which are generally
readily available. For more information about precious metal supply contracts,
see the "Engineered Materials and Precious Metals Management" section below on
pages 6·7 of this 10-K.

As of January 1, 1995 the Catalysts and Chemicals segment had
approximately 2,250 employees worldwide. many of whom are hourly employees
covered by collective bargaining agreements. Employee relations have generally
been good.

Pigments and Additives

The Pigments and Additives segment comprises twO principal
product groups: the Paper Pigments and Chemicals Group. serving the paper
industry and the Specialty Minerals and Colors Group, serving the plastics.
coatings, paint and allied industries.

Paper pigments and chemicals products consist primarily of coating
and extender pigments. The coating pigments provide whiten~ss, opacity and
improved printing properties for high-quality paper and paperboard. Other
products are used as extenders and/or combined with fibers during the
manufacture of· paper or paperboard. Products for the paper market include
Ultra White 90 (registered trademark) pigment, a high-brightness material for
high-quality paper coating; Ansilex (registered trademark) pigments that
provide the desired opacity, brightness, gloss and printability in paper
products; Nuclay (registered trademark) specialized coating pigment for
lightweight publication papers; EXSILON (trademark) structured pigment that
improves the printability of lightweight coated paper and carbonless forms; and
Spectrafil (trademark) pigments for the newsprint and groundwood specialties
markets.

-5-
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Specialey minerals and colors kaolin based produces are used as
pigmenes and extenders for a varieey of purposes in the manufacture of plaseic,
rubber, ink. ceramic. adhesive products and in paint. Principal produces
include Satintone (registered trademark) produces. ASP (registered trademark)
pigments and Translink (registered trademark) surface modified reinforcements.
Other specialty minerals and colors products which serve essentially the same
end markets as the Company's kaolin-based pigments and extenders comprise a
variety of organic and inorganic color pigments. The Group also produces
gellants and sorbents for a wide range of applications.

The products of the Pigments and Additives segment compete with
similar products as well as products made from other materials on the basis of
product performance and price. No single competitor is dominant in the markets
in which the Company operates.

Pigments and Additives operations are carried .out in four states in
the United States and in Finland and Japan. The products are sold principally
through the Company's sales organization supplemented by independent
distributors and representatives.

The principal raw materials used by the Pigments and Additives
segment include kaolin and attapulgite from mineral reserves owned or leased by
the Company and a ·variety of minerals and chemicals which are generally readily
available.

AS of January 1, 1995 the Pigments and Additives segment had
approximately 1,640 employees worldwide, many of whom are hourly employees
covered by collective bargaining agreements. Employee relations have generally
been good.

Engineered Materials and Precious Metals Management

The Engineered Materials and Precious Metals Management segment
includes the Engineered Materials Group, serving a broad spectrum of industries
and the Precious Metals Management Group. which is responsible for precious
metals sourcing and dealing and for managing the precious metals requirements
of the Company and its customers.

t

The products of the Engineered Materials Group consist primarily of
metal-based materials such as temperature-sensing devices, crucibles, bushings,
gauze. precious metals coating and electroplating materials. conductive pastes
and powders, brazing alloys and precious metal wire, sheet. and tubing. These
products are used in the manufacture of automotive components. industrial
devices, glass and glass fiber, ceramics. chemicals. instruments, control
devices, fine jewelry, dental and medical supplies, hardware, furniture and air
conditioners. The Group also provides refining services to internal and
external customers.

The products of the Engineered Materials Group compete with similar
products as well as products made from other materials on the basis of product
performance, technical service and price. No single competitor is dominant in
the markets in which the Company operates.

Engineered Materials manufacturing and refining operations are
carried out.in four states in the United States and in facilities located in
the United Kingdom, France and Italy. The products are sold principally
through the Company's sales organization, supplemented by independent
distributors and representatives.

-6-
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The principal raw materials used by these operations are precious
metals including those of the platinum group (platinum, palladium, rhodium.
iridium and ruthenium). silver and gold, all of which are generally available.

As previously announced, the Company has entered into negotiations
with cLAL for the establishment of a ?aris-based precious metal fabrication
joint venture. Consummtion of the joint venture is pending appropriate
approvals (see Note 2 ~Special Charge" of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements on pages 31-32 of this 10-Kl. The joint venture will combine most
of the assets of the Engineered Materials business with CLAL.

)

In January. 1993 the company sold its 40 percent interest in M&T
Harshaw, an affiliate through which the Company had participated in the base
metal plating industry. In the fourth quarter of 1992, the Company formed
Heraeus Engelhard Electrochemistry Corp .. a venture with Heraeus Inc. The
venture, ,46 percent owned, markets electrochemical products in the Western
Hemisphere.

The Precious Metals Management Group is responsible for procuring
precious metals requirements of the Company's operations and its customers,
Supplies of newly mined platinum group metals are obtained primarily from South
Africa and th~ Russian Federation and to a lesser extent from the United States
and Canada, which four regions are the only known significant sources. Most of
these platinum group metals are obtained pursuant to a number of contractual
arrangements with different durations and terms. The contracts with one
supplier will expire in their present forms on December 31. 1996, che end of
the initial period. The Company is pro~eeding with arrangements to optimize
their replacement. Management believes that available supplies of such metals
will be adequate to meet the needs of the Company for the foreseeable future.
Gold and silver are purchased from various sources. In addition •.in the normal
course of business. certain customers and suppliers deposit significant
quantities of precious metals with the Company under a variety of arrangements.
Equivalent quantities of precious metals are returnable as product or in other
forms.

...

The Precious Metals Management Group also engages in precious metal
dealing operations with industrial consumers. dealers, central banks, miners
and refiners. It also participates in refining and marketing of energy-related
services. The group does not routinely speculate in the precious metals
market. For more information regarding precious metals operations, see Note 12
"Financial Instruments and Precious Metals Operations~ of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 39-41 of this.l0-K. Offices are
located in the United States, the United Kingdom. switzerland, Japan and the
Russian Federation.

As of January 1, 1995 the Engineered Materials and Precious Metals
Management segment had approximately 1,370 employees throughout the world. many
of whom are hourly employees covered by collective bargaining agreements.
Employee relations have generally been good.

Major Customer
Approximately 11 percent and 12 percent of the company's net sales

for the year ended December 31. 1994 and 1992, respectively. was generated from
a customer of both the Cat'alysts and Chemicals and Engineered Materials and
Precious Metals Management segments. Sales to this customer included both
fabricated products and precious metal and were therefore significantly
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•
influenced by fluctuations in precious metal prices as well as the quantity ~:
mecal purchased. In such cases, ~he market price fluctuations and quantities
purchased can result in material variations in sales reported but do no~
usually have a direct or substantive effect on earnings.

Research and Patents
The Company currently employs approximately 320 scientists,

technicians and auxiliary personnel engaged in research and development in the
field of chemistry and metallurgy. These activities are conducted in the
United States and abroad. Research and development expense was $49.0 million
in 1994, $46.9 million in 1993 and $44.6 million in 1992.

Research facilities include fully staffed instrument analysis
laboratories, which the Company maintains in order to achieve the high level of
precision necessary for its various businesses and to assist customers in
understanding the performance of Engelhard products in their specific
application.

The Company owns or is licen~ed under numerous patents which have
been secured over ,a period of years. It is the policy of the Company to apply
for patents whenever it develops new products or processes considered to be
commercially viable and. in appropriate circumstances, to seek licenses when
such products or processes are developed by others. While the Company deems
its various patents and licenses to be important to certain aspects of its
operations, it does not consider any significant portion or its business as a
whole to be materially dependent on patent protection.

Environmental Matters
In the ordinary course of business, like most other industrial

companies, the Company is subject to extensive and changing federal, state,
local and foreign environmental laws and regulations, and has made provisions
for the estimated financial impact of environmental cleanup related cOSts.

The Company is currently preparing, has under review. or is
implementing, with the oversight of cognizant environmental agencies,
environmental investigations and cleanup plans at severai locations which it
owns and/or operates, including, Plainville. Massachusetts; Salt Lake City.
Utah; Attapulgus, Georgia; and Newark, New Jersey. With respect to Plainville.
in September 1993 the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and
the Company entered into a consent order under which the Company is
investigating contamination and will conduct site stabilization measures.
Plainville is also included on the Nuclear Regulatory commission (NRC)
"Existing Site Decommissioning Management Plan Sites" list and the Company is
currently conducting further investigations of the site pursuant to NRC
approved plans. With respect to Salt Lake City, in connection with obtaining
an operating permit under the Utah Solid and Hazardous Waste Act, the Company
entered into an agreement in December 1993 with the Utah Solid and Hazardous
Waste Control Board under which the Company is currently investigating the
environmental status of the site. With respect to Attapulgus. in January 1994
the Georgia Department of Natural Resources, Environmental Protection Division
and the Company entered into a consent order under which the Company will
develop ana implement a reclamation program. With respect to Newark, the
Company is in the process of implementing a cleanup plan in coordination with
the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection.
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The Company has been designaeed as a poteneially respons~=~e pa~ty
(PRP) by EPA under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, COffipensacion. and
Liability Act of 1980. as amended and by cereain seate environmental
authorities under similar seate laws (collectively referred to as Supe~fund)
with respect to the cleanup of coneaminaeion resuleing from the disposal of
hazardous subseances at 16 siees to which the Company, among others, sent ~aste
in the pase. Superfund requires cleanup of certain siees from which there has
been a release or threatened release of hazardous substances and auehorizes EPA
to take any necessary response action at such sites, including ordering PRPs to
cleanup or contribute to the cleanup of a siee. Courts have interpreted
Superfund to impose strict, joint and several liability. These claims are in
various stages of administrative or judicial proceedings, and include demands
for recovery of past governmental costs and future investigative or cleanup
action. In many cases, the dollar amount of the claim is unspecified and
claims have been asserted against a number of other entities for the same
recovery or other relief as ~as asserted against the Company. Based on
existing information, the Company believes that it is a de minimis contributor
at most of the sites referenced above. Subject to outstanding state claims or
the reopening of existing settlem~nt agreements for extraordinary circumstances
or natural resource damages, the Company has settled a number of other cleanup
proceedings. In several additional instances, PRPs designated by EPA or a
state equivalent have notified or sued the Company, claiming that the Company
should have been named a PRP and allocated a share"of cleanup costs. The
Company has also responded to information requests from EPA at other CERCLA
sites.

The Company's policy is to accrue environmental cleanup related
costs of a noncapital nature when those costs are believed to be probable and
can be reasonably estimated. The quantification of environmental exposures
requires an assessment of many factors, including changing laws and
regulations, advancements in environmental technologies, the quality of
information available related to specific sites, the assessment stage of each
site investigation, preliminary findings, and the length of time involved in
remediation or settlement. For the Superfund sites, the Company also assesses
the financial capability of other PRPs and, where allegations are based on
tentative findings, the reasonableness of the Company's apportionment. The
Company has not anticipated recoveries from insurance carriers or other
potentially responsible third parties in its consolidated balance sheets. The
liabilities for environmental cleanup related costs recorded in the
consolidated balance sheets at December 31. 1994 and. 1993 were $62.2 million
and $66.1 million, respectively, including $10.8 million and $11.8 million,
respectively, for the Superfund sites. These amounts represent those costs
which the Company believes are probable and reasonably estimable. Based on
currently available information and analysis, the Company's accrual represents
approximately 90 percent of what it believes are reasonably possible
environmental cleanup related costs of a noncapital nature. The estimate of
reasonably possible costs is less certain than the probable estimate upon which
the accrual is based.

During the past three-year period. cash payments for environmental
cleanup related matters were $4.5 million. $.3 million and $.7 million for
1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively. In 1994 and 1992, the amounts accrued in
connection ~ith environmental cleanup related matters were not significant. In
1993, $30.0 million ~as accrued as a resule of developments during that year
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which caused ehe Company to revise its estimaees of environmental cleanup
related coses at sites being idled or affeceed by restructuring, where
condieions had recenely changed, or where studies and cleanup plans had been
approved and the assessment of the likelihood or extent of remediation had
changed.

For the past three-year period, environmental relaeed capital
projects have averaged less than 10 percent of the Company's total capieal
expenditure programs and the expense of environmental compliance (environmental
teseing, permies, consultants and in-house staff) was not significant.

There can be no assurances that the environmental laws and
regulations will not become more stringent in the future or that the Company
will not incur significant costs in the future to comply with such laws and
regulations. Based on existing information and currently enacted environmental
laws and regulations, cash payments for environmental cleanup related matters
are projected to approximate S10.0 million for 1995, all of which has already
been accrued. Further, the Company anticipates that the future amounts of
capitalized environmental projects and the future expense of environmental
compliance will approximate current levels. While it is not possible to
predict with certainty, management believes that environmental cleanup related
reserves at December 31, 1994 are reasonable and adequate and that
environmental matters are not expected to have a material adverse effect on
financial condition or on the results of operations.

Item 2. Properties

The Company owns approximately 15 acres of land and three buildings
with a combined area of approximately 168,000 square feet in Iselin, New
Jersey. These buildings serve as the major research and development facilities
for the Company's operations. The Company also owns a research facility in the
Cleveland, Ohio area. In 1990, the Company entered into a 15 year lease for a
271,000 square foot building in Iselin, New Jersey, proximate to its owned
facilities, which serves as the principal executive and administrative offices
of the Company and its operating segments. This lease provides for three
consecutive five-year-period extensions. The building is owned by a
partnership in which the Company holds a significant interest.

The Catalysts and Chemicals segment owns and operates a complex of
plants in Georgia that manufactures petroleum cracking catalysts, and other
domestic plants located in Onion, New Jersey; Huntsville, Alabama; Seneca,
South Carolina; Elyria,Ohio; East Windsor, Connecticut; and Jackson,
Mississippi. Foreign manufacturing operations are conducted at owned
facilities in "Italy, The Netherlc1nds, Germany and the Onited Kingdom. In
addition, the segment owns a mine in Mississippi and leases a mine in Arizona.

; The Pigments and Additives segment owns and operates five kaolin
mines and five milling facilities in Middle Georgia which serve an 85 mile
network of pipelines to four processing plants. It also owns land containing
kaolin clay and leases, on a long-term basis, kaolin mineral rights to
additional acreage. The segment also owns and operates an attapulgite
processing plant in Attapulgus, Georgia near the area containing its
attapulgite reserves. It also owns and operates a plant in Little Rock,
Arkansas. Management believes that the Company's crude kaolin and attapulgite
reserves wi~l be sufficient to meet its needs for the foreseeable future.
The segment also owns and operates color pigments manufacturing facilities
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in Louisville. Kentucky. Sylmar, California and Elyria, Ohio. Foreign
operations are conducted at owned facilities in Finland. In addition. the
segment owns mines in Florida.

The Engineered Materials and Precious Metals Management segment owns
and operates manufacturing facilities in Carteret and East Newark, New Jersey;
Anaheim and Fremont. California; Lincoln Park, Michigan; and Warwick, Rhode
Island. Other manufacturing operations are conducted at owned facilities in
the United Kingdom, France and Italy.

t

The Company is currently restructuring its operations (see Note 2
'Special Charge" of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements on pages
31-32 of this lO-K). Management believes that the Company's processing and
refining facilities. plants and mills are suitable and have sufficient capacity
to meet its normal operating requirments for the foreseeable future.

Item 3. Legal proceedings

•

The Company is a defendant in a number of lawsuits covering a ~ide
range of matters. In some of these'pending lawsuits, the remedies sought or
damages claimed are substantial. The Company is vigorously defending against
these claims. The Company is also subject to a number of environmental
contingencies (See "Environmental Matters"). While it is not possible to
predict with certainty the ultimate outcome of these lawsuits or the resolution
of the environmental contingencies, management believes, after consultation
with counsel, that resolution of these matters is not expected to have a
material adverse effect on financial condition or on the results of operations .

In January, 1995, the Company received and is reViewing a civil
investigative demand to produce documents and answer interrogatories in
connection with an investigation by the Antitrust Division of the U.S.
Department of Justice into 'price coordination and market allocation by kaolin
producers" .

Item 4.
Submission of Matters to a Vote of
Security Holders

",. Not applicable.

;
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PART II

Item 5.
Market for Registrant's Common Equity
and Related Stockholder Matters

AS of March 3, 1995, there were 8,772 holders of record of the Company's
common stock, which is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (ticker symbol
"EC"), as well as on the London and Swiss stock exchanges.

The range of markee prices and cash dividends paid for each quarterly
period were as follows:

1994
Firse quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter
1993
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

NYSE Cash
market price dividends paid

High Low per share
------- ------ ------------_ ...

$31 1/2 $23 5/8 $ .11
28 1/4 24 1/4 .11
28 5/8 21 1/2 .12
27 5/8 20 7/8 .12

$29 7/8 $22 7/8 $.10
28 5/8 19 3/8 .10
27 3/8 25 1/4 .11
28 3/4 22 3/4 .11

<TABLE;.

Item 6. Selected Financial Daea

Seleceed Financial Data

<S> <c;.
(S in millions, except per
share amounts) 1994

<C> <c>

1993 1992 1991 1990

Net sales $2,385.8 $2,150.9 $2,399.7 $2,436.4 $2,942.2
Net earnings (a) 118.0 .7 10.6 87.9 70.3
Net earnings

per share(a) 1.23 .01 .11 .87 .70
Property, plant and

equipment, nee S 540.4 $ 494.4 $ 514.4 $ 533.3 $ 563.4.
Total assets 1,440.8 1,279.1 1,287.7 1,279.4 1,343.3
Long-term-debt 111.8 112.2 113.9 114 .5 119.4
Shareholders' equity 614.7 531.3 647.2 756.6 709.8
Cash dividends paid

per share $ .46 $ .42 $ .37 $ .33 $ .30
Return on average

shareholders'
equity (a) 20.6\' .1\ 1.5\ 12.0\ 10.4\

Current ratio 1.0 1.1 1.5 1.5 1.3
Net cash provided

by operating
activities $ 114 .8 S 130.4 S 169.5 $ 135.4. $ 150.0
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(a) Resulcs in 1994 include a special credic of $5.0 million after cax ($.05
per share) representing the ~eversal of excess restructuring reserves; and
an after-tax net charge of $5.3 million ($.05 per share) for a change to the
Company's escimate of compensation expense relating to stock awards.

Results in 1993 include a special charge of $91.8 million after tax
(S.95 per share) for realignment and consolidation of businesses and
environmental matters; an after-tax gain of $6.3 million ($.06 per share)
from the sale of the Company's interest in M&T Harshaw, a base-metal placing
business; and an after-tax charge for the cumulative effect of an accounting
change of $16.0 million ($.16 per share) as a result of adopting the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 112,
"Employers' Accounting for Postemployment Benefits."

Results in 1992 include an after-tax charge for the cumulative effect of
accounting changes of $89.5 million (S.89 per share) as a result of adopting
the provisions of Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 106,
"Employers' Accounting for postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions," and
No. 109. "Accounting for Income Taxes."

Item 7.
Management'S Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition ,and Results of Operations
-----------------------~------------------~-----

Management'S Discussion and Analysis of Financial Engelhard Corporation
Condition and Results of Operations

Results of Operations

The Company reported net earnings before cumulative effect of accounting
changes of $118.0 million ($1.23 per share) in 1994 compared with $16.7 million
(S.17 per share) in 1993 and S100.1 million ($1.00 per share) in 1992. 1994
net earnings included a special credit (see "Special Charge") of 55.0 million
($.05 per share) representing the reversal of excess restructuring reserves and
a net charge of 55.3 million ($.05 per share) for a change in the Company's
estimate of compensation expense relating to stock awards (see "Selling,
Administrative and Other"). 1993 net earnings included a special charge (see
"Special Charge") of S91.8 million ($.95 per share) and a gain on the sale of
an investment (see "Gain on Sale of Investment") of $6.3 million ($.06 per
share) .

In 1993, the Company adopted the prOVisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 112, "Employers' Accounting for postemployment
Benefits." The impact of this change on 1993 results was a one-time, noncash,
after-tax charge of $16.0 million ($.16 per share). 1993 net earnings after
the cumulative effect were S.7 million (S.01 per share).

In 1992, the Company adopted the provisions of Statements of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 106, "Employers' Accounting for Postretirement
Benefits Other Than Pensions" and No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes." The
impact of these changes on 1992 results was a one-time, noncash, after-tax
charge of S89.5 million (S.89 per share). 1992 net earnings after the
cumulative effect were $10.6 million ($.11 per share).

Special Charge
In 1993, the Company provided for a plan to realign and consolidate businesses.
concentrate resources and better position itself to achieve its strategic
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•

,

•

growth objeccives. That plan resulted in a special charge of $148.0 milllcn
($91.8 million after tax or $.95 per share) in 199), consisting of a S11a.O
million pretax restructure provision for asset writedowns related to produce
lines or sites being exited together with provisions for facility shutdown.
rundown and relocation and for employee reassignment, severance and related
benefits and a $30.0 million pretax environmental reserve. See Note 15
"Environmental CostsM of the NoteS to Consolidated Financial Statements for a
discussion of environmental matters and the amount of the Company's
environmental reserve.

The Company's restructuring reserve at December 31. 1993. consisted of the
$118.0 million 1993 special charge and $32.4 million of previously established
provisions associated with idled sites, as rundown costs continue to be
incurred at these sites and their disposition is pending completion of
environmental cleanup and/or consummation of sales. During the fourth quarter
of 1994. the Company reversed $8.0 million of its restructuring reserve because
its idle Canadian facility was sold earlier and at more favorable terms than
originally estimated and because of a revised, and less costly. approach to the
cleanup/disposition of its idle Newark, New Jersey site.

Generally. the 1993 restructuring plan is being implemented as originally
contemplated. The following table sets forth the components of the Company's
restructuring reserve and related activity for the year:

Restructuring Reserve
(in millions) Employee Asset

separation writedowns Other Total
---------- ... _-------- -------

Balance at December 31. 1993 $35.9 $72.2 $42.3 $150.4
Asset writeoffs/writedowns (66.6) (66.6)
Cash spending (8.S) (8.4) (17.2)
Cash proceeds 1.7 1.7
Reclassification 7.5 (7.5)
Reversal (8.0) (8.0)

Balance at December 31. 1994 $27.1 $14 .S $18.4 $60.3

In 1994, the Company reconfigured certain production processes of the
Middle Georgia facility of the Paper Pigments and Chemicals Group. which
resulted in the writeoff of the associated assets. Two other Company-owned
sites, originally identified for closure, will remain open. One of these
facilities, a part of the Engineered Materials Group, will continue to operate
because of improved economics and the lack of synergy co be achieved from
relocating the, manufacturing process. The other facility. a part of the
Chemical Catalysts Group, will continue to operate because the product lines
are complementary to the Company's other businesses. The impairment of this
facility, as opposed to the originally planned shutdown and relocation.
resulted in a reclassification of shutdown and relocation costs to asset
writedowns.

To date, the Company has been unable to implement twO of the originally
planned restructuring projects. Delayed Department of Justice clearance has
impeded the completion of the Floridin acquisition which was formally announced
in June 1994 and is an integral part of the rationalization of the Company's
attapulgite business. Further, although negotiations began in late 1993 for
the establishment of a Paris-based precious metal fabrication joint venture
with CLAL, consummation of the joint venture is pending appropriate approvals.
The Company anticipates implementation of both of these projects as soon as
appropriate approvals/clearances are obtained.
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As indicated in the table above. the reserve balance at December 31, 1994.
~ill be used for severance and related benefits. asset writeof:s and other
expenses, primarily rundown costs at idle sites. The Company continues to
expect that approximately 600 employees will be impacted; currently, about half
of these employees have been separated or notified of their impending
termination.During 1994, restructuring savings of approximately 57.0 million were
realized, primarily as a result of reduced depreciation. Additional saVings
will be realized in 1995, and by the end of 1996 the Company anticipates annual
cost savings of about $20 to $25 million as a result of lower manufacturing and
operating expenses, with annual cash savings of about $15 million.

Gain on Sale of Investments
In the first quarter of 1993, the Company sold its share of M&T Harshaw. formed
in 1990. to its partner, Elf Atochem North America, Inc., for $40 million in
cash with the buyer assuming all assets and liabilities. The Company realized
an after-tax gain of $6.3 million ($.06 per share).

Catalysts and Chemicals

• The Catalysts and Chemicals segment develops, manufactures and markets a wide
range of catalysts and related products and processes for the automotive, off-
road vehicle, aircraft, power generation, petroleum refining, chemical,
petrochemical, pharmaceutical and food processing industries. among others.
The Company's products are used by customers in these industries to reduce
emissions, achieve desired manufacturing yields and improve quality and/or
cost-efficiency.

Results of Operations
(in mi 11ions ) 1994 1993 1992

Net sales $602.5 $541. 1 5511.0
< Operating earnings 96.9 81.9 70.9

Special charge (79.1l

1994 Compared with 1993
Operating earnings for the Catalysts and Chemicals segment rose 18 percent in
1994 while sales increased 11 percent over the prior year. Favorable factors
included strong volume gains for automotive and diesel truck catalysts and for
some petroleum refining catalysts. Lower manufacturing costS in the Chemical
Catalysts Group also contributed to the increase although volumes were lower.

Automotive Emission Systems
The newly named ~Automotive Emission Systems~ Group (which includes the mobile-
source emission control business of the former Environmental Catalysts Group)
posted higher sales and earnings in 1994. Brisk vehicle sales in the U.S.
more than countered continued sluggishness in vehicle sales in Europe and
Japan.The Group's new plant in Nienburg. Germany, contributed to substantial
market share gains in Europe. After lagging behind expectations during the
first half of 1994, production increased during the second half of the year.
Certain European auto makers adopted the Group's new trimetal catalyst
technology. Trimax, more quickly than anticipated.
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Similarly, another new Lechnology, the PdPLUS all-palladium catalyst, won
an award from Ford, the Group's largest customer and the co-developer of ?d?LuS
caLalysts. This technology offers greater thermal stability, permitting the
catalyst to be placed closer La the engine and activate faster.

Production of catalytic conVerters for truck diesel engines, which started
in September 1993, reached full stride in 1994. As the sole supplier to the
world's leading maker of diesel engines, Sngelhard has a large share of the
truck diesel catalyst market.

While automotive products account for a large part of its sales. Automotive
Emission Systems also made progress with its off-highway business.
Consolidation of manufacturing facilities is lowering costs and a new soot
filter for fork-lift trucks was launched.

Looking forward, the Group intends to expand its role as a supplier of
complete emission systems to the automotive, truck and bus industries. To that
end. Engelhard acquired the business and assets of General Plasma, a leading
North American supplier of thermal spray coatings that provide emissions-
control and fuel-economy benefits when applied to gasoline and diesel engines.

In early 1995, the Group further strengthened its geographic presence with
the opening of a small catalyst facility in South Africa. In February 1995.
the Group formed a joint venture with W.R. Grace to develop. manufacture and
market technologi~ally advanced metallic-substrate catalytic converters that
will help automakers comply with regulations. This joint venture is not
expected to have a material impact on the operations or cash flows of the
Company in the near term.

The Group expects continued strength in 1995 through its efforts to work
more closely with customers. starting with initial product design through
development of advanced technologies that meet increasingly stringent emission
standards.

Stationary Source Emission Control
Salem Engelhard, the Company's joint venture in controlling emissions of
volatile organic compounds, developed new technology based on the capabilities
of both partners. Called Regenerative Catalytic Oxidation. this new technology
will be at the heart of systems ordered in early 1995 by a major forest
products company. Financial performance improved in 1994. but the joint
venture operated at a slight loss. Salem Engelhard has an improved outlook
for 1995 due to strong orders coming into the year.

Engelhard's business in NOx reduction from power-generating facilities is
still developing. While the Company has innovative technology, strong
regulations are not yet in place. Progress in 1994 included two successful
demonstrations of a new cost-effective system to control NOx emissions from
coal-fired power plants. A third demonstration began earlier this year in
New England .. Engelhard also received several orders for NOx control systems
for gas turbine power plants in California.

Petroleum Catalysts
The Petroleum Catalysts Group also increased sales and profit in 1994. the
Group achieved increased volumes of fluid catalytic cracking (FCC) catalysts
in the Asia-Pacific region as new products developed especially for the market
were introduced. Heavier feedstocks are widely used in Asia-Pacific refineries
placing tougher demands on catalysts. In mid-1994 Engelhard introduced
Millennium catalysts for this application and achieved its first sales in Asia
Pacific and in Europe by year's end.

Increased volumes of moving' bed catalysts (MBC) also contributed to the
Group's performance. MBC products are used in older refineries. many of which
are in Russia. For the most part the Russian petroleum industry manufactures
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its own catalysts. In 1994, Engelhard purchased a complemencary MBC business to
augment its existing capabilities in these products. As a resul:. t~e Grou9
was able to place local catalysts at several Russian refineries. Additional
gains are anticipated in 1995 as well.

In the United States, where the refinery industry has been consolidating in
recent years, cost-e.ffective products and excellent customer service are
the Group's emphasis. In 1994. Engelhard gained market share at several major
refiners by cuseomizing products and services for eheir needs.

In addition to FCC and MBC produces, ehe Group is involved in
hydroprocessing products and services through ies joine vencure company. Acreon
Catalyses. In 1994. Acreon operaced at a loss due to poor market demand. The
Group is addressing strategies to improve this business.

In 1994, the petroleum Catalyses Group also upgraded a facility in
Savannah, Georgia. that was purchased in 1993. The plant is expected to be a
positive contributor to earnings in 1995. It also has allowed Engelhard to
develop a new FCC technology called Syntec. This technology combines benefits
from the production method used in Savannah and a proprietary Engelhard
production method. The first produces arising from this new technology were
ineroduced in laee 1994.

Chemical CatalysesOperating earnings increased in the Chemical Catalysts Group on constant sales.
consolidation and productivity initiatives led to the profit growth. Sales
growth in 'certain product lines and in Asia Pacific were balanced by sales
declines in other product lines.The Group has not yet benefitted from the upturn in the overall chemical
industry because of adverse trends in some of its market segments. These
include lower catalyst consumption and declining end markets. New initiatives
begun over the last few years are helping to counter these trends and provide
growth opportunities for Chemical Catalysts.

The Group is maintaining its pressure on cases, pursuing opportunities in
the economically thriving Asia-Pacific region, joining forces with some
customers to manufacture custom catalysts and building alliances to develop
new, more efficient manufacturing processes using advanced catalysts. In
1994, exports to its key markets in the Asia-Pacific region--Korea, Taiwan.
Japan. Malaysia. Indonesia and India increased significantly. In 1993. a
large U.S. consumer products company chose Engelhard to supply a catalyst the
company formerly made for itself, and in 1994 the second such agreement waS
made. The new agreement is with a leading European chemical company that will
be working with Engelhard in the area of polymers.

The Group is pursuing alliances with engineering firms that are developing
new manufacturing processes. working with the M.W. Kellogg Company. Engelhard
is participating in the design and construction of the first plant that will be
using a new ammonia process the twO companies developed together.

1993 Compared with 1992Operating earnings increased 16 percent while sales increased six percent over
the prior year. Significantly higher earnings from the petroleum and Chemical
Catalysts Groups more than offset lower earnings from the Environmental
Catalysts Group.Increased demand and favorable pricing in FCC catalysts produced
significantly higher results in the Petroleum Catalyses Group. The Chemical
Catalysts Group benefitted from substantial reductions in manufacturing costS
as a result of its reengineering programs. These more chan offset lower volumes
caused by the timing of customer orders. The decline in the Environmental
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Catalysts Grou~ earnings was due to an inc~ease in new product develop~ent
expenses and lower non-automotive volumes, which more than offset an iGcrease
in U.S. and European auto catalyst volumes, including the initial sales of
diesel truck catalysts.

1992 Compared with 1991
Operating earnings increased 27 oercent in 1992. Sales increased 2B percent,
in part as a result of the acquisition of the remainder of the Company's
former German auto-catalyst joint venture (see "Investments"). The Petroleum
Catalysts Group generated increased sales and earnings mainly as a result of
favorable pricing and product mix for fluid catalytic cracking catalysts. Lower
Environmental Catalysts Group earnings were due to reduced domestic auto
catalysts shipments. higher costs associated with the European auto catalysts
business and increased new product development and marketing expenses,
partially offset by technology transfer income. The Chemical Catalysts Group
earnings benefitted from cost reductions. which were offset by the impact of
the recession on the chemical. construction and automotive industries.

Outlook
The outlook for this segment in 1995 is favorable. The Automotive Emission
Systems business should benefit from a ,continued strong automotive industry and
from its initiatives in advanced technology and systems. Stationary Source
Emission Control should improve with strong orders coming in to Salem
Engelhard. Petroleum Catalysts is expected to take advantage of new capacity
and make further inroads in the growing Asia-Pacific market. while Chemical
Catalysts intends to continue cost management efforts. building close customer
alliances and pursuing opportunities in Asia Pacific.

Pigments and Additives

Engelhard'S Pigments and Additives segment develops. manufactures and markets
coating and extender pigments for the paper industry and color pigments and
specialty minerals for a variety of industries. The Company's paper pigments
are used principally to make coating and uncoated papers. Its color pigments
are used primarily in paints and coatings, plastics, rubber and printing inks,
while specialty mineral products are sold to the plastics. rubber. wire and
cable. coatings. inks and adhesives industries.

Most of the minerals used by this segment are mined by the Company from
reserves it owns or has under long-term leases. Engelhard has sufficient
mineral reserves for its operations.

Results of Operations
(in millions) 1994 1993 1992

Net sales
Operating earnings
Special charge

$376.0
72.0

$369.0
55.0

(30.3)

$362.2
56.8

1994 Compared with 1993
Operating earnings inceased 31 percent while sales increased two percent over
the prior year. Earnings increased for both the paper Pigments and Chemicals
Group and the Specialty Minerals and Colors Group. Increased volumes of
calcined paper pigments and lower manufacturing costs in the Paper Pigments and
Chemicals "Group produced sign{ficantly higher earnings. The Specialty Minerals
and Colors Group experienced significantly higher earnings due to favorable
product mix and lower manufacturing costs.
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?aper ?igments and Chemicals
For the paper industry. 1994 started out as another difficult year. bur. Sl.gns
of economic recovery were evident by year's end. The industry is antici~ated
to stabilize and improve through 1995 with North America and Europe leading the
recovery.

The Company took a number of steps to respond to the recovery in the paper
industry and to build competitive advantages.

In April 1995. a new calciner will go on stream in Middle Georgia to meet
the paper industry'S increasing demand for calcined-kaolin products. This
additional capacity will also address growing demand for specialty mineral
products and intermediates for petroleum-refining catalysts.

To better serve the important Japanese market. Engelhard opened a new
distribution center close to some of that country's largest paper mills. In
addition to increased storage capability. the facility allows more flexible
packagirtg options.

The drive for superior service is being extended into all areas of the
order-fulfillment process. After equipping a fleet of 1.100 rail cars with
quick disconnect fittings to simplify and speed unloading. the business
implemented its Quick-Trax system on a pilot basis. It tells customers exactly
where their shipments are at all times. In addition. electronic data
interchange is being applied to allow easier, faster order placement tracing,
invoicing and payment.

In early 1995, the Paper Pigments and Chemicals and the Specialty Minerals
and Colors Groups were combined under one management. This consolidation is
expected to yield cost and productivity benefits in purchasing, manufacturing
and administration while separate sales, marketing and technical service
functions will continue to respond to the different customer requirements for
these product lines.

Specialty Minerals and Colors
The Specialty Minerals and Colors business also achieved growth in operating
earnings, primarily through effective cost management efforts, new products and
an improved product mix. Sales volumes overall remained about even with the
1993 level.

Kaolin-based products introduced over the last few years helped fuel the
earnings increase. They include ASP extender pigments for high-gloss paints
and Translink reinforcing agents for plastics. Toward the end of the year, the
Group introduced MetaMax additives for reinforcing concrete and received early
positive reviews from customers.

For attapulgite products, the planned acquisition of a more modern
manufacturing facility, from Floridin, will help this business to continue
cost-management efforts, while broadening produce and service capabilities.
This acqUisition was under review by the U.S. Department of Justice Anti-Trust
Division at the time of publication.

In colors, the Group experienced continued success with organic traffic-
grade pigments as more municipalities made the switch from lead-based products.
In addition, development work continued on the Company's low-VOC colorants. A
new line of low VOc colorants with better performance than competitive products
has been developed and is being commercialized in 1995.

Technology advances are playing an important part in new products for in-
store paint mixing. The new line is being developed with a leading manufacturer
of high-quality paint. It will offer consumers a much broader palette from
which .to choose than is a~ailable today.
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1993 Compared with 1992
Operating earnings decreased three percent while sales increased slighcly.
Earnings declined for both che Paper Pigments and Chemicals Group and che
Specialty Minerals and Colors Group.

The decline in the Paper Pigments and Chemicals Group was primarily due eo
lower pricing and higher manufacturing and operating coses, chese faccors more
chan offsec increased volumes. The Specialcy Minerals and Colors Group
experienced unfavorable atcapulgice volumes and higher manufacturing coses in
its minerals business, which more than offset favorable volumes and pricing for
its colors business.

1992 Compared with 1991
Operating earnings and sales increased four percent in 1992. Higher volumes.
favorable sales prices and lower manufacturing costs, partially offset by lower
sales of commodity grades of attapulgite products. A decline in the Paper
Pigments and Chemioals Group earnings reflected lower prices and higher energy
costs, partially offset by higher volumes and lower operating expenses.

Outlook
The Pigments and Additives segment should benefit from efficiencies gained as
its two core businesses are being combined under one management. Capacity
increases will allow the Group to take advantage of strengthening worldwide
economies and a recovery in the paper industry. A favorable product mix and
higher volumes are expected for Specialty Minerals and Colors.

Engineered Materials and Precious Metals Management

The Engineered Materials and Precious Metals Management segment develops,
manufactures and markets fabricated products and coatings based on precious
metals for a broad spectrum of industries. This segment also engages in
precious metals management on behalf of Engelhard businesses and customers that
use precious metals. It also participates in refining and marketing of energy-
related services.

Results of Operations
(in millions) 1994 1993 1992

Net sales
Operating earnings
Special charge

$1,407.3
36.8

$1,240.8
31.0

(38.6)

$1.526.5
42.0

Precious metals are included in the sales figures if the metal has been
supplied by Engelhard. In these cases, precious metal market price
fluctuations can result in material variations in sales. Often, customers
supply the precious metals for the manufactured product. In these cases
precious metals values are not included in the sales numbers. The mix
of such arrangements and the extent of market price fluctuations can
significantly impact the level of sales reported but do not usually have a
direct material effect on earnings. Purchase of metal for customers' products
are normally hedged. See Note 12, "Financial Instruments and Precious Metals
Operations," of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further
information. about hedging activities.
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1994 Com9ared with 1993
This segment increased operating earnings 19 percent and sales 13 gercen:.
Higher earnings from the Engineered Materials Group more than offset slightly
lower earnings from the Precious Metals Management Group. Higher sales volumes
in the U.S. and Asia Pacific combined with lower manufacturing COStS produced
increased earnings in the Engineered Materials Group. The Precious Metals
Management Group experienced weak worldwide market conditions.

Engineered Materials
The Engineered Materials Group has the widest product line and broadest
customer base in Engelhard. The Group continued to adjust its operations and
products to market trends. Most of the Group's markets are classified as
mature and cyclical with modest growth rates.

In 1994, the Group's diversity was an advantage. Favorable market
influences in the United States balanced the impact of the lingering re~ession
in Europe. In the United States. higher sales for applications in such basic
industries as housing, glass and electronics have more than offset lower
sales to the defense industry. Sale~ of plating products for the electronics
industry and metal-joining products were strong. Growth in Asia Pacific
also was achieved.

A planned joint venture with the French precious metals company CLAL (see
"Current Development~") should provide significant efficiencies. The joint
venture, which is expected to be finalized in May 1995, will combine most of
the assets of Engelhard's Engineered Materials business with CLAL. Synergies
between the geographic and technology positions of the two companies will help
expand market reach and new product development efforts.

Precious Metals Management
The Engelhard-CLAL joint venture also offers growth opportunities for
Engelhard'S Precious Metals Management Group. The Group will provide virtually
all of the precious metals consumed by the joint venture, while remaining the
supplier to all Engelhard business groups and many external customers that use
precious metals.

The Precious Metals Management Group reported somewhat lower earnings and
flat sales for 1994. The major causes were weak worldwide market conditions and
expenses associated with steps to diversify. To achieve consistent profit
growth, the Group is focusing on geographic expansion and ways to offer its
commodity management skills to a wider array of industries and customers.

Advances were made on both fronts during 1994. Business development
activities in Moscow, Tokyo and South America were advanced. while a subsidiary
was formed to market electric power in the United States. The Group assumed
responsibility for platinum group metals refining and associated operations,
transferred from the Chemical Catalysts Group. The move groups related services
into a "full-loop" package for customers.

1993 Compared with 1992
Operating earnings decreased 26 percent as sales declined 19 percent. The drop
in sales was principally the result of lower volumes and pricing for cer,:ain
platinum group metals. Lower earnings from the Precious Metals Management
Group more than offset higher earnings from the Engineered Materials Group.
The Engineered Materials Group achieved cost savings and sales increases in the
U.S. market.
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1992 C~mpared with 1991
Operating ea~nings decreased 12 percent and sales were down 11 percent. The
sales decline was principally the result of the acquisition of the remai~der cf
the Company'S former German joint venture (see "Investments") and lower
~recious metals prices. Earnings for the Engineered Materials Group were about
:he same as 1991, as highe~ volumes in the United States were partially offset
by the impact of weak European markets. Earnings from the Precious Metals
Management Group decreased as a result of generally weaker market conditions.

Outlook
This segment will be altered significantly by the formation of the Engelhard-
CLAL joint venture. Most of the Engineered Materials Group will become part of
the new venture. Profit will be reported as equity earnings. The joint
venture, and geographic and service expansions in Precious Metals Management,
is expected to lead to improved overall results in 1995.

Selling, Administrative and Other

Selling, administrative and other expenses increased in 1994 to $244.6 million
from $213.0 million in 1993 and $224.1 m~llion in 1992. In 1994, based on a
study of incentive 'compensation and in response to changing demographics, the
Company revised its estimate of current compensation expense relating to stock
awards to include the cost of shares where the risk of forfeiture by the
employee has been removed. The impact of this revised estimate was a net
charge to 1994 earnings of $8.6 million ($5.3 million after tax $.05 per
share). See Note 14, "Stock Option and Bonus Plans,· of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. In addition, the increase in 1994 reflects
increased spending on research and development as well as higher expenses
overall related to acquisitions and growth programs (see also "Investments").

Equity Earnings, Interest and Taxes

Equity in earnings of affiliates decreased to SO.6 million in 1994 from $3.4
million in 1993 and $7.4 million in 1992. The decrease in 1994 was primarily
due to the startup losses of a new joint venture Engelhard/ICe and lower
volumes at Acreon Catalysts. The decrease in 1993 was primarily due to the
absence of M&T Harshaw (sold in January 1993) .

Net interest expense was $22.0 million in 1994 compared with $13.7 million
in 1993 and S16.2 million in 1992. Gross interest expense and offsetting
contango income, which are components of net interest expense, reflect the
extent of precious metals financed by spot and forward transactions during each
year. The higher net interest expense in 1994 was primarily due to higher
interest rates "and average debt balances as a result of acquisitions of and
investments in businesses. capital spending and purchases of the Company's
common stock during the year. The lower net interest expense in 1993 was
primarily due to the expiration of an unfavorable interest rate swap agreement
in 1992 and the initiation of a then favorable interest rate swap agreement in
1993. See Note 12, "Financial Instruments and Precious Metals Operations," of
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further information
about these interest rate swap agreements. The lower net interest expense in
1992 resulted from the Company's planned debt reductions.

Interest income. included as a component of net sales, was $1.1 million.
$2.0 million and S2.5 million in 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively.

The Company recorded a S39.3 million income tax provision in 1994, a S21.4
million income tax benefit in 1993 (primarily as a result of the special
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charge) and a 533.7 million income tax provision in 1992. Excluding :je i~~act
of the special charge, the effective income tax expense rate ~as 25.0 percent
in 1994 and 24.3 percent in 1993 and 25.2 percent in 1992. The lower expense
rate in 1993 was primarily due to 1993 U.S. tax legislation which reinstated
the research and development credit and increased the U.S. income tax rate,
~hich had a favorable impact on the Company's net deferred tax asset. At
December 31. 1994. the net deferred tax asset included in the balance sheet ~as
$105.4 million and related primarily to the accrued postretirement and
poscemployment benefit obligations, the restructuring reserve, the
environmental cleanup reserve and other accruals. Management believes that the
Company will generate sufficient taxable earnings and tax planning
opportunities to ensure realization of these tax beneftts.

In-vestments
In July 1994, the Company purchased the business and assets of General Plasma,
Inc., a supplier of thermal spray-coating technology and services. The
acquisition when combined with the Company's catalyst technology aids the
development of complete emission control systems.

In March 1994, the Company purchased the assets of the sorbents and moving
bed catalysts businesses of Solvay Catalysts, GmbH, in Nienburg, Germany. This
acquisition expanded the Company's moving bed catalysts business and provides
complementary product lines serving adsorbents applications.

In early 1994, the Company and ICC Technologies, Inc. formed
Engelhard/ICC, a jointly owned partnership, to develop and commercialize air-
conditioning and air-treatment systems based on a proprietary new desiccant
developed by Engelhard.

In the fourth quarter of 1992, the Company and Procatalyse formed Acreon
Catalysts, a jointly owned partnership that markets hydroprocessing catalysts
in North America and the Caribbean.

In the fourth quarter of 1992, the Company formed Heraeus Engelhard
Electrochemistry Corp., a venture with Heraeus Inc., 46 percent owned by
Engelhard, which markets electrochemical products in the Western Hemisphere.

In the third quarter of 1992, the Company formed Salem Engelhard with Salem
Industries, Inc., a Michigan-based supplier of air pollution control systems.
The jointly owned partnership markets products and services to abate emissions
of volatile organic chemicals and other pollutants.

In the first quarter of 1992, the Company acquired the remaining 50 percent
of Engelhard Kali-Chemie GmbH, an auto catalyst manufacturer and marketer in
Germany.

Current Developments

In November 1994, the Company formally announced that Engelhard Corporation and
Paris-based CLAL (Groupe FlMALAC) had signed a letter of intent to enter into
discussions with the objective of establishing a 50/50 joint venture for the
purpose of refining, manufacturing and selling certain precious and base metal
containing products. Consummation of the joint venture is pending appropriate
approvals.

In June 1994, the Company announced that it intends to acquire certain
assets of the Floridin Company's Specialty Minerals operations. The assets
include a manufacturing facility and mineral rights. The proposal to purchase
the plant and certain related a~sets is contingent on several actions,
including the appropriate government approvals and a definitive agreement.
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Financial Condition and Liquidity

At December 31, 1994, the Company had $24.9 million of working capital,
including $26.4 million of cash. The year-end market value of the Company's
precious metals exceeded its carrying cost by $71.0 million. At December 31,
1994, the Company's ratio of current assets to current liabilities decreased co
1.0 from 1.1 a year earlier, primarily due to increased borrowings.

Short-term bank and commercial paper borrowings increased to $179.7 million
at December 31, 1994, primarily due to the acquisition of General Plasma and
certain assets of Solvay, the formation of Engelhard/ICC, and the Company's
stock purchase program. In addition, short-term borrowings were used to
finance precious metals in excess of the Company's owned inventories needed for
manufacturing and refining operations, as well as for precious metals dealing
activities.

The Company's total debt to total capital ratio increased to 32 percent at
December 31, 1994, from 29 percent at December 31, 1993, as a result of higher
short-term borrowings. The Company currently has available S605 million in
committed revolving credit facilities. The Company also has authorization f~om
its 80ard of Directors to issue up to S200 million of commercial paper ($127.3
million outstanding at December 31, 1994) and S100 million of additional long-
term financing and has uncommitted line~ of short-term credit exceeding S700
million. In 1996, management expects to call the S100 million lot Notes due in
2000. Management believes that the Company will continue to have adequate
access to short-term and long-term credit and capital markets to meet its needs
for the foreseeable future.

Net cash provided by operating act~vltles was S114.8 million in 1994
compared with S130. 4 million in 1993 and S169. 5 million in 1992. For the past
three-year period, cash and internally generated funds were adequate to fund
working capital requirements, support capital projects and sustain increased
dividend payments. For 1995, management anticipates that cash and cash flows
will again be adequate to fund operational and capital requirements.

Capital Expenditures, Committments and Contingencies

Capital projects designed to maintain capacity, expand operations, improve
efficiency or protect the environment amounted to S97.5 million in 1994
compared with $107.1 million in 1993 and S54.1 million in 1992. Capital
expenditures in 1995 are projected to approximate $120.0 million. See also
Note 15, "Environmental Costs,· and Note 16, "Litigation and Contingencies," of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information about
commitments and contingencies.

Effect of Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

Generally, the Company does not speculate in foreign currency, but enters inco
foreign currency and transactions in the normal course of business and has
investments in a number of different currencies. As a result, the Company is
subject to transaction and translation exposure from fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates. The Company uses a variety of strategies, including
foreign currency forward contracts and internal hedging, to minimize or
eliminate foreign currency exchange rate risk associated wich substantially all
of its foreign currency transactions. In selected circumstances, the Company
enters into foreign currency forward contracts to hedge the u.s. dollar value
of its foreign investments. See Note 12. "Financial Instruments and Precious
Metals Operations," of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
further information about foreign currency hedging activities. Precious metals
inventories are generally not impacted by foreign currency rate fluctuations
because they are denominated in U.S. dollars.
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Dividends and Capital Stock

In the third quarter of 1994, the Board of Direc~ors approved a nine percent
increase in the quarterly dividend on co~mon scock to $.12 effective as of
September 30, 1994. The annualized common scock dividend rate ac the end of
1994 was $.4B per share.

In the third quarter of 1993. the Board of Directors authorized a three-
for-two splic of common stock effective as of September 30, 1993. In the fourth
quarter of 1993, the Board of Directors elected co retire ).5 million shares of
scock previously held in treasury and approved a plan to purchase up to 2.4
million shares of common stock for delivery under its stock incentive and
employee benefit plans. At December 31, 1994, 1.1 million shares had been
purchased under this plan. The plan has now been closed.

In the" third quarter of 1992, the Board of Directors authorized a three-
for-two split of common stock effective as of September 30, 1992. In the second
quarter of 1992. the Board of Directors approved twO separate plans to purchase
up co B.) million shares of the Company's common stock. At December 31. 1994,
7.4 million shares had been purchased under these plans.
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Noees to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting policies

principles of consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
Engelhard Corporation and ies wholly-owned subsidiaries (colleceively referred
to as ehe Company). All significane ineer-company transactions and balances
have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain prior year amounts have been
reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.

Cost of Sales and InventoriesInventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. The elements of cost
include direct labor and materials, variable overhead and the full absorption
of fixed manufacturing overhead. The cost of precious metals inventories is
determined using the last-in. first-out (LIFO) method of inventory valuation.
The cost of other inventories is princi~ally determined using either the
average cost or first-in. first-out (FIFO) method.

The Company routinely enters into a variety of arrangements for the
sourcing and supply of precious metals. These arrangements are spread among a
number of counter-parties. which are generally major industrial companies or
highly rated financial institutions. The conduct of this business is closely
monitored and appropriate reserves for potential losses are maintained.

Depreciation. Depletion and Amortization
Additions to property. plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and
amortization of plant and equipment are provided primarily on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depletion of mineral
deposits and mine development are prOVided under the unit of production method.

When assets are sold or retired. the cost and related accumulated
depreciation or amortization are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss
is included in earnings.

Amortization and Intangible Assets
Goodwill and other acquired intangible assets are recorded at cost and
amortization is prOVided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. but not in excess of 40 years.

Accounting ChangesEffective January 1. 1993, the Company adopted the provlslons of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 112. "Employers' Accounting for
postemployment Benefits." This standard requires the accrual method of
accounting for certain benefits provided to former or inactive employees after
employment but before retirement. As of January 1. 1993. the Company
recognized the full actuarially calculated amount of its estimated accumulated
postemployment benefit obligation. The charge to 1993 earnings was $26.0
million ($16.0 million after tax--S.16 per share). The after-tax amount has
been reflected in 1993 as a cumulative effect of an accounting change.

•

Effective January 1. 1992. the Company adopted the provisions of Statements
of Financial Accounting Standards NO. 106 "Employers' Accounting for
Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions" (SFAS 106) and No. 109
"ACCounting for Income Taxes" (SFAS 109). The cumulative effect of these
accounting changes was to reduce 1992 earnings by $134.5 million (S83.4 million
after tax--S.83 per share) for 5FAS 106 and by $6.1 million ($.06 per share)
for SFAS 109. 0098
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2. Special Charge
In 1993. the Company provided for a plan co realign and consolidate businesses,
concentrate resources and better position itself to achieve its st~ategic
growth objectives. That plan resulted in a special charge of $148.0 million
($91.8 million after tax--$.95 per share) in 1993, consisting of a Sl18.0
million pretax restructure provision for asset writedowns related to product
lines or sites being exited together with provisions for facility shutdown,
rundown and relocation and for employee reassignment, severance and related
benefits and a $30.0 million pretax environmental reserve. See Note 15.
"Environmental Costs," for a discussion of environmental matters and the amount
of the Company's environmental reserve.

The Company's restructuring reserve at December 31. 1993, consisted of the
5118.0 million 1993 special charge and 532.4 million of previously established
provisions associated with idled sites, as rundown costs continue to be
incurred at these sites and their disposition is pending completion of
environmental cleanup and/or consummation of sales. During the fourth quarter
of 1994, the Company reversed 58.0 million of its restructuring reserve because
its idle Canadian facility was sold earlier and at more favorable terms than
originally estimated and because ofla revised, and less costly, approach to the
cleanup/disposition of its idle Newark. New Jersey site.

Generally. the 1993 restructuring plan is being implemented as originally
contemplated. The following table sets forth the components of the Company's
restructuring reserve and related activity for the year:

, Restructuring Reserve
(in millions) Employee Asset

separations writedowns Other Total

(8.8)

$72 .2 542.3
(66.6)

(B.4 )
1.7
7.5 (7.51

(B.O)

$14 .8 $18.4

$150.4
(66.6)
(17.2)

1.7

Balance at December 31, 1993
Asset writeoffs/writedowns
Cash spending
Cash proceeds
Reclassification
Reversal

$35.9

(B. 0)

Balance at December 31, 1994 $27.1 $ 60.3

In 1994, the Company reconfigured certain production processes of the
Middle Georgia facility of the Paper Pigments and Chemicals Group, which
resulted in the writeoff of the associated assets. Two other Company-owned
sites, originally identified for closure, will remain open. One of these
facilities, a part of the Engineered Materials Group. will continue to operate
because of improved economics and the lack of synergy to be achieved from
relocating the manufacturing process. The other facility, a part of the
Chemical Catalysts Group, will continue to operate because the product lines
are complementary to the Company's other businesses. The impairment of this
facility, as opposed to the originally planned shutdown and relocation,
resulted in a reclassification of shutdown and relocation costs to asset
writedowns.

To date, the Company has been unable to implement two of the originally
planned restructuring projects. Delayed Department of Justice clearance has
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impeded the completion of the Floridin acqulsltlon which was formally announced
in June 1994, and is an integral part of the rationalization of the Company's
attapulgite business. Further, although negotiations began in late 1993 for
the establishment of a Paris-based precious metal fabrication joint venture
with CLAL, consummation of the joint venture is pending appropriate approvals.
The Company anticipates implementation of both of these projects as soon as
appropriate approvals/clearances are obtained.

As indicated in the table above, the reserve balance at December 31. 1994.
will be used for severance and related benefits, asset writeoffs and other
expenses, primarily rundown costs at idle sites. The Company continues to
expect that apprOXimately 600 employees will be impacted; currently, about half
of these employees have been separated or notified of their impending
termination.

During 1994, restructuring savings of approximately $7.0 million were
realized, primarily as a result of reduced depreciation. Additional savings
will be realized in 1995, and by the end of 1996 the Company anticipates annual
cost savings of about $20 to $25 million as a result of lower manufacturing and
operating expenses, with annual cash savings of about $15 million.

3. Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs are charged to expense as incurred and were
$49.0 million in 1994, $46.9 million in 1993 and $44.6 million in 1992.

4. Benefits

The Company has pension plans covering substantially all employees. Plans
covering most salaried employees generally provide benefits based on years of
service and the employee'S final average compensation. Plans covering most
hourly, bargaining unit members generally provide benefits of stated amounts
for each year of service. The Company makes contributions to the plans to the
extent such contributions are currently deductible for tax purposes. Plan
assets primarily consist of listed stocks and fixed income securities.

The components of the net pension credit for all plans are shown in the
following table:

Net Pension Credit
(in millions)

Net pension credit

1994 1993 1992

$ 9.3 $ 8.1 $ 8.2
19.1 18.8 18.1
(9.3) (26.9) (20.61

(21.0) (2.2) (11.1)
------ ------ ------
$ (1.9) $ (2.2) $ (5.4)

Service cost
Interest cost
Actual return on plan assets
Net amortization and deferral

The weighted-average discount rate and rate of increase in future
compensation levels used in determining the ac~uarial present value of the
projected benefit obligations for the pension plans are 7.5 to 9.0 percent and
3.5 to 6.5 percent, respectively.' The expected long-term ra~e of return
on assets is 7.5 to 10.5 percent.
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The following table sets forth the plans' funded status:

rounded Status
(in millions) 1994

Actuarial present value of benefit obligations
Vested benefit obligation
Accumulated benefit obligation
projected benefit obligation

Plan assets at fair value
Plan assets in excess of projected benefit obligation
Unrecognized net loss
Unrecognized prior service cost
Unrecognized transition asset. net of amortization

S206.9
5217 .8
5254.3
S283.6
S 29.3

39.8
6.8

(14.7)

Prepaid pension expense $ 61.2

1993

S209.4
S220.2
S250.2
S280.9
S 30.7

34. 8
6.3

(19.7)

S 52.1

The Company also soonsors twO savings plans covering certain salaried and
hourly paid employees. The Company's contributions. which may equal up to 50
percent of certain employee contributions, were $2.0 million in 1994, 1993 and
1992 .

The Company also currently provides postretirement medical and life
insurance benefits to certain retirees (and their spouses), certain disabled
employees (and their families) and spouses of certain deceased employees.
Substantially all U.S. salaried employees and certain hourly paid employees
are eligible for these benefits, which are paid through the Company's general
health care and life insurance programs, except for certain medicare~eligible
salaried and hourly retirees who are provided a defined contribution towards
the cost of a partially insured health plan. In addition, the Company prOVides
postemployment benefits to former or inactive employees after employment but
before retirement. These benefits are substantially similar to the
postretirement benefits but cover a much smaller group of employees.

The components of the net expense for these postretirement and
postemployment benefits are shown in the following table:

postretirement and Postemployment Benefit Expense
(in millions) 1994 1993 1992

,~ Service cost $ 2.3 $ 2.1 $ 2.6
Interest cost 10.0 13.3 11.0
Net amortization (4.5) (3.2) (1.0)

Net benefit expense $ 7.8 $12.2 $12.6

Annual cash spending for postretirement and postemployment benefits
averaged approximately $7 million for the past three-year period.
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~ The following table sets forth the components of the accrued postretirement
and postemployment benefit obligation, all of which are unfunded:

postretirement and Postemployment Benefit Obligation
(in millions) 1994 1993

$ 72 .3 $ 92 .6
16.0 19.9
33.1 39.2

------ - - - _ ....
121.4 151.7

37.1 39.6
7.1 (23.6)

------ ------
$165.6 $167.7

~ ACcumulated benefit obligation
Retirees
Fully eligible active participants
Other active participants

~ unrecognized prior service cost
Unrecognized net g~in (loss)
Accrued benefit obligation

The weighted-average discount rate used in determining the actuarial
, present value of the accumulated postretirement and postemployment benefit

obligation is 8.5 percent. The average assumed health care cost trend rate used
for 1994 is 12 percent. gradually decreasing to 5 percent by 2004. A one
percent increase in the assumed health care cost trend rate would increase
aggregate service and interest cost in 1994 bY $1.9 million and the accumulated
postretirement and postemployment benefit obligation as of December 31, 1994,

t by $15.8 million.

5. Related Party Transactions
The Company, in the ordinary course of business, has raw material supply
arrangements with entities in which it is informed Anglo American Corporation
of South Africa Limited (Anglo) has a material interest. Anglo indirectly holds
a significant minority interest in the common stock of the Company. The
Company's purchases from such entities amounted to $233.1 million in 1994,
$228.7 million in 1993 and $254.5 million in 1992. and metal leases to such
entities amounted to $49.7 million in 1994. These transactions were under
terms no less favorable to the Company than those arranged with other parties.
At December 31. 1994 and 1993 amounts due to such entities totaled $14.8
million and $3.4 million, respectively.
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6. Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense are shown in the following table:

Income Tax Expense (Benefit)
(in millions) 1994 1993 1992

$13.3 $18.4 S13.0
1.3 1.6 1.0
7.5 7.8 2.5

22.1 27.8 16.5

13 .2 (39.8) 11.5
1.3 (1.6)
2.7 (2.7) 2.B
8.1 (1.2) 6.4

(8.1) (3.9) (3.5)
------

17.2 (49.2) 17.2
------

$39.3 $ (21.4) $33.7

Current income tax expense
rederal
Scate
Foreign

Deferred income tax expense (benefit)
Federal
Changes in tax races
State
Foreign
Loss carryforwards/tax credits

Income tax expense (benefic)

;;

The foreign portion of income (loss) before income tax expense (benefit)
was income of $51.0 million in 1994, $20.9 million in 1993 and $36.4 million in
1992. Taxes cn income of foreign consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates are
provided at the tax rates applicable to their respective foreign tax
jurisdictions. Tax credits (charges) of $3.6 million in 1994, $6.2 million in
1993 and ($0.8) million in 1992, in connection with equity adjustments, are
included in such adjustments for those years and are not reflected in the
amounts shown above.

The following table sets forth the components of the net deferred income
tax asset which results from temporary differences between the amounts of
assets and liabilities recognized for financial reporting and tax purposes:

•r
Net Deferred Income Tax Asset
(in millions) 1994 1993

$ 78.1 S102.1
66.4 68.1
41.3 30.3

(28.5) (24.5)
(16.1) (22.6)
(]5.8 ) (36.1)

------ ------
$105.4 S117.3

Deferred tax assets
Accrued liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Tax credits and carryforwards

Deferred tax liabilities
Prepaid pension expense
Property. plant and equipment
Other assets

Net deferred income tax asset
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As of December 31. 1994. the Company had approximately $16.8 million of
nonexpiring alternative minimum tax credit car~forwards and approximately $;.8
million of research and development credits with expiration dates through 2009
available to offset future U.S. Federal income taxes. Also. as of December 31.
1994, the Company had approximately $11.6 million of foreign nonexpiring net
operating loss carryforwards and apprOXimately $6.0 million of foreign
investment tax credits expiring in 2000 available to offset certain future
foreign income taxes.

A reconciliation of the difference between the Company's consolidated
income tax expense (benefit) and the expense (benefit) computed at the federal
statutory rate is shown in the following table:

Consolidated Income Tax Expense (Benefit) Reconciliation

(in millions) 1994 1993 1992

Income tax expense (benefit) at federal
statutory rate $55.0 $ (1.6) $45.5

Special charge (4.4)
Effect of tax law changes 1.3 (1.6)
State income taxes, net of federal effect 2.6 2.8 2.5
Percentage depletion (11.6) (11.61 (10.0)
Equity earnings (.6) 0.7)
Effect of different tax rates on

foreign earnings, net 2.3 (4.0) (3.1)
Benefit of tax credits (7.5) (1.0)
Foreign sales corporation (3.4) (1.4) (1.81
Other items. net 1.2 1.4 2.3

------
Income tax expense (benefit) $39.3 $(21.4) $33.7

At December 31. 1994, the Company's share of the cumulative undistributed
earnings of foreign subsidiaries was approximately $251.8 million. No provision
has been made for U.S. or additional foreign taxes on the undistributed
earnings of foreign subs"idiaries because such earnings are expected to be
reinvested indefinitely in the subsidiaries' operations. It is not practicable
to estimate the amount of additional tax that might be payable on these foreign
earnings in the event of distribution or sale; however, under existing law.
foreign tax credits would be available to substantially reduce, or in some
cases eliminate, U.S. taxes payable.

7. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:

Inventories
(in millions) 1994 1993

$ 62.9 $ 49.1
24.1 31.1

103.0 82.7
53.4 53.4

------ ------
$243.4 S216.3

Raw materials
Work in process
Finished goods
Precious metals

Total inventories
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All precious metals inventories are Stated at LIFO cost. 7he marke: va~:0: the precious metals inventories exceeded cost by 561.0 million and 555.7
million at December 31, 1994 and 1993, respectively. The Company also has a
long-term investment in precious metals. The combined market value of precic
metals in inventories and the investment exceeded cost by 571.0 million and
574.5 million at December 31, 1994 and 1993, respectively.

In the normal course of business, certain CUstomers and suppliers deposi
significant quantities of precious metals with the Company under a variety a
arrangements. Equivalent quantities of precious metals are returnable asproduct or in other forms.

8. Investments

The Company has investments in affiliates that are accounted for on the equit
'method. The most significant of these investments is N.E. Chemcat Corporation
(N.E. ChemcatJ, a 38.8 percent owned, Publicly-traded Japanese corporation an

a leading producer of automotive and chemical catalysts, electronic chemicals
and Other precious metals-based products. At December 31, 1994, the quoted
market value of the Company's investment in N.E. Chemcat was in excess of 52(
million. The valuation represents a mathematical calCUlation based on a closir
quotation pUblished by the Tokyo over-the-counter market and is not necessari!
indicative of the amount that could be realized upon sale. '

In the first quarter of 1993. the Company sold its investment in M&T
Harshaw to its partner for $40 million in cash with the buyer assuming all
assets and liabilities. As a reSult, the Company realized an after-tax gain of56.3 million (S.06 per share).

The summarized unaudited financial information below represents an
aggregation of the Company's nonsUbsidiary affiliates:
Financial Information (unaudited)(in millions)

1994 1993 1992Earnings data
W Revenue

5348.1 5327.3 5445.5
Gross profit

62.0 55.4 120.3
Net earnings

6.4 10.4 18.3
Company's equity in net earnings .6 3.4 7.4

Balance sheet dataCurrent assets
5231. 2 5222.3Noncurrent assets

123.5 103.0Current liabil ities
103.1 103.4Noneur,rent liabilities

18.8 15.6Net assets
232.8 206.3Company's equity in net assets 105.5 90.5

The Company's share of undistributed earnings of affiliated companies
inclUded in consolidated retained earnings was $41.8 million at December 31,
1994. DiVidends from affiliated companies were S3.8 million in 1994, 52.6million in 1993 and $3.1 million in 1992.

The Company has other investments, inclUding an investment in preciousmetal, that are accOunted for at cost.

-37-

0105

TIERRA-B-006192



9. ~roperey, Plane, and Equipmene

?roperty plant and equipmene consise of the following:

?roperty, Plane and Equipment
(in millions) 1994 1993

S 14.0 S 13 .0
155.5 139.6
982.5 883.5

62.9 66.9
70.2 68.0

.... _----_ .... --------
1,285.1 1,171.0

744.7 676.6
-------- --------
S 540.4 S 494.4

Land
Buildings and building improvements
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Mineral deposits and mine development

Accumulated depreciation. depletion and amortization

Property. plant and equipment, net

10. Short-term Borrowings and Long-term Debt,

•

At December 31, 1994. unsecured committed revolving credit agreements include a
$300 million facility with a group of North American money center banks and a
$)05 million facility with a group of major foreign banks which expire in 1997
and 1998. respectively. Commitment fees are paid on unused portions
of these lines. In connection with its credit facilities. the Company has
agreed to certain covenants, none of which is considered restrictive to the
operations of the Company .

At December 31, 1994 and 1993. short-term bank borrowings were $52.3
million and $80.0 million, respectively, at a weighted average interest rate of
6.3% and 3.7\. respectively. At December 31. 1994 and 1993, commercial paper
borrowings were $127.3 million and $20.0 million. respectively, at a weighted
average interest rate of 6.0\ and 3.3\, respectively.

Additional unused lines of credit available exceeded $700 million at
December 31. 1994. The Company's lines of credit with its banks are available
in accordance with normal terms for prime commercial borrowers and are not
subject to commitment fees or other restrictions.

The following table sets forth the components of long-term debt:

Debt Information
(in millions) 1994 1993

10\ Notes, ca1lable at par in 1996, due 2000
(net of discount)

Industrial revenue bond, 7.91\ adjustable to
market in 1995, due 1997

Industrial revenue bonds 64.5\ to 68\ of
prime rate, due 1997-1999

$ 99.8 $ 99.8

5.5 5.5

5.5 5.5

Foreign bank loans with a weighted-average
interest rate of 7.0\, due 1995-1999 1.5 1.8

Amounts due within one year
112.3

.5
112.6

.4

Total long-term debt $111.8 $112.2

• -38- 0106
TIERRA-B-006193



As of December 31, 1994, che aggregace macuricies of long-ce~m debt for :~e
succeeding five years are as follows: SO.5 million in 1995. 50.5 millicn i~
1996, $6.8 million in 1997 and 54.5 million in 1999. In addition. ~anagement
expects co call the $100 million 10~ Notes in 1996. See Note 12, "rinancial
Instruments and Precious Metals Operacions, " for a discussion about interest
rate swap agreements.

11. Lease Commitments

The Company rents real property and equipment under long-term operacing leases.
Future minimum rental payments required under noncancellable operating leases,
having initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year, are 58.6 million
in 1995, S7.6 million in 1996. $6.9 million in 1997, 56.5 million in 1998. S6.~
million in 1999 and $37.6 million thereafter. Rental/lease expense, including
all leases, amounted to $14.5 million in 1994, $13.5 million in 1993 and $12.0
million in 1992.

12. Financial Instruments and Precious Metals Operations

•

The Company does not generally speculate in or engage in the trading of
derivative financial instruments. Derivative financial instruments are used by
the Company primarily for hedging purposes to mitigate risk and include foreign
currency forward Contracts and interest rate swap agreements. The Company's
nonderivative financial instruments consist primarily of cash in banks,
temporary investments, accounts receivable and debt.

The fair value of financial instruments in working capical approximates
book value. At December 31. 1994, the fair value of long-term debt was about
S114.2 million based on current interest rates, compared with a book value of
S112.3 million.

The Company's financial instruments do not represent a concentration of
credit risk because the Company deals with a variety of major banks worldwide,
and its accounts receivable are spread among a number of major induscries.
customers and geographic areas. In addition, a centralized credit committee
reviews significant credit transactions before consummation and an appropriate
level of reserves is maintained. Provisions to chese reserves were not
significant in 1994, 1993 or 1992. Management believes that should a
counterparty fail to perform according to the terms of an agreemen~, it is
unlikely that any of the Company's off-balance sheet financial instruments
would result in a significant loss to the Company.

•

Foreign Currency Forward Contracts
In the normal course of business, the Company enters into transactions
denominated in foreign currencies. In addition, the Company has SUbsidiary and
nonsubsidiary investments in a number of different currencies. As a result, the
Company is subjeCt to transaction and translation exposure from fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates. The Company uses a variety of strategies,
including foreign currency forward contracts and internal hedging, to minimize
or eliminate foreign currency exchange rate risk associated with substantially
all of ics foreign currency transactions. Gains and losses on these hedging
transactions are generally recorded in earnings in the same period as they are
realized. which is usually in the same period as the underlying or originating
transactions. In selected circumstances, the Company enters into foreign
currency forward contracts to hedge the U.S. dollar value of its foreign
in~estments. Gains and. losses on these hedging contracts are recognized as
cumulative translation adjustments. In limited and closely monitored
situations. for which pre-approved exposure levels have been set. the Company
may enter into speculative foreign currency transactions. Gains and losses on
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:hese cransactions are recognized in earnings in che period of Che change.
There were no speculative posicions in foreign currencies as of December

31. 1994 and 1993, and there were no material gains or losses from such
positions for any year presented. The following cable sets forth. in U.S.
dollars, the Company's open foreign currency forward concracts used for
hedging:

Foreign Currency Forward Contracts Information
(in millions) 1994 1993

Deutschemark
Japanese Yen
pound Sterling
South African Financial Rand

Buy Sell
S 17.3 S 29.8

68.9 99.9
38.9 15.8

1.4
- - _ ...... + ------

$126.5 $145.5

auy
S 4.6

16.8
11.5

Sell
S25.6

38.2
14 .8

Total open foreign currency
forward contracts S32.9 $78.6

None of these contracts exceeds a year in duration and the net amount of
deferred income and expense on foreign currency forward contracts, which
will predominately be recognized as cumulative translation adjustments, was
$1.0 million expense in 1994 and S.3 million income in 1993.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements
The Company occasionally enters into interest rate swap agreements to modify
the characteristics of its outstanding borrowings from fixed to floating rate
debt or vice versa. The intent of these transactions is to reduce interest
expense. The use and mix of such instruments can vary depending on business and
economic conditions and management's interest rate outlook. The Company uses
swap instruments only as hedges or as integral parts of borrowings. See Note
10. "Short-cerm Borrowings and Long-term Debt." As such, the differential to be
paid or received is accrued and recognized in income as an adjustment to
incerest expense. During the past three-year period, the Company used two
interest rate swap agreements intended to reduce interest expense on certain of
its outstanding debt. These swap agreements were based on amounts and
maturities which coincide with the debt agreements. There has been no
speculative trading in these instruments and of these two agreements, one was
held to maturity and the other is intended to be held to maturity. In
connection with the S100 million lOt Notes due in 2000, callable in 1996. the
Company entered into a $100 million notional principal amount swap contract
running from May 11. 1993, to May 13. 1996, to receive 4.5\ and to pay LIBOR.
In connection-with the $100 million 11.75\ Eurobonds due in 1992, the Company
entered into a S100 million notional principal amount swap contract running
from June 9. 1986" to March 29. 1992. to receive LIBOR and to pay 11.15t. The
impact of these swap contracts was to increase interest expense by $.3 million
in 1994. to decrease interest expense by $.7 million in 1993 and to increase
interest expense by $1.3 million in 1992. The resulting impact on the Company's
weighted average borrowings rate was not material for any year presented.

Precious Metals Operations
Some of the Company's businesses use precious metals in their manufacturing
processes ..In addition. sales 'and purchases of precious metals to/from
industrial and refining customers are transacted through the Company's dealing
operations. Secondarily, and usually as a consequence of the above
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transactions, the Company also engages in precious metals dealing with other
counterparties. Generally. all of these precious metals transactions are hedged
on a daily basis, using spot, forward. futures or option transactions, to
substantially eliminate the exposure to price risk. In limited and closely
monitored situations, for which pre-approved exposure levels have been set, the
Company holds unhedged precious metal positions. Changes in the market value of
unhedged (open) precious metal positions are recognized in earnings in the
period of the change by marking these positions to their current market value.

The following table sets forth the Company's open precious metal positions:

Precious Metal Positions Information
(in millions) 1994 1993

Gross Gross
Position value Position value
-------- _ ... ------

Platinum group metals Long S5.8 Long 57.5
Gold Short ( .6) Short
Silver Long .1 Short (2.0)

Total open precious metal positions S5.3 S5.5

.~

The total mark-to-market adjustment related to the above positions was S.2
million expense in 1994 and S.l million expense in 1993.

As a result of its precious metals transactions, the Company earned
contango income of 51.1 million in 1994, 53.6 million in 1993 and $2.8 million
in 1992. Contango is a term common to precious metal transactions representing
the premium received or paid when settlement of the precious metal transaction
is in the future. This premium constitutes an offset to the financing costs
associated with carrying the precious metal that underlies the transaction. As
SUCh. contango is reflected in the statement of earnings as an adjustment to
interest expense because it is an integral component of the Company's financing
costs.

13. Industry Segment and Geographic Area Data

The Company operates in three industry segments: Catalysts and Chemicals,
Pigments and Additives, and Engineered Materials and Precious Metals
Management.

The Catalyst and Chemicals segment develops, manufactures and markets a
wide range of catalysts and related products and processes for the automotive,
off-road vehicle, aircraft, power generation, petroleum refining, chemical.
petrochemical, pharmaceutical and food process"ing industries. among others. The
Company's products are used by customers in these industries to reduce
emissions, achieve desired manufacturing yields and improve quality and/or
cost-efficiency.

The Pigments and Additives segment develops, manufactures and markets
coating and extender pigments for the paper industry and color pigments and
specialty minerals for a variety of industries. The Company's paper pigments
are used principally to make coated and uncoated papers and paper board. Its
color pigments are used primarily in paints and coatings, plastics. rubber and
princing inks. while specialty mineral products are sold to the plastics,
rubber. wire and cable, coatings. inks and adhesives industries.
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The Engineered Materials and ?recious Metals Management segment develops,

manufactures and markets fabricated products and coatings based on precious
metals for a broad spectrum of industries. This segment also engages in
precious metals management on behalf of Company businesses and customers that
use precious metals. It also participates in refining and marketing of energy-
related services.

<TABLE>
The following table presents certain data by industry segment:
t"=u.try.S.~nt tn~o~tion
1in OIillion.1

<c.

<5. Cat.ly.t. "
Cho..ic:al.

1"4
N.t. ... 1 ••
Operating earning_ exclYdift9

.pecJ.&l cr-dit.
Spocal cro=it
Ooprecl.tion, aoplotion

and al'llOrtiz.t.ion
Iaontitiabl ••••• t.
Capital _xpendieur-., nee
un
Nee. •• 1••
Operating .an>ing •• xclu<ling

opocial cbarg.
Speci.l cb.rg.
Ooprociation, aopl.tion

And &mo~iz.eion
t=.ntifiable ••••t.

Capit.l .xpen=ituro., not
l"J
N4t. •• 1••
Op4r.tin~ ••rnin9_
Ooproc:i.tion, depletion

~d .~~is.tion
Id.ntlfiAbl ...... t.

C~pi~.l .xpend1~urw.. net

$502.5

".,

29.5
45].5

]].1

$541.1

11. ,
179.11

27.0
394.4

'1.0

5511.0

7D.'

31.1
401.$

23.2

<c.

Pi~nt. "
>.cl=itiv••

$] 7'.0

27.'
4]1.'

54.0

U59.0

55 .0
1]0.] I

2'.7
]1].5

U.2

$U].2
H.I

21.2
4Dt .•

20.2

<c.
Engin_rod
pt&t.erial ...

Pr.ciou.
Mee ..1.

<c:.<c.

51,407.] 52,]1S.1

n.o 205.7
'.0

35.1

'.0

7.0
no .,

5.2

5.0
]]4 .•

4.5

" .1
1.440. I

".5

51,240.1 52,lS0.'

31.0
131."

H7.'
1141.0)

7.1
U2.7

7.5

4.4
2". S

J.'

'0.2
1.279.1

107.1

Sl.SH.5
42.0

$ $1.1".7
159.7

7.'
255.2

'.2

5.0
221. ,

1.5

7l..

1.217.7
50.1

Int.r ..... ne ••1•• are not aigaificant.. In 1.t). eh. apecial charge reduced identifiable &•••~. by $13.2
million 1ft Ca~.ly.~. an~ ch•• ~cal., S2S.~ .illion in Pi~ne. and Additiv.. and $7.5 .illion in In9in••r-~
H&ter~~l. &nd Pr.ciou. Mecal. "&A.g.~n~while eb. ~l&e.d eax ~n.fl~ inc~ •••d idenCifi~bl••••• c. by $41.]
million in Corporat. and Oth.r.
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O.Oiraphi~ ~a Data
11<\million.1 Spec:ul

:nt.r- ar... Operilt ing- (ch.&rge) Id.nt.:.~ lAbl •
•&1.. .&rn~ng. erwdlt ~ ••• ~.

UH
t:nited St.a.t.•• Sl.5U.' S U.5 $U4.7 a S'55.4

Fcr.ign 117 ~ 7".0 41. a .0 450.'

un, Uni.t..d St.ac.•• $1. ~" . I S 30.9 SUI.5 SIUO ] 1 SUI.1

Fc .... i.!Jn 754 .1 8'.0 ", .... In 71 40~.5

1H~
Unit-eo St..at.•• $1,544 .~ BU.' $114. a S UU"

Fc .... i.!Jn a55 5 .,,~ 35.7 404. S

c/-:-OUU:,

Inter-area sales are generally based on market prices. In 1993, the special
charge reduced identifiable assets by 510.8 million in the United States and
57.0 million for foreign operations. Most of the Company's foreign operations
are conducced by European subsidiaries. United Scates export sales .co customers
throughout the world were 5237.0 mil~ion in 1994, 5231.2 million in 1993 and
5316.3 million,in 1992.

The following table reconciles segment operating earnings with che earnings
before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting changes as shown in the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings:

Reconciliation to Consolidated Statements of Earnings

(in millions) 1994 1993 1992

Operating earnings 5213.7 S 19.9 $169.7
Gain on sale of investment 10.1
::quity earnings .6 3.4 7.4

;" Interest and other expenses. net 157,0) l3B.11 (43.2)
------ _ ... ----

Earnings !loss} before income taxes and
cumulacive effect of accounting changes 5157.3 5 (4.7) 5133.9

For the years ended December 31. 1994 and 1992, one customer of both the
Catalysts and Chemicals and the Engineered Materials and Precious Metals
Management segmencs accounted for 11 percent and 12 percent. respectively. of
the Company's net sales.

<TABLE::>
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14. Stock Option and Bonus Plans
The Company's Stock Option Plans of 1991 and 1981, as amended (the Key Option
Plans) generally provide for the granting to key employees of options to purchase
an aggregate of 11,250.000 and 4,556,250 common shares, respectively, at fair
market value on the date of grant. No options under the Key Option Plans may be
granted after June 30, 2001. In 1993, the Company established the Employee Stock
Option Plan of 199), as amended, which generally provides fo~ the granting to all
employees (excluding U.S. bargaining unit employees and key employees eligible
under the Key Option Plans} of options to purchase an aggregate of 1,875,000
common shares at fair market value on the date of grant. No options under this
plan may be granted after December 31, 1994. Options under all plans become
exercisable in installments after one year, and no options may be exe~cised after
10 years from the date of grant. OUtstanding options may be cancelled and
reissued unde~ terms specified in the plan documents. The effect of outstanding
stock options has been excluded from the calculation of the numbe~ of shares
outstanding used to compute earnings per share of common stock because it is not
significant.

Stock option transactions under all plans a~e as follows:

Stock Option Information
•c. •c. .c. .c• .c•

OUt.tlnd109 a, end of y •• r
!:x.rei,lol •• tel:td 'Of y.ar
....v.tl ..bl. t:::J1" :uc'l.Ire lJraCC.

ln4 1"3 1"2.~_........ _._ ......... - ............... ...................... ......... ............... ------------------_ ..........
_10 .. option pete. H\l;_tM'r option pole. HuMDer OpcIC1n prlc:.

"I .b.aE' •• pee .b.6re QI _hAr •• pee .h4r. "I Iftar •• p.. .hare
.. --.-- -_ .. .. ..... --- _. __ .. .. ............... -- ...............
4.451.352 S 6.11-21.51 ). ]]]. 421 S '."'2).04 ].205.723 $ '-'1-I'Lt'
t. 100. 712 21.]1'21.51 1.130.641 Z2.Q4·Z •• 5. t,OO'.515 11.11'23.04

(13.]05) 1.31'21.51 (",061' '."·21.5. I". no' 1..... I". 17
(449.]121 1.19'21.51 ('51.'55) '.11'11.11 ("2.111' '.11·1~.2i-

................... r .... __ ........... _ ..~...............
].1".247 S 6.11,21.51 '.4] L HZ S 6.U·21.S1 1.153 .... :2-7 $ ,. I' ..23.0.4

I.UI.IU S 6.11,21.51 1.2". ]11 $ '.11·2] .• ' 1.11~1.'12 $ '.11-14.19
7.1".252 J.513.112' '.40'.2 ....

ouc.cancllng a' l:te,!lnnla.g of ye.r
Cr.Qt.ed
CaQctllled
:e:xarc:l.ed

..
The CO'8'lpal:ly·. Key E.ll.pli;Yf •• StOCk .oa.",.. ,.1&11........ nc:tK tt~ •• 0:1'\'1,1' .q.n) provid •• (Of" the .. v.:rd ot up to 11.150."00 eOtMtotl.

..tI.&r •• to key •• ploy ••••• C=-~D .... t loa. for future •• rvlc: .... cot: ... e •• cUn.g 1. 01:2. ~OO .hAr-•• 1.n .n.y y •• r tpl",. Any canc:.ll.d
&w&rch or .t~.r •• av .. ll .. bl. for 6",.rcl. but D,ot pr.vlw.ly AVa""). Th. IOQ.I.I. tl'laa. C.araID."•• on .lune lD. It,6-. SheelU .fW.ard..ct
ve.t to' t1v. *nr'l\l.al In.tall-cnt_. provldlftfJ' th.. r.c;lpl."~ I. :ulll •• ploy" "by the C~p&n.y on t.h. veattt'l9! ct.t*. Co-pen.atton
value 1••••• \;Ired on th" d;6c.. eh ... ..,.. rod. ._ ,:rant.ed.

tn ."4. b ... ..ct on .. ,t\ld'y of ItlceQtlve ec.pen •• Llon .. nd: In. It'.apon •• co c:h.an91fttJ da-a,raphlC •• the CQIIII'P.. ny roe-vl.ed l:.,
".tt •• t.. Qt c:"U;rrent C'Ooaf"l'l'Ia.tlOC axpen. •• reiatin. to .c.ock .....,.rd. to Inc-Iu.d.e the C"o.t ot .b..t •• wh.re the ria .. o! !ot>t'attUIf-e by

the c.playe. h.e. t.o-.n r •• oved. Th. l.paC'~ of dll. revle" •• el •• c.. wa•• n.et cJ\ar9. to 1,.'4 •• rnlng_ ot $1." _lliion ($~.3
iIItt1toa. .tcer t.-.. •• $.OS per .n .. :.). ExchadJn.g tb. altov. ctl ...ft9. Ln •• tl ... t •• 1ft 1"4. cO'Ip.ln.atlOft expert •• relating to u.ocll:
........rd. '\II.' $1.' _llllon. ta " ••. se." .lllloa 1n. 1"1 .64 S6.' .Ul1on lD 19'1;. Jhlu·., ....,.l"ded. n"t at eane_ll&t.lonl. '1" .
lc.c-h.lded. 10 .v .... 9 ... h ..... out.taa.d.lft9.

15. Environmental Costs

...

In the ordinary course of business, like most other industrial companies, the
Company is subject to extensive and changing federal, state, local and foreign
environmental laws and regulations. and has made prOVisions for the estimated
financial impact of environmental cleanup related costs.

The Company is currently preparing, has under review, or is implementing.
with the oversight of cognizant environmental agencies. environmental
investigations and cleanup plans at several locations which it owns and/or
ope~ates, including Plainville, Massachusetts; Salt Lake City. Utah;
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Attapulgus, Georgia; and Newark, New Jersey. With respect to ?lainville, ion
September 1993 the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the
Company entered into a consent order under which the Company is investigating
contamination and will conduct site stabilization measures. Plainville is also
included on the Nuclear Regulatory Commission INRC) "Existing Site
Decommissioning Management plan Sites" list and the Company is currently
conducting further investigations of the site pursuant to NRC approved plans.
With respect to Salt Lake City, in connection with obtaining an operating
permit under the Utah Solid and Hazardous Waste Act, the Company entered into
an agreement in December 1993 with the Utah Solid and Hazardous Waste Control
Board under which the Company is currently investigating the environmental
status of the site. With respect to Attapulgus, in January 1994 the Georgia
Department of Natural Resources, Environmental protection Division and the
Company entered into a consent order under which the Company will develop and
implement a reclamation program. With respect to Newark, the Company is in the
process of implementing a cleanup plan in coordination with the New Jersey
Department of Environmental Protection.

In addition, the Company has been designated as a potentially responsible
party at 16 sites by EPA under the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, as amended and by certain state
environmental authorities under similar state laws (collectively referred to as
Superfund) . ,

The'Company's policy is to accrue environmental cleanup related costs of a
noncapital nature when those costs are believed to be probable and can be
reasonably estimated. The quantification of environmental exposures requires an
assessment of many factors, including changing laws and regulations,
advancements in environmental technologies, the quality of information
available related to specific sites, the assessment stage of each site
investigation, preliminary findings, and the length of time involved in
remediation or settlement. For the Superfund sites, the Company also assesses
the financial capability of other potentially responsible parties and, where
allegations are based on tentative findings, the reasonableness of the
Company's apportionment. The Company has not anticipated recoveries from
insurance carriers or other potentially responsible third parties in its
consolidated balance sheets. The liabilities for environmental cleanup related
costs recorded in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 1994 and 1993
were S62.2 million and S66.1 million, respectively, including 510.8 million and
511.8 million, respectively, for the Superfund sites. These amounts represent
those COSts which the Company believes are probable and reasonably estimable.
Based on currently available information and analysis, the Company's accrual
represents approximately 90 percent of what it believes are reasonably possible
environm~ntal cleanup related costs of a noncapital nature. The estimate of
reasonably possible costs is less certain than the probable estimate upon which
the accrual is based.

During the past three-year period, cash payments for environmental cleanup
related matters were $4.5 million. 5.3 million and 5.7 million for 1994, 1993
and 1992, respectively. In 1994 and 1992, the amounts accrued in connection
with environmental cleanup related matters were not significant. In 1993, 530.0
million was accrued as a result of developmentS during that year which caused
the Company to revise its estimates of environmental cleanup related costs at
sites being idled or affected by restructuring, where conditions had recently
changed, or where studies ,and cleanup plans had been approved and the
assessment of the likelihood or extent of remediation had changed.
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For :he pase chree-year period. envi=onmencal related capital projects have
averaged less than 10 percent of the Company's total capital expenditure
programs and che expense of environmental compliance (environmental testing,
permits, consultants and in-house staff) was not significant.

There can be no assurances that environmental laws and regulations will not
become more stringent in the future or that the Company will not incur
significant costS in the future to comply with such laws and regulations. Based
on existing information and currently enacted environmental laws and
regulations, cash payments for environmental cleanup related matters are
projected to approximate S10.0 million for 1995, all of which has already been
accrued. Further, the Company anticipates that the future amounts of
capitalized environmental projects and the future expense of environmental
compliance will approximate current levels. While it is not possible to
predict with certainty, management believes that environmental cleanup related
reserves at December 31, 1994, are reasonable and adequate and that
environmental matters are not expected to have a material adverse effect on
financial condition or on the results of operations.

16. Litigation and Contingencies
The Company is a defendant in a number of lawsuits covering a wide range of
matters. In some of these pending lawsuits, the remedies sought or damages
claimed are SUbstantial. The Company is vigorously defending against these
c~aims. The Company is also subject to a number of environmental contingencies
(see Note 15 "Environmental CostS"). While it is not possible to predict with
certainty the ultimate outcome of these lawsuits or the resolution of the
environmental contingencies, management believes, after consultation with
counsel, that resolution of these matters is not expected to have a material
adverse effect on financial condition or on the results of operations.

In January 1995, the Company received and is reviewing a civil
investigative demand to produce documents and answer interrogatories in
connection with an investigation by the Antitrust Division of the U.S.
Department of Justice into ·price coordination and market allocation by kaolin
producers."

,
l--' 17. Supplemental Information

The following table presents certain supplementary information to the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows:

Supplementary Cash Flow Information
(in millions)

~
"

Cash paid during the year for
Interest, net of capitalized amounts
and contango
Income taxes

Change in assets and liabilities-source (use)
Receivables
Inventories
Other current assets
Other noncurrent assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued benefit obligation
Deferred income taxes

Net change in assets and liabilities

-46-

1994 1993 1992

S 24.2 S 17.9 S 23.6
22.1 20.1 15.9

S(27,5) S 11.7 S 27.0
(20.2) 17.0 7.7

6.0 (5.5) (3.4)
(27.2) (60.0) 1.8
28.1 (15.3) (4.5)

(19.4) ()4.9) (54.0)
(2.2) 4.0 5.7
(5.1) (8.5) 19.6

------ - _ ... _ ... -
$(67.5) S(91.5) S (.1)
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The following cable presents certain supplementary information :0 the
Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Supplementary Balance Sheet Information
(in millions) 1994 199:

$ 36.4 $ 50. :
62.2 66. :
45.5 7a.=

138.2 1l1.~
------ ------
$282.3 5306.(

Payroll-related accruals
Environmental reserve
Restructuring reserve
Other

Accrued liabilities
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Report of Independent Accountants

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Engelhard Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
Engelhard Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 1994 and 1993, and
the related consolidated statements of earnings. shareholders' equity and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31. 1994. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our aUdits.

We conduc~ed our audits in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management. as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion. the financial sta~ements referred to above present
fairly. in all material respects. the consolidated financial position of
Engelhard Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31. 1994 and 1993. and
the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 1994, in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in
1993 the Company changed its method of accounting for postemployment benefits
and in 1992 the Company changed its methods of accounting for income taxes and
postretirement benefits other than pensions.

Coopers & Lybrand. L.L.P.
New York. New York
February 2, 1995
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<TABLE>

Selected Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)
<c. <c, <c, <c.

Fir.e Second Th~rd. Four'C.h

qyarter ~.rt.r quan.r q-u:a..-:.r

S557.7 ·$UJ.4 $57'.4 S'H.l
It .• l04 .• lll1.1 l17 7
lll.) .).5 19.4 ".t
)).. ll.t )t.7 11.4

.24 .11 .1l .J5

$4tll.) UU.) $5S'.l 5519
71.4 n .• 91.4 n

19.7 18.1 lS .) 1107. n
n.) ".5 17.' lH."

'.) 11.5 17.' tH.41

.)) .n .J! I.'41
,04 .J! .19 I.HI

<s,

Ut4
N.e ... 1••
Oro" profie
E4rnin9. befor- ln~~ tax ••
N.e ... rning.
N_t •• rnin9. p-r .har. ~f C~ atock
un .
Net: ... 1••
Oroaa p....fi.e
E.rnin9- (10 •• ) before iftc~ I:ax•• and ~l&elv •• ff.ee
ot ~ ~~cgunein9ch&ng.

EArning. Ilo.al c.fore ~laeive .ff.ce of an accouneing c~ang.
N.e earning_ Ilo.al
Net .arning_ (10•• ) per .har- of C~ft ItoCX:

a.fore cu~laeive .ff.cc of an accoun~in, chan9_
Nee earning. {lo •• )

R••ulta in e~. foureh quart.r of 1'" include. apecial credit of ".0 .il1ion 1$5.0 .il1ion aft.r tax-'S.llS
pe han! pre..neing the reveroal of r••tru..tllZ'iAgre••rvwa and.a nee c~ar,. of $I.', ..ill10n 1$5.)
..il1ion .fe.r taa-".05 per ab.ral fo haftge in the C..-pany" •• ti..ta of co-penaation '%pen •• r.laeing to
aeoek award •.

R••ule. in t~. firat qu.rt ... of It'l include. '10;1 .illion gain on eh. aal. of H4T H.... h.w I".J ..illion
afeer eaz ••'.O' per aharel and. chars. for the ~lative .ff.ct of an .ccounting ch.ng. IS1'.0 ..illion n.t
of eaz--'.l' per aharal. a••vlta 1n ehe fourth qu.re.r of ltt) include. S1".0 .i11ion .pe..i.l ch.r,. I,tl.'
..illion aft.r tax-'S.tS per .h 1 for reali~nt and con...lida~ion of bu.in••••• and .nviro~ne.l ...ee.r.
and ".1 ..il1ioQ of inc~ f e~•• al. of .nvironaent.l cae.lyae t.chnology to Ru••ia l.pproai~e.ly $1 .•
million &f~.r~.x).

Earning. pe ... hare A__ e. are calC\llae.d ind40pendently fo...ach of th. "".re.ra pre ••nt.d. Th•• u..of ttl.
quare.r ....y noe equ.l eh. full y•• r .amini. par ah.re &OlOWI~ ••

</T.:..8U,

Item 9.
Changes in.and Disagreements with
Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors and &xecutive Officers of the Registrant
--------------------------------------------------
(al Directors-

Information concerning directors of the Company is included under
the caption "Election of Directors" and "Information with Respect to Nominees
and Directors Whose Terms Continue" on pages 3 through 6 of the Proxy Statement
for the 1995 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and is incorporated herein by
reference.

(b) Executive Officers -

ORIN R. SMITH r Age 59. Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company since January 1995. President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company from prior
thereto. Mr. Smith is also a director of Vulcan
Materials Company, The Summit Bancorporation, The

\Louisiana Land and &xploration Company and
Perkin-Elmer Corporation.

L. DONALD LATORRE r Age 57. President and Chief Operating Officer of
the Company since January 1995. Senior Vice
President and Chief Operating Officer of the
Company from June 1990 to January 1995. Vice
President of the Company and President of the
Pigments and Additives Division from prior
thereto.

ROBERT L. GUYETT r Age 58. Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company since September
1991. Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of Fluor Corporation from prior thereto.
Mr. Guyett is also a director of Smith
Environmental Technologies Corporation and
Newport Corporation. (Mr. Guyett has announced
his intention to retire from the Company) .

MARTIN J. CONNOR, JR. Age 62. Controller of the Company from prior to
1990.

,,
ARTHUR A. DORNBUSCH, II Age 51. Vice President, General Counsel and

Secretary of the Company from prior to 1990.

rAlso a director of the Company

-50-
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WILLIN~ M. DUGLE Age 52. Vice P~esident, Human Resources of the
Company from prior to 1990

ROBERT J. SCHAFFHAUSER Age 56. Vice President, Technology and Corporate
Development since January 1995. Vice President,
Corporate Development from prior thereto.

MICHAEL A. SPERDUTO Age 37, Treasurer of the Company since January
1993. Vice Pesident of Finance of the Precious
Metals Management Group from prior thereto.

FRANCIS X. VITALE, JR. Age 50. Vice President, Strategic Planning and
Corporate Affairs since January 1995. Vice
President, Investor Relations and Corporate
Communications of the Company from prior thereto.

Officers of the Company are elected at the meeting of the Board of
Directors held in May of each year after the annual meeting of shareholders and
serve until their successors shall be elected and qualified and shall serve as
such at the pleasure of the Board.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information concerning executive compensation is included under the
caption "Executive Compensation and Other Information" on pages 11 through 21
of the Proxy Statement for the 1995 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12.
Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management

Information concerning security ownership of certain beneficial
owners and management is included under the captions "Information as to Certain
Shareholders" and "Share Ownership of Directors and Officers" on pages 2
through 3 and page 7, respectively, of the Proxy Statement for the 1995 Annual
Meeting'of Shareholders and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13.
Certain Relationships
and Related Transactions

Information concerning certain business relationships of nominees
for director and directors and related transactions is included under the
captions "Information as to Certain Shareholders", "Information with Respect to
Nominees and Directors Whose Terms Continue", "Share Ownership of Directors and
Officers" and "Compensation Committee Interlocks, Insider participation and
Certain Transactions" on pages 2 through 3, pages 3 through 6, page 7, and page
10, respectively, of the 'proxy Statement for the 1995 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders and is incorporated herein by reference.

-51- 0119
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Item 14.

(a)

PART IV

Exhibits. Financial Statement
Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K
------------------------------~--

Page

(1) Financial Statements and Schedules

Report of Independent Accountants 48

Consolidated Statements of Earnings for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 1994

26

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 1994 and 1993 27

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 1994

28

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for each
of the three years in the period ended December 31. 1994

29

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

Consolidated financial statement schedules not filed herein
have been omitted either because they are not applicable or
the required information is shown in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statement on pages 30-47 on this 10-K.

-52-
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:"ccacion:

(3) ::xhibits

(3a) Certificate of Incorporacion of the Company
(incorporated by reference to Form 10, as
amended on Form 8-K filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on May 19, 1981).

(3bl By-laws of the Company as amended September 17, 1981
(incorporated by reference to Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 1981).

(3c) Certificate of Amendment to the Restated Certificate
of Incorporation of the Company (incorporated by
reference to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
1987) .

(3d) Article XVII of the Registrant's By-laws as amended
on May 2, 1988 (incorporated by reference to Form 8-K
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
May 21,1988).

..

(3e) Certificate of Amendment to the Restated Certificate of
Incorporation of the Company (Incorporated by reference
to Form 10-0 for the quarter ended March 31, 1993).

•

(10) Material Contracts.

(a) Form of Agreement of Transfer entered into between
Engelhard Minerals & Chemicals corporation and the
Company, dated May 18, 1981 (incorporated by
reference to Form 10, as amended on Form 8 filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
May 19, 1981).

(b) Engelhard Corporation Non-Qualified Stock Option
Plan of 1981 (incorporated by reference to the Proxy
Statement for 1981 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of
the Engelhard Minerals & Chemicals Corporation) .

(c) Amendment to the Engelhard Corporation Non-Qualified
Stock Option Plan of 1981 adopted January 7, 1982
(incorporated by reference to the Engelhard
Corporation Annual Report, Form 10-K for ·the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1981).

•

(d) Supplementary Supply Agreement between Rustenburg
Platinum Mines Limited and Engelhard Minerals &
Chemicals Corporation, effective as of January 1,
1972 (incorporated by reference to the Engelhard
Minerals & Chemicals Corporation Annual Report, Form
10-K for ~he fiscal year ended December 31, 1972).

••

Incorporated by reference as indicated .
... Incorporated by reference as indicated and granted confidential treatment

pursuant to an application filed by Engelhard Minerals & Chemicals Corp.
-53- 0121
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(k) Amendment to
Plan of 1981
by reference
Registration
1983) .

Incorporated by reference as indicated .
•• Incorporated by reference as indicated and granted confidential treatment

pursuant to an application filed by Engelhard Minerals & Chemicals Corp.
- 54-

(el Amendment to the Supplementary Supply Agreement
between Rustenburg Platinum Mines Limited and
Engelhard Minerals & Chemicals Corporation,
effective as of January 1. 1972 dated April 1,
1973 (incorporated by reference to the Engelhard
Minerals & Chemicals Corporation Annual Report,
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1973) .

(f) Addendum to the Supplementary Supply Agreement
between Rustenburg Platinum Mines Limited and
Engelhard Minerals & Chemicals Corporation dated
June 18 and July 5, 1974 (incorporated by
reference to Form 10-K, as amended on Form 8
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on May 19, 1981).

(g) Amendment dated December 14, 1977 as supplemented
January 10, 1978 to the Main Supply Agreement and
Supplementary Supply, Agreement between Rustenburg
Platinum Mines Limited and Engelhard Minerals &
Chemicals Corporation (incorporated by reference
to the Engelhard Minerals & Chemicals Corporation
AnnualReport, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1977).

(h) Amendment dated April 3, 1979 to the Supplemental
Supply Agreement between Rustenburg Platinum Mines
Limited and Engelhard Minerals & Chemicals
Corporation (incorporated by reference to the
Engelhard Minerals & Chemicals Corporation Annual
Report, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31, 1979).

"

....

(i) Main Supply Agreement between P.G.M. (Brak.spruit)
(Proprietary) Limited and Engelhard Industries
International Limited effective as of January 1, 1972
and supplementary letter with respect thereto
(incorporated by reference to the Engelhard Minerals
& Chemicals Corporation Annual Report, Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1972).

(j) Agreement between Rustenburg Platinum Mines Limited
and Engelhard Minerals & Chemicals Corporation,
dated November 3, 1972 (incorporated by reference to
the Engelhard Minerals & Chemicals corporation Annual
Report, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31, 1972).

the Engelhard Corporation Stock Option
adopted January 6, 1983 (incorporated
to the Engelhard Corporation
Statement on Form S-8 dated June 15,

•
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(1) Form of agreement with elected officers with
employment agreements in the event of an
acquisition of a control interest in the
company (incorporated by reference to the
Engelhard Corporation Annual Report. Form lO-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1983).

(m) Form of agreement with elected officers without
employment agreements in the event of an
acquisition of a control interest in the Company
(incorporated by reference to the Engelhard
Corporation Annual Report, Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 19831.

(n) Amendment to the Engelhard Corporation Non-
qualified Stock Option Plan of 1981 adopted
March 7, 1986 (incorporated by reference to
Engelhard Corpora~ion Annual Report, Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1986).

(01 Key Employees Stock Bonus Plan of Engelhard
Corporation effective July 1, 1986 (incorporated
by reference to the Engelhard corporation Annual
Report, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 19861.

(pI Employee Agreement with Orin R. Smith, President
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, dated
May 21, 1986 (incorporated by reference to the
Engelhard Corporation Annual Report, Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 19861.

(q) Amendment to the Key Employees Stock Bonus Plan of
Engelhard Corporation adopted March 7, 1991
(incorporated by reference to the Engelhard
Corporation 1991 definitive Proxy Statement as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 27, 1991).

(r) Stock Option Plan of 1991 (incorporated by reference
to the Engelhard Corporation 1991 definitive Proxy
Statement as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 27, 1991).

(5) Letters from Rustenburg Platinum Mines Limited
dated March 13, 1992 advising that the Main Supply
and Supplementary Supply Agreement (Exhibits D
through J above) will terminate in their present
forms on December 31. 1996, the end of the initial
period.

* Incorporated by reference as indicated.

-55-
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)

Location:

(21) Subsidiaries of the Registrant 59-60

(23) Consent of Independent Accountants 61-62

(24) Powers of Attorney 63 -72

(99) (a) Annual Report: on Form ll-K of the Salary
Deferral Savings Plan of Engelhard Corporation
for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31. 1994.

73-93

(b)Annual Report: on Form 11-K of the Engelhard
Corporation Savings Plan for Hourly Paid Employees
for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31. 1994.

94-109

(b) Report on Form S-K

Not .applicable

; -56-
0124

TIERRA-B-006211



Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(dl of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned. thereunto duly authorized. in Iselin. New
Jersey on the 28th day of March 1995.

Engelhard Corporation

Registrant

IslOrin R. Smith

Orin R. Smith
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. this
report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

IslOrin R. Smith Chairman and Chief Executive______________________ Officer & Director
Orin R. Smith (Principal Executive Officer)

March 28. 1995

Is/Robert L. Guyett Senior Vice President and________________ •• Chief Financial Officer
Robert L. Guyett & Director

(Principal Financial Officer)

March 28. 1995

l>-•

IslMartin J. Connor. Jr. Controller___________________________ (Principal Accounting Officer)
Martin J. Connor. Jr.

March 28. 1995

,, -57-
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....
j-

.. Director March 28,1995

Linda G. Alvarado

.. Director March 28. 1995

Marion H. Antonini

.. Director March 28. 1995

L. Donald LaTorre

.. Director March 28. 1995

Anthony W. Lea

.. Director March 28, 1995

James V. Napier

.. Director March 28, 1995

Norma T. Pace

.. Director March 28, 1995

Reuben F. Richards

.. Director March 28. 1995

Henry R. Slack

.. Director March 28, 1995

Douglas G. Watson

.. By this signature below, Arthur A. Dornbusch, II has signed this Form 10-K
as attorney-in-fact for each person indicated by an asterisk pursuant to
duly executed powers of attorney filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission included herein as Exhibit 25.

Is/Arthur A. Dornbusch, II March 28, 1995

Arthur A. Dornbusch. II

-58- 0126
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Sybsidiaries of the Registrant

I~ameof Sybsidiary

JurisdletJon
Under Which
Incorporated
Qr Qrganized

Engelhard West. Inc.
EC Delaware. Inc.
Engethard Metal Ptatlng, Inc.
Engethard Strategic Investments, Ine.
Engelhard Supply CorporatJon
Porccel Corpot8IIon
Mustang Property CotporatIon
Engelhard PoButIon Contra. Inc.
Engelhard Export Corporation
The Harshaw Chemical Company
Engelhard Australia Pty Ud
Engelhard ~ UmJted
Engelhard Industries International Umited
Engelhard Technologies Umited
Engelhard Pyrocontrgle SA
Engelhard SA
Engelhard S.R.L
Engelhard Italla... S.PA
Engelhard HoIdlnga GmbH
Engelhard TechncIogles VerwaftSung GmbH
Petroleum catalysts GmbH
Engelhard (Hong Kong) Ud.
Engelhard OeMeem B.V.
Engelhard Temeuzen. B.V.
Engelhard Nether1ands, B.V.
Engelhard (Singapore) Pte Ud
Engelhard Metals A.G.
Engelhard Umted
Engelhard Metals Umted
EnOelhard saJ. UmIted
Engelhard Techndogies Umlted
The Sheffteld SmeltInG Co. Ud
EC Pigmera Oy
Engethard M.... Japan Umlted

califomia
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
U. S. Virgin Islands
New Jersey
Australia
Canada
canada
canada
France
Franc.
Italy
Italy
Germany
Germany
Germany
Hong Kong
The Netherlands
The Netherlands
The Nethertands
Singapore
SwitZerland
United KIngdom
United KIngdom
United KIngdom
United KIngdom
United KIngdom
Flntand
Japan

Name gt Affliatt

N. Eo Chemcat CorJ)oratIon
Hankuk·Engelhard Corpot8IIon
SaJem Engelhard
Aereon catalysU
HERAEUS Engelhard EJedr'OChemlstry
Engethard/lce
Metreon

Japan
South Korea
Michigan
Texas
0......
Pennsylvania
Delaware

The names of other subskilartes have been omitted stnee such subsidlal1es. if considered In the aggregate
as a single subsidIarY. woutcI net constttute a stoniftcant subsidiary u that tlnn Is defined In Rul. 12b-2
(17 CFR 240.12b-2) promugated undw the Securttles Exchange Ad 01 1934.
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3M Environmental Technology
and Services

PO Box 33331
St. Paul. MN 55133-3331
6127786442

3\11November 14, 1995

VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS

Mr. Joseph Cosentino
OSC Removal Action Branch
Emergency and Remedial Division
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region II
2890 Woodbridge Avenue
Edison, New Jersey 08837

Re: Bayonne Barrel & Drum Superfund Site, 150-154
Raymond Boulevard, Newark, Essex County. NJ

Dear Mr. Cosentino:

Minnesota Mining and Manufacturing Co. ("3M") is in receipt of the United States
Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") request for information pursuant to Section
104(e) dated September 28, 1995 and received by 3M on October 9, 1995. Pursuant to the
request, 3M had 30 days to provide EPA with its response. 3M's outside counsel made a
request to Mark Seidenberg, Esq. of the Office of Regional Counsel for an extension of 30
days to provide its response. However, Mr. Seidenberg only agreed to extend the due date
for the response 15 days to November 15, 1995.

By letter dated October 10, 1995, 3M submitted a freedom of information request to the
EPA requesting any and all documents in its possession toncerning 3M's alleged nexus with
the Bayonne Barrel & Drum site. By letter dated October 25, 1995. the EPA advised 3M that
the Agency had 10 working days to respond to 3M's request and that a reply should be
received shortly thereafter. As of the date of this letter 3M had not received any documents
pursuant to its FOIA request.

In addition to the above, 3M's outside counsel made a request with the Bayonne Barrel &
Drum hotline for any documents relating to 3M's alleged use of the Bayonne facility. By
letter dated November 1, 1995 and received by our outside counsel on November 6, 1995,
the EPA provided 3M with documents which it alleged "connected 3M Company ... with the
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Mr. Joseph Cosentino
November 14t 1995
Page 2

Bayonne Barrel & Drum Superfund Site ... ".1 All of the documents provided to 3M by EPA
evidences straight purchases of empty drums from Bayonne Barrel & Drum by 3Mts
Freehold and Newark facilities. There is no indication that any of the purchases were other
than straight purchases or involved any hazardous substances whatsoever. Accordingly t based
upon the documents, there is no alleged Comprehensive Environmental Response
Compensation Liability Act ("CERCLA") nexus or connection to the site.

It is always 3M's objective to respond quickly to EPA information requests. However, as
noted abovet 3M did not receive the documents requested from the Bayonne hotline until
November 6, 1995. Moreover, the company is still awaiting receipt of a response to its
FOIA request. 3M is diligently searching for any documents concerning its use of the
Bayonne facility. However, given 3M's current retention policy, many, if not all documents
relating to any use of the Bayonne facility pre-19842 would most likely be destroyed.
However, as stated, 3M is diligently reviewing its files to determine whether any
documentation exists. Of courset all non-privileged documents will be provided to the EPA.

Based upon the documentation received from the EPA, it appears that 3Mts Freehold and
Newark facilities were customers of Bayonne Barrel & Drum. With respect to the Newark
facilityt 3M sold the operations in 1983 to Tony Stonis. 3M has attempted, and is in the
process oft contacting present employees of 3M as well as former employees who may have
worked at the Newark facility. Although 3M has confirmed that the Newark facility was a
customer of Bayonne Barrel & Drum, given the short time period in which 3M had to
respond, it has been unable to obtain any specific information concerning its operations and
its alleged connection with Bayonne Barrel & Drum. As such, 3M is continuing its
investigation and will supplement its responses as soon as possible.

As with the Newark facility, 3M has also terminated the operation of its Freehold facility.
3M is in the process of obtaining information concerning the operations of the Freehold
facility and is also attempting to contact present employees who may have worked at the
Freehold facility as well as former employees. As set forth above, 3M has confirmed that the
Freehold facility was a customer of Bayonne Barrel & Drum. However, 3M is continuing to
conduct its due diligence investigation and will supplement its responses accordingly.

I In the letter, the EPA stated that it could not ensure that there are nOI olber documents which allegedly
connect 3M with the site. As such, it is in the process of scheduling an appointment with Donna Murphy of
the Bayonne Barrel & Drum Hotline to review the records at EPA's Edison, New Jersey facililY·

23M bas be~n advised that Bayonne Barrel & Drum terminated operations in 1984.
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Mr. Joseph Cosentino
November 14, 1995
Page 3

The scope of many of the questions posed by the EPA in its request for information are
overly broad, irrelevant and not limited to scope of time. 3M objects to the 104(e) request on
this basis. However, subject to this objection, and with full reservation of any other
objections to the questions posed, 3M encloses its initial response to EPA's 104(e) request.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

-~ ..~.~~
Russell A. Susag, Ph.D., P.E. '
Director, Environmental Regulatory Affairs
RAS:lah
Encl.
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RESPONSE OF MINNESOTA MINING AND MANUFACTURING
COMPANY TO THE INFORMATION REQUEST OF

THE UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
DATED SEPTEMBER 28, 1995 FOR THE

BAYONNE BARREL & DRUM SITE

In response to the Information Request of the United States Environmental Protection
Agency ("EPA ") relating to the Bayonne Barrel & Drum Site, dated September 28, 1995 and
received by Minnesota Mining and Manufacturing ("3M") Office of General Counsel on
October 10, 1995, 3M responds pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 9601 et seg. ("CERCLA ").

3M states that Russell H. Susag, Director, 3M Environmental Technology and
Services, and other staff of 3M. including in-house counsel, and attorneys with Bressler,
Amery and Ross, have been involved in preparing answers to these inquiries. Additionally,
3M refers EPA to Exhibit A for names of additional persons consulted. In further response
to these Requests, 3M answers as follows: \

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The responses and objections set forth herein are based upon the information currently
available and known to 3M. 3M reserves all rights and objections to supplement or amend
these responses.

General Objections

Defedandants set forth their general objections in response to the 104(e) Request.
Each response by 3M to the Requests shall be subject to the general objections set forth
herein whether or not such objection is incorporated expressly into each response.

1. General Information About the Company

a. State the correct legal name of the Company.

ANSWER: Minnesota Mining and Manufacturing Company ("3M")

b. Identify the legal status of the Company (corporation, partnership, sole
proprietorship, specify if other) and the state in which the Company was
organized.

ANSWER: 3M is a Delaware corporation.

c. State the name(s) and address(es) of the President and the Chairperson of the
Board of the Company.

- 1-
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ANSWER: Objection. 3M objects to this request insofar as it is irrelevant.
Without waiving this objection, see attached Annual Report (Exhibit B).

d. If the Company has subsidiaries or affiliates, or is a subsidiary of another
organization, identify these related companies and state the name(s) and
addressees) of the President(s) and the Chairperson(s) of the Board of those
organizations. Provide such information for any further parent/subsidiary
relationships.

ANSWER: Objection. 3M objects to this request insofar as it is irrelevant.
Without waiving this objection, see attached Annual Report
(Exhibit B).

e. If the Company is a successor to, or has been succeeded by, another company,
ide~tify such other company and provide the same information requested above
for the predecessor or successor company.

ANSWER: Not applicable.

f. If the Company transacted business with Bayonne Barrel & Drum in the name
of an entity not disclosed above, give the name of such entity and state its
relationship to the Company.

ANSWER: 3M objects to this request insofar as the term "business" has not
been defined at this date. 3M has only confirmed that it
purchased empty drums from Bayonne Barrel & Drum.
Without waiving any objections and limiting its response to this
"business." Not applicable.

2. Compants Relationship to Bayonne Barrel & Drum

a. State whether the Company or any Company facility transacted any business
with Bayonne Barrel & Drum for the disposal, treatment, or storage of any
barrels, drums, or other containers (hereinafter collectively referred to as
"Containers ").

ANSWER: 3M objects to this request insofar as the term "business" has
been defined. Without waiving any objections, see cover letter
of Russell Susag, Ph.D., P.E. dated November 11, 1995.
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1. If so, describe the relationship (natUre of services rendered or products
sold to the Company) between the Company and Bayonne Barrel &
Drum;

ANSWER: Id.

ii. Provide copies of any contracts or agreements between the Company
and Bayonne Barrel & Drum;

ANSWER: Id.

iii. For each such facility, state the nature of the operations conducted at
the facility, including the time period in which the facility operated;
and

ANSWER: Id.

iv. For each such facility, state its name, address, and current RCRA
Identification Number.

ANSWER: Id.

b. In addition, if the Company transacted business with Bayonne Barrel &
Drum, provide the following information for each transaction:

i. Identify the specific dates of each transaction. Where an exact date
cannot be provided for a transaction, provide an approximation by
month and year;

ANSWER: Id.

ii. Identify the number of Containers that were the subject of each such
transaction;

iii. Generically describe each Container that was the subject of each such
transaction (example: closed-head steel drums, etc.);

ANSWER: Id.

- 3 -
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iv. Identify the intended purpose of each such transaction;

ANSWER: Id.

v. State whether each Container that was the subject of the transaction
contained any substance at the time of the transaction. As to each
Container that contained any substances: Id.

(1) Identify each such substance, including its chemical content,
physical state, quantity by volume and weight, and other
characteristics; and

(2) Provide all written analyses that may have been made for each
such substance or which may be in the custody or control of the
Company and all material safety data sheets, if any, relating to
each such substance;

vi. If you contend that any such Container did not contain any substance at
the time of the transactions: Id.

(1) State whether such Container had previously been used by the
Company to contain any substance, and if so:

(a) Identify all substances previously contained within such
Container, including its chemical content, physical state,
and other characteristics; and

(b) Provide as to such substances, all written analyses that
may have been made for each such substance or which
may be in the custody or control of the Company and all
material safety data sheets, if any, relating to each such
substance;

vii. Describe in detail any treatment of any Container that may have been
performed by or on behalf of the Company prior to the time that the
Container was transferred from the Company, including any process or
procedure by which the Container was emptied or cleaned;

Id.

- 4 -
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viii. Provide copies of all documents relating in any way to each transaction,
including copies of delivery receipts, invoices, or payment devices;

Id.

ix. Identify all persons who might have knowledge of the transaction or
who had any responsibility regarding the transaction; and

Id.

x. If you sent any Container by means of any third party transporter,
identify each such transporter, including the name and address of such
transporter, and identify in which of the transactions such transporter
acted.

Id.

3. Identify any other person (~, individual, company, partnership, etc.) having
knowledge of facts relating to the questions which are the subject of this inquiry. For
each such person that you identify, provide the name, address, and telephone number
of that person, and the basis of your belief that he or she has such knowledge. For
past and present employees, include their job title and a description of their
responsibilities.

ANSWER: Charles Dabrowski
Ron North

4. Identify each person consulted in responding to these questions and correlate each
person to the question on which he or she was consulted.

ANSWER: See Exhibit A.

5. Provide a list of all insurance policies and indemnification agreements held or entered
into by you that may indemnify you against any liability that you may be found to
have under CERCLA. Specify the insurer, type of policy, effective dates, and state
per occurrence policy limits for each policy. Copies of policies may be provided in
lieu of a narrative response. In response to this request, please provide not only those
policies and agreements that are currently in effect, but also those in effect sirice your
company began sending Containers to the Site.

ANSWER: 3M objects to this request to the extent it requests information that is
irrelevant and not in accordance with law. 3M also objects to the extent it implies that
3M has any CERCLA liability with respect to the Site. Without waiving any

- 5 -
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objectionst 3M is currently self-insured and 3M is reviewing its insurance policies to
determine whicht if any, may relate to the Site. 3M is unaware of any indemnification
agreements which would indemnify it against any liability under CERCLA.

6. State whether there exists any agreement or contract (other than an insurance policy)
which may indemnify the Company t present or past directorst officers or owners of
shares in the CompanYt for any liability that may result under CERCLA. Provide a
copy of any such agreement or contract. Identify any agreement or contract that you
are unable to locate or obtain.

ANSWER: Objection: 3M objects to this request to the extent it requests
information that is irrelevant and not in accordance with law. 3M also
objects to the extent it implies that 3M has any CERCLA liability with
respect to the Site. Without waiving any objections, 3M is unaware of
any such agreements or contracts.

7. Supply any additional information or documents that may be relevant or useful to
identify other sources who disposed of or transported Containers to the Site.

ANSWER: 3M objects to this request to the extent it seeks information that is
privileged. Without waiving any objectionst 3M is unaware of any
information or documentation that is responsive to this inquiry.

-6-
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Exhibit A·

Mike Cooper
(Current 3M employee)

Charles Dabroski
(Current 3M employee)

Dwight IlIk
(Current 3M employee)

Ed Getz
(Current 3M employee)

Joel Mickelson
(Current 3M employee)

Ron North
(Current 3M employee)

Catharine Palm
(Current 3M employee)

Robert Paschke
(Current 3M employee)

Dan Schmid
(Current 3M employee)

• These persons were contacted during 3M's investigations. If EPA determines that follow-up inquiries
are needed, 3M will ~ist in making these persons available.

-7-
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CERTIFICATION OF ANSWERS TO REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

state of MINNESOTA

County of RAMSEY

I certify under penalty of law that I have personally examined
and am familiar with the information submitted in this document
(response to EPA Request for Information) and all documents
submitted herewith, and that based on my inquiry of those
individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the
information, I believe that the submitted information is true,
accurate, and complete, and that all documents submitted herewith

are complete and authentic unless otherwise indicated. I am
aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false
information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment.

RUSSELL H. SUSAG
NAME (print or type).

DIRECTOR, ENVIRONMENTAL
REGULATORY AFFAIRS
TITLE (print or type)

SIGNATURE

Sworn to me before this

I(i)GEORGE ANN BIROSI
. \ NOTARY PUBlIC - MINNESOTA

. . HENNEPIN COUNTY
My eomm. Ezpne Jan. 31. 2ODO

.". ••• _.-.-..._ • .....,.,... ..... +•••cJ¥V.
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80 Park Plaza, T5C, Newark, NJ 07101 MAiLiNG ADDRESS / P.O Box 570, Newark, NJ 07101
Telephone No. 201/430-6124

Telecopy No 201/802-1267Thomas A. Waldman Attorney

December 4, 1995

Joseph Cosentino, OSC
Office of Regional COWlsel
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
290 Broadway - 17th Floor
New York, New York 10007

Marc Seidenberg, Esq.
Removal Action Branch
Emergency and Remedial Response Div.
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
2890 Woodbridge Avenue
Edison, New Jersey 08837

Re: Request for Information Pursuant to Section 104(e)
ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. §9604(e); Bayonne Barrel &
Drum Superfund Site, 150-154 Raymond Boulevard,
Newark, New Jersey

Gentlemen:

Under cover of this correspondence, Public Service Electric and Gas Company
("PSE&G") provides its response to the above-referenced request for information.
PSE&G's response consists of a docwnent entitled "Response by PSE&G to Request for
Information Pursuant to Section I04(e) ofCERCLA - Bayonne Barrel & Drwn Site"
("Response") and certain attachments referred to in the Response.

The enclosed response was prepared based upon a search of company records
from across all facets of PSE&G's business. It is the synthesized product of searches
performed by approximately twenty different line operating and support departments of
PSE&G.

PSE&G acknowledges its continuing obligation to provide additional relevant
and responsive information, by way of a supplement to the attached, when and if such
additional information comes to its attention.

~ truly yours, I /7 il
J Arw"'-< /I. Vu~

Thomas A. Waldman
TAW:amm
attachment

amm'sgeoera.lworkdisk#3A: \USEPA. TAW

TIte power is in your h~mlk
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Response by Public Service Electric and Gas Company to Request
for Information Pursuant to Section l04(e) of CERCLA - Bayonne
Barrel and Drum Superfund Site; Newark, New Jersey

Public Service Electric and Gas Company ("PSE&G") hereby provides its
response to the request for information served upon it by the United States
Environmental Protection Agency pursuant to Section 104(e) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C.
§9604(e), relating to the Bayonne Barrel & Drum Superfund Site, 150·154 Raymond
Boulevard, Newark, New Jersey

Response to Reguest for Information

1. General InfOrmation About the Company

a. Public Service Electric and Gas Company

b. Corporation - New Jersey

c. President: Lawrence R. Codey
PSE&G
80 Park Plaza
Newark,NJ

Chairperson: E. James Ferland
PSE&G
80 Park Plaza
Newark, NJ

d. PSE&G is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Public Service Enterprise
Group, Incorporated. See attached organizational charts for a complete
list of affiliated entities and requested officer information.

e. Not applicable for relevant time period (1940-1986).

f. Not applicable

TIERRA-B-006227



2. Company's Relationship to Bayonne Barrel & Drum

a. The search of company records conducted in response to this request for
information indicates that PSE&G did transact business with Bayonne
Barrel & Drum. It is unknown whether that business was for the
disposal, treatment or storage of barrels, drums or other containers.
Rather, company accounting records indicate that from time to time
PSE&G sold empty 55 gallon drums to Bayonne Barrel and Drum
during the period from 1971 through 1979.

1. See above.

11. None located.

iii. Existing located records do not identify specific facilities.

iv. See response to iii. above.

b. To the extent that the information requested by subsections i. through x
of this request exists or is known, it is contained in the company
accounting documents produced herewith.

3. Searches and inquiries performed in response to this request for information
have not resulted in the identification of any other person with knowledge of
facts relating to the questions which are the subject of this inquiry.

4. A list of persons consulted is attached hereto.

5/6. In response to USEPA's request for insurance or indemnification information,
be advised that PSE&G has a significant self-insurance threshold. Should
PSE&G become aware that its potential liability, if any, under CERLA relating
to the Bayonne Barrel and Drum Site approaches or may exceed that threshold,
PSE&G will supplement this response with additional potentially relevant
insurance information.

7. Not applicable

[Required Certifications is attached.] .mm·,g.n ... lworkdi,k~l A :\RESPONSE. TAW

-2-

TIERRA-B-006228



-[ R~E'IYED 11/1'1 BB:33 1995 AT PACE. Hi (PRINTED PAGE. 16) ]

FRon PSEI6 OFFICE OF EHUIROH"EHTAL COUHSEL 11.14.1"5 99114 P.16

CEBTIFICATIO~ QF ANSWERS TO REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

state of
county of ....:;,..;;;,-......;;::;;...."j~ _

I certi!y under penalty of law that I have personally examined
and am familiar wi~ the information submitted in this document
(respons. to EPA Request tor Information) and all documents
submitted herewith, and that based on my inqUiry of those
individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the
intormation, I believe that the submitted information is true,
accurate, and oo~plete; and that All documents submitted herewith
are co~plete and authentic unless otherwise indicated. I am
aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false
information, inoludinq ths possibility of fine and imp~isonment.

,-.j

---r:OMfl5 A. WALl)M.A.rJ
~ NAME (prInt or type)

Sworn to me before this
day of 11~ , 1995
~uq/
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!""'Ut::i.l...c .:3ERVIC<:: ":L<:'~. niL. .....,'<I..J "' .......:;; '-~,,,. ,..... ,. ..'

Electric DEPARTMENT (-:. ':

.. \' . AUDITORS CHARGE \, ..,:".~;
NOTJ!:--WHCR~ ..... TERIAL JS RETURNED. STA.TE REASON. SHOW DATE OF SHiPPER·...:: ,;:~. A.HD -COMJI"A.HY·S OROER NUMBER UNDER WHICH MATeRIAL WAS "URCHA~

:"""K .... 'TH X WHETHER "tRANSPORTATION CHARGES AR1! PREPA.ID OR COLLEc"I". IF G"AYt'in ....L ~ETURNED .IS TO BE RE.JI'LACED. HEW REQUISITION MUST 8E ISSUEO To Co ..
TH.S HEPOR,. TO BE MADE IN TRIPLICATE, TWO COPfES TO Be SENT "TO THE: VICE PREs~DENT AND COMPTAOLL£R. TH£ OTHER T.., BE KEPT ON FILE rN THE; LOCAL OFFICE.

June 7, 1972

& Drum Co. Raymond Blvd. & u.S. Rte. 1, Newar:
N.J. 0710

C H A FIG E _-=-='-'==-=---==-==-=--=..:=---=_-=-::...:=.:=-...::.=-=-_
Same SameSHIPPED TO -----------=-=------------ ADDRESS _

May 18, 1972 Their TruckDATE OF SHIPMENT ---=:..:...:~-=.:.....!-_=_=_.:..:=___ VIA -=- CHAFiG Es COLLECT ---_PREPAI D _

QUANT1TY
DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE

.75
AMOUNT

46 Empty Drums. 34.50
Scra2 Drum Removal.
ShinninQ' Memo No. 6015

I

,.~."" , ~.-.

I

71

CORRECT

34.50

... ~_.~------.. ~...-... -&-.------~~.-~.... -:..... --'--" ... -. ~... l ....._._..~-- .T~ __._ .... _ x x I x x j ~ x•• • i ~ . , " ., , ······i····· .. ··•········ :.. ·..------.i, --i .

L.OCAL OFFICE I AUTH. NO. ANO/OFl
NUMBER I ; ACCOUNT ; DiSTRICT chi DIVISION I GENERAL OFFICE I

II'IOIVIDUAL'tlR COMPANY NUMBER I AMOU.NT

"--_.. -...., i

APPROVED I
FOR ENTRY A 17 893

-~~~ ,.~ ..... I
E506 1513 34.50

.:-::r-:-;·-~~,:-~· ---/..--... _-~_... __... _-+----- ... _..-:... --- ._ . . ,--------- ., " .--------······ .. --.0 -
< , •• _. __ • _Ji.__ • ••• _. __ • _ & __ •• .'I_

1

.~"'.' .x,. _•..• _

, '.
.. _---! ..• _-

I
! ..

;
,
, I·

i I

i
!
i
:

,
,

I ••••••••• .. X ,
• • .

I

!

,
----- 'r-,

-,. '-j
· .. ·1 .... ·· .... ~

,. • I~ A! ••• • __ . ,.I--j .,._. i----

, I

" ,••• _--.-------".;.-- •••• - '-- •• _._-. ".'1.'" .-j------ ... --,_.-::_--- ~ r·····~-i·.!·- , .
- - - - ~. - - -;. •••• _ •••. x ••••••..j

AC3B556
•• - - _ • _ ~ •• r __ ..... _

3UFF- ':=-CRM 'NITH ,?UNC;-t1:-olG .c ......SIDE: ";"C EE
''';SE~ ':"S ~....: P'L;C"':" T": ,,-;;"H ..'," ."="E: ="CC:iU:'lT C~L'/ :""0

:.:'C;·.f CF -W:~ -~BC'/'I! ::L.JC:{"~ 34.50
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,"'UBUC SERVICE EL.ECTRIC AND GAS COMPANY.{

... ~--SHIPPING MEMO~~~~UM NO.

• I

o GENERAL STORES TRANSFER NO.

CONSIGNED TO

'"' i ~(;--e V\ t'" .,..."1- , ;,) \of

J)(). vvel -, CARE OF _

MATERIAL SHIPPED FRO l I I {

" , .L IJ
. f?!NERAt.. STORES CREDIT ORDER.

r UDITOR'S CHARliE OR

REASON FOR SHIPMENT
.- ~ INTERCHANGE NUMBER ..

STOREROOM TRANS.
,

LOCATION I (JJ'-
, (CLJ

NUMBER CODE ACCOUNT CODE
J.. ~ f'

ISSUED BY • --.
I '- ~

TRANSFER TO 5 xxx XXX XXXXXX

TRANSFER FROM 6
APPROVED
(ISSUING LOC'>

ISSUINli LOC. REC'G. LOC.
(TRANI. CODIt a) (TRANS. CODIt .) DESCRIPTiON QUANTITY UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

..us CODIt c...... CODI!:

-

E \""'-7:)t ~ DY" \,f,. VV4...r 'fb
( '.J

CHARGES _

),N RECE:IPT 0,. TKi: •• OYE MATERIAL, CHECK CAflEP'ULLY. NOTING ANY .HORTAGII. OR ... IEAKAGE.

S- 1.f ..7L

APPROVED

••• 2Iee ISO" ••71
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July 16, 1973 Linden Generating StationORDER ~O. _

CHARGE Bayonne Barrel & Drum Co. ADDRESS Raymnd Blvd. & U.S. Ro. l, Rewar)

N.J.
8HI"PED TO Same krlDRESS Same
DATE OF SHIPMENT 5-29-73 VIA Their Truck CHARGES COLLECT PREPAID __

OUANTITY I:lESCRIPTION ... UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

104 11-4a,.411 100 1not nn

I

'"~n .. fnr ..,~

-

-.- "W 1 " ••

-

CORRECT APPROVEO

TO ~L /""'\ /

AMOUNT

I

OISTRICT OR Of'tIJISION GENERAL. OFFICE
INDIVIDUAL.OR &OMPANY NUMBER

LOCAL OFl'"ICE
NUMBER

1513

AUTH. NO. AND/OR
ACCOUNT

X Jt l[ :x x x x • x
-- -- i: ----- --- --- -_·x·_ __ ·_-- ._-_ - --~,- - ..-------- ---------.--- ""x _--- --_ ic •• ••• ..-i------· ..-- · -- --;---- -- x · ..--- -- - a -- .. - _ - - --i"' • ..-

.. ··-'!-d.J!r----!!. ,'-----------",,-'--------- -.-.------1'••---- • . ..... ~,, L_!'. • ",, !o,, • • .... !o._. __ " "~ :j( -~- -.----_ .._--;-----_._--~._--_ •.

-.---~.... _ll~II-,-H ;;;,- r .-l.:ln .. __. .... ~.. --.... ---
.

104.00.

II: X .11: X X x:K......- _........~~- x"'''' - -_ ..._......- i"''''''' - -- -- -- ----- -- ----:Ii ...-- -- ---- % - - -- .... --- .. ~* ..-. -.""i - - -- •• - - -it-- -- - - - - .. - -- - - -- - -. ·x·· - •• -_. --'Iii -- ..-. - ••

. --j---- .. -~~--.----- -----~-·-·-----i-------- -- ---- ..---.-~---------~--~- .. ---- .. -.. -.-~--.--.--. -~--.-. ~ ---- ·-i---- ..--··:~..--..-..-

4C52436
..... JIl. J! ••• ---- _ ---- -. a! • __ .- __ -- -- - ... _ -. _ ~ ..... ~. -. -__ -- !I........-. __--~--_--- -- _-1--""'." roor •• ~ - - - - - - - - - - J! - - - - - - _ .. _ _ _ __ •. __ .".. • _ ••• ?f••• _.:1: ... X X It 11: 11: X X

" "- - - - _. - ~..---- -_.- ---- _ .. -..-_.-. "
BU ..... FORM WITH' PUNCHING ON SIDE TO BE
USED AS DUPI..ICATE ONI..Y.

ONE ACCOUNi ONLY TO
EACH OF THE ABOVE BLOCKS

9!S :320 ..Q1M ~-72

TOTAl.. 104.00
TIERRA-B-006234



DEP4RTMENT _G-e"e .....~o'"
CONSIGNED TO ft -".,6 , H -l /3o.re f/

Ij

I STOREROOM I TRANS.-I -, LOC4TION
ACCOUNT CODENUMBER CODE

ISSUED BY

TRANSFER TO l r;--/ xxxxxx -, XXXXXX

TRANSFER FROM ] . ~J -/ APPROVED
(IssUING LOC.)

ISSUING LaC. I REC'G. LOC.

1 I 1(TRAN •• COOIl ., (TRANS. COOlE 8) DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT PRICE AMOUNT:u... ! COOlE I"u.•• r CODIE

I I E,,-.t~ d"w...k.. J 1 16'" I 1h~~1~---f------i---j---

_I . '---If----+-I----f----+-----t---J =0 ..
~ .~f-----f-If----_- _~~-_- _-_~~~- -t-+--_- _~j-------

J LJi------:---+----~--r-----t--"----ji------1

~ ~r------t---~~

MATERIAL SHIPPED FROM

REASON FOR SHIPMENT
-

DATE _=-_=::....;;....:....~;:......;;;;;....--- _

CARE OF ~_

CHARGES - _

GENERAL STORES CREDIT ORDER.
AUDITOR'S CHARGE OR VOUCMER
FOR .JOURNAL ENTRY NUMBER

I d
. )

~EMARKS ~ ___:;. ~_------

APPROVED _

, /-~2o SHIPPING MEMORANDUM NO. (; ...) J '.o GENERAL STORES TRANSFER NO.

OPS~G TIERRA-B-006235
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PUBLiC SERVICE E.L9RIC AND GAS COMPANY.....,._

El~~~_OEPA¢"ENT F
. AUDIToRS CHAIl'GE \.:-.,

NOTE-WHe:R'E MA.TER'IAl. 19 nETURN£O. STATE. REASON. SHOW OATE: OF SHIPPER'S BILL AND COMPANY'S O"'DER NUMBeR UNDER WHICH WATERIAt. WAS "UJI'C.HAS£..
"ARK WTTH X WHE-THER lRANS.POffTATIOP-~ cHA.RGeS ,\RE PREPAJD OR COLLECT. IF MATERIAL RrTURNED LS TO DE REPLACED. NEW REQUISCTIOH MUST BE ~SIUED TO CQy£
-HIS REPonT TO 8£ MADE IN TRIPLfC.· ..T~. TWO COPIES TO DE SENT TO THE. VICE PRE51DEHT AND COMPTROLLER. THE OTHEft TO BE KEPT ON FILE !N THE LOCA.L OFFICE.

May 1, 1974
DATE ~ _

Generating Station
____ OI5TRICT .......;~ ':>RDER NO. _.Linden

CHARGE_B_a_y~?neBarrel & Drum Co. Rt. 1, Newark,
N.J. 0710:

SHIPPED TO __
Same

10-22-73 Their Truck

QUANTITY DE';(..R!PTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

_____ ~ ~E!!tEh'~~. __ . 1.00 80.00

Sale of Empty~D~r~ums~!.!.'__ _i_---_!_------

Shipping Memo No. 6818

n-h

APPROVED

;"UTH. NO. ANDIOR
ACCOUNT

GENERAL. OFFICE
NUMBER

AMOUNT

............., . - ..~.... - ., ... ;.. r_;. __ I . i J( x-_.- -1-· _.-. ----~~;"... ' .. - -'oS _. ~. ~•

E506.10 1513 80.00

·._- --_.- --
x

____ ---'- -'- .c. -'- __ ---'-'-- __ __'_

·............. ---·
_____ • .c __ , ,

. _.. - - -. - "i. - - _. ~•••• "'(- - - - - . -

AC(j~038 . .. - ~_ ..- - .- -

:~:E -:'':-:::O'l,','lT ;':lNLY TO
80.00
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:PARTME...T G e ""V\ -e vD..t,~Q)\

..... IG...EP TO 13 ':J...~, 0"" YJ P 15o,y (-'f )
• tlAI e L-t.) ~ '.<Y},

~~ V\!JN'Y\

;,

TERIAL .HIPPED FROM . -'=~__ n.~. S-P~ GENERAL STORES CRECIT ORDER,
AUDITOR'S CHARGE OR VOUCHER

\,"SON FOR SHIPMENT FOR JOURNAL ENTRY NUMBER /
LOC4TION

. ;
~-t.-~

(.~.. ~ \STOREROOM TRANS,
NUMBER CODE ACCOUNT

CODE
ISSUED BY i. .. J.."x... /. , " /ANSFER TO ~ XXXXXX XXXXXX I

4NSFER FROM 6 APPROVED
(ISSUING LOC.)

,UING LDC,
(T':~~~~'c~~;~)_N •• COD~ .) DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT PRICE AMOUNTCODE CLASS CODE

P-"\'\..4 ot '-1- DV,",,~f I.~ .fo,
~

I
-

...

1\ ,~J"OP' THIl ... OVII ..... TEIU .. L .. CHECK c. ..."II:'Ul.LY • .NOTING ANY .HDRTAGE OR IIRl.AKAGE.

(Ir ~JL ;i-1.~3~·MATERIAL RECEIVED (D" ,2..1..- 7:>
BY

'l'r "..

DATE ---jf-::...-.....:.....:........:..::--!.:-.:::.... _

C.-.RE OF _

CHARGES _

,RKS .......'-- .:..- _(J I
APPROVED _

:J -GENERAL STORES TRANSFER NO.
• ••• , • ., 110M .·7.2

o SHIPPING MEMORANDUM NO. /:; :1I ,f
TIERRA-B-006237



r PUBLIC SERVICE ELE<:;TRIC AND GAS COMPANY F
{.. CUI' 71eL C?r_-=OE!'ARTMENT \

AUDITORS CHARGE
NOTE----WHIERE MATERIA.L IS RETURNED. STATE REASON. SHOW DATE OF SHIPPER"S BILL AND COIlPA"'Y·. ofllOER NUMBER 'UNDER WHICH ..... TE:.U .. L WAS PURCt1AS:E:

'ARK WtTtf X wHr;YHER TR....NSPORTA.TION CHA.RGES AilE PREPAIDOA COLLECT. IF MATERIAL. R~URNI:D 'S TO liE RI:.~L.ACED. N'£W REQUISITION MUST BE ISSUED TO COYE{
l-UB REPORT TO BE M".OiE IN TRIP£..ICATF-. TWO COPtES TO BE SENT TO T'l-fE VU:E PRESIDENT ....ND COMPTROLLER. TI-I£ OTHER TO BE KE.PT ON FILE IN THE LOCAL of",..CE.

//~117t/
CHARGE4tUln€- 6/l.e.eeL-I

d"krn e...
/.",£.3/2';;

OU;..t"'TlTY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE, AMOvNT

/·d'71, Ci'sLLa/) j) /2.c...J/?? S

. 1("·- e().9/.t/~?".= ().;)~

LOCAL OFFICE
NUMBER

AUTH. NO. AND/OR
ACCOUNT

CORRECT

GENERAL OFFiCE
NUMBER

AMOUNT

, j

••. _ 1. __ ._ ••••••....
• x

__________________ 4 __, -! .. _.• ~. - - . ~- . - ~_•• ~~~~- _••• ~••• ~~- - .. - - ~- ~. ~_.•••• - ~~.: - ~- r _. - ~ - - t ~- - ~- - .. : -. - - -. - - ~~- .-

x xi' ---i------~-----X--~~·- ....... ~... _ .. - -- .~--.- - - - - ...~-- _ ... _ .. . ....---------------
• x

• <
iC -------Ji--.--- --j • •

x •

--I---~~·-·-·~··········~·r-··-····1 :.. x·

/.- -~
__ ~ _ ll"

, i !- ------
.----_.... --"i' _.. -- --I x •................... ,

• x

----------t-----
i ....... , .... -

x

_ x --.. ~...... ----1··_···_·

AC59167
__l

.:,"!:: .\C·':CUNT CNl_-: :"0
~,;'C:-f .~::- -HE: ,~80V1.E 2LuC;<.::5
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--~ ~{I ......-, .....

AUDITORS CHARGE
NOTE-WHERE ....ATEREAL IS RETURNI!:C. STATE REASON. SHOW DATE ~R·. luLL AND COMPANY'. OROI!"R Nu ... ER UNDt!:R WHICH ~"'TE"~.A.L W,,"S PURCHASE

"'A.RK WITH X W'HETH,£:R TRANSPORTATION cHARG:I!$ ARE PREPAID OR COL1,LCT. IF' MA.TERI.U .. RETURNED IS TO liE: REPLACED. NEW REQUISITION WUSl aE ISSUED TO COVE
-HI. REPORT 1'"0 RE MADf: • .., TRIPLIC~T~. TWO COPIES TO BE SENT TO THE VICZ:: PRES2DENT AND CO'JIIIP"f'RO....'LI!R. THr: OTHER TO BE KEPT ON Fil.E IN THE LOCAL OFFICE.

'"

DATE 5// /2-1- OIS.TRICT~ ~eo .57'127/DIV1
ORDER NO.

CHARGE~/::e ~6.eeeec; V ~R-<..r01 (!~,ADDRESS t'1vi-t.-c-i'"~ AJ .J
___ .s..=;....4-n~'--'--'---'£,.....--...'=----------_ADDRESS -JJ9rn::=- ~-'~~-,,-._,J2...::::::_==. _

DATE OF SHIPMENT ~'?f
llHIPPED TO

QUANT1TY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

L~-"

! ;X; I;';"'l'."'-,-

NO Zl2

CORREC

AUTH. NO. ANOIOR
ACCOUNT

AMOUNT

.
::2~ OL)

. ..
/7, (J-rJ

1 __ ••

i/'7· o--c)

GENERAL OFFICE
NUMBERLOCAL OFFICE

NUMBER

~-~.). " .
.......~__. .!__m : ; •••• m ••• : _· ---~------··< I > ~..

, / ~ / ;Z !--=------:.---..:.--~~-
I

, I '.- _. - - ~~.- - - - - - . - - - _ _. - .
j( I ...

I

,---_._------•
_ ••• .:. ~ A __ u._j.u ~U. _~ _:u ._.u,~ T

·1 <
<

/~/~
~ ----- --: j, .,

. ,
, .

ACfi0812
i ..
! I

;:;:.E ACCOUNT ONL.Y TO
",':'CH OF THE ABOVE &LOCK:5

TOT:'L
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June II', 1974

Bayonne Barrel & DrumCo.

Same

Their Truck

SameSHIPPED TO -=-===;:;.,. oUlDRE •• ::...;== _
DATE OF .HIPMENT May 13, 1974 VIA ===;.=..--===-====- CHARGE. COLLECT PREPAID _

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT P"'ICE I AMOUNT

120 120.00Emptv Barrels 1.00

Sale of Emptv Barrels.

ShiDP1.ng Memo No. 7168

A I

f

APPROVED

TOTAL ./" ./ -' ./ 120...00
~l'o.,"

CORRECTr ~ ~~ ~-
LOCAC" OFFICE

NUMBER AMOUNT
AUTH. NO. AND/OR

ACCOUNT
DISTRICT OR DI\IISION GENERAL OFFICE

INDIVIDUAL OR COMPANY NUM8ER

.x:ll: • 11: JC:II: x II: X X~ ·x·_-- -i-· · - · --i--- _-........--- ----i- __ --_.._ ii""" --- ---x- _ ---_ ..- ~ --- 'if- -- -- ·i •· ·.......---_-x- ·- __ x "'-_............-- ---- _.:i:- -"'-"'''x·'' --

APPR~? iAoI1033
FOR ETf'Y y. E506.10 1513 120.00

. .._.._-_.._-~----- ..----- - -- -..-- -i: __..__...;.-.-_ _ -····-·· -·i-- · -..~---.,. _--- -- --..i ·--···i-· ..·__· ----- ---..-~__ -:-_ -

'j
1··:i."_._-~~-----~ _ -:-.-- -- - .__ .x ~.__~ x x .K It 11: X .... ------ ----.;, _··"·-x··_·~ ------ -----------it--------·x ..· -- ..· ---. w·--······*.----- --- -.....•... -------.-- -.. -.

------j -__a .".;'."" •• -- ••• _-- ---- ---~ ----- --~ •• - ~ ••••• - ~_ •••• - ••• _- ••• -.- ---- -i ------···-i···· --- _.:--.-.-.-..~--.._-----.-.----..i ~- -- . -.- .• - .•• a_. -)i -·-··-·~-it------·

111:. III X )( X • X :I.x :I" x-----x········x-·-----· .. _._------ii-- -- •••. --- -.• - ••• - -- ·it -~--- --.----...•-·········i·- -._.---. -..······ x··· *-.- ---- -.. - ······--jt-·~----.-----*._----)i-.-- - -.. -'Iii: •••••• -

x J[ il: It' .. X &::1 •• • I..----.•·----··x ..······ ----------- -1:- - ••• - - •••. --- - ••• ---·-f---· -- -- ----- .-- .. ·x· - •••••• - •••••• _._ ~ •• __ ._- ·--i---------z---r ........• - ••• ---.-.--. • .. ··-x··· -.~.- _---.-..------- .. 1IC ••• - --

._ x•• _ _l! - __ l!._ •••••• _•• •••• ~. •..•. a ?'. •••.• _'! • _. ._~ _. . _. __~_. _. ••••••••• _.x !l•.•.. _ _.__ _~ ._~_•.~ ~__
• x x X 11:. X'JI' 11:][ X 11:

BUFf" FORM WITK PUNCHING ON SIDE TO BE
~AS DUPLICATE ONLY.

ONE ACCOUNT ONLY TO
EACH OF THE "SOVE BLOCKS TOT"L 120.00
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.'

~~~ •. to.. Ie •

. - .;~:. ..,:~~..: .

.:.": ,','

......

DEPARTMENT :-& till' ,1 ..... ,. 'I"*~":.....• t1;-J"~. :...-.. --------

:ON".N'D TO 1?:, 9A~iJl4It,..., ... CAR<0> _

i." A tt-'f' .;- J •.r: VIA _--::;,l7f-·· ......,:::_If':.=.. _" _

,-,';' J Co J ~ ~:[.,.-" r~/.~,.J=_'------= ---:::==-=-=----
A.T

CHARGES ~------

MATERIAL SHIPPED FROM

STOREROO ..... TRANS. LOC"TIO~ T· ~.
{V., :J

NUMBER CODE
ACCOUNT CODE ISSUED BY

TRANSFER TO tI XXXXXX XXXXXX

TRANSFER FRO ..... 6
APPROVED

(ISSUING LOCJ

ISSUING LOC,
(~~:;~~'C~~;~)'T"AN., COOlE .) DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT PRICE A .....OUNT

.us COOlE CUI. eOPIII[ .
i.~.•1.. ill. .1:It IZ 1)0 .

• f: .

#

,.,. "-I!:.CE.IP"T0 ... THE AaOVE MATE-RIAL. C;HE.CK. CA ...E. ... ULLY. NOTING ANY 8H.ORTAGII. OR .R~KAGIt. .m -~ Jl~6~" ..-5-1 ')p7Y
'ATE MATERIAL RECEIVED BY V- .

GENERAL STORES CREDIT ORDER,
AUDITOR'S CHARGE OR VOUCHER
FOR .I0URNAL ENTRY NUMBER

/tEASON FOR SHIPMENT

EMARKS _

APPROVED _

o GENERAL STORES TRANSFER NO. D SHIPPING MEMORANDUM NO. 7 I I" ~
OPS~G 95·2115 '!10M ~·71

TIERRA-B-006241



~leatric DEPARTMENT
AUdiTORS'" CHARGE

NOTE-wtt~~1: WJ;TER:AL IS JlEiUR ....ED. sTATE Re:ASON. SHOW CAT:E: OF SHIPPER'S lULL AND COMPANY'S ORDER NUMBER UNDER WHIcH MATERIAL WAS "URCHASt
't'RK WITH X WH~THER TRANSPORTATION CHARGES ARE PREPAID OR COU ...EC1~lr· ".T="tIAL RETURNEO IS TO BE REP~C.ED. N£W R~QUI51T10N wUST BE ISIIUI[D TO cO'lr
~I"'IS RLPonT TO BE ,.. ...DE IN 'T'HIPLICATf::. TWO r:OPIES TO BE SENT TO THE v,c;:E PRESIDENT AND co",Pl"ROl,.l".ER. THE OTHER TO HIE KEPT ON F'L£ ."" TH~ LOCAL OFF'Cr:.

DATE 3-28---1.4-.------~~ DISTRICT ----..lt-AU+~ Ma=tn~;It; _. • .... ~.

Same

OROER NO.

& Drum

Same
CHARGE

NJ. 07105

11-26-74
QUANTITY Cf=:SCRIPTtON I UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

18 sm. Drums
----~ .I ----'- ----'- _

__________ ---+tL."-'O>LO"'-----;-------'~...uJ-.L---

I

J 8,00

Drums
#8891

returned on
attached.

Check #3896 attached=-=--=:.=..:==..._-----

-~." "'T-~-----'-->.H--''---4--~HL-----

TOTAL

CORRECT jm APPROVED ~/..:'\.,--30oL---------_----------_

LOCAL OFFICE
NUMBER

AUTH. NO. AND/OR
ACCOUNT

I DISTRICT OR DIVISION I
;INDIVIDUAL OR COMPANY

GENERAL OFFICE
NUMBER

AMOUNT

.... ~.~-~~.~ ~----------~-- -_ - _._-~_ .. _ _._ ..~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-
.. .,-~' i.. '1' A-671

. /~,D

• x L: x Jf I' :Ie X ~_ • _ _ . _ __ __ __ __ _ _ ..•• __ ~ ••• . _. __ ~ ••• ~ ••• w. •• _ ••••••. _. _ . __ . _ ... r _ ••••

:x 1t' I x 'll: , X ·x '
_. ••••• •• L.

X •

E993.841 1181 18.00

••.••••• x, •••• _. __ ,!,_. r ••• t __
x •

_._.>--------[

j"/ .~q.;
/1·· --:6.X"I/--~- .v; -'-----;----~---";"""-----------;---""7----;.---_::---__c:"--------------~-----------

.'
.
"

, .
l

---!

.
--_ .... :

. .. ,

• 1

--------..;:..:-----~----~_.
aUFFFCRM \VliH PU:--ICHiNG ~N ~IDE -:(') 8E

1.J5EO ..:..~ CUPL:.:::.:.TE ·):a...
ONE ACC:::'UNT ~:-':L·( -:-0
-:=:"':'C~iOF -'~E ':"~O'/!:: !;LOCKS

TOTAL

TIERRA-B-006242



....- )f
\

(

\
'.

').,.-".~.
DEPARTM£NT _~ -------~----~"'T""---~-

CO'OOD'" TD &'S401~'I'l.V
AT )vA)::,y.IL• V

CAIn: OF --------

REASON FOR _1iIPM£NT

1,/, :-'"!,/. /
GIiNERALo STORES Cli'E;;)1T ORDIER,
AUDITOR'S CHARGE OR VOUCHER
FOR JOURN"L ENTRY NUMBER

STOREROOM TRANS, LOC~TlON
ISSU ED BY -:t.}))~ u ItC-r- ,",/' ,:,/2NUMBER CODE ACCOUNT COOl!:

TRANSFER TO !5 XXXXXX XXXXXX

TRANSFER FROM 6
APPROVED

(ISSUING LoDe,)

ISSUING LoOC.
(T~~~~~·C~~~\)(T" ...... r;ODE IJ DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

CL. .... s CODE CLAII CODE

/)~~ ...f Ira,tu/},~~/' /<X~ "'1- . /'

1.;((/ . -j::{" j •,AI ... __", P ./....,~
.A'--- 2-0-

£3 /r.~A1;// ./ -,df'/ rr; ()0
¥ 1A."k /p 2Pf'A)

f

, £qti.~. ~tlJ J I tll
II"~ ,i;;:' LJ L'l tL-. --j-- I I

,
i

i,
i .'
i

"-

ON III:I:CJ:IPT 0' THI: ADOYIl MATJ:'UAL. C.HE.CK CA"EP"ULLY. NOT_HI; 'ANY .HO"TAGE Ollt .,,,aAKAGIE. (J Jd ;(tll)v,r- d bf
DATE MATERIAL RECEIVED 1 \- 'l ~-73 BY

REMARKS ~ _

APPROVED _

o GENERAL STORES TRANSFER NO. o SHIPPING MEMORANDUM NO.... a... '80M .-7&

TIERRA-B-006243



,PUBLIC SE~CE ~!~~CT1~jG"AND GAS COMPANY:

EIe'l!frl.C", DEPARTMENT i
AUDITORS CHARGE .

(
NoTE-WHERE MATERIAL IS RE.TURNED, STATE REASON. SHOW D TE OF SHrIPPER"S BILL AND COWPANY"3 OJrOER NUMBER uND£R WHiCH .,..ATE"AIAL WAS PURCH"SE

." AI{ w~TH X WHE'THEIFI TRANSPORTAT'ON cHARGI:S ARE PRE.P....ID 0 cOL1...ECT. IF MA.T£RIAL Rr:TURNIED .8 TO BE REPL ....CED. NEW REQUIS1TIOH MUST BE ISSUED TO cnVE'
"I-US 'REPORT TO BE M"'''E TN TRrPLIC,A.TE. TWO COPIES TO at: SENT TO THE V1CE PA'I:';SIDEN-r AHDCOMP'T"ROLLER- TIkI~ OT""''ER" TO BE KEPT C"IoNFrLE IN THE LOC.4.L eFFler'.

8-15-74 Linden Generating Station ORDER NO

CHARGE Bayonne Barrel " Drum Co. ADORESSU•S• Hwy. No.1 & Raymond Blvd.Newark, N.J.

Same Same
!lHtPPED TO

7-18-74 Their Truck

QUANllTY
DESCRIPTION I UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

84 84.00

Drum Sale
picked up on 7-18-74
Shipping Memo No. 7283

.... .. .
•.. t. r_~"~V-----

_ •••••••• r • ~ •. . ~·_····_·<··_·_-_··~··········I····_·_·:···_······:··· ..

84.00
C.::>RRECT

APPROVED

LOCAL OFFICE
NUMBER

AUTH. NO. AND/OR
ACCOUNT

: DI5TRICT OR
:!NDIVIDUAL 0

AMOUNT

ES06.10 1513 84.00
,

., \ . _ ..
.:;..;;=""..~

'. .
:r ... i

I

:... - ... " "

'.

ACfl6033

.1.
!

.' '1'
!

._._._~ .._ ...--~.~_.----- _ .._---------~-~--
~.~~E :"'CCC'J:"-IT --:NLY TG
:-,:'.-=:~ ':,;:- -K~ ...ec·...'~ sLoe I'.:)

~OT""'L 84.00
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•

rJ
:ONSIGNEI) TO ~""':"f'~' .LhLJ)(~t.J(.:;.J __ ~.;..:::...::.--::"-,,~ __ .L.-._~~_~":::':::;':: _JL CARE OF _

.A f1-~ ~~~
GENERAl.. STORE:S CREDIT OROER.... ( .;i. AUOITOR'S CHARGE: OR VOUCHE:R

IEASON FOR SHIPMENT '. 4 ·w,," J .. ' FOR JOURNAl.. ENTRY NUMeER

STOREROOM TRANS. L.OCAt.TIOlli j I . i
ACCOUNT

f (

NUMBER CODE CODE
ISSUED BY J , : ....#--...."L,........t.. f ;t, ·f. ·... _,c

rRANSFER TO .5 XXXXXX XXXXXX

iRANSF£R FROM 6
APPROVED

(ISSUING 1..0C.)

ISSUING 1..0C, REC'G.1..0C.
T""Na. 0;000; e) (TRAN'. o;ODE.) DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

..... C:ODIt c.u.s. COOlE

c:....,,"-e t ~, D· ~. ".J" r 8t+.-
I 7

".

.

"

~.t.l" {-yl. ...t:k.
s t c,...t;t.' -n

CHARGES _

~N RI:CE~PT 0" THE ABOV~ ...A.TERI....L. Ctl£CK CAREP"ULI-Y. NOTING ANT .HORTAGE. OR eftEAf(AGE: ..

]-/-:'-i1

APPROVED _

o GENERAL STORES TRANSFER NO. o SHIPPING MEMORANDU M NO. 71- j.3

OPS~G
TIERRA-B-006245



ENTllty

~

50URCE

~c.lJ\ 1
2f r I

ACCOUNTING
P!i:R'IOD
MO. YR.

[(iE'
TITLE

Idl~Jj I I I I I I I I I I j I O PS~G PubliC Se,vice& Electric and Gas
:::.I Company JOURNAL VOUCHER

E
C Lo E
11 M
T E
'N

T

~--.l...---l AU TH OR rz .. TION LOCATION I.!:P:....!..:J.!..:!!.• ...!• .Ll.L_-!
NUh48ER CODE

L M 5 ....u NO

f IT.M HO. AMOUNT
N

R U

8l M
B OTHER

0 E
R

..
E
S
po CN E
11 N
I TB E
I R
L
I
T
Y

ACCOUNT

~.....~.,~
f"
'.

DATE

1-10.7)

TIERRA-B-006246



..OCAl.
OI"I"ICI<
NUMBER TITLE

JOURNAL VOUCHER

p ~G PubhC Service. & Elec·t!ic and aa.
:.; Company

" " v- V.~tCLIll "Q.Il! U,.
T I.. MS.p"" MO.P

iI< H N0 C .. 0 N p... f"~il"'C lil~" AMOUNT UN 11£ C iI< I'! U Rs N 0 ... I M LOCAT~ON EGoC·"CCT.
& Mi T • II: Z .. EXPLANATION.. IE Ii: CODtI a

I "
T N A

'" 0~ T' T E
I1 0 DEalT RT ..y

ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION:

~ 63aNa4L-r ~ eo
U.~ ~f!1 >f- ~~

~)'V1.~.

ettt: hvu ~~

TIERRA-B-006247



JOURNAL VOUCHER
SOURCE "CC:OUNTI,..O

il~~~;lwi ~4(?rVi;~~1
LOC,"L
OFFICE
NUMBER TITLE O PSI·......G PubliC ServIce& ElcCIrlC and Gas

~, ~ Companj
PAGE -LOF ~--I

" wORK ACTIV'TV " V- yEloIlCLE NO.

E U

5 ~1SPECIFIC T L
1
M,S-IIIF1V NO.

N

p It
H

0 C L P ACTIVITY 0 N P.....IP"~ su:1Iit AMOUNT R U

N E
U

5 N
C E

R M LOC"YION E,G,C-ACCT,
M

0 M
I

& EXPLANATION

1 T 5 E
2 B CODE

B

B E T N ACCOUNT "
E liTEM NO,

D

I " T
T R ~\

E

L ~IM"'NT SUB

I

R

1 0
DEBIT CREDIT

T N

..

y

b 8.1
I I T I I I I I I I T Sa ell fJrj IJl<lJM5

7,l,.'1p j1,5; 0, flit) 1010 I I I 1 I 1 I 1 I I l I I I I I I I I I : 1 , I I I 1 Ilf,"~,(,"o , , I

I I I
I ~ 't5"'{) Me H

nK, J j'1,b'r 0 .l.SiS.~,O,O () I
1 , I : , , : 1~,~:50 I

I , I , I I I 1 1 1 I I I 1 I I I I 1 I I I ' I I

./ol?:/':?
I I I I t p~.-? I I I I

1/././ I Lot~././t? I I 1 I , I I 1 I 1 I I I I 1 I I I I I I 1 I , I I , I 1 1 , I

I '1 I : / I
1 I I ._------

I '
I 1 I , 1 I , • 1 I

I 1 I ! I I ~ I I I I I 1 I

, 1
1 I , I 1 I

, I • I I I I t I I

APPrlOVED /1

I I I I I I 1 1 I 1 I
'Uti ,1'1 In -/1

1 , l I I I , , . I , 1 1 I I I I I I I I l I I I I I I I I t 1 1 I 1 1 I I l I I I I I ACCT, 14.11 I

I
, T I

, I T I 1
[)ATE/~ 1/

, 1 I I I I I , , , I ~ , I I I I I I I 1 1 I 1 I I I , I I 1 I : I , I I I , I I
I

, , I

,-
I

. I
I '5Jo:? 'l

I I
1 I I t I I I J.~/'" ._.:-, • /1'~ I

, I I I , , I I I I 1 1 I I 1 I I I , I t I I I 1 I I I I I I I I I t , , I I I I ,
I I I Iii I I I 1 I I 1 I C/' II
I , I I I 1 • I 1 I I I 1'1 I I I I 1 I I I I I I ! I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I l I

I v.f~~
.

8,fJ~(J,D .J{,.TOTAL 1 I • ' 1 I
I

ADDITIONAL

:r

In
{\Pl'JmDIJD
(PIC K.~O V P

~
~~
!

5..
rAX E~\.EMPT. -~

8ftcl~ C1/MZG6 (jfl'l6N!Jt SMt?.6L ~ OdW~ Co. /5t.J--_ ... _ ... -_ ... ,........ ---_._-_ .._,~--_._-_., .. _ ..~--_._--~ ,~..._~- ._._--_.---~ .... _..!_~--_._, .~-

£J LVD· tJ HJJA ~K... '60.3: FDa<.. S:? f3M(Jrl Of(u,Y\-S
fJ ...J 1H{JJ\ L) ru ~LJ f<- ~/ fI\ Cf,-S-3 Ll IJftJl:1J q -23 -7b

INFORMATION.
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LOC:AL
OFFiCE
NUMBEIt TITL&

JOURNAL VOUCHER

~PS'&G ~~.b~:~~:~~c~B.~ I ~ Company
PAGE ~ OF --I--

II WORK ACTIVITY ... V- ..,':HI eLK NO •
E U• ~ISPECIFIC

T L M~p'''u NO.~ • H
N

0 c: L D ACTIVITY 0 N p.. ........ z_ AMOUNT (J
N E c: IE II U R

• N 0 .. I .. l.Oc ......ION E G,C·ACCT. M
I T • & EXPLANATION h,B E • • Z E CODE liTEM NO, B

T N ACCOUNT ... 0
I " T T " E
L ~II

~MAIN I SUB

I R L
T

0 DEBIT CREDIT

y N
.,.

I I I I 1 I I I. I /,,£
~_.~:~

(}.'IJ ::I / 'i"'J f? ..." <....A J' ",,.. '" I • ! I I L I I I • I I I I I I : I I I I I I I.4J 0:0.0 I I JA) . -.
I

-~
, ,

/// .~ - - I ~.L.>'J""" I I I :>-N~' b I I I I ~:
(I...... I I I I I I I I I I , I I I I I I I , 1 , I I I I, I I I , I I I I I I

, , I , I I I I
,

I I I I I I I 1 I I I I I I I I I I I I I I , I I I , I
I I , , ,

A ")

I I ! I , I I
I I I I I I I

I I I
, I

I I ~
do ~/J . .!1

I I I • L I I I I l I I I I I I I I I I
J.•

I I I I I I I I 1 I I 7j~ IJ L//)
I , I I I I I • , I I I I I I I I I I I 1 I I I 1 I I I I I I I I I I I I 1 I , I I , I ~

I I , I -, I I

~ / ?/f.
, I I , I I I I I I

I , I I I I I I I I I I I , I I I I : I , I I I I I I I I L I ~
,

-.
I I

,
7 / t7I I I J I I I I I

, I I I , I I , I I I I , I I I I , I 1 I I I I I I I I I I , I 1.1 I I I I ~ 0:-
I I I I I I I I I I , I~

I • I I I , I I I I I , I I I I I I , , I , I I I I I I , I I , I I I I I I

I'I~'?

N

TOTAL b> , • I !;l./.Lf'/\ ..-I - lit t

A~'DITIONAL
I I ,

APpnOVED •

--
OFFiCE Of.

IN;FORMATION:

tJ'OO

:;.-- / ~ 7.()()
~/s:{)O

~,. . \
,

",
~l

ORIGINAL· GENERAL ACCOUNTING

OFFICE
OF

ORIGIN
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DEPARTMENT

(----.",--., r:."'~"'"
.• ' ,c, ....J \.L::~:;'-·.,.)

• .,.~:. c.-'·' .•_·.. , ..:...:..: --~_:__----------'....:;..c.,,:.<...l';!..../_'" _~/
GErURAt sWRB TRANSFER
AND SHIPPING MEMORANDUM--.- I ---. ?.1 .;'r-'/~. " / ./ .: .- ./

.t::. /../,-,.".. /, / C
CONSIGNED TO

/'
AT -- CARE OF-/7.-, / r)~j ,-.; '- /'.l /:,1/ "" v .--~ ...../' I

iTERIAL S1PED FROM VIA ---7
CHARGES

/ /' -, / ./ c., . v' ',.. oF .., .." / ..J I .
DATE DELIVERY GENERAL STORES CREDIT ORDER

REQUESTED DATE AUDITORS CHARGE OR vOUCHER
FOR JOURNAL ENTRY NUMBER

DATE &'~:s.
REASON FOR SHIPMENT

SHIPPED O ..;p r__;,r-l .+_ ..... • RECEIVINGSTRMNO. TRANS. ACCOUNT
OR R!C NO. CODE

STRM.NO. ~(OR R/CNO; ~.
ISSUED BY ".1._ -.

Transfer To 5 XXXXXx xxxxxx 7
Transfer From 6 C154.114 APPROVED

(ISSUING LOC)

ISSUING LOCo RECEIVING LOCo QUANTITY QUANTITY "TRANS, CODE 6 TRANS. CODE 5 DESCRIPTION SHIPPED
UNIT PRICE AMOUNT coo-

ClASS CODE ClASS CODE
REQUESTED

- -( I
j- " :

'j , /) . ./ / I.' - ~
I

'.

I
I I

,V? 4- ) ,-,I J VI.. J '--0-" r- (;;)~2 . D0- I.,-~ '=' - l

I~~~) i{ J ,. ~'b -I) I
Fe" !'. f VI' VI! r- -rS' =-- ,

0<.-/ ~ 1

~~) -- ,..~...- -- ... k I, ,) ...- n
J L.l ""'-- ~.\( l~' ~

I /I~) "\0 II (1 ~-u .... Ie~ .... ,,,,.' 'v-. ,- . r -- / (1 J ....

,

, ~ I

'/ I

tt' ~ I
•. 'V I

~..,r~/ I
I
I

.:; .) / I

[
.. ;I

~

DATE MATERIAL RECEIVED g- "36-7 2' BY

REMARKS

o General Stores o Shipping
CARRIER'S

0 PS~G COpy

Transfer No. Memorandum No.
) ,- 7i , ','.<,-

95·2165 30M·1017?

ON RECEIPT OF ABOVE MATERIAL. CHECK CARefULLY. NOTING ANY SHORTAGE OR BREAKAGE

TIERRA-B-006250



E::NTRY

\1,011]

ACCOUNTING
F~~--' PE RIDO

MO. V".

~..L..-l.~bi[11]

LOCAL
OFFiCE-
NUMBER Tll'LIt

[Ql;!t 1"6:""> 10 Ii ITO 8. Die _tl1,~kJ I;'I ~

o RNAL VOUCHER

. PSI~GPubliC ServiceUJ Electflc and Gas
:.11 Company

PAGE --L- OF --'~-

EXPLANATION IN
R U

& M

0
B
E
R

I

I

I
I , I

I
I I I

T

I I !
I
I

t I
I

I I
I

!
I ,

I
I I I

AMOUNT

OFFiCE
OF

ORIGIN

TIERRA-B-006251



f/" .. ///( !roJ(/( -I;v,.j ...........
CONSIGNED TO

11.4I1~·1
AT CARE OF.

ff~ ."r. I-'/1/ r ... Ihul?\
MATrt/IAL SHIPPED FROM I

VIA CHARGES1/ L J I, AI (!-PJJ. IIp !1"(,,'tJ
DATE DELIVERY GENERAL STORES CREDIT ORDER

REQUESTED DATE AUDITORS (HARGE OR VOUCHER
FOR JOURNAL fNTRY NUMBER

DATE
. 2 - ! ) ~ 77 REASON FOR SHIPMENT

SHII'PED
\ --- '- 5(1J:J....rJ f)/O I7t (
STOREROOM TRANS,

,
LOCATION .. ,

ACCOUNT +- "NUMBER CODe CODE j.
Transfer To ', 5 xxxxxx XXXXXX ISSUED BY J/YiI,A/pr k~I ,

Transfer From 6
.-

APPROVED
(ISSUING LOC.)

ISSUING LOC. RECEIVING lOCo •
QUANTITY IQUANTITYTRANS. CODE 6 TRANS. CODE 5 DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT ..

REOUESTED SHIPPED .C<>""'" COO! CUlM CODE

I fm;1fl /)/:'m \ ·f~,.. [(~..40. ;7'7 I- I!)' tJ . LfO b1,
/. ,

I_. . ,
I.\

0" I . I"- '. . l
.. . "" !.

I
. I

• I
I

.. -
I
J.

I I

I ," .'
I~''''i.'' " I·. lT Ilh i,

I .
I

)#~ i
h- I

I

7//. I

~
i~.::>~/-- '. I

/./ -/ L~----_k I '.
I

\. I I
1

V - (l., '-'
~"II I

I" , I

"""" \\ \
,

I". I
I

'''" '\.~~ I
I
I

\.,.... ~ I

. "- '. I
DATE MATERIAL RECEIVED () ') )- 77 BY -j

~

, '
{ \ .-....

REMARKS

[J Generol ~lore. Tc~ CARRIER'So Shipf=ing PS~G Copy
Tron >fer No. Memo, ondum No, -

...'t':u"j.2.>:'*:\.": .YiJ3

"-r".-~
::-:-::::-:-:-:=,......------~\- "

DePARTMENT

77 '112.
~5·2165 30M·IO/7S
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:." "1.0('.

ill , • eSt $....sq .*34 ..5.*$'#,== a;:F ..HCW '. " S.4.u:¥r'...'i",.':L .,!""..~"5."
." ...... ~.~:'., ~.':j,~,.'''''_~,. ...:It ' _ ..~ ."_.l,,. • ,- L ..,' ... , ..........

J
\

""'DEPARTMENT
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Aeichhold Chemica's, Inc.
Corporate Headquarters
PO Box 13582
Research Triangle Park, NC 27709-3582

REICHHOLD

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

November 14, 1995

Joseph Cosentino, OSC
Removal Action Branch
Emergency and Remedial Response Division
U. S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region II
2890 Woodbridge Avenue
Edison, NJ 08837

RE: REQUEST FOR INFORMA nON FOR THE BAYONNE BARREL AND DRUM
SITE IN NEW ARK, NJ

Dear Mr. Cosentino:

This letter is in response to the letter from Kathleen Callahan, Director, Emergency and
Remedial Response Division dated September 28, 1995 and sent to Cellomer Corporation
in Newark, NJ. Reichhold Chemicals, Inc. was granted an extension oftime in which to
reply to November 15, 1995.

We submit the enclosed response to "Request For Information" for Cellomer
Corporation. We hereby request copies of any and all records of other documents
pertaining to Cellomer, Polychrome Chemicals Corporation or Reichhold Chemicals, Inc.
("Reichhold") in the possession of EPA or any of their contractors or consultants with
respect to the Site. In addition, we ask that any future communications with Reichhold
with respect to the Site be directed to my attention at the address above.

Very truly yours, . (;;

M . If () /I 1/'VY7 ( ':::JO
'f I CY..'1.\ l" ). L--<./

Naney J. Armisto
Manager - Superfund

cc: Marc Seidenberg, Esq. - EPA, Region II
Attachments

Tel: (919) 990-7500
Fax (919) 990-7711
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BAYONNE BARREL & DRUM SITE
REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

1. General Information About the Company

a. State the correct legal name of the Company.

Reichhold Chemicals, Inc. This information request was sent to "Cello mer
Corp." in Newark, NJ. Cello mer Corp. ("Cellomer") no longer exists. Cellomer
was a subsidiary of Polychrome Chemicals Corporation ("Polychrome Chemicals")
that was merged into Polychrome Chemicals on July 1, 1983. Ownership of all the
shares of Polychrome Chemicals was transferred to Reichhold on April 2, 1988.
Polychrome Chemicals was then merged into Reichhold in March 1989.

B. Identify the legal status of the Company (corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship,
specify if other) and the state in which the Company was organized.

Reichhold Chemicals, Inc. is a corporation incorporated in the state of
Delaware.

C. State the name(s) and addressees) of the President and the Chairperson of the
Board of the Company.

Phillip D. Ashkettle is the President & Chief Executive Officer of Reichhold
Chemicals, Inc. Hiroshi Maeda is the Chairman of the Board of Directors. They
can be reached through Reichhold Chemicals, Inc.

D. If the Company has subsidiaries or affiliates, or is a subsidiary of another
organization, identify these related companies and state the name(s) and addressees) of
the President(s) and the Chairperson(s) of the Board of those organizations. Provide such
information for any further parent/subsidiary relationships.

See Attachment #1.

E. If the Company is a successor to, or has been succeeded by, another company,
identify such other company and provide the same information requested above for the
predecessor or successor company.

Not applicable.

F. If the Company transacted business with Bayonne Barrel & Drum in the name
of an entity not disclosed above, give the name of such entity and state its relationship to
the Company.
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To the best of Reichhold's knowledge and belief, the facility located on
Albert Ave., Newark, NJ ("Albert Ave.") transacted business with Bayonne Barrel
& Drum prior to Reichhold's acquisition of the facility. See Question 1a.

2. Company's Relationship to Bayonne Barrel & Drum

a. State whether the Company or any Company facility transacted any business
with Bayonne Barrel & Drum for the disposal, treatment, or storage of any barrels,
drums, or other containers (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Containers").

Yes.

I. If so, describe the relationship (nature of services rendered or products sold to
the Company) between the Company and Bayonne Barrel & Drum;

To the best of Reichhold's knowledge and belief, the Albert Ave. facility
purchased reconditioned drums from Bayonne Barrel & Drum and sent empty
drums to Bayonne Barrel & Drum for reconditioning prior to Reichhold's
acquisition of the facility.

II. Provide copies of contracts or agreements between the Company and Bayonne
Barrel & Drum;

None have been located.

III. For each facility, state the nature of the operations conducted at the facility,
including the time period in which the facility operated; and

Upon information and belief, Vita-Var Paint Manufacturing began
operations in the 1930's which continued through 1966. In 1966 Cellomer
purchased the facility from the Vita-Var Company, Division of Textron, Inc.
Cellomer manufactured synthetic resins and polymer coatings at the facility
beginning in 1966 until 1983. This activity was continued by Polychrome Chemicals
from 1983 through 1989. Reichhold continued such activity to the present

IV. For each such facility, state its name, address, and current RCRA
Identification Number.

Reichhold Chemicals, Inc. 46 Albert Ave., Newark, NJ 07105.
NJD048797195.

B. In addition, if the Company transacted business with Bayonne Barrel
& Drum, provide the following information for each transaction:
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1. Identify the specific dates of each transaction. Where an exact date canriot be
provided for a transaction, provide an approximation by month and year;

Reichhold has no information regarding specific dates of transactions with
Bayonne Barrel and Drum. To the best of Reichhold's knowledge and belief, all
transactions took place prior to Reichhold's acquisition of the facility.

II. Identify the number of Containers that were the subject of each such
transaction;

Reichhold has no information regarding the number of Containers that were
the subject of each such transaction. To the best of Reichhold's knowledge and
belief, all transactions took place prior to Reichhold's acquisition of the facility.

III. Generically describe each Container that was the subject of each such
transaction (example: closed-head steel drums, etc.);

Reichhold has no information regarding the type of Containers that were the
subject of each such transaction. To the best of Reichhold's knowledge and belief,
all transactions took place prior to Reichhold's acquisition of the facility.

IV. Identify the intended purpose of each such transaction;

To the best of Reichhold's knowledge and belief, the Albert Ave. facility
purchased reconditioned drums from Bayonne Barrel & Drum and sent empty
drums there for reconditioning prior to Reichhold's acquisition of the facility.

v. State whether each Container that was the subject of the transaction contained
any substance at the time of the transaction. As to each Container that contained any
substance:

Reichhold has no knowledge regarding whether or not any Container
contained any substance at the time of any transaction. To the best of Reichhold's
knowledge and belief, all transactions took place prior to Reichhold's acquisition of
the facility.

(I) Identify each such substance, including its chemical content, physical
state, quantity by volume and weight, and other characteristics; and

Not applicable.

(2) Provide all written analyses that may have been made for each such
substance or which may be in the custody or control of the Company and all material
safety data sheets, if any, relating to each such substance;
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Not applicable.

vi. If you contend that any such Container did not contain any substance at the
time of the transaction:

Reichhold has no knowledge regarding whether or not any Container
contained any substance at the time of any transaction. To the best of Reichhold's
knowledge and belief, all transactions took place prior to Reichhold's acquisition of
the facility.

(l) State whether such Container had previously been used by the
Company to contain any substance, and if so:

Reichhold has no knowledge regarding whether or not any Container had
previously been used to contain any substance. To the best of Reichhold's
knowledge and belief, all transactions took place prior to Reichhold's acquisition of
the facility.

(a) Identify all substances previously contained within such Container,
including its chemical content, physical state, and other characteristics; and

Not applicable.

(b) Provide as to such substances, all written analyses that may have been
made for each such substance or which may be in the custody or control of the Company
and all material safety data sheets, if any, relating to each such substance:

Not applicable.

vii. Describe in detail any treatment of any Container that may have been
performed by or on behalf of the Company prior to the time that the Container was
transferred from the Company, including any process or procedure by which the
Container was emptied or cleaned;

Reichhold has no knowledge regarding any treatment of any Container that
may have been performed prior to the time that the Container was transferred
fromlto the facility. To the best of Reichhold's knowledge and belief, all transactions
took place prior to Reichhold's acquisition of the facility.

viii. Provide copies of all documents relating in any way to each transaction,
including copies of delivery receipts, invoices, or payment devices;

Reichhold has been unable to locate any documents relating in any way to
any transactions with Bayonne Barrel and Drum.
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ix. Identify all persons who might have knowledge of the transaction or who had
any responsibility regarding the transaction; and

To the best of our knowledge and belief, Lou Caplan, a manager at
the facility, had responsibility for all transactions with Bayonne Barrel and Drum.
Mr. Caplan is deceased.

x. If you sent any Container by means of any third party transporter, identify each
such transporter, including the name and address of such transporter, and identify in
which of the transactions such transporter acted.

Reichhold has no information regarding any third party transporters
who may have sent containers to the Site. To the best of Reichhold's knowledge and
belief, all transactions took place prior to Reichhold's acquisition of the facility.

3. Identify any other person (e.g., individual, company, partnership, etc.) having
knowledge of facts relating to the questions which are the subject of this inquiry. For
each such person that you identify, provide the name, address, and telephone number of
that person, and the basis of your belief that he or she has such knowledge. For past and
present employees, include their job title and a description of their responsibilities.

Mik Gasparik, who was employed at the facility from 1978 to 1988 recalled
that the Albert Ave. facility purchased drums from Bayonne Barrel and Drum and
sent empty drums to Bayonne Barrel & Drum for reconditioning sometime during
that period. He has been unable to provide any other specific information regarding
any transactions with Bayonne Barrel & Drum. Mr. Gasparik is currently a
Production Manager for Reichhold Chemicals, Inc. and can be reached through
Reichhold. Reichhold has no knowledge of any other person who has knowledge of
facts relating to these questions.

4. Identify each person consulted in responding to these questions and correlate each
person to the question on which he or she was consulted.

All persons consulted in responding to these questions were consulted
regarding the entire questionnaire. In addition to Mik Gasparik, the following
persons were consulted though none of them had any information regarding
Bayonne Barrel and Drum:

Paul Brustofski - Regional Environmental Engineer
Ron Kurtz - Environmental Manager
Eric Lau - Chemist/Safety Coordinator
Greg Lodato - Material Purchasing Supervisor
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Mike Baxi - Previous Environmental Engineer for the Albert Ave. Facility
Lena Bridgeman - Previous Controller for the Albert Ave. Facility

All of these individuals are employed by Reichhold Chemicals, Inc. and can be
reached through Reichhold.

5. Provide a list of all insurance policies and indemnification agreements held or entered
into by you that may indemnify you against any liability that you may be found to have
under CERCLA. Specify the insurer, type of policy, effective dates, and state per
occurrence policy limits for each policy. Copies of policies may be provided in lieu of a
narrative response. In response to this request, please provide not only those policies and
agreements that are currently in effect, but also those in effect since your company began
sending containers to the Site.

See Attachment #2.

6. State whether there exists any agreement or contract (other than an insurance policy)
which may indemnify the Company, present or past directors, officers or owners of
shares in the Company, for any liability that may result under CERCLA. Provide a copy
of any such agreement or contract. Identify any agreement or contract that you are unable
to locate or obtain.

Reichhold knows of no such agreement or contract.

7. Supply any additional information or documents that may be relevant or useful to
identify other sources who disposed of or transported Containers to the Site.

None known.
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